Diplomat Pharmacy, Inc. Form 424B4 October 10, 2014

Table of Contents

Filed Pursuant to Rule 424(b)(4) Registration No. 333-197224

13,333,333 Shares

Diplomat Pharmacy, Inc.

Common Stock

This is the initial public offering of shares of common stock of Diplomat Pharmacy, Inc.

We are selling 10,000,000 shares of common stock, and the selling shareholders identified in this prospectus are selling 3,333,333 shares of common stock. We will not receive any proceeds from the sale of shares by the selling shareholders.

Prior to this offering, there has been no public market for our common stock. The initial public offering price of the common stock is \$13.00 per share. Our common stock has been approved for listing on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol "DPLO."

We and the selling shareholders each have granted the underwriters an option to purchase up to an additional 1,000,000 shares of common stock (an aggregate of 2,000,000 shares of common stock) to cover overallotments of shares, if any.

Investing in our common stock involves risks. See "Risk Factors" beginning on page 18.

| | | U | Inderwriting | | Proceeds to | | Proceeds to |
|-----------|-------------------|----|---------------|----|---------------|----|--------------|
| | Price to | D | iscounts and | | Diplomat | | the Selling |
| | Public | Co | ommissions(1) | Pl | narmacy, Inc. | 9 | Shareholders |
| Per Share | \$ 13.00 | \$ | 0.8775 | \$ | 12.1225 | \$ | 12.1225 |
| Total | \$ 173,333,329 | \$ | 11,700,000 | \$ | 121,225,000 | \$ | 40,408,329 |

(1) We have agreed to reimburse the underwriters for certain expenses in connection with this offering. See "Underwriting (Conflicts of Interest)".

Delivery of the shares of common stock will be made on or about October 16, 2014.

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any state securities commission has approved or disapproved of these securities or passed upon the adequacy or accuracy of this prospectus. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

Credit Suisse

Morgan Stanley

J.P. Morgan

Wells Fargo Securities

William Blair Leerink Partners

The date of this prospectus is October 9, 2014.

Table of Contents

TABLE OF CONTENTS

| TRADEMARKS AND TRADE NAMES | <u>i</u> |
|---|------------|
| INDUSTRY AND MARKET DATA | <u>ii</u> |
| PROSPECTUS SUMMARY | 1 |
| RISK FACTORS | 18 |
| SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS | 38 |
| USE OF PROCEEDS | 40 |
| DIVIDEND POLICY | <u>41</u> |
| CAPITALIZATION | 42 |
| DILUTION | 44 |
| SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA | 46 |
| MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS | <u>51</u> |
| <u>BUSINESS</u> | <u>71</u> |
| MANAGEMENT | <u>96</u> |
| EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION | <u>101</u> |
| CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS | <u>115</u> |
| PRINCIPAL AND SELLING SHAREHOLDERS | <u>119</u> |
| DESCRIPTION OF CAPITAL STOCK | <u>122</u> |
| DESCRIPTION OF INDEBTEDNESS | <u>127</u> |
| SHARES ELIGIBLE FOR FUTURE SALE | <u>129</u> |
| MATERIAL U.S. FEDERAL INCOME AND ESTATE TAX CONSIDERATIONS FOR NON-U.S. HOLDERS OF COMMON | |
| <u>STOCK</u> | <u>131</u> |
| UNDERWRITING (CONFLICTS OF INTEREST) | <u>135</u> |
| <u>LEGAL MATTERS</u> | <u>140</u> |
| EXPERTS | <u>140</u> |
| WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION | <u>141</u> |
| INDEX TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS | F-1 |

You should rely only on the information contained in this prospectus or to which we have referred you. None of us, the selling shareholders or the underwriters have authorized anyone to provide you with information that is different from that contained in this prospectus or any free-writing prospectus prepared by us or on our behalf. We do not, and the selling shareholders and the underwriters do not, take any responsibility for, and can provide no assurances as to, the reliability of any information that others provide to you. We and the selling shareholders are offering to sell, and seeking offers to buy, shares of common stock only in jurisdictions where offers and sales are permitted. The information contained in this prospectus is accurate only as of the date of this prospectus, regardless of the time of delivery of this prospectus or of any sale of the common stock.

Until November 3, 2014 (25 days after the commencement of this offering), all dealers that buy, sell or trade shares of our common stock, whether or not participating in this offering, may be required to deliver a prospectus. This delivery requirement is in addition to the obligation of dealers to deliver a prospectus when acting as underwriters and with respect to their unsold allotments or subscriptions.

For investors outside the United States: none of we, the selling shareholders or any of the underwriters have done anything that would permit this offering or possession or distribution of this prospectus in any jurisdiction where action for that purpose is required, other than in the United States. You are required to inform yourselves about and to observe any restrictions related to this offering and the distribution of this prospectus outside of the United States.

TRADEMARKS AND TRADE NAMES

This prospectus includes our trademarks and trade names, such as DIPLOMAT® and DIPLOMAT SPECIALTY PHARMACY®, which are protected under applicable intellectual property laws and are our property. This prospectus also contains trademarks, trade names and service marks of other companies, which are the property of their respective owners. Solely for convenience, trademarks and trade names referred to in this prospectus may appear without the ®, TM or SM symbols, but such references are not intended to indicate, in any way, that we will not assert, to the fullest extent under applicable law, our rights or the right of the applicable licensor to these trademarks, trade names and service marks. We do not intend our use or display of other parties' trademarks, trade names or service marks to imply, and such use or display should not be construed to imply, endorsement or sponsorship of us by these other parties.

i

INDUSTRY AND MARKET DATA

Certain information contained in this prospectus concerning our industry and the markets in which we operate is based on information from publicly available independent industry and research organizations and other third-party sources, and management estimates. Management estimates are derived from publicly available information released by independent industry and research analysts and third-party sources, as well as data from our internal research, and are based on assumptions made by us upon reviewing such data and our knowledge of such industry and markets, which we believe to be reasonable. We have also included information derived from Diplomat patient and physician satisfaction surveys that were conducted by a third-party research organization commissioned by us. We believe the data from these third-party sources is reliable. In addition, projections, assumptions and estimates of the future performance of the industry in which we operate and our future performance are necessarily subject to uncertainty and risk due to a variety of factors, including those described under "Risk Factors" and "Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements." These and other factors could cause results to differ materially from those expressed in the estimates made by these third-party sources.

Table of Contents

PROSPECTUS SUMMARY

This summary highlights information appearing elsewhere in this prospectus and does not contain all of the information that you should consider in making your investment decision. Before investing in our common stock, you should read the entire prospectus carefully, including the sections titled "Risk Factors" and "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" and our consolidated financial statements and related notes included elsewhere in this prospectus. Unless the context suggests otherwise, references in this prospectus to "Diplomat," "the Company," "we," "us" and "our" refer to Diplomat and its consolidated subsidiaries.

Business Overview

We are the nation's largest independent specialty pharmacy and are focused on improving the lives of patients with complex chronic diseases. We believe we have a unique patient-centric approach that positions us at the center of the healthcare continuum for the treatment of these diseases and enables us to drive superior care coordination through partnerships with patients, payors, pharmaceutical manufacturers and physicians. We offer a broad range of innovative solutions to address the dispensing, delivery, dosing and reimbursement of clinically intensive, high-cost specialty drugs. We believe that we are a chosen partner for leading biotechnology and pharmaceutical companies based on our ability to deliver customized support services and dispense new drugs to complex chronic disease patient populations. As a result, we believe we are well positioned to continue expanding our market share in the high-growth \$63 billion specialty pharmacy industry.

Diplomat has a long track record of growth and innovation. We were founded in 1975 by our Chief Executive Officer, Philip Hagerman, and his father, Dale, both trained pharmacists who transformed our business from a traditional pharmacy into a leading specialty pharmacy. In 2005, we began to expand the scope of our specialty pharmacy business from a small, regional operation to a large national enterprise, allowing us to capitalize on the growth of the specialty pharmacy market from approximately \$20 billion in sales in 2005 to \$63 billion in sales in 2013, representing a compounded annual growth rate of approximately 15%. As a result, we have grown our revenues organically to over \$1.5 billion in 2013, achieving a compounded annual growth rate of over 65% since 2005, and we are now the fourth largest overall specialty pharmacy in the United States, with a 2% overall market share (based on 2013 revenues from pharmacy-dispensed specialty drugs). To achieve this growth, we have consistently strengthened our clinical expertise in key therapeutic categories, such as oncology and immunology, broadened the scope of our services to retailers, hospitals and health systems and strengthened our relationships with patients, payors, pharmaceutical manufacturers and physicians.

We focus on specialty drugs that are typically administered on a recurring basis to treat patients with complex chronic diseases that require specialized handling and administration as part of their distribution process. We have expertise across a broad range of high-growth specialty therapeutic categories, including oncology, immunology, hepatitis, multiple sclerosis, HIV and specialty infusion therapy (which involves infusing specialty pharmaceuticals for rare and chronic genetic disorders, primarily for hemophilia and immune globulin treatment). Our comprehensive, patient-focused services ensure that patients receive a superior standard of care, including assistance with complicated medication therapies, refill processing, third-party funding support programs, side effect management and adherence monitoring. We customize solutions for each patient based on the patient's overall health, disease and family history, lifestyle and financial means. Although generally we do not track or quantify specific cost savings for patients and payors, we believe we reduce long-term costs for patients and payors by improving patient care, enhancing clinical outcomes, managing high-risk members, monitoring patient adherence, and optimizing the utilization of specialty drugs, many of which can cost well over \$100,000 per patient, per year. This value proposition to payors and patients has helped us expand our managed lives under contract from approximately 5 million in 2009 to approximately 13 million in August 2014. We define managed lives under contract as patients enrolled in a managed

1

Table of Contents

care organization network including pharmacy benefit managers, health plans, state governments, employer groups and unions with whom we contract, through exclusive and preferred relationships with such organizations, whereby we are the only authorized or one of a few preferred specialty pharmacy providers to the patients in their system.

Collectively, our unique ability to enhance patient adherence to complex drug regimens, to collect and report data, and to ensure effective dispensing of complex specialty medications supports the clinical and commercial needs of pharmaceutical manufacturers. Furthermore, our patient and provider support services ensure appropriate drug initiation, facilitate patient compliance and persistence, and capture important information regarding safety and effectiveness of the specialty medications that we dispense. Our services, together with our proactive engagement with pharmaceutical manufacturers early in the drug development process, have contributed to our current and growing access to limited distribution drugs, which we define as drugs that are only available for distribution by a select network of specialty pharmacies. Our inclusion in limited distribution networks provides critical sources of revenue growth and provides a catalyst for our future growth.

Our core revenues are derived from the customized care management programs we deliver to our patients, including the dispensing of their specialty medications. Because our core therapeutic categories generally require multi-year or life-long therapy, our singular focus on these complex chronic diseases helps drive recurring revenues and sustainable growth. Our revenues grow, in part, as we help more patients access the drugs they need in order to live longer and healthier lives. As a part of our mission to improve patient care, currently we provide specialty pharmacy support services to a national network of 8 retailers and independent pharmacy groups, representing approximately 4,500 stores and 49 hospitals and health systems. For many of our retail, hospital and health system partners, we earn revenue by providing clinical and administrative support services on a fee-for-service basis to help them dispense specialty medications. Thus, our patient-focused solutions benefit multiple partners across the healthcare continuum, which we believe drives the sustainability of our business model.

Market Opportunity

Specialty pharmaceuticals represent a significant and growing total addressable market. The specialty pharmaceutical market has experienced significant growth in recent years as complex chronic conditions, care coordination, technology-enabled patient care, biotechnology research and outcomes-based healthcare have increased in focus. The total specialty pharmaceutical market represented approximately \$92 billion in drug spend in 2012. Total specialty pharmaceutical drug spend covered under the pharmacy benefit was approximately \$51 billion in 2012 and is estimated to grow to \$118 billion by 2018. Specialty drugs are managed not only under the pharmacy benefit, but also under the medical benefit. Payors typically determine whether a particular specialty drug is covered under the pharmacy benefit versus the medical benefit based on such factors as the patient's ability to self-administer, the degree of clinical support required, the need for patient monitoring and the site of care (e.g., hospital or home). Increasingly, drugs that have historically been reimbursed under the medical benefit are being moved to the pharmacy benefit by health plans and pharmacy benefit managers to better manage care and contain costs. We believe that our track record and leadership in limited distribution drug programs will create opportunities for us to gain market share in this growing segment of the specialty pharmacy market.

In addition, while our historic focus has been pharmacy benefit, we believe that the medical benefit represents a significant additional revenue opportunity for us and expect it to have a bigger impact in our business going forward. Specialty drugs reimbursed under the medical benefit have also expanded rapidly in recent years and were approximately \$39 billion, or approximately 45%, of the total specialty drug spend in 2012. Specifically, we view specialty infusion (which, for our purposes, includes infusion therapies for hemophilia, hereditary angioedema and immune globulins), with approximately 60% of the costs of such therapies covered under the medical benefit, as an attractive

Table of Contents

market due to significant projected growth and higher margins, and we intend to continue to invest in this important and growing area of our existing business. In addition, specialty medication provided under the medical benefit (typically office administered, hospital outpatient clinic administered, administered in the home setting, or in an infusion clinic) is more difficult to manage and control the cost of in comparison to specialty medication managed under the pharmacy benefit. The increased difficulty is, in part, because under the pharmacy benefit, claims are adjudicated electronically at the point of sale, which allows for dosage controls and cost verifications to take place before specialty medications are dispensed. In contrast, medical claims are processed after specialty medications are dispensed, which limits the payor's ability to verify costs, dosage amounts, and number of units dispensed. We believe the significant value of the management strategies and services implemented by specialty pharmacies under the pharmacy benefit has led to payors engaging with specialty pharmacies to provide similar assistance to help control spend and cost trends attributed to specialty medications under the medical benefit. We are well positioned to provide these services to payors due to our expertise in specialty pharmacy as well as the resources to manage medications under the medical benefit.

Growth in specialty drug spend is significantly outpacing the broader pharmaceutical market. Specialty drugs are the fastest growing segment of the pharmaceutical market, and spend in this segment is estimated to grow at approximately 20% annually from 2013 to 2018, whereas traditional drug spend is expected to grow in the low to mid single digit percentage range. Specialty pharmaceutical products are targeted towards high-cost complex medical conditions, have fewer direct substitutes than traditional pharmaceuticals and face limited near-term generic market entry. These factors limit competition and drive higher prices. Additionally, specialty drug approvals comprised over 50% of all Federal Drug Administration ("FDA") drug approvals in 2013 as pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies have continued to invest in specialty drug development. This trend is expected to continue, driven by a robust pipeline of specialty drugs, which represent approximately 40% of the total number of drugs that we believe may receive FDA approval within the next twelve months.

Oncology and immunology, therapeutic categories in which we believe we are a leader, are large and growing therapeutic categories within the specialty pharmaceuticals industry. The oncology market represented 29% of specialty pharmaceutical sales in the U.S. in 2013. The immunology market, including the disease states rheumatoid arthritis, psoriasis and Crohn's disease, also represents a large and growing specialty market. We believe these two therapeutic categories will continue to grow, given that there are over 400 oncology and immunology drugs currently in clinical development which represent over 40% of the biologics pipeline. Further, there are over 3,000 oncology and immunology drugs in global drug development. Given the chronic nature of these disease states, we provide recurring services to these patients over long periods of time. In 2013, we generated over 70% of our revenues in oncology and immunology, and our historical growth has largely been driven by our position as a leader in these categories.

Competitive Strengths

We are the nation's largest independent and fourth largest overall specialty pharmacy, with a 2% overall market share (based on 2013 revenues from pharmacy-dispensed specialty drugs). We believe we are well positioned to continue to increase our market share based on the following competitive strengths.

Adding value to all constituents. The value we deliver to all constituents is centered upon our core focus on patients. We help patients adhere to complicated medication therapies, process refills and manage any side effects and insurance concerns to ensure they get the best standard of care. The clinical efficacy of drug therapies, especially for acute and chronic conditions, is typically enhanced when patients precisely follow the prescribed treatment regimens (including dosing and frequency). On

Table of Contents

the other hand, we believe, though we do not internally track, that medication non-adherence (i.e., patients not following the instructions for their medication or failing to finish taking their medication) can contribute to a substantial worsening of disease and, in some cases, accelerated mortality which increases hospital and other health care costs. We have achieved patient adherence rates of over 90% for the last six fiscal quarters. We believe our high adherence rates are, in part, due to, among other things, our patient training and education, compliance packaging, prophylactic starter kits and nurse adherence calls. We also help identify third-party funding support programs to help cover expensive out-of-pocket costs. In 2013, we helped our patients successfully obtain \$24 million of funding assistance to help cover out-of-pocket co-pay costs. Our focus on patients and our related patient-support programs have allowed us to achieve an overall patient satisfaction rate of approximately 99%.

Supporting our core focus on patients, we also serve the following key constituents:

- (1) Payors: We manage prescription regimens for chronically ill populations and help payors, which include insurance plans and pharmacy benefit managers, reduce costs through customized specialty pharmacy programs. Our electronic patient care platform, centered on our disease-specific technology solution, is customized for each payor's needs and is designed to improve efficiency and lower costs. For example, through our partial fill program of dispensing prescriptions with less than the typical 30-day supply, we promote more frequent direct intervention and tracking of patients and their therapies by our highly trained clinical experts.
- (2) Biotechnology and Pharmaceutical Manufacturers: We offer specialized and highly customized prescription programs for pharmaceutical companies to help them optimize and track patient adherence which helps drive the clinical and commercial success of specialty drugs. In addition, we partner with pharmaceutical manufacturers early by helping them develop specialty pharmaceutical channel strategies as part of their commercial launch preparation.
- (3) Physicians and Health Systems: Our team works with physician offices to manage prior-authorization and other managed care organization requirements, such as denial and appeal

Table of Contents

process, to ensure that complicated administrative tasks do not impair the delivery of quality patient care. Additionally, we provide risk evaluation services, implement risk mitigation strategies and collect patient adherence data to provide physicians and health systems with enhanced visibility. Our transparency and support has led to a physician satisfaction rate of approximately 97%.

(4) Retailers and Hospitals: We provide clinical and administrative support services for our retail and hospital partners on a fee-for-service basis. Based on our broad industry experience, infrastructure and treatment-tracking software, our retail specialty network solution provides customized clinical and administrative support services that help retailers and their specialty patients improve financial outcomes. We provide hospitals with unique solutions to maximize cost containment, improve efficiency and clinical outcomes from specialty pharmaceuticals. Our programs also support hospitals that are 340B covered entities, which are organizations that provide access to reduced price prescription drugs to health care facilities in accordance with the federal 340B Drug Pricing Program and which that have been certified by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, through a contracted pharmacy strategy.

Significant and longstanding payor relationships approximately 13 million managed lives under contract. Currently, we partner with 46 regional and mid-sized payors and independent pharmacy benefit managers to improve patient outcomes and lower costs by managing high-risk members and implementing patient-focused specialty programs. Although we do not collect aggregate data on the clinical outcomes of our patients (including with respect to any correlation between adherence and patient outcomes), we believe we improve the clinical outcomes for high-risk members through adherence monitoring, patient education and clinical intervention because we believe the benefit of effective pharmaceuticals, especially for acute and chronic conditions, will only be achieved if patients follow the prescribed treatment regimens (including amount and timing of doses) reasonably closely. We offer payors access to limited distribution drugs and unique cost containment programs, including partial refill programs, clinical management and motivational interviewing techniques for improving adherence. We believe that medication non-adherence is the largest avoidable cost in specialty pharmacy because it contributes to a substantial worsening of disease and death and significantly increases hospital and other health care costs, and that our strong adherence rates benefit patients and payors. We believe that our focus on high-touch patient care, reflecting our therapy management and support services through multiple interactions by our clinical, operational and administrative personnel, and our experience with high-risk populations makes us well-positioned for the anticipated growth in managed lives under the Affordable Care Act, particularly with respect to managed Medicaid coverage.

Partner of choice for biotechnology and pharmaceutical manufacturers. We believe that our role as the partner of choice for many biotechnology and pharmaceutical manufacturers is based on the following attributes:

Expertise in managing limited distribution drugs. We have historically earned access to many limited distribution drugs, both at the time of their launch and post-launch. We actively monitor the drug pipeline and we maintain dialogue with many of the major biotechnology and pharmaceutical manufacturers to identify opportunities in all pre-commercial stages of drug development. We believe that limited distribution is becoming the delivery system of choice for many drug manufacturers because it facilitates high patient engagement, clinical expertise and elevated focus on service. Furthermore, we believe that our innovative solutions and service-oriented culture set us apart from our competitors, have enabled us to win a large number of limited distribution contracts and is more appealing than our competitors' platforms to emerging biotechnology firms and the boutique consulting firms that advise them. We believe that the trend toward limited distribution of specialty drugs will continue to expand in the future, making strong representation in this area essential. Accordingly, we believe our current portfolio of over

Table of Contents

70 limited distribution drugs, all of which are post-launch, positions us for disproportionate growth as more limited distribution drugs come to market.

Proven track record of adding value. We believe we outperform our competitors in providing services that benefit specialty drug manufacturers. Our superior services are driven by our clinical expertise in oncology, immunology, hepatitis, multiple sclerosis, HIV and specialty infusion. We offer targeted pilot programs, full reporting capabilities and a variety of additional services that support patients' medication adherence when clinically appropriate. We believe these superior services and capabilities were a primary driver of our gaining access to, and becoming the largest of five specialty pharmacies authorized to, dispense Imbruvica, Pharmacyclics' Mantle Cell Lymphoma drug launched in November 2013.

Breadth of channel partners. In addition to maintaining our strong relationships with payors, physicians, manufacturers and patients, we also partner with retailers, hospitals and health systems by providing critical patient-facing clinical and administrative services that help support the specialty pharmacy capabilities of these constituents. These partnerships broaden our exposure and influence across the healthcare continuum.

Relationships with clinical experts and key opinion leaders. Our singular focus on specialty pharmacy and complex chronic diseases has enabled us to develop strong relationships with clinical experts and thought leaders in key therapeutic categories, such as oncology and immunology. We leverage these relationships to gain greater visibility into future drug launches and to stay current on the latest advances in patient care.

National footprint with highly scalable infrastructure. During the past several years, we have made significant investments to expand our capabilities and capacity, which we believe will help us to enhance sales volume, improve efficiency and create significant barriers to entry. In December 2010, we moved our corporate headquarters to a 550,000 square foot facility in Flint, Michigan. Our operations within this facility, are highly scalable, as we currently utilize approximately 40% of the facility giving us significant capacity to execute our long term growth plan without significant additional capital expenditures. Our physical footprint has enabled us to develop a centralized infrastructure that we have successfully scaled to dispense to all 50 states. We now have an advanced distribution center that enables us to ship medications nationwide as well as a centralized clinical call center that helps us deliver localized services on a national scale. In addition to our headquarters, we also operate smaller regional facilities in Flint, Michigan; Grand Rapids, Michigan; Chicago, Illinois; Ft. Lauderdale, Florida; Ontario, California; Enfield, Connecticut; Raleigh, North Carolina; and Springfield, Massachusetts. We are fully accredited and licensed to conduct business in each of the states that require such licensure.

Strong financial profile combines sustainable growth and low capital intensity. Our financial profile is comprised of a recurring revenue model that is driven by the chronically ill populations we serve. As a result, we have demonstrated strong growth in revenue and profitability. We have achieved consistent revenue and Adjusted EBITDA growth with revenues increasing from \$377 million in 2009 to \$1,515 million in 2013 and Adjusted EBITDA increasing from \$6 million in 2009 to \$19 million in 2013, representing compound annual growth rates of 42% and 33%, respectively. Net income (loss) was \$(4) million in 2009, which includes non-operating expenses of \$8 million, and net income (loss) was \$(26) million in 2013, which includes non-operating expenses of \$37 million. See "Selected Consolidated Financial Data" for our definition of Adjusted EBITDA, why we present Adjusted EBITDA and a reconciliation of our Adjusted EBITDA to net income (loss). We expect our growth to continue to be driven by a highly visible and recurring base of revenues, favorable demographic trends, advanced clinical developments, expanding drug pipelines, earlier detection of chronic diseases, improved access to medical care, manufacturer price increases and mix shift toward higher-cost specialty drugs. In addition, we believe that our expanding breadth of services, our growing penetration

Table of Contents

with new customers, and our access to limited distribution drugs, will help us achieve significant and sustainable growth and profitability in future.

Highly experienced and passionate management team. Our senior management team, which consists of six executives, has an average of over 26 years of experience in the pharmacy and specialty pharmacy industry and represents a group of highly recognized and respected industry veterans. Led by our Chief Executive Officer and co-founder Philip Hagerman, our management team is responsible for our proven track record of growth, consistent performance and industry leading service. Mr. Hagerman, a licensed pharmacist and recognized specialty pharmacy industry thought-leader, is a frequent speaker at state and national pharmacy conferences and has received several awards as a leading business executive in the country, including recognition by the White House Business Council for his leadership in job creation and community development. Our senior management team has an average tenure with Diplomat of over 12 years and brings a healthy balance of significant experience with Diplomat and with other companies in the industry, including public companies. In addition, our broader sales, clinical and operations team, has deep clinical expertise and currently includes over 70 licensed pharmacists.

Growth Strategy

We plan to grow our business by continuing to execute on the following key growth strategies:

Capitalize on track record to expand leadership positions in high-growth oncology and limited distribution markets. We believe our track record of providing a customized, high level of service to our manufacturer partners in the oncology and immunology markets has led to repeat contract awards and initial limited distribution contracts related to new drugs our partners bring to market. For example, we believe our success as a distributing pharmacy for Zytiga, a metastatic castration resistant prostate cancer drug approved by the FDA in April 2011, helped earn us limited distribution access to Xtandi, another metastatic castration resistant prostate cancer drug approved by the FDA in August 2012. Xtandi has grown to become one of our top 10 drugs with over \$40 million in annual sales in 2013. Our clinical and sales teams consistently engage our emerging biotechnology partners on commercialization strategy 12 to 18 months in advance of potential FDA approval. These pre-existing relationships position us to capture market share in these high-growth markets. One example was the launch of Cometriq, a drug currently indicated for a form of thyroid cancer, on which we collaborated with the manufacturer and became the exclusive distributor.

Expand clinical expertise to a broad range of therapeutic categories. We serve a broad range of therapeutic categories, and we believe we can expand our clinical expertise to increasingly penetrate additional markets such as hepatitis, multiple sclerosis, HIV and specialty infusion. We believe these categories will become increasingly important to our patient population in the coming years due to advancement of therapies and increased incidences of chronic illness and that our platform will allow us to grow with market expansion. Specifically, we view specialty infusion as an attractive market due to significant projected growth and higher margins, and we intend to continue to invest in this important and growing area of our existing business. Additionally, orphan and ultra-orphan drugs, which are associated with relatively small patient populations, are an increasingly important focus for us as the specific characteristics of these categories make utilization and compliance particularly challenging.

Deepen and expand partner relationships. We currently contract with and support regional and mid-sized payors and independent pharmacy benefit managers, employer groups, and union groups representing approximately 13 million managed lives across the United States. We plan to continue to work with our current clients to grow their membership and are focused on expanding our client base nationally. In addition to providing specialty pharmacy services for self-administered medications covered under the pharmacy benefit, we also offer office-administered medications covered under the medical benefit to ensure that we provide a full spectrum of care to our specialty patients regardless of

Table of Contents

type of their benefit coverage and where they receive care. Further, our partnerships with retail pharmacies and hospitals allow us to serve specialty patients beyond the traditional specialty pharmacy approach. These partnerships allow patients to more easily access specialty medications in the retail setting and also positions Diplomat to be a key partner for Accountable Care Organizations, which are networks formed by groups of doctors, hospitals, and other health care providers that share financial and medical coordination of services to patients to limit unnecessary spending and to create an efficient patient care system.

Grow high-margin businesses and capitalize on investments to enhance key operating metrics. In May 2014, we contracted to significantly expand our retail customer base and expand our opportunities through a service contract with Novation, LLC (which includes Provista, LLC and VHA Inc.), one of the largest hospital networks and group purchasing organizations. In addition, our continued expansion into the infusion market will provide us with opportunities to capitalize on a market which historically has provided higher margins. We have made significant investments in our technology, infrastructure and service lines to build a scalable foundation for growth, which we believe provides meaningful opportunities to grow revenues and enhance key operating metrics. We believe our investments in technology, both completed and in-process, will improve our operating cost profile and provide valuable revenue opportunities, as we enhance our data collection and delivery capabilities, services that are highly valued by our partners. Finally, we currently utilize approximately 40% of our 550,000 square foot facility in Flint, Michigan (purchased in 2010), providing meaningful capacity as we continue to scale our business.

Selectively pursue growth through strategic acquisitions. We believe the specialty pharmacy industry is highly fragmented and provides numerous opportunities to expand through acquisitions. While we will continue to focus on growing our business organically, we believe we can opportunistically enhance our competitive position through complementary acquisitions in both existing and new markets. For example, in December 2013, we completed the acquisition of American Homecare Federation, Inc. ("AHF"), a specialty infusion therapy provider focused primarily on hemophilia. In June 2014, we acquired MedPro Rx, Inc. ("MedPro"), a specialty pharmacy focused on specialty infusion therapies including hemophilia and immune globulin. Specialty infusion is differentiated from traditional home infusion in that it requires highly customized services and level of care with therapies that can exceed \$300,000 in costs per patient per year. We anticipate our future revenues derived from specialty infusion pharmacy services will increase significantly as a percentage of total revenues as a result of these acquisitions. Additionally, we plan to selectively evaluate potential acquisition opportunities in other therapeutic categories, services and technologies, with the goal of preserving our culture, optimizing patient outcomes, enhancing value to other constituents and building long-term value for our shareholders.

Risk Factors

Investing in our common stock involves a high degree of risk. You should carefully consider the risks described under "Risk Factors" before making a decision to invest in our common stock. If any of these risks actually occurs, our business, results of operations, financial condition or prospects could be materially and adversely affected. Below is a summary of some of the principal risks we believe we face:

anticipating and adapting to significant changes, trends, consolidation and increasing participation in the specialty pharmacy industry could adversely impact our ability to compete;

pricing pressures from payors and pharmaceutical manufacturers may adversely affect our profitability;

Table of Contents

failure to maintain our existing relationships, and build new relationships, with key pharmaceutical manufacturers, physicians, payors, retailers, hospital and health systems would have a material and adverse effect on our business;

complying with, and changes to, significant state and federal regulations could restrict our ability to conduct our business or cause us to incur significant costs;

we may not have the resources, purchasing power or operating efficiencies to compete successfully with leading specialty pharmacies;

any significant adverse matters regarding the top specialty drugs we dispense, or disruptions in the supply chain of these specialty drugs, would have a material and adverse impact on our business and financial performance;

we may not be able to successfully implement our organic growth or acquisition strategy;

our Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board of Directors will control the outcome of matters submitted for shareholder approval, and he may have interests that differ from those of our other shareholders; and

our inability to identify and remediate any future material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting, which would impair our ability to produce accurate and timely financial statements.

Recent Developments

Business Acquisitions

On December 16, 2013, we acquired all of the outstanding stock of AHF for a total acquisition price of approximately \$13.4 million, excluding related acquisition costs of approximately \$0.5 million. Included in the total acquisition price is \$12.1 million in cash and contingent consideration fair valued at \$1.3 million with a maximum payout of \$2.0 million, that is based on the achievement of certain revenue and gross profit targets in each of the years ending December 31, 2014 and 2015. AHF is a specialty pharmacy which focuses on patients with bleeding disorders, such as hemophilia, and is headquartered in Enfield, Connecticut. AHF generated \$21.8 million in revenue and \$4.9 million in gross profit, or 22.5% of revenue, in the nine months ended September 30, 2013. We acquired AHF to provide us access to certain direct purchase agreements with key hemophilia manufacturers and to expand our specialty infusion expertise. The results of operations for AHF are included in our consolidated financial statements from the acquisition date.

On June 27, 2014, we acquired all of the outstanding stock of MedPro for a total acquisition price of approximately \$68.2 million, excluding related acquisition costs of \$0.6 million. Included in the total acquisition price is \$52.0 million in cash, 716,695 shares of our Class B Nonvoting Common Stock, valued at approximately \$12.0 million, and contingent consideration fair valued at \$4.2 million, with a maximum payout of \$11.5 million, that is based on the achievement of certain revenue and gross profit targets for each of the twelve months ending June 30, 2015 and 2016. In connection with our acquisition of MedPro, we increased our line of credit to provide for comparable borrowing availability under the line of credit following the acquisition. See "Amendment to Line of Credit." MedPro is a specialty pharmacy focused on specialty infusion therapies, including hemophilia and immune globulin, based in Raleigh, North Carolina. MedPro generated \$82.7 million of revenue and \$16.8 million of gross profit, or 20.3% of revenue, in the year ended December 31, 2013. We acquired MedPro to expand our existing specialty infusion business and to increase our presence in the mid-Atlantic and Southern regions of the country. The results of operations for MedPro are included in our consolidated financial statements from the acquisition date.

Table of Contents

Issuances of Preferred Stock

Prior to the issuance of preferred stock on January 23, 2014, as described below, we had 36,337,500 common shares outstanding and 41,277,683 diluted common shares outstanding assuming a price of \$16.74 per share.

On January 23, 2014, we sold to certain funds of T. Rowe Price, 2,986,228 shares of Series A Preferred Stock at a purchase price of \$16.74 per share. We used \$20.0 million of the \$50.0 million investment proceeds for general corporate purposes, including fees associated with the transaction, and the remaining \$30.0 million was used to redeem shares of common stock and common stock options.

On April 1, 2014, we sold to certain funds of Janus Capital Group, 3,225,127 shares of Series A Preferred Stock at a purchase price of \$16.74 per share. We used \$25.2 million of the \$54.0 million investment proceeds for general corporate purposes, including fees associated with the transaction, and the remaining \$28.8 million was used to redeem shares of common stock and common stock options.

As of August 31, 2014, certain funds of T. Rowe Price and Janus Capital Group beneficially owned 15.5% in aggregate of our common stock (on an as-converted basis from Series A Preferred Stock to common shares).

Amendment to Line of Credit

On June 26, 2014, we entered into an amended and restated credit agreement with GE Capital Bank, as agent, Comerica Bank, JP Morgan Chase Bank, N.A. and Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., as additional lenders. The amended and restated credit agreement provides an increase in our revolving line of credit (the "revolving line of credit" or "line of credit") to \$120.0 million. The amount available for borrowing under the revolving line of credit is the lesser of \$120.0 million and the sum of 85% of eligible accounts receivable and a portion of eligible inventory, less any outstanding letters of credit and swing loans. Additionally, our revolving line of credit permits incremental increases in the line of credit or issuance of term loans up to an aggregate amount of \$25.0 million, subject to specified conditions. For a further description of our line of credit, see "Description of Indebtedness."

Change in Tax Status

Prior to January 23, 2014, we had elected to be taxed under the provisions of Subchapter S of the Internal Revenue Code. Therefore, we did not pay federal corporate income taxes on our taxable income. Instead, our shareholders were liable for individual federal income taxes on their respective shares of our taxable income. Distributions were made periodically to our shareholders to the extent needed to cover their income tax liability based on our taxable income. On January 23, 2014, in connection with the shares of Series A preferred stock sold to certain funds of T. Rowe Price on such date, we changed from an S Corporation to a C Corporation. Therefore, we will pay federal corporate income taxes on our taxable income for periods after such date. The historical audited financial results included elsewhere in this prospectus reflect our results as an S Corporation before January 23, 2014.

Our Corporate Information

Diplomat Pharmacy, Inc. is a Michigan corporation, and our principal executive offices are located at 4100 S. Saginaw St., Flint, Michigan 48507. Our telephone number is (888) 720-4450. Our website address is *www.diplomat.is*. The reference to our website is intended to be an inactive textual reference only. The information contained on, or accessible through, our website is not part of this prospectus or the registration statement of which this prospectus forms a part, and you should not rely on this information in making a decision to invest in our common stock in this offering.

Table of Contents

The Offering

Common stock offered by us Common stock offered by the selling

shareholders
Common stock to be outstanding immediately

after this offering Overallotment Option

Use of proceeds

Controlled company

10,000,000 shares

3,333,333 shares

50,448,744 shares

The underwriters have an option to purchase a maximum of 1,000,000 additional shares of our common stock from us and an additional 1,000,000 shares of common stock from the selling shareholders (an aggregate of 2,000,000 shares of common stock) to cover overallotments, if any. The underwriters may exercise this option at any time within 30 days from the date of this prospectus.

The net proceeds to us from this offering, after deducting the underwriting discount and estimated offering expenses, will be approximately \$119.0 million, based on the initial public offering price of \$13.00 per share.

We will not receive any proceeds from the sale of shares by the selling shareholders, including sales by the selling shareholders pursuant to the underwriters' overallotment option. The selling shareholders will not be responsible for any offering expenses, other than their proportionate share of the underwriting discounts and commissions. We intend to use the net proceeds from this offering to repay indebtedness and for working capital and other general corporate purposes. See "Use of Proceeds." Certain affiliates of the underwriters are lenders under our line of credit that will be repaid with net proceeds of this offering. As a result of this repayment, we expect a "conflict of interest" will be deemed to exist under FINRA Rule 5121(f)(5)(C)(i), and this offering will be made in compliance with the applicable provisions of FINRA Rule 5121. See "Underwriting (Conflicts of Interest) Conflicts of Interest". Upon the completion of this offering and pursuant to a voting agreement with members of his immediate family and various trusts, which has been joined in by Jeff Rowe, our Executive Vice President, Operations, and certain trusts controlled by Mr. Rowe, Philip Hagerman, our Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of our Board of Directors, will control approximately 59.8% of the total voting power of our outstanding common stock, (or 56.7% of the total voting power of our common stock if the underwriters exercise their overallotment option in full). As a result, we will be considered a "controlled company" under the corporate governance listing standards of the New York Stock Exchange. As a controlled company, we will be exempt from the

Table of Contents

obligation to comply with certain New York Stock Exchange corporate governance

requirements. See "Management."

Dividend policy We expect to retain all future earnings, if any, for use in the operation and expansion

of our business and do not anticipate paying any cash dividends in the foreseeable

future. See "Dividend Policy."

Risk factors Investing in our common stock involves a high degree of risk. See "Risk Factors"

beginning on page 18 of this prospectus for a discussion of the risks and uncertainties

you should carefully consider before deciding to invest in our common stock.

New York Stock Exchange symbol "DPLO"

The number of shares of our common stock to be outstanding after the completion of this offering is based on 40,076,258 shares of our common stock outstanding as of June 30, 2014, and excludes:

6,235,348 shares of our common stock issuable upon the exercise of options outstanding as of June 30, 2014 under the Diplomat Pharmacy, Inc. 2007 Option Plan (the "2007 Option Plan"), with a weighted average exercise price of \$6.64 per share:

4,000,000 shares of our common stock reserved for future issuance under our 2014 Omnibus Incentive Plan (the "2014 Omnibus Plan" or the "omnibus plan") as of the date hereof, which will be effective prior to the completion of this offering; and

372,486 shares of our common stock issued to certain trusts affiliated with Deborah L. Ward, the sister of Philip Hagerman, our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, on August 12, 2014 in exchange for cancellation of certain contractual rights. See "Certain Relationships and Related-Party Transactions Related-Party Transactions Company Loans."

Unless otherwise indicated, the information in this prospectus assumes:

immediately prior to the completion of this offering, in the following order:

the conversion of all shares of our Series A Preferred Stock into shares of our Class C Voting Common Stock on a one-for-one basis;

the filing of our amended and restated articles of incorporation and the adoption of our amended and restated bylaws;

the conversion of all shares of our Class A Voting Common Stock, Class B Nonvoting Common Stock and Class C Voting Common Stock into shares of our common stock on a one-for-one basis;

the conversion of all options to acquire Class A Voting Common Stock and Class B Nonvoting Common Stock into options to acquire shares of our common stock on a one-for one basis; and

a stock split effected as a stock dividend of 8,500 shares for each share of our common stock to our common shareholders of record immediately prior to the completion of this offering, with an adjustment to the number of options to acquire shares of our common stock and exercise price therefor to be proportionately adjusted;

no exercise of outstanding stock options since June 30, 2014; and

no exercise by the underwriters of their option to purchase additional shares of our common stock from us or the selling shareholders to cover overallotments, if any.

Accordingly, all share and per share amounts presented in this prospectus have been adjusted, where applicable, to reflect such conversions and stock dividend. Nevertheless, this prospectus retains references to terminology of Class A Voting Common Stock, Class B Nonvoting Common Stock, Class C Voting Common Stock and Series A Preferred Stock on a historical basis.

12

Table of Contents

Summary Consolidated Financial Data

The following table summarizes our consolidated financial data and other data for the periods and at the dates indicated. We derived the consolidated statement of operations data for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 and the consolidated balance sheet data as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 from our audited restated consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this prospectus. We derived the consolidated balance sheet data as of December 31, 2011 from our audited restated consolidated financial statements that do not appear in this prospectus. We derived the unaudited consolidated statement of operations data for the six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 and the unaudited consolidated balance sheet data as of June 30, 2014 from our unaudited restated consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this prospectus. We have prepared the unaudited consolidated financial statements on the same basis as the audited consolidated financial statements and have included, in our opinion, all adjustments, consisting only of normal recurring adjustments that we consider necessary for a fair presentation of the financial information set forth in those statements.

We derived the unaudited pro forma financial information for the year ended December 31, 2013 and the six months ended June 30, 2014 and as of June 30, 2014 from the unaudited pro forma financial information included elsewhere in this prospectus.

Our historical results are not necessarily indicative of the results to be expected for any future period, and the results in the six months ended June 30, 2014 are not necessarily indicative of the results for the full year or any other period. The following information should be read together with the information under the headings "Capitalization" and "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" and our consolidated financial statements and related notes included elsewhere in this prospectus. The unaudited pro forma consolidated financial information does not necessarily represent what our financial position, results of operations and other data would have been if the transactions had actually been completed on the dates indicated, and are not intended to project such information for any future period. See "Use of Proceeds" and "Index to the Consolidated Financial Statements" Unaudited Pro Forma Consolidated Financial Information".

Table of Contents

| | For the six | months ended , | June 30, | For the year ended December 31, 2013 | | | | | | | | |
|--|--------------|------------------|--------------|--------------------------------------|----------------|--------------|-------------|--|--|--|--|--|
| | Pro-Forma(1) | 2014(2) | 2013 | Pro-Forma(3) | 2013(4) | 2012 | 2011 | | | | | |
| | | (Dollars in thou | ısands, exce | pt per share an | d per prescrip | tion data) | | | | | | |
| | (| (Unaudited) | | | | | | | | | | |
| Consolidated Statement of | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Operations Data Net sales | \$ 1,051,132 | \$ 1,007,352 | \$ 704 525 | \$ 1,626,233 | \$ 1,515,139 | \$ 1 126 9/3 | \$ 771,962 | | | | | |
| Cost of goods sold | (984,008) | | (663,883) | | (1,426,112) | (1,057,608) | (715,448) | | | | | |
| <i>g</i> | (- , , | (* 1, 11, | (111,111, | ()= = /- | () / | () / / | (1 2) | | | | | |
| Gross profit | 67,124 | 59,077 | 40,642 | 112,585 | 89,027 | 69,335 | 56,514 | | | | | |
| Selling, general, and administrative | (57,006) | (51.024) | (25,000) | (100.594) | (77.044) | (64.202) | (47, 424) | | | | | |
| expenses | (57,826) | (51,024) | (35,988) | (100,584) | (77,944) | (64,392) | (47,434) | | | | | |
| Income from operations | 9,298 | 8,053 | 4,654 | 12,001 | 11,083 | 4,943 | 9,080 | | | | | |
| · | , , , , | ,,,,, | , | | ,,,,, | , | | | | | | |
| Interest expense Change in fair value of redeemable | | (895) | (941) | | (1,996) | (1,086) | (598) | | | | | |
| common shares | | 957 | | | (34,348) | (6,566) | | | | | | |
| Equity loss of non-consolidated entity | (710) | (710) | (311) | (1,055) | (1,055) | (267) | (95) | | | | | |
| Other income | 607 | 517 | 112 | 275 | 196 | 337 | 764 | | | | | |
| Income (loss) before income taxes | 9,195 | 7,922 | 3,514 | 11,221 | (26,120) | (2,639) | 9,151 | | | | | |
| Income tax expense(5) | (3,592) | (4,557) | | (3,970) | | | | | | | | |
| Net income (loss) | 5,603 | 3,365 | 3,514 | 7,251 | (26,120) | (2,639) | 9,151 | | | | | |
| Net income allocable to preferred shareholders | | 401 | | | | | | | | | | |
| Net income (loss) allocable to | Ф 5.602 | ¢ 2064 | Ф 2514 | ¢ 7.051 | ф (26.120) | ф (2.620) | Ф 0.151 | | | | | |
| common shareholders | \$ 5,603 | \$ 2,964 | \$ 3,514 | \$ 7,251 | \$ (26,120) | \$ (2,639) | \$ 9,151 | | | | | |
| Weighed average common shares outstanding(6): | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Basic | 50,076,258 | 3,691 | 3,899 | 50,076,258 | 3,899 | 3,899 | 3,899 | | | | | |
| Diluted Net income (loss) per common share(6): | 52,351,672 | 3,970 | 3,976 | 50,787,732 | 3,899 | 3,899 | 4,029 | | | | | |
| snare(0): Basic | \$ 0.11 | \$ 803.16 | \$ 901.32 | \$ 0.14 | \$ (6,699.13) | \$ (676.74) | \$ 2,346.96 | | | | | |
| Diluted | \$ 0.11 | \$ 746.81 | \$ 883.77 | \$ 0.14 | \$ (6,699.13) | \$ (676.74) | \$ 2,271.36 | | | | | |

Edgar Filing: Diplomat Pharmacy, Inc. - Form 424B4

| Adjusted EBITDA(7) | \$ | 17,584 | \$ | 14,083 | \$ | 7,704 | \$ | 29,672 | \$ | 18,970 | \$ | 10,852 | \$ | 15,121 |
|--|----|---------|----|---------|----|---------|----|---------|----|---------|----|---------|----|---------|
| Prescriptions dispensed(8) | | 397,000 | | 381,000 | | 352,000 | | 752,000 | | 722,000 | | 680,000 | | 602,000 |
| Prescriptions serviced (not dispensed)(9) | | 102,000 | | 102,000 | | 97,000 | | 208,000 | | 208,000 | | 118,000 | | 7,000 |
| Total prescriptions | | 499,000 | | 483,000 | | 449,000 | | 960,000 | | 930,000 | | 798,000 | | 609,000 |
| Net sales per prescription | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| dispensed(10) | \$ | 2,641 | \$ | 2,639 | \$ | 1,993 | \$ | 2,156 | \$ | 2,090 | \$ | 1,652 | \$ | 1,282 |
| Gross profit per prescription dispensed(11) | \$ | 162 | \$ | 148 | \$ | 109 | \$ | 142 | \$ | 116 | \$ | 97 | \$ | 93 |
| Net sales per prescription serviced (not dispensed)(12) | \$ | 27 | \$ | 27 | \$ | 25 | \$ | 27 | \$ | 27 | \$ | 29 | \$ | 49 |
| Gross profit per prescription serviced (not dispensed)(12) | \$ | 27 | \$ | 27 | \$ | 25 | \$ | 27 | \$ | 27 | \$ | 29 | \$ | 49 |
| Adjusted EBITDA per prescription(13) | \$ | 35 | \$ | 29 | \$ | 17 | | 31 | \$ | 20 | | | \$ | 25 |
| presemption(15) | Ψ | 33 | Ψ | 2) | Ψ | 1 / | Ψ | 31 | Ψ | 20 | Ψ | 17 | Ψ | 23 |

As of June 30, 2014

149,150

stock(16)

equity(16)(17)

Shareholders' (deficit)

| | Pr | o-Forma as | | | | | As of December 31, | | | | | | | |
|-----------------------------|------------------------|---------------|----|---------|-----|---------|--------------------|----|---------|------|---------|------|---------|--|
| | | | | |) . | Actual | | | 2013 | 2012 | | 2011 | | |
| | (Dollars in thousands) | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | (Unaudited) | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Consolidated Balance | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Sheet Data | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Property and equipment, net | \$ | 12,900 | \$ | 12,900 | \$ | 12,900 | | \$ | 12,378 | \$ | 12,634 | \$ | 16,930 | |
| Total assets | | 357,195 | | 338,909 | | 338,909 | | | 211,777 | | 139,595 | | 100,380 | |
| Total debt | | | | 100,718 | | 100,718 | | | 88,164 | | 63,102 | | 12,942 | |
| Total liabilities | | 208,045 | | 308,763 | | 347,186 | | | 289,559 | | 191,157 | | 130,471 | |
| Redeemable preferred | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |

101,815

(110,092)

(77,782)

The unaudited pro forma consolidated financial information for the six months ended June 30, 2014 gives effect to: (A) the January and April 2014 issuance of preferred stock and the use of a portion of the proceeds from these issuances to redeem outstanding shares of common stock and common stock options, (B) our acquisition of MedPro in June 2014 and related borrowings under our line of credit, (C) our conversion from an S corporation to a C corporation on January 23, 2014, (D) the conversion of all outstanding shares of our capital stock into shares of our common stock, and immediately thereafter a stock split effected as a stock dividend of 8,500 shares for each share of

30,146

(30,091)

(51,562)

Table of Contents

our common stock and (E) this offering and the use of proceeds therefrom, assuming in each case that such event occurred on January 1, 2013. See "Index to the Consolidated Financial Statements" Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Consolidated Financial Information".

- (2)
 We acquired MedPro on June 27, 2014 and its financial results have been included in our historical financial statements since such date.
- The unaudited pro forma consolidated financial information for the year ended December 31, 2013 gives effect to the transactions described in Note 1 above as well as to the December 2013 acquisition of AHF and related borrowings under our line of credit, assuming in each case that such event occurred on January 1, 2013. See "Index to the Consolidated Financial Statements: Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Consolidated Financial Information".
- (4) We acquired AHF on December 16, 2013 and its financial results have been included in our historical financial statements since that date.
- Prior to January 23, 2014, we had elected to be taxed under the provisions of Subchapter S of the Internal Revenue Code. Therefore, we did not pay corporate income taxes on our taxable income. Instead, our shareholders were liable for individual income taxes on their respective shares of our taxable income. On January 23, 2014, we changed from an S Corporation to a C Corporation, and therefore we will pay corporate income taxes on our taxable income for periods after January 23, 2014.
- (6)

 All share and per share amounts presented have been adjusted to reflect the applicable conversions of capital stock and stock dividend occurring immediately prior to the completion of this offering.
- (7)

 See " Adjusted EBITDA" below for our definition of Adjusted EBITDA, why we present Adjusted EBITDA and a reconciliation of net income (loss) to Adjusted EBITDA.
- (8)
 Prescriptions dispensed (rounded to nearest thousand), represents actual prescriptions filled and dispensed by Diplomat.
- Prescriptions serviced (not dispensed) (rounded to nearest thousand), represents prescriptions filled and dispensed by a non-Diplomat pharmacy, including retailers and health systems, for which we provide support services required to assist patients and pharmacies with the complexity of filling specialty medications, and for which we earn a fee.
- Net sales per prescription dispensed represents total prescription revenue from prescriptions dispensed by Diplomat, divided by the number of prescriptions dispensed by Diplomat. Total prescription revenue from prescriptions dispensed includes all revenue collected from patients, third party payors and various patient assistance programs, as well as revenue collected from pharmaceutical manufacturers for data and other services directly tied to the actual dispensing of their drug(s).
- Gross profit per prescription dispensed represents gross profit from prescriptions dispensed by Diplomat, divided by the number of prescriptions dispensed by Diplomat. Gross profit represents total prescription revenue from prescriptions dispensed less the cost of the drugs purchased.
- Net sales per prescription serviced (not dispensed) represents total prescription revenue from prescriptions serviced divided by the number of prescriptions serviced for the non-Diplomat pharmacies. Gross profit per prescription serviced (not dispensed) is equal to net sales per prescription serviced because there is no Diplomat drug cost of goods sold associated with such transactions. Total prescription revenue from prescriptions serviced includes revenue collected from partner pharmacies, including retailers and health systems, for support services rendered to their patients.
- (13)
 Adjusted EBITDA per prescription is Adjusted EBITDA divided by the total number of prescriptions dispensed or serviced.
- The unaudited pro forma consolidated financial information, as of June 30, 2014, as adjusted, gives effect to the items specified in Note 15 below and further effect to this offering and the use of proceeds therefrom, assuming in each case that such event occurred on June 30, 2014. See "Index to the Consolidated Financial Information".
- The unaudited pro forma consolidated balance sheet information as of June 30, 2014 gives effect to the conversion of all outstanding shares of our capital stock into shares of our common stock, and immediately thereafter a stock split effected as a stock dividend of 8,500 shares for each share of our common stock assuming that such event occurred on June 30, 2014. See "Index to the Consolidated Financial Information Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Consolidated Financial Information".

- In January 2014, we sold to certain funds of T. Rowe Price, 2,986,228 shares of Series A Preferred stock at a purchase price of \$16.74 per share. We used \$20,000 of the \$50,000 investment proceeds for general corporate purposes, including fees associated with the transaction, and the remaining \$30,000 was used to redeem shares of common stock and common stock options. Further, in April 2014, we sold to certain funds of Janus Capital Group 3,225,127 shares of Series A preferred stock at a purchase price of \$16.74 per share. We used \$25,200 of the \$54,000 investment for general corporate purposes, including fees associated with the transaction, and the remaining \$28,800 was used to redeem shares of common stock and common stock options. These redemptions increased our shareholders' deficit by \$58,800 in the six months ended June 30, 2014.
- In 2012, we entered into settlement agreements with current or former shareholders whereby we purchased shares of common stock formerly owned by the shareholders for consideration of \$29,393 of which \$2,851 was paid in cash, forgiveness of note of \$196 and the remaining \$26,346 was payable in full, as per the terms of an executed promissory notes, maturing 2017. This entire amount of \$29,393 is reflected as a decrease to our shareholders' (deficit) equity in 2012. Also, in 2012 we had unusually high shareholder distributions of \$17,281.

Adjusted EBITDA

We define Adjusted EBITDA as net income (loss) before interest expense, income taxes, depreciation and amortization, share-based compensation, restructuring and impairment charges, equity

15

Table of Contents

loss of non-consolidated entity, and certain other items that we do not consider indicative of our ongoing operating performance (which items are itemized below). Adjusted EBITDA is a non-GAAP financial measure.

We consider Adjusted EBITDA to be a supplemental measure of our operating performance. We present Adjusted EBITDA because it is used by our Board of Directors (the "Board of Directors" or "Board") and management to evaluate our operating performance. It is also used as a factor in determining incentive compensation, for budgetary planning and forecasting overall financial and operational expectations, for identifying underlying trends and for evaluating the effectiveness of our business strategies. Further, we believe it assists us, as well as investors, in comparing performance from period on a consistent basis. Adjusted EBITDA is not in accordance with, or an alternative to, measures prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States ("GAAP"). In addition, this non-GAAP measure is not based on any comprehensive set of accounting rules or principles.

As a non-GAAP measure, Adjusted EBITDA has limitations in that it does not reflect all of the amounts associated with our results of operations as determined in accordance with GAAP and therefore you should not consider Adjusted EBITDA in isolation from, or as a substitute for, financial information prepared in accordance with GAAP. You should be aware that in the future we may incur expenses that are the same as or similar to some of the adjustments in the presentation, and we do not infer that our future results will be unaffected by unusual or non-recurring items. Adjusted EBITDA does not:

include depreciation expense from property and equipment or amortization expense from acquired intangible assets (and although they are non-cash charges, the assets being depreciated will often have to be replaced in the future);

reflect interest expense on our debt and capital leases or interest income we earn on cash and cash equivalents;

reflect the amounts we paid in taxes or other components of our tax provision (which reduces cash available to us);

include the impact of share-based compensation (which is a recurring expense that will remain a key element of our long-term incentive compensation package, although we exclude it when evaluating our operating performance for a particular period); or

include the restructuring and impairment charges, equity income or loss of our non-consolidated entity, or other matters we do not consider to be indicative of our ongoing operations.

Further, other companies in our industry may calculate Adjusted EBITDA differently than we do and these calculations may not be comparable to our Adjusted EBITDA metric. Because of these limitations, you should consider Adjusted EBITDA alongside other financial performance measures, including net income (loss) and our financial results presented in accordance with GAAP.

Table of Contents

The table below presents a reconciliation of net income (loss) to Adjusted EBITDA for the periods indicated:

| | For the six months ended June 30, 2014 | | | | | | | For the year ended December 31, 2013 | | | | | | | | | |
|--|--|-----------------|----|--------|----|-------|----|--------------------------------------|----|----------|----|---------|----|--------|--|--|--|
| | Pr | 2014 o-Forma | | 2014 | 2 | 2013 | Pr | 2013 o-Forma | | 2013 | | 2012 | | 2011 | | | |
| | | 0 1 011111 | | | | | | s in thous | an | | | | | | | | |
| Net income (loss) | \$ | 5,603 | \$ | 3,365 | \$ | 3,514 | | | | (26,120) | \$ | (2,639) | \$ | 9,151 | | | |
| Depreciation and amortization | | 5,559 | | 2,545 | | 1,821 | | 11,171 | | 3,934 | | 3,842 | | 3,079 | | | |
| Interest expense | | | | 895 | | 941 | | | | 1,996 | | 1,086 | | 598 | | | |
| Income tax expense | | 3,592 | | 4,557 | | | | 3,970 | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| EBITDA | | 14,754 | | 11,362 | | 6,276 | | 22,392 | | (20,190) | | 2,289 | | 12,828 | | | |
| Share-based compensation expense(1) | | 1,135 | | 1,135 | | 455 | | 1,006 | | 886 | | 915 | | 1,410 | | | |
| Change in fair value of redeemable common shares | | 1,133 | | (957) | | 133 | | 1,000 | | 34,348 | | 6,566 | | 1,110 | | | |
| Restructuring and impairment charges(2) | | | | | | 50 | | 1,033 | | 1,033 | | 424 | | 429 | | | |
| Equity loss of non-consolidated entity(3) | | 710 | | 710 | | 311 | | 1,055 | | 1,055 | | 267 | | 95 | | | |
| Severance and related fees(4) | | 254 | | 254 | | 119 | | 239 | | 205 | | 412 | | 740 | | | |
| Merger & acquisition related fees | | 254 | | 234 | | 11) | | 237 | | 203 | | 712 | | 7-10 | | | |
| and expenses(5) | | 323 | | 1,171 | | 162 | | 1,281 | | 677 | | | | | | | |
| Private company expenses(6) | | 180 | | 180 | | 57 | | 1,932 | | 222 | | | | | | | |
| Tax Credits and other(7) | | (419) | | (419) | | | | | | | | (148) | | (626) | | | |
| Other Items(8) | | 647 | | 647 | | 274 | | 734 | | 734 | | 127 | | 245 | | | |
| Adjusted EBITDA | \$ | 17,584 | \$ | 14,083 | \$ | 7,704 | \$ | 29,672 | \$ | 18,970 | \$ | 10,852 | \$ | 15,121 | | | |

(4)

⁽¹⁾ Share-based compensation expense relates to eligible employee stock options.

Restructuring and impairment charges reflect decreases in the fair market value of non-core property and assets, or actual losses on disposal of such assets. 2013 charges primarily relate to the \$932 write-down of our former Swartz Creek, Michigan headquarters facility to its fair value, after we vacated it in favor of our present Flint, Michigan facility. 2012 charges primarily relate to our write-down of an externally purchased software package we no longer utilize, as well as sales of Company-owned vehicles. 2011 charges include expense associated with the closure of our former Cleveland, Ohio facility, the move of our Chicago, Illinois area facility, and sales of Company-owned vehicles.

⁽³⁾Represents our share of losses recognized by our non-consolidated entity, Ageology, using the equity method of accounting. We first invested in Ageology, an anti-aging physician network dedicated to nutrition, fitness and hormones, in October 2011, in connection with its formation.

Employee severance and related fees primarily relates to severance for former management.

- (5)

 Fees and expenses directly related to merger and acquisition activities, including our acquisitions of AHF and MedPro and the impact of changes in the fair value of related contingent consideration liabilities.
- Primarily includes (a) philanthropic activities performed at the direction of our majority shareholder and (b) for the 2013 pro forma, \$1,710 is cost related to excess incentive compensation paid by AHF to its primary shareholder and certain other shareholder executives, such excess determined relative to the incentive compensation for similar positions consistent with what could be earned under Diplomat's incentive programs.
- (7)

 Represents various tax credits received from the state of Michigan for facility improvement and employee hiring initiatives, and the one-time costs associated with converting from an S-Corporation to a C-Corporation.
- Includes other expenses, including information technology ("IT") operating leases. These operating leases were initiated, in lieu of purchases or capital leases for a subset of our IT spend, for a short period of time in 2013 and 2014 for liquidity purposes. We have since discontinued the practice of leasing IT equipment. The cost of purchased IT equipment is reflected in depreciation and amortization.

17

Table of Contents

RISK FACTORS

Investing in our common stock involves a high degree of risk. You should carefully consider the following risk factors, together with the other information in this prospectus, including "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" and our consolidated financial statements and related notes, before deciding whether to invest in shares of our common stock. If any of the following risks actually occurs, our business, results of operations, financial condition or prospects could be materially and adversely affected. In that event, the trading price of our common stock could decline and you could lose part or all of your investment.

Risks Related to Our Business and Industry

Our failure to anticipate or appropriately adapt to changes or trends within the specialty pharmacy industry could have a significant negative impact on our ability to compete successfully.

The specialty pharmacy industry is growing and evolving rapidly. Any significant shifts in the structure of the specialty pharmacy industry or the healthcare products and services industry in general could alter the industry dynamics and adversely affect our ability to attract or retain customers. These changes or trends could result from, among other things, a large intra- or inter-industry merger, a new entrant in the specialty pharmacy business, changes in the distribution model for specialty drugs, a slowdown in the biotechnology pharmaceutical pipeline in our areas of expertise, consolidation of shipping carriers or the necessary changes or unintended consequences of the federal Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act, as amended by the Health Care and Education Reconciliation Act of 2010 (the "Health Reform Laws") or future regulatory changes. Our failure to anticipate or appropriately adapt to any of these changes or trends, none of which are within our control, could have a significant negative impact our competitive position and materially adversely affect our business.

Significant and increasing pressure from third-party payors to limit reimbursements and the impact of high cost specialty drugs could materially adversely impact our profitability, results of operations and financial condition.

The continued efforts of health maintenance organizations, managed care organizations, pharmacy benefit managers, government programs (such as Medicare, Medicaid and other federal and state funded programs) and other third-party payors to limit pharmacy reimbursements may adversely impact our profitability. While manufacturers have increased the price of drugs, payors have generally decreased reimbursement rates as a percentage of drug cost. We expect pricing pressures from third-party payors to continue given the high and increasing costs of specialty drugs. Given the significant competition in the industry, we have limited bargaining power to counter payor demands for reduced reimbursement rates. If a significant number of patients cannot afford to cover the portions of specialty drug costs not covered by payors as a result of limited reimbursements, and we are unable to find other sources of funding for such patients, those patients may not fill their prescriptions and our revenues and business could be adversely affected.

In response to rising specialty drug prices, payors may also demand that we provide additional services, enhanced service levels and other cost savings to help mitigate the increase in drug costs. Additional services with minimal or no service fees would adversely impact our profitability and data-management technology and software make it challenging for us to prove specific cost savings to payors. Our inability or failure to demonstrate cost efficiencies could adversely impact a payor's willingness to engage us, exclusively or at all, as a specialty pharmacy in the face of rising drug costs.

Table of Contents

Changes in reimbursement rates from Medicare and Medicaid for the services we provide may cause our revenue and profitability to decline.

For 2013, 2012 and 2011, reimbursement by federal and state programs, such as Medicare and Medicaid, represented 51%, 47% and 39% of our revenues, respectively. Reimbursement from government programs are subject to statutory and regulatory requirements, administrative rulings, interpretations of policy, implementation of reimbursement procedures, retroactive payment adjustments, governmental funding restrictions, changes to existing legislation, and the enactment of new legislation, all of which may materially affect the amount and timing of reimbursement payments to us. Changes to the way Medicare and Medicaid pay for our services may reduce our revenue and profitability on services provided to Medicare and Medicaid patients and increase our working capital requirements.

Since its inception in 2006, Medicare Part D has resulted in increased utilization and decreased pharmacy gross margin rates as higher margin business, such as cash and state Medicaid customers, migrated to Medicare Part D coverage. Further, as a result of the Affordable Care Act and changes to Medicare Part D, such as the elimination in 2013 of the tax deductibility of the retiree drug subsidy payment received by sponsors of retiree drug plans, our pharmacy benefit manager clients could decide to discontinue providing prescription drug benefits to their Medicare-eligible members. To the extent this occurs, the adverse effects of increasing customer migration into Medicare Part D may outweigh the benefits we realize from growth of our Medicare Part D business.

If our relationship with any of our key pharmaceutical manufacturers deteriorates, or if we are unable to create new significant relationships with other pharmaceutical manufacturers, we could lose all or a significant portion of our access to existing and future specialty drugs.

In recent years, an increasing number of pharmaceutical manufacturers have attempted to significantly limit the number of pharmacies that may dispense their drugs. Out of a total of approximately 60,000 traditional and specialty pharmacies, these manufacturers increasingly limit access to their drugs to anywhere from one to 20 specialty pharmacies, to ensure they can manage a drug's rollout, obtain real time data and confirm the unique patient population's receipt of the necessary services and support to remain adherent. There are a number of limited distribution drugs to which we do not have access. In addition to directly providing significant revenues, access to limited distribution drugs provides us with significant competitive advantages in developing relationships with payors and physicians, and our failure to continue obtaining access to new limited distribution pharmaceuticals or losing our current access could have a material and adverse impact on our business.

We obtain access to limited distribution drugs primarily from small to mid-size biotechnology companies, many of whom are bringing their first or second drug to market. We incur significant expense and time, and opportunity cost, to educate and assist emerging small and mid-size biotechnology manufacturers in bringing these products to the marketplace without any guarantee of a successful drug launch or future sales. The failure to monetize these relationships could adversely impact our profitability and our prospects.

We also provide a significant amount of direct and indirect services for the benefit of our pharmaceutical manufacturer customers and our patients in order to get access to specialty drugs, and our failure to provide services at optimal quality could result in losing access to existing and future drugs. In addition, we incur significant costs in providing these services and receive minimal service fees in return. If pharmaceutical manufacturers require significant additional services and products to obtain access to their drugs without a corresponding increase in service fees paid to us, our profitability could be adversely impacted.

Table of Contents

We have limited contractual protections with pharmaceutical manufacturers and wholesalers that supply us with most of the pharmaceuticals that we distribute.

We dispense specialty pharmaceuticals that are supplied to us by a variety of manufacturers and wholesalers, many of which are our only source of that specific pharmaceutical. Our contracts with pharmaceutical manufacturers and wholesalers often provide us with, among other things:

discounts on drugs we purchase to be dispensed from our specialty pharmacies;

rebates and service fees; and

access to limited distribution specialty pharmaceuticals.

Our contracts with pharmaceutical manufacturers and wholesalers are generally for three years and are terminable on reasonably short notice by either party before or after the contract term. In addition, our contracts with wholesalers provide for purchase money security interests in products sold. If several of these contractual relationships are terminated or materially altered by the pharmaceutical manufacturers or wholesalers or we are otherwise unable to renew these contracts or enter into similar contracts on favorable terms we could lose a major source of the pharmaceuticals we dispense.

Our revenues, profitability and cash flows may be negatively impacted if safety risks of a specialty drug are publicized or if a specialty drug is withdrawn from the market due to manufacturing or other issues.

Physicians may significantly reduce the numbers of prescriptions for a specialty drug with safety concerns or manufacturing issues. Additionally, negative press regarding a drug with a higher safety risk profile may result in reduced global consumer demand for such drug. Decreased utilization and demand of a specialty drug we distribute could materially and adversely impact our volumes, net revenues, profitability and cash flows.

Many healthcare companies have a presence in the specialty pharmacy market, and we expect a significant increase in competition due to high growth anticipated in specialty drug spending, which could have a material and adverse impact on our business.

There are a significant number of competitors that provide one or more comprehensive services, including distribution, with respect to specialty pharmacy drugs, some of whom have greater resources than we do, including: pharmacy benefit managers; retail pharmacy chains and independent retail pharmacies; health plans; national, regional and niche specialty pharmacies; home and specialty infusion therapy companies; physician practices and hospital systems and group purchasing organizations.

We are currently the largest independent specialty pharmacy and the fourth largest specialty pharmacy in the U.S., with a 2% overall market share (based on 2013 revenues from pharmacy-dispensed specialty drugs). The three leading specialty pharmacies, which operate as divisions within each of Express Scripts, CVS Caremark and Walgreens, have significantly greater market share, resources and purchasing power than we do, and Express Scripts and CVS Caremark also benefit from their services as pharmacy benefit managers to a number of healthcare organizations. As we increase in scale and market share, we expect more direct competition for certain drugs, payor and patient access, and services from these three companies.

Further, a number of other traditional pharmacies with significant resources are attempting to build, acquire or partner with specialty pharmacies due to the double-digit growth anticipated in spending on specialty prescription drugs compared to low to negative growth in spending on traditional prescription drugs. There are also many smaller specialty pharmacies and other entities in the healthcare industry that provide limited specialty pharmacy services; while such entities presently

Table of Contents

compete with us to a lesser extent, they may be able to invest significant resources, through acquisition or otherwise, to compete with us on a larger scale.

Moreover, many of the retail pharmacies to which we provide patient management services may in the future acquire a competing specialty pharmacy business or start their own specialty pharmacy business and thereby become our competitors. In addition, many of our pharmacy benefit management customers have their own specialty pharmacy businesses, and to the extent certain of our products can be obtained internally, these customers could cease to do business with us. Our failure to maintain and expand relationships with payors and pharmacy benefit management companies, who can effectively determine the pharmacy source for their members, could materially and adversely affect our competitive position and prospects.

Any increase in competition noted above could significantly increase the competition for limited distribution drugs, reduce gross profit, and otherwise materially adversely affect our business, results of operations, financial condition and prospects.

Our ability to grow our specialty pharmacy business could be limited if we do not expand the number of drugs and treatments we offer or if we lose even a small percentage of our existing patients.

Our specialty pharmacy business focuses on complex and high cost medications that serve a relatively small patient population. Due to the limited patient populations utilizing the medications that our specialty pharmacy business handles, our future growth relies, in part, on expanding our base of drugs or penetration in certain treatment categories. Further, given our relatively high net sales and gross profit per prescription dispensed, a small percentage decrease in our patient base or reduction in demand for any reason for the medications we currently dispense could have a material adverse effect on our business.

We generate a significant amount of revenue from certain specialty drugs we dispense.

Our three largest revenue producing specialty drugs we dispense represented 35%, 40% and 47% of our revenues in 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively, and our ten largest revenue producing specialty drugs we dispense represented 57%, 63% and 68% of our revenues in 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively. In addition, although the mix of our highest volume specialty drugs fluctuates historically, our two largest revenue producing specialty drugs have not changed in the past two years. In the event that the use of these specialty drugs were to decline due to clinical ineffectiveness or as a result of the introduction of more effective alternatives, and we are unable to obtain access to high growth alternative specialty drugs, our revenues would be adversely affected. Loss of revenues from our three largest revenue producing specialty drugs without access to alternative high growth specialty drugs could have a material adverse effect on our revenues in the short term.

We receive a significant amount of prescription drugs from one wholesaler and one manufacturer. The loss of either of these relationships could disrupt our business and adversely impact our revenues for one or more fiscal quarters.

Specialty drug purchases from Amerisource Bergen Drug Corporation ("AmerisourceBergen"), a drug wholesaler, and Celgene Corporation ("Celgene"), a pharmaceutical manufacturer, represented 58% and 19%, respectively, of cost of goods sold in 2013, and 64% and 21%, respectively, of cost of goods sold in 2012. Our contract with Amerisource Bergen has an initial term of five years expiring December 31, 2016, and can be terminated by, among other things, either party's material breach that continues for 30 days. The contract also commits us to a minimum of approximately \$3.5 billion in purchase obligations over a five year period. Failure to meet this minimum would result in significant additional expense without corresponding revenues. The agreement also provides for negotiated discounts that differ by drug classification, and any permitted reclassification of products by

Table of Contents

Amerisource Bergen to a lower discount category could have an adverse impact on our gross profit. In addition, Amerisource Bergen recently entered into a long term relationship with one of the largest specialty pharmacy companies in the country, which could adversely impact our relationship with Amerisource Bergen.

Our agreement with Celgene began July 1, 2011 and was renewed on July 21, 2013 until June 30, 2016, and can be terminated by either party without cause upon 90 days' prior written notice, or earlier in the event of a material breach. Unlike the specialty drugs we purchase from Amerisource Bergen, the specialty drugs we purchase from Celgene are not available from any other source.

The loss of either of these relationships could significantly disrupt our business and adversely impact our revenues for one or more fiscal quarters. These agreements also limit our ability to distribute competing drugs, while allowing the supplier to distribute through other channels.

Consolidation in the healthcare industry could materially adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Many healthcare industry participants are consolidating to create integrated healthcare delivery systems with significant market power and we expect such trend to continue. As provider networks and managed care organizations consolidate, thereby decreasing the number of market participants, competition to provide products and services like ours will become more intense, and the importance of establishing relationships with key industry participants will become greater. In addition, industry participants may try to use their increased market power to negotiate price reductions for our products and services. If we are forced to reduce prices as a result of either an imbalance of market power or decreased demand for our products, revenue would be reduced and we could become significantly less profitable.

Our future success depends upon our ability to maintain and manage our rapid growth. If we are unable to manage our growth effectively, we may incur unexpected expenses and be unable to meet the demands of our customers and other constituents.

Over the past several years our business has grown significantly, and we aim to continue to expand the scope of our operations, both organically and through strategic acquisitions. Growth in our operations will place significant demands on our management, financial and other resources. We cannot be certain that our current systems, procedures, controls, and space will adequately support expansion of our operations, and we may be unable to expand or upgrade our systems or infrastructure to accommodate future growth. Our future operating results will depend on the ability of our management and key employees to successfully maintain our independence and corporate culture, preserve the effectiveness of our high-touch patient care model, manage changing business conditions and to implement and improve our technical, administrative, financial control and reporting systems. Our inability to finance future growth, manage future expansion or hire and retain the personnel needed to manage our business successfully could have a material adverse effect on our business and prospects.

We have limited experience acquiring companies and may not be able to effectively execute our acquisition strategy or successfully integrate acquired businesses.

We have grown organically since we were founded, but we recently completed two important acquisitions. In December 2013, we acquired AHF, which provides specialty drugs and infusion services for bleeding disorders, principally hemophilia. In June 2014, we acquired MedPro, a specialty pharmacy focused on specialty infusion including hemophilia and immune globulin.

Table of Contents

Any of the following risks associated with our recent acquisitions or future acquisitions, individually or in aggregate may have a material adverse effect on our business:

difficulties in realizing anticipated financial or strategic benefits of such acquisition;

diversion of capital from other uses;

potential dilution of shareholder ownership if stock is used as consideration for the acquisition or if an equity offering is completed in connection with the financing of the acquisition;

the risks related to increased indebtedness;

significant capital expenditures may be required to integrate acquisition into our operations;

disruption of our ongoing business or the ongoing acquired business, including impairment of existing relationships with our employees, distributors, suppliers, customers or other constituents or those of the acquired companies;

diversion of management's attention and other resources from current operations, including potential strain on financial and managerial controls and reporting systems and procedures;

difficulty in integrating acquired operations, including restructuring and realigning activities, personnel, technologies and products, including the loss of key employees, distributors, suppliers, customers or other constituents of the acquired businesses:

inability to realize cost savings, sales increases or other benefits that we anticipate from such acquisitions, either as to amount or in the expected time frame;

assumption of known and unknown liabilities, some of which may be difficult or impossible to quantify; and

non-cash impairment charges or other accounting charges relating to the acquired assets.

Our lack of historical experience with acquisitions make the foregoing risks especially applicable to us.

We will continue to review strategic acquisition opportunities that will enhance our market position, expand our expertise and drug access, add value to our constituents and provide sufficient synergies. Strategic transactions, including the pursuit of such transactions, often require significant up-front costs and require significant resources and management attention. These costs are typically non-recurring expenses related to the assessment, due diligence, negotiation and execution of the transaction. We may also incur additional costs to retain key employees as well as transaction fees and costs related to executing our integration plans.

Our operating results may fluctuate significantly, which makes our future operating results difficult to predict and could cause our operating results to fall below expectations or our guidance.

Our quarterly and annual operating results, and in particular our revenues, have fluctuated in the past and may fluctuate significantly in the future. These fluctuations make it difficult for us to predict our future operating results. Our operating results may fluctuate due to a variety of factors, many of which are outside of our control and are difficult to predict, including the following:

the launch timing for specialty drugs;

the effect of the expiration of drug patents and the introduction of generic drugs;

the demand for the specialty drugs to which we have access;

whether our expected distribution share of drugs that come to market is properly estimated;

whether revenues and margins on sales of drugs that come to market are properly estimated;

Table of Contents

expenditures that we will or may incur to acquire or develop additional capabilities;

the timing of increases in drug costs by the manufacturers; and

changes in the reimbursement policies of payors.

These factors, individually or in the aggregate, could result in large fluctuations and unpredictability in our quarterly and annual operating results. As a result, comparing our operating results on a period-to-period basis may not be meaningful. Investors should not rely on our past results as an indication of our future performance. This variability and unpredictability could also result in our failing to meet the expectations of industry or financial analysts or investors for any period.

The failure or disruption of our information technology systems, our information security systems and our infrastructure to support our business and to protect the privacy and security of sensitive customer and business information could materially adversely affect our business.

Many aspects of our operations are dependent on our information systems and the information collected, processed, stored, and handled by these systems. Throughout our operations, we receive, retain and transmit certain highly confidential information, including personal health information and other data that our customers and other constituents provide to purchase products or services, enroll in programs or services, register on our websites, interact with our personnel or otherwise communicate with us. In addition, for these operations, we depend in part on the secure transmission of confidential information over public networks. Although we have not historically experienced a major systems failure or security breach, our information systems are subject to damage or interruption from power outages, computer and telecommunications failures, computer viruses, security breaches including credit card information breaches, vandalism, catastrophic events and human error.

A compromise of our information security controls or those of the businesses with whom we interact, which results in confidential information being accessed, obtained, damaged, or used by unauthorized or improper persons, could harm our reputation and expose us to regulatory actions and claims from patients, physicians and other persons, any of which could adversely affect our business, financial position, and results of operations. Moreover, a data security breach could require that we expend significant resources related to our information systems and infrastructure, and could distract management and other key personnel from performing their primary operational duties. If our information systems are damaged, fail to work properly or otherwise become unavailable, we may incur substantial costs to repair or replace them, and we may experience a loss of critical information, customer disruption and interruptions or delays in our ability to perform essential functions and implement new and innovative services. In addition, compliance with changes in privacy and information security laws and standards may result in considerable expense due to increased investment in technology and the development of new operational processes. See also "Risks Related to Federal and State Laws and Regulations Our business operations involve the substantial receipt and use of confidential health information concerning individuals. A failure to adequately protect such information may harm our reputation and subject us to significant liabilities, each of which could have a material adverse effect on our business."

Our failure to maintain significant relationships or build new relationships with clinical experts and key thought leaders at U.S. physician groups and universities could result in a loss of existing patients, future referrals on existing and future drugs and pharmaceutical industry data and could materially adversely impact our business and prospects.

We have developed significant relationships with clinical experts and key opinion leaders at physician groups and universities throughout the U.S. who are focused on oncology and immunology, involved in significant research projects related to specialty drugs, and who are high-volume prescribers of specialty drugs. Our failure to provide quality and timely services to such persons and their patients

Table of Contents

could impair our relationship, which could result in a loss of existing patients, future referrals on existing and future drugs and pharmaceutical industry data (including the anticipated drug pipeline) and therefore materially adversely impact our business and prospects.

We rely heavily on a single shipping provider, and our business could be harmed if our shipping rates increase, our provider is unavailable or our provider performs poorly and we are unable to successfully replace our shipping provider.

A substantial majority of the specialty drugs we dispense are shipped through UPS. We depend heavily on these shipping services for efficient and cost effective delivery of our products.

The risks associated with our dependence on UPS include:

any significant increase in shipping rates, including rate increases resulting from higher fuel prices;

strikes or other service interruptions by UPS or by another carrier that could affect UPS;

spoilage of high cost drugs during shipment, since our drugs often require special handling, such as refrigeration; and

increased delivery errors by UPS, resulting in lost or stolen product.

In the event any of the foregoing occurs and we are unable to transition efficiently and effectively to a new provider, we could incur increased costs or experience a material disruption in our operations.

A disruption in our operations could hurt our relations with our constituents and significantly impact our results of operations.

We depend upon our contractors and vendors and on our specialty pharmacies and other facilities for the continued operation of our business. In addition, our success depends, in part, upon our telephone sales and direct marketing efforts and our ability to provide prompt, accurate and complete services to all of our constituents. Natural disasters or other catastrophic events, including hurricanes and other severe weather, terrorist attacks, power interruptions and fires could disrupt our operations and our ability to deliver our products, as well as the operations of our contractors and vendors. In the event we experience a temporary or permanent interruption in our ability to deliver our services or products, including at our corporate headquarters building, which is our primary distribution and service facility, our revenues could be reduced and our business could be materially adversely affected. In addition, any continuing disruption in either our computer system or our telephone system could adversely affect our ability to receive and process customer orders and ship products on a timely basis, and could adversely affect our relations with our customers, potentially resulting in reduction in orders or loss of customers.

We are highly dependent on our senior management and key employees. Competition for our employees is intense, and we may not be able to attract and retain the highly skilled employees that we need to support our business and our anticipated future growth.

Our success largely depends on the skills, experience, and continued efforts of our management. In particular, our co-founder, Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board of Directors, Philip Hagerman, has led our company throughout its 39-year history. Further, we intend to grow the business significantly, which will depend on our ability to continue to attract, motivate and retain highly qualified individuals in key management, pharmacist, nursing and similar roles. Competition for senior management and other key personnel is intense, and the pool of suitable candidates is limited. If we lose the services of one or more of our key employees, we may not be able to find a suitable replacement and our business could be materially adversely affected.

Table of Contents

If a customized drug provided through our compounding services leads to significant patient injury or death, we may be exposed to significant liabilities and reputational harm.

We provide limited compounding services. Our compounding services include the preparation of personalized medications for patients. Our compounding pharmacists work with prescribers to customize a medication to meet a patient's specific health needs. While our compounding services accounted for less than 0.5% of our revenues in the six months ended June 30, 2014 and the year ended December 31, 2013, the risks associated with compounding could affect our overall operations. Because compounding involves the preparation of a patient-customized drug, cream, or injectable, including with respect to specific ingredients designed to increase or decrease dosage, we are exposed to a potentially large liability claim in the event that a compounded medication we prepared leads to significant patient harm or death. Such instances may also generate significant negative publicity that could harm our reputation and thereby materially affect our results of operations.

Our industry is highly litigious and future litigation or other proceedings could subject us to significant monetary damages or penalties or require us to change our business practices, which could impair our reputation and result in a material adverse effect on our business.

We are subject to risks relating to litigation, enforcement action, regulatory proceedings, government inquiries and investigations and other similar actions in connection with our business operations, including the dispensing of pharmaceutical products by our specialty and home delivery pharmacies, claims and complaints related to the various regulations to which we are subject and services rendered in connection with our disease management activity. While we are currently not subject to any material litigation, such litigation is not unusual in our industry. Further, while certain costs are covered by insurance, we may incur uninsured costs related to the defense of such proceedings that are material to our financial performance.

Furthermore, unexpected volatility in insurance premiums or retention requirements or claims in excess of our insurance coverage could have a material adverse effect on our business and results of operations.

Our pro forma financial information may not be representative of our future performance.

In preparing the pro forma financial information included in this prospectus, we have made adjustments to our historical financial information based upon currently available information and upon assumptions that our management believes are reasonable in order to reflect, on a pro forma basis, the impact of some or all of the following: (i) the January and April 2014 issuance of preferred stock and the use of certain related proceeds to redeem outstanding shares of common stock and common stock options; (ii) the December 2013 acquisition of AHF and related borrowings under our line of credit; (iii) the June 2014 acquisition of MedPro and related borrowings under our line of credit; (iv) the January 23, 2014 conversion from an S corporation to a C corporation; (v) the conversion of all outstanding shares of our capital stock into shares of our common stock, and immediately thereafter a stock split effected as a stock dividend of 8,500 shares for each share of our common stock; and (vi) this offering and the use of proceeds therefrom. The estimates and assumptions used in the calculation of the pro forma financial information in this prospectus may be materially different from our actual experience. Accordingly, the pro forma financial information included in this prospectus does not purport to indicate the results that would have actually been achieved had the above transactions been completed on the assumed date or for the periods presented, or which may be realized in the future, nor does the pro forma financial information give effect to any events other than those discussed in our unaudited pro forma financial statements and related notes.

Table of Contents

We have identified a material weakness in our internal control over financial reporting that impacted all periods presented in this prospectus. If we fail to establish and maintain effective internal control over financial reporting, our ability to produce accurate and timely financial statements could be impaired, which could adversely affect investor views of us and the value of our common stock.

In connection with the preparation of amendments to the registration statement on Form S-1 of which this prospectus forms a part, we identified a material weakness in our internal control over financial reporting for all periods presented. A "material weakness" is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of our annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. The identified material weakness relates to our accounting for mandatorily redeemable common stock for public reporting companies. Specifically, upon becoming subject to the applicable accounting standards of public reporting companies as of the initial filing of the registration statement of which this prospectus forms a part, we erroneously did not re-characterize our shares of mandatorily redeemable common stock from equity to a liability in our consolidated balance sheets, and we did not mark-to-market this liability and record additional non-operating expense in our consolidated statements of operations. Subsequently, we have restated our consolidated financial statements to appropriately account for such common stock for all periods presented. Although we believe we have substantially remediated the material weakness through additional training, we are not required to and have not conducted a formal assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of June 30, 2014 and therefore our remediation steps to date may not be sufficient. In addition, it is possible that we will discover additional material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting.

As a public company, we will be required to comply with the standards adopted by the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board in compliance with the requirements of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, as amended, regarding internal control over financial reporting. Prior to becoming a public company, we have not been required to comply with the requirements of Section 404. In addition, we will not be required to make our first annual assessment of our internal control over financial reporting pursuant to Section 404 until the year following our first annual report required to be filed with the SEC. Further, our independent registered public accounting firm, BDO USA, LLP, will not be required to audit the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting until the year following our first annual report required to be filed with the SEC. Therefore, there is heightened risk that other significant deficiencies or material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting may go undetected or not be prevented and further that we may fail to remediate any significant deficiencies or material weaknesses on a timely basis or at all.

The process of becoming compliant with Section 404 may divert internal resources and will take a significant amount of time and effort to complete, and may result in additional significant deficiencies and material weaknesses being identified by us or our independent registered public accounting firm. We may experience higher than anticipated operating expenses, as well as increased independent registered public accounting firm fees during the implementation of these changes and thereafter. Completing documentation of our internal control system and financial processes, remediation of control deficiencies and management testing of internal controls will require substantial effort by us.

If our internal control over financial reporting or our related disclosure controls and procedures are not effective, we may not be able to accurately report our financial results, prevent fraud or file our periodic reports in a timely manner, which may cause investors to lose confidence in our reported financial information and may lead to a decline in our stock price. In addition, our failure to timely file our periodic reports eventually could result in the delisting of our common stock from the New York Stock Exchange, regulatory sanctions from the SEC and the breach of covenants in our credit facilities or of any preferred equity or debt securities we may issue in the future, all of which could have a material adverse impact on our operations and your investment in our common stock.

Table of Contents

Any debt service obligations will reduce the funds available for other business purposes, and the terms and covenants relating to our current and future indebtedness could adversely impact our financial performance and liquidity.

As of September 16, 2014, we had \$80.2 million debt outstanding under our revolving line of credit and approximately \$20.1 million of former stakeholder notes outstanding. As of such date, we could incur up to an additional \$33.3 million in indebtedness under our revolving line of credit. To the extent we incur significant debt in the future for acquisitions, capital expenditures, working capital or otherwise, we will be subject to risks typically associated with debt financing, such as insufficient cash flow to meet required debt service payment obligations and the inability to refinance existing indebtedness.

In addition, our line of credit contains covenants requiring us to, among other things, provide financial and other information reporting, provide notice upon certain events and maintain cash management arrangements. These covenants also place restrictions on our ability to incur additional indebtedness, pay dividends or make other distributions, redeem or repurchase capital stock, make investments and loans and enter into certain transactions, including selling assets, engaging in mergers or acquisitions, or engaging in transactions with affiliates. The covenants under our line of credit also include a minimum fixed charge coverage ratio of not less than 1.10 to 1.0, as measured on a trailing 12-month basis, if the amount available to be drawn under our revolving line of credit is less than \$20.0 million. If we fail to satisfy one or more of the covenants under our line of credit, we would be in default under the credit agreement, and may be required to repay such debt with capital from other sources or otherwise not be able to draw down against our line of credit. Under such circumstances, other sources of capital may not be available to us on reasonable terms or at all.

Our business could be harmed if the supply of any of the specialty drugs we distribute becomes scarce or is disrupted.

Many specialty drugs are manufactured with ingredients that are susceptible to supply shortages. In particular, specialty drugs used to treat disease states such as hemophilia and autoimmune conditions can depend on supplies of donated blood, which may fluctuate. A supply shortage, or in rare cases, a complete cessation of manufacturing, of a specialty drug we distribute could materially and adversely impact our volumes, net revenues, profitability and cash flows.

If some of the drugs that we provide lose their orphan drug status, we could face increased competition.

In order to encourage the development of drugs that might not otherwise be profitable for pharmaceutical companies, the FDA will occasionally grant certain drugs orphan status. When the FDA grants orphan status to a drug, it will not approve a second drug for the same treatment for a period of seven years unless the new drug is chemically different or clinically superior. Additionally, it is easier to gain marketing approval for an orphan drug, and there may be other financial incentives associated with the manufacturing and distribution of orphan drugs, such as extended exclusivity periods. Our business could be adversely affected by any challenges to or the expiration of a drug's orphan status. The loss of such status, the approval of new drugs notwithstanding a drug's orphan status or the development of drugs that are superior to the orphan drugs we sell could result in additional competition and adversely impact our business and results of operations.

Our business would be harmed if the pharmaceutical industry reduces research, development and marketing of specialty drugs that are compatible with the services we provide.

Our business is highly dependent on continued research, development and marketing expenditures of pharmaceutical companies, and the ability of those companies to develop, supply and generate demand for specialty drugs that are compatible with the services we provide. Our business could be

Table of Contents

materially adversely affected if manufacturers fail to market and support existing drugs, research potential new treatments or to develop new drugs. Our business could also be harmed by any governmental or private initiative that would alter how drug manufacturers promote or sell products and services.

We support hospitals that participate in the 340B Drug Pricing Program ("340B Program"). Recently, the 340B Program has faced increased scrutiny from Congress, federal agencies and pharmaceutical manufacturers. In the event of future changes to the 340B Program, the revenues we derive from hospital services could be adversely impacted.

Our hospital program supports hospitals that are 340B covered entities pursuant to which such hospitals are able to purchase certain specialty drugs from pharmaceutical manufacturers at a discount for dispensing to eligible patients. In cases where the covered entity treats an insured patient with a discounted specialty drug, the federal government or the patient's private insurance routinely reimburses the entity for the full price of the medication, and the entity is able to retain the difference between the reduced price it pays for the drug and the full amount for which it is reimbursed. In recent years, this practice and other aspects of the 340B Program have come under increased scrutiny. Also, the Office of Pharmacy Affairs, the agency that administers the 340B Program, is currently working to finalize proposed regulations to formalize existing 340B Program guidance. It is anticipated that the proposed regulations will be issued in 2014 and will address, among other things, the definition of an eligible patient and hospital eligibility criteria. Although we are not direct participants in the 340B Program and related services accounted for less than 0.1% of our revenues in the six months ended June 30, 2014 and the year ended December 31, 2013, our involvement with hospitals that are covered entities could cause reputational harm as a result of increased controversy regarding the 340B Program. In addition, if hospitals decrease their utilization of the 340B Program, whether due to regulatory changes or increased scrutiny, such decrease would impact revenue from this business.

We may be unable to obtain or retain the right to use or successfully integrate third-party licenses in our technology-based products, which could limit the number and type of products we are able to offer our customers.

We rely on third-party licenses for some of the technology used in our products, and intend to continue licensing technologies from third parties. Most of these licenses can be renewed only by mutual consent and may be terminated if we breach the terms of the license and fail to cure the breach within a specified period of time. We may not be able to continue to obtain these licenses on commercially reasonable terms, or at all. Our inability to obtain or renew these licenses or find suitable alternatives could delay development of new products or prevent us from selling our existing products until suitable substitute technology can be identified, licensed, integrated or developed by us. We cannot assure you as to when we would be able to do so, if at all.

Most of our third-party licenses are non-exclusive. Our competitors may obtain the right to use any of the technology covered by these licenses and use the technology to attempt to compete more effectively with us. In addition, our use of third-party technologies exposes us to risks associated with the integration of components from various sources into our products, such as unknown software errors or defects or unanticipated incompatibility with our systems and technologies. Further, we are dependent on our vendors' continued support of the technology we use. If a vendor chooses to discontinue or is unable to support a licensed technology, we may not be able to modify or adapt our products to fit other available technologies in a timely manner, if at all.

Table of Contents

Risks Related to Federal and State Laws and Regulations

We operate in a highly regulated industry and must comply with a significant number of complex and evolving requirements. Changes in state and federal government regulation could restrict our ability to conduct our business and cause us to incur significant costs.

The marketing, sale and purchase of pharmaceuticals and medical supplies and provision of healthcare services generally are extensively regulated by federal and state governments. In addition, other aspects of our business are also subject to government regulation. The applicable regulatory framework is complex, and the laws are very broad in scope. Many of these laws remain open to interpretation and have not been addressed by substantive court decisions. Accordingly, we cannot assure you that our interpretation would prevail or that one or more government agencies will not interpret the applicable laws and regulations differently. Changes in the law or new interpretations of existing law can have a dramatic effect on our operations, our cost of doing business and the amount of reimbursement we receive from governmental third-party payors such as Medicare and Medicaid.

Some of the healthcare laws and regulations that apply to our activities include:

The federal "Anti-Kickback Statute" prohibits individuals and entities from knowingly and willfully paying, offering, receiving or soliciting money or anything else of value in order to induce the referral of patients or to induce a person to purchase, lease, order, arrange for, or recommend services or goods covered in whole or in part by Medicare, Medicaid, or other government healthcare programs. The Anti-Kickback Statute is an intent-based statute and the failure of a business arrangement to satisfy all elements of a safe harbor will not necessarily render the arrangement illegal, but it may subject that arrangement to increased scrutiny by enforcement authorities. Any violation of the Anti-Kickback Statute can lead to significant penalties, including criminal penalties, civil fines and exclusion from participation in Medicare and Medicaid.

The "Stark Law" prohibits physicians from making referrals to entities with which the physicians or their immediate family members have a "financial relationship" (i.e., an ownership, investment or compensation relationship) for the furnishing of certain Designated Health Services that are reimbursable under Medicare. The Stark Law is a broad prohibition on certain business relationships, with detailed exceptions. However, unlike the Anti-Kickback Statute under which an activity may fall outside a safe harbor and still be lawful, a referral for Designated Health Services that does not fall within an exception is strictly prohibited by the Stark Law. A violation of the Stark Law is punishable by civil sanctions, including significant fines and exclusion from participation in Medicare and Medicaid.

The Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 ("HIPAA") and the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act ("HITECH") provide federal privacy protections for individually identifiable health information. See " Our business operations involve the substantial receipt and use of confidential health information concerning individuals. A failure to adequately protect any of this information could result in severe harm to our reputation and subject us to significant liabilities, each of which could have a material adverse effect on our business." below.

Pharmacies and pharmacists must obtain state licenses to operate and dispense pharmaceuticals. If we are unable to maintain our licenses or if states place burdensome restrictions or limitations on non-resident pharmacies, this could limit or affect our ability to operate in some states.

Federal and state investigations and enforcement actions continue to focus on the health care industry, scrutinizing a wide range of items such as joint venture arrangements, referral and billing practices, product discount arrangements, home health care services, dissemination of confidential patient information, clinical drug research trials and gifts for patients.

Table of Contents

Legislative or regulatory policies designed to manage healthcare costs or alter healthcare financing practices or changes to government policies in general may adversely impact our business and results of operations.

Occasionally, certain legislative and/or regulatory proposals are made which seek to manage the cost of healthcare, including prescription drug cost. Such proposals include "single-payor" government funded healthcare, changes in reimbursement rates, restrictions on rebates and discounts, restrictions on access or therapeutic substitution, limits on more efficient delivery channels, taxes on goods and services, price controls on prescription drugs and other significant healthcare reform proposals. Further, more exacting regulatory policies and requirements specific to the specialty pharmacy sector may cause a rise in costs, labor, and time to meet all such requirements. We are unable to predict whether any such policies or proposals will be enacted, or the specific terms thereof. Certain of these policies or proposals, if enacted, could have a material adverse impact on our business.

Our business operations involve the substantial receipt and use of confidential health information concerning individuals. A failure to adequately protect any of this information could result in severe harm to our reputation and subject us to significant liabilities, each of which could have a material adverse effect on our business.

Most of our activities involve the receipt or use of protected health information concerning individuals. We also use aggregated and de-identified data for research and analysis purposes, and in some cases, provide access to such de-identified data to pharmaceutical manufacturers, payors and third-party data aggregators and analysts. There is substantial regulation at the federal and state levels addressing the use, disclosure and security of patient identifiable health information. At the federal level, HIPAA and the regulations issued thereunder impose extensive requirements governing the transmission, use and disclosure of health information by all participants in health care delivery, including physicians, hospitals, insurers and other payors. Many of these obligations were expanded under HITECH, passed as part of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009. Failure to comply with standards issued pursuant to federal or state statutes or regulations may result in criminal penalties and civil sanctions. In addition to regulating privacy of individual health information, HIPAA includes several anti-fraud and abuse laws, extends criminal penalties to private health care benefit programs and, in addition to Medicare and Medicaid, to other federal health care programs, and expands the Office of Inspector General's authority to exclude persons and entities from participating in the Medicare and Medicaid programs. Further, future regulations and legislation that severely restrict or prohibit our use of patient identifiable or other information could limit our ability to use information critical to the operation of our business. If we violate a patient's privacy or are found to have violated any federal or state statute or regulation with regard to confidentiality or dissemination or use of protected health information, we could be liable for significant damages, fines or penalties and suffer severe reputational harm, each of which could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations a

There remains considerable uncertainty as to the full impact of the Health Reform Laws on our business.

Many of the structural changes enacted by the Health Reform Laws are being implemented in 2014, and some of the applicable regulations and sub-regulatory guidance have not yet been issued and/or finalized. Therefore, there remains considerable uncertainty as to the full impact of the Health Reform Laws on our business. While these reforms may not affect our business directly, they affect the coverage and plan designs that are or will be provided by many of our health plan customers. As a result, they could indirectly impact many of our services and business practices. We cannot predict what effect, if any, the Health Reform Laws, related regulations and sub-regulatory guidance may have on our business.

Table of Contents

Risks Related to this Offering and Ownership of Our Common Stock

No market currently exists for our common stock, and we cannot assure you that an active trading market will develop for our stock.

Prior to this offering, there has been no public market for our common stock. We cannot predict the extent to which investor interest in our Company will lead to the development of a trading market on the New York Stock Exchange or otherwise, or how liquid that market might become. If an active market does not develop, you may have difficulty selling any shares of our common stock that you purchase in this offering. Additionally, because we will have a limited number of shares of common stock in our public float, the market for such shares may be illiquid, sporadic and volatile. As a result, there may be extreme fluctuations in the price of shares of our common stock. The initial public offering price for the shares of our common stock was determined by negotiations among us, the selling shareholders and the representatives of the underwriters and may not be indicative of prices that will prevail in the open market following this offering.

Our stock price may be volatile or may decline regardless of our operating performance, and you may lose part or all of your investment.

After this offering, the market price for our common stock is likely to be volatile, in part because our shares have not been traded publicly, and that volatility may be exacerbated by our relatively small public float. In addition, the market price of our common stock may fluctuate significantly in response to a number of factors, most of which we cannot control, including:

| market conditions or trends in the pharmaceutical industry, the healthcare industry in general, or in the economy as a whole; |
|--|
| actions by existing or future competitors; |
| actual or anticipated growth rates relative to our competitors; |
| the public's response to press releases or other public announcements by us or third parties, including our filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission; |
| economic, legal and regulatory factors unrelated to our performance; |
| any future guidance we may provide to the public, any changes in such guidance or any difference between our guidance and actual results; |
| changes in financial estimates or recommendations by any securities analysts who follow our common stock; |
| speculation by the press or investment community regarding our business; |
| litigation; |
| changes in key personnel; and |
| future sales of our common stock by our officers, directors and significant shareholders. |

In addition, the stock markets, including the New York Stock Exchange, have experienced extreme price and volume fluctuations that have affected and continue to affect the market prices of equity securities of many companies. In the past, shareholders have instituted securities class action litigation following periods of market volatility. If we were involved in securities litigation, we could incur substantial costs and our

resources and the attention of management could be diverted from our business.

Table of Contents

If you purchase shares of our common stock in this offering, you will incur immediate and substantial dilution.

The offering price of our common stock is substantially higher than the net tangible book value per share of our common stock, which on a pro forma as adjusted basis was \$1.65 per share of our common stock as of June 30, 2014, based on the initial public offering price of \$13.00 per share, and after deducting estimated underwriting discounts and commissions and estimated offering expenses payable by us. As a result, you will incur immediate and substantial dilution in net tangible book value when you buy our common stock in this offering. This means that you will pay a higher price per share than the amount of our total tangible assets, less our total liabilities, divided by the number of shares of common stock outstanding. In addition, you may also experience additional dilution if options or other rights to purchase our common stock that are outstanding or that we may issue in the future are exercised or converted or we issue additional shares of our common stock at prices lower than our net tangible book value at such time. See "Dilution."

We do not expect to pay any cash dividends for the foreseeable future and, consequently, for those who purchase our common stock, the only opportunity to achieve a return on your investment is if the price of our common stock appreciates.

Following this offering, we do not anticipate that we will pay any cash dividend on shares of our common stock for the foreseeable future. Any determination to pay dividends in the future will be at the discretion of our Board of Directors and will depend upon results of operations, financial performance and condition, capital requirements, contractual restrictions under our line of credit and other debt agreements (including specific restrictive covenants), restrictions imposed by applicable law and other factors that our Board of Directors deems relevant. Accordingly, if you purchase shares in this offering, realization of a gain on your investment will depend on the appreciation of the price of our common stock, which may never occur. Investors seeking cash dividends in the foreseeable future should not purchase our common stock.

Future sales of our common stock, or the perception in the public markets that these sales may occur, may depress our stock price.

The market price of our common stock could decline significantly as a result of sales of a large number of shares of our common stock in the market after this offering. These sales, or the perception that these sales might occur, could depress the market price of our common stock. These sales, or the possibility that these sales may occur, also might make it more difficult for us to sell equity securities in the future at a time and at a price that we deem appropriate.

In connection with this offering, we, our directors and executive officers, the selling shareholders and certain other holders of our outstanding common stock and options, representing substantially all of our common stock or options outstanding, have each agreed to certain lock-up restrictions. We and they and their permitted transferees will not be permitted to sell any shares of our common stock for 180 days, subject to extension, after the date of this prospectus, except as discussed in "Shares Eligible for Future Sale," without the prior consent of Credit Suisse Securities (USA) LLC and Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC. Credit Suisse Securities (USA) LLC and Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC may, together in their sole discretion, release all or any portion of the shares of our common stock from the restrictions in any of the lock-up agreements.

Upon the completion of this offering, we will have 50,448,744 shares of common stock outstanding. Except as limited by the lock-up agreements noted above, the shares of common stock offered in this offering will be freely tradable without restriction under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended ("the Securities Act"), except for any shares of common stock that may be held or acquired by our directors, executive officers and other affiliates, the sale of which will be restricted under the Securities Act. In

Table of Contents

addition, shares subject to outstanding options under our 2007 Option Plan and shares reserved for future issuance under our 2014 Omnibus Plan will become eligible for sale in the public market in the future, subject to certain legal and contractual limitations.

Moreover, pursuant to a registration rights agreement with certain funds of T. Rowe Price Associates, Inc. and Janus Capital Management, LLC, such shareholders have the right to require us to register under the Securities Act any shares of common stock they currently own. See "Certain Relationships and Related-Party Transactions Related-Party Transactions Registration Rights Agreement." If our existing shareholders sell substantial amounts of our common stock in the public market, or if the public perceives that such sales could occur, this could have an adverse impact on the market price of our common stock, even if there is no relationship between such sales and the performance of our business.

In addition, in the future, we may issue shares of our common stock in connection with investments or acquisitions. The amount of shares of our common stock issued in connection with an investment or acquisition could constitute a material portion of our then-outstanding shares of our common stock, which would dilute the holdings of existing shareholders.

Certain provisions of our corporate governance documents, Michigan law and the voting agreement among the Hagerman family and Rowe family could discourage, delay or prevent a merger or acquisition at a premium price.

Our amended and restated articles of incorporation and bylaws will contain provisions that may make the acquisition of our Company more difficult without the approval of our Board of Directors. These include provisions that, among other things:

permit the Board to issue up to 10,000,000 shares of preferred stock, with any rights, preferences and privileges as they may determine (including the right to approve an acquisition or other change in control);

provide that the authorized number of directors may be fixed only by the Board in accordance with our amended and restated bylaws;

do not provide for cumulative voting rights (therefore allowing the holders of a majority of the shares entitled to vote in any election of directors to elect all of the directors standing for election);

divide our Board into three staggered classes;

provide that all vacancies and newly created directorships may be filled by the affirmative vote of a majority of directors then in office, even if less than a quorum;

prohibit removal of directors without cause;

prohibit shareholders from calling special meetings of shareholders;

requires unanimous consent for stockholders to take action by written consent without approval of the action by our Board;

provide that shareholders seeking to present proposals before a meeting of shareholders or to nominate candidates for election as directors at a meeting of shareholders must provide advance notice in writing and also comply with specified requirements related to the form and content of a shareholder's notice;

require at least 80% supermajority shareholder approval to alter, amend or repeal certain provisions of our amended and restated articles of incorporation; and

Table of Contents

require at least 80% supermajority shareholder approval in order for shareholders to adopt, amend or repeal our amended and restated bylaws.

These provisions may frustrate or prevent any attempts by our shareholders to replace or remove our current management by making it more difficult for shareholders to replace members of the Board of Directors, which is responsible for appointing members of our management. Any matters requiring the approval of our shareholders will require the approval of the Hagerman family and the Rowe family (as defined below), which may have interests that differ from those of our other shareholders. See "Philip Hagerman, our chairman and chief executive officer, will have the ability to control the outcome of matters submitted for shareholder approval and may have interests that differ from those of our other shareholders."

In addition, the award agreements for outstanding options under our 2007 Option Plan generally provide that all unvested options will immediately vest upon a change in control. The 2014 Omnibus Plan will permit the Board of Directors or a committee thereof to accelerate, vest or cause the restrictions to lapse with respect to outstanding equity awards, in the event of, or immediately prior to, a change in control. Such vesting or acceleration could discourage the acquisition of our Company.

We could also become subject to certain anti-takeover provisions under Michigan law which may discourage, delay or prevent someone from acquiring us or merging with us, whether or not an acquisition or merger is desired by or beneficial to our shareholders. If a corporation's board of directors chooses to "opt-in" to certain provisions of Michigan Law, such corporation may not, in general, engage in a business combination with any beneficial owner, directly or indirectly, of 10% of the corporation's outstanding voting shares unless the holder has held the shares for five years or more or, among other things, the board of directors has approved the business combination. Our Board of Directors has not elected to be subject to this provision, but could do so in the future. Any provision of our amended and restated articles of incorporation or bylaws or Michigan law that has the effect of delaying or deterring a change in control could limit the opportunity for our shareholders to receive a premium for their shares, and could also affect the price that some investors are willing to pay for our common stock otherwise.

We expect to be a "controlled company" within the meaning of the rules of the New York Stock Exchange and, as a result, we will qualify for, and currently intend to rely on, exemptions from certain corporate governance requirements. You will not have the same protections afforded to shareholders of companies that are subject to such requirements.

After completion of this offering, members of the Hagerman family (as defined below), Jeff Rowe, our Executive Vice President, Operations, and certain trusts controlled by Mr. Rowe or his family members (collectively, the "Rowe family") will collectively hold more than 50% of our common stock, and will vote as a group (based on the voting determination of a majority of the shares held by the Hagerman family, which Philip Hagerman will hold as of the completion of this offering) pursuant to a voting agreement, and therefore we expect to qualify as a "controlled company" within the meaning of the corporate governance rules of the New York Stock Exchange. Under these rules, a company of which more than 50% of the voting power is held by an individual, group or another company is a "controlled company" and may elect not to comply with certain corporate governance requirements, including:

the requirement that a majority of the board of directors consist of independent directors;

the requirement that we have a nominating and corporate governance committee, and if we have such committee, that it be composed entirely of independent directors; and

the requirement that we have a compensation committee, and if we have such committee, that it be composed entirely of independent directors.

Table of Contents

We intend to rely on all of these corporate governance exemptions as of the completion of this offering and may rely on some or all of such exceptions so long as we continue to qualify as a controlled company.

Additionally, under the rules of the Exchange Act, we are only required to have one independent audit committee member upon the listing of our common stock on the New York Stock Exchange, a majority of independent audit committee members within 90 days from the date of listing and three independent audit committee members within one year from the date of listing.

Consequently, you will not have the same protections afforded to shareholders of companies that are subject to all of the corporate governance rules and requirements of the New York Stock Exchange. Our status as a controlled company could make our common stock less attractive to some investors or otherwise harm our stock price.

Philip Hagerman, our chairman and chief executive officer, will have the ability to control the outcome of matters submitted for shareholder approval and may have interests that differ from those of our other shareholders.

After the completion of this offering, assuming the underwriters do not exercise their option to purchase additional shares, Philip Hagerman and certain members of his immediate family and various trusts affiliated with or for the benefit of such persons (together with Philip Hagerman, the "Hagerman family") and the Rowe family will beneficially own approximately 59.8% of our common stock, and members of the Hagerman family and the Rowe family will vote as a group (based on the voting determination of a majority of the shares held by the Hagerman family and the Rowe family, which Philip Hagerman will hold as of the completion of this offering) pursuant to a voting agreement. Therefore, Philip Hagerman will continue to have effective control over the outcome of votes on all matters requiring approval by shareholders after the offering, including the election of directors, the adoption of amendments to our articles of incorporation and bylaws and approval of a sale of the Company and other significant corporate transactions, regardless of how other shareholders vote on these matters. Furthermore, the interests of the Hagerman family may be different than the interests of other shareholders. This concentration of voting power could also have the effect of delaying, deterring or preventing a change in control or other business combination that might otherwise be beneficial to our shareholders.

Our management will have broad discretion over the use of the proceeds we receive in this offering and might not apply the proceeds in ways that increase the value of your investment.

The net proceeds of the sale of the common stock that we are offering will be approximately \$119.0 million. As of September 16, 2014, \$100.3 million will be used to satisfy borrowings under our revolving line of credit and indebtedness to current and former stakeholders and employees. Our management will have broad discretion to use the balance of our net proceeds from this offering, and you will be relying on the judgment of our management regarding the application of these proceeds. Our management might not apply the net proceeds of this offering in ways that increase the value of your investment. Our management might not be able to yield any return on the investment and use of these net proceeds. You will not have the opportunity to influence our decisions on how to use the proceeds.

Some of our operating expenses will increase significantly as a result of operating as a public company, and our management will be required to devote substantial time to complying with public company regulations.

Since our inception, we have operated as a private company. As a public company, we will incur additional legal, accounting, compliance and other expenses that we have not incurred as a private company. After this offering, we will become obligated to file annual and quarterly information and

Table of Contents

other reports with the SEC as required by the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended ("the Exchange Act"), and applicable SEC rules. In addition, we will also become subject to other reporting and corporate governance requirements, including certain requirements of the New York Stock Exchange, which will impose significant compliance obligations upon us. Among other things, we will need to institute a comprehensive compliance function related to various regulations, establish additional internal policies and controls, prepare financial statements that are compliant with SEC reporting requirements on a timely basis, draft a proxy statement and hold annual meetings of shareholders, appoint independent directors, comply with additional corporate governance matters, and utilize outside counsel and accountants in the above activities.

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and the recently enacted Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act, as well as rules subsequently implemented by the SEC and the New York Stock Exchange, have imposed increased regulation and disclosure obligations and have required enhanced corporate governance practices of public companies. Our efforts to comply with evolving laws, regulations and standards are likely to result in increased administrative expenses and a diversion of management's time and attention from sales-generating activities. These changes will require a significant commitment of additional resources. We may not be successful in implementing these requirements, and implementing them could materially adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial condition. If we do not implement or comply with such requirements in a timely manner, we might be subject to sanctions or investigation by regulatory authorities, such as the SEC or the New York Stock Exchange. Any such action could harm our reputation and the confidence of investors and constituents in our Company and could materially adversely affect our business and cause our stock price to decline.

If securities or industry analysts do not publish research or publish unfavorable research about our business, our stock price and trading volume could decline.

The trading market for our common stock will be influenced by the research and reports that industry or securities analysts publish about us or our business. If one or more of these analysts ceases coverage of our Company or fails to publish reports on us regularly, we could lose visibility in the financial markets, which in turn could cause our stock price or trading volume to decline. Moreover, if our operating results do not meet the expectations of the investor community, one or more of the analysts who cover our Company may change their recommendations regarding our Company, and our stock price could decline.

If we cannot satisfy or continue to satisfy the continued listing requirements of the New York Stock Exchange, our common stock may be delisted, which would negatively impact the price of our common stock and your ability to sell our common stock.

Our common stock has been approved for listing on the New York Stock Exchange. If we are unable to comply with the continued listing requirements of the New York Stock Exchange, we could be delisted from and face significant consequences, including:

| limited availability for market quotations for our common stock; |
|--|
| reduced liquidity with respect to our common stock; |
| limited amount of news and analyst coverage; and |
| a decreased ability to issue additional securities or obtain additional financing in the future. |
| 37 |

Table of Contents

SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This prospectus includes forward-looking statements in addition to historical information. These forward-looking statements are included throughout this prospectus, including under the headings entitled "Prospectus Summary," "Risk Factors," "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" and "Business" and relate to matters such as our industry, business strategy, goals and expectations concerning our market position, future operations, margins, profitability, capital expenditures, liquidity and capital resources and other financial and operating information. We have used the words "anticipate," "assume," "believe," "continue," "could," "estimate," "expect," "future," "intend," "may," "plan," "potential," "predict," "project," "seek," "should," "will," and similar terms and phrases, or the negative thereof, to identify forward-looking statements in this prospectus.

The forward-looking statements contained in this prospectus are based on management's good-faith belief and reasonable judgment based on current information, and these statements are qualified by important factors, many of which are beyond our control, that could cause our actual results to differ materially from those in the forward-looking statements, including changes in global, regional or local economic, business, competitive, market, regulatory and other factors, many of which are beyond our control, including those described in "Risk Factors." Any forward-looking statement made by us in this prospectus speaks only as of the date of this prospectus. We undertake no obligation to publicly update any forward-looking statement, whether as a result of new information, future developments or otherwise, except as may be required by any applicable laws or regulations.

The following risks related to our business, among others, could cause actual results to differ materially from those described in the forward-looking statements:

| our ability to adapt to changes or trends within the specialty pharmacy industry; |
|--|
| significant and increasing pricing pressure from third-party payors; |
| our relationships with key pharmaceutical manufacturers; |
| bad publicity about, or market withdrawal of, specialty drugs we dispense; |
| a significant increase in competition from a variety of companies in the health care industry; |
| our ability to expand the number of specialty drugs we dispense and related services; |
| maintaining existing patients; |
| revenue concentration of the top specialty drugs we dispense; |
| our ability to maintain relationships with a specified wholesaler and pharmaceutical manufacturer; |
| increasing consolidation in the healthcare industry; |
| managing our growth effectively; |

| relationships with emilieal experts and key alought relaters at 0.0. physician groups and universities, |
|---|
| relationships with clinical experts and key thought leaders at U.S. physician groups and universities; |
| failure or disruption of our information technology and security systems; |
| fluctuations in operating results; |
| limited experience with acquisitions; |

Table of Contents

| dependence on our senior management and key employees; |
|---|
| liability risks associated with our compounding services; |
| debt service obligations; |
| supply disruption of any of the specialty drugs we dispense; |
| loss of orphan drug status for such specialty drugs we dispense; |
| reductions of research, development and marketing of specialty drugs; and |
| other factors set forth under "Risk Factors." |
| 39 |

Table of Contents

USE OF PROCEEDS

The net proceeds available to us as a result of this offering will be \$119.0 million, based on the initial offering price of \$13.00 per share, after deducting the underwriting discount and estimated offering expenses payable by us.

We intend to use the net proceeds from this offering to repay indebtedness to certain current or former stakeholders and employees, which as of September 16, 2014 are as follows: (i) \$12.1 million to Mark Chaffee, a former shareholder, to satisfy a promissory note bearing interest at 1.3% per annum and maturing in January 2017; (ii) \$7.0 million to Jeffrey M. Rowe, an existing shareholder, executive officer and director, to satisfy a promissory note bearing interest at 1.3% per annum and maturing on July 20, 2017; (iii) \$0.1 million to Deborah Ward, an existing shareholder and the sister of Philip Hagerman, our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, to satisfy a promissory note bearing no interest and maturing on April 20, 2015; and (iv) \$0.9 million to Stephen M. Lund, a former employee and option holder, to satisfy a promissory note bearing interest at the prime rate plus 1.0% and maturing on July 20, 2017. The balance of the net proceeds from this offering (including the net proceeds available in the event the underwriters exercise their option to purchase additional shares of our common stock to cover overallotments, if any) will be used to fully repay borrowings under our revolving line of credit to the extent of any borrowings outstanding as of the completion of this offering and for working capital and other general corporate purposes, which we expect will include opportunistic acquisitions or strategic investments. The revolving line of credit expires on July 20, 2017. At September 16, 2014, we had \$80.2 million of borrowings outstanding and had \$33.3 million of availability under the line of credit. We may select from two interest rate options for revolving and letter of credit borrowings under the line of credit: (i) LIBOR (as defined in the line of credit) plus 1.75% or (ii) Base Rate (as defined in the line of credit) plus 0.75%. The effective interest rate for Base Rate borrowings at both June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013 was 4.00%. The effective rate on LIBOR rate borrowings at June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013 was 1.90% and 1.92%, respectively. As a result of the repayment of our line of credit, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. and Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., lenders thereunder and affiliates of certain of the underwriters of this offering, will receive a portion of such repayment. See "Underwriting (Conflicts of Interest)."

We will not receive any proceeds from the sale of shares of our common stock by the selling shareholders, including any shares that may be sold by the selling shareholders in connection with the exercise of the underwriters' option to purchase additional shares. The selling shareholders will not be responsible for any offering expenses, other than their proportionate share of the underwriting discounts and commissions.

Table of Contents

DIVIDEND POLICY

We do not currently anticipate paying any dividends to our shareholders in the foreseeable future. Although historically as a private company, we paid cash distributions to our shareholders we currently expect to retain all future earnings, if any, for use in the operation and expansion of our business. Any determination to pay dividends in the future will be at the discretion of our Board of Directors and will depend upon results of operations, financial performance and condition, capital requirements, restrictions imposed by applicable law, other factors our Board of Directors deems relevant and contractual restrictions under our line of credit and other debt agreements including those discussed under "Description of Indebtedness" and "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations Liquidity and Capital Resources" in this prospectus. As a result, capital appreciation, if any, of our common stock will be your sole source of gain from your purchase of our common stock for the foreseeable future.

Table of Contents

CAPITALIZATION

The following table sets forth our cash and capitalization as of June 30, 2014 on:

an actual basis:

a pro forma basis to give effect to the conversion of all outstanding shares of our capital stock into shares of our common stock, and immediately thereafter a stock split effected as a stock dividend of 8,500 shares for each share of our common stock as described under the heading "Description of Capital Stock Conversion of Issued and Outstanding Common Stock and Preferred Stock" as if such transactions occurred on June 30, 2014; and

a pro forma as adjusted basis to give further effect to the sale of shares of common stock by us in this offering at the public offering price of \$13.00 per share, after deducting the underwriting discount and estimated offering expenses payable by us, and the application of the net proceeds of this offering by us as described under "Use of Proceeds" as if such transactions occurred on June 30, 2014.

The information below is illustrative only and our cash and capitalization following the completion of this offering will be based on the actual initial public offering price and other terms of this offering determined at pricing. You should read this table together with "Selected Consolidated Financial Data," "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" and our consolidated financial statements and related notes included elsewhere in this prospectus.

Table of Contents

| | | f June 30, 2 (unaudited) | | |
|--|---------------|-----------------------------|----|----------------------|
| | Actual | o Forma | as | ro Forma Adjusted |
| | | usands, exc | | |
| Cash and cash equivalents | \$ 25,550 | \$ 25,550 | \$ | 44,247 |
| Line of credit(1) | \$ 79,876 | \$ 79,876 | \$ | |
| Notes payable to individuals | 20,842 | 20,842 | | |
| Redeemable Common Shares(2) | 38,423 | 20,012 | | |
| Series A Preferred Stock, par value \$.001 per share, 732 shares authorized, 731 shares issued and outstanding, actual; no shares authorized, issued or outstanding, pro forma and pro forma as adjusted | 101,815 | | | |
| Class A Voting Common Stock, par value \$1.00 per share, 5,000 shares authorized, 195 shares issued and outstanding, actual; no shares authorized, issued or outstanding, pro forma and pro forma as adjusted Class B Nonvoting Common Stock, par value \$1.00 per share, 95,000 shares. authorized, 3,504 shares issued and outstanding, actual; no shares authorized, issued or outstanding, pro | | | | |
| forma and pro forma as adjusted Common stock, no par value per share, no shares authorized, no shares issued and outstanding, actual; 590,000,000 shares authorized, 40,076,258 shares issued and outstanding, pro forma; 590,000,000 shares authorized, 50,076,258 shares issued and outstanding, pro forma as adjusted | 4 | | | |
| Additional paid-in capital(3) | (114,039) | 26,203 | | 145,207 |
| Retained earnings | 3,943 | 3,943 | | 3,943 |
| Total stockholders' equity (deficit) | (110,092) | 30,146 | | 149,150 |
| Total capitalization | \$ 130,864 | \$ 130,864 | \$ | 149,150 |

As of June 30, 2014, our line of credit provided for up to \$120.0 million in revolving loans, subject to a borrowing base determined primarily by the value of our eligible receivables and inventory. As of June 30, 2014, we had \$18.2 million in undrawn availability under our line of credit. See "Description of Indebtedness." All outstanding borrowings under the line of credit are expected to be paid off with proceeds from this offering. At September 16, 2014, we had \$80.2 million of borrowings outstanding and had \$33.3 million of availability under the line of credit.

⁽²⁾The pro forma value of redeemable common shares reflects the conversion of all outstanding shares of redeemable common shares into common stock in connection with this offering.

The pro forma additional paid-in capital balance reflects the conversion of all outstanding shares of our capital stock into shares of our common stock, and immediately thereafter a stock split effected as a stock dividend of 8,500 shares for each share of our common stock. The pro forma, as adjusted additional paid-in capital balance further reflects the sale of 10,000,000 common shares in this offering.

43

Table of Contents

(1)

DILUTION

If you purchase shares of our common stock in this offering, you will incur immediate and substantial dilution to the extent of the difference between the public offering price per share of our common stock and the consolidated net tangible book value per share of our common stock after giving effect to this offering.

Consolidated net tangible book value (deficit) per share is determined by dividing (i) our total assets less our goodwill, intangible assets, deferred initial public offering costs, and total liabilities (excluding redeemable common shares) by (ii) the number of shares of our common stock outstanding. As of June 30, 2014, we had a consolidated net tangible book value (deficit) of approximately \$(36.9) million, or \$(1.09) per common share. Our pro forma consolidated net tangible book value (deficit) as of June 30, 2014 would have been \$(36.9) million, or \$(0.92) per share, based on the total number of shares of our common stock outstanding as of June 30, 2014, after giving effect to the conversion of all outstanding shares of our capital stock into shares of our common stock, and immediately thereafter a stock split effected as a stock dividend of 8,500 shares for each share of our common stock as described under the heading "Description of Capital Stock Conversion of Issued and Outstanding Common Stock and Preferred Stock." Following the sale by us of the 10,000,000 shares of common stock in this offering at the initial public offering price of \$13.00 per share after deducting the underwriting discount and estimated offering expenses payable by us and applying the net proceeds as set forth in "Use of Proceeds," our pro forma as adjusted consolidated net tangible book value at June 30, 2014 would have been \$82.6 million, or \$1.65 per share. This represents an immediate increase in pro forma as adjusted consolidated net tangible book value to existing shareholders of \$2.57 per share and an immediate dilution to new investors of \$11.35 per share. Dilution per share represents the difference between the price per share to be paid by new investors for the shares of common stock sold in this offering and the pro forma as adjusted consolidated net tangible book value per share immediately after this offering. The following table illustrates this dilution on a per share basis:

| Initial public offering price per share | | \$ 13.00 |
|---|--------------|-------------|
| Pro forma net tangible book value (deficit) per share as of June 30, 2014 | \$ (0.92) | |
| Increase in pro forma net tangible book value per share attributable to new investors | \$ 2.57 | |
| Pro forma consolidated net tangible book value per share, as adjusted for this offering | | \$ 1.65 |
| Dilution in pro forma net tangible book value per share to new investors in this offering | | \$ 11.35 |

The following table sets forth, as of June 30, 2014, the number of shares of common stock purchased, the total consideration paid, or to be paid to us, and the average price per share paid, or to be paid, by existing shareholders and by the new investors, at the initial public offering price of \$13.00 per share, before deducting the underwriting discount and estimated offering expenses payable by us (dollars in thousands, except per share data):

| | | | Tota | l | |
|-----------------------------------|-------------|---------|------------|---------------|-----------|
| | Shares Purc | hased | Consider | Average Price | |
| | Number | Percent | Amount | Percent | Per Share |
| Existing shareholders(1) | 40,076,258 | 80% | \$ 27,156 | 17% | \$ 0.68 |
| New investors in this offering(1) | 10,000,000 | 20 | 130,000 | 83 | \$ 13.00 |
| Total | 50,076,258 | 100% | \$ 177,156 | 100% | |

The number of shares purchased by existing shareholders includes shares being sold by the selling shareholders in this offering. The number of shares purchased by new investors does not include shares being sold by the selling shareholders in this offering and does

not include shares issued pursuant to the underwriters' option to purchase additional shares.

Table of Contents

Sales by the selling shareholders in this offering will reduce the number of shares held by existing shareholders to 36,742,925 shares, or approximately 73% (35,742,925 shares, or approximately 71%, if the underwriters exercise their overallotment option in full), and will increase the number of shares to be purchased by new investors to 13,333,333 shares, or approximately 27% (14,333,333 shares, or approximately 29%, if the underwriters exercise their overallotment option in full), of the total common stock outstanding after this offering.

The foregoing tables exclude (i) 6,235,348 shares of our common stock issuable upon the exercise of options outstanding as of June 30, 2014 under our 2007 Option Plan, with a weighted average exercise price of \$6.64 per share, and (ii) 4,000,000 shares of our common stock reserved for future issuance under our 2014 Omnibus Plan as of the date hereof, which will be effective upon the completion of this offering. To the extent these options are exercised, there will be further dilution to new investors.

Table of Contents

SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table summarizes our consolidated financial data and other data for the periods and at the dates indicated. We derived the consolidated statement of operations data for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 and the consolidated balance sheet data as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 from our audited restated consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this prospectus. We derived the statement of operations data for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 and the balance sheet data as of December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009 from our audited restated consolidated financial statements that do not appear in this prospectus. We derived the unaudited consolidated statement of operations data for the six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 and the unaudited consolidated balance sheet data as of June 30, 2014 from our unaudited restated consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this prospectus. We have prepared the unaudited consolidated financial statements on the same basis as the audited consolidated financial statements and have included, in our opinion, all adjustments, consisting only of normal recurring adjustments that we consider necessary for a fair presentation of the financial information set forth in those statements.

We derived the unaudited pro forma financial information for the year ended December 31, 2013 and the six months ended June 30, 2014 and as of June 30, 2014 from the unaudited pro forma financial information included elsewhere in this prospectus.

Our historical results are not necessarily indicative of the results to be expected for any future period, and the results in the six months ended June 30, 2014 are not necessarily indicative of the results for the full year or any other period. The following information should be read together with the information under the headings "Capitalization" and "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" and our consolidated financial statements and related notes included elsewhere in this prospectus. The unaudited pro forma consolidated financial information does not necessarily represent what our financial position, results of operations and other data would have been if the transactions had actually been completed on the dates indicated, and are not intended to project such information for any future period. See "Use of Proceeds" and "Index to the Consolidated Financial Statements Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Consolidated Financial Information."

Table of Contents

| | For the six m | onths ended | June 30, | 2013 | For the year ended December 31, 2013 | | | | | | | |
|--|------------------|------------------|---------------|-------------------|--------------------------------------|----------------|--------------------|-----------------|------------|--|--|--|
| | Pro-Forma(1) | 2014(2) | 2013 | Pro-Forma(3) | 2013(4) | 2012 | 2011 | 2010 | 2009 | | | |
| | | (De | ollars in tho | usands, except | per share an | d per prescrij | ption data) | | | | | |
| | (U | naudited) | | | | | | | | | | |
| Consolidated Statement of Operations Data | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Net sales | \$ 1,051,132 \$ | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Cost of goods sold | (984,008) | (948,275) | (663,883) | (1,313,048) | (1,420,112) | (1,057,608) | (715,448) | (536,451) | (346,873) | | | |
| Gross profit | 67,124 | 59,077 | 40,642 | 112,585 | 89,027 | 69,335 | 56,514 | 41,096 | 30,606 | | | |
| Selling, general, and | (57,026) | (51.02.4) | (25,000) | (100.504) | (77.044) | (64.202) | (45, 40.4) | (27,002) | (27.114) | | | |
| administrative expenses | (57,826) | (51,024) | (35,988) | (100,584) | (77,944) | (64,392) | (47,434) | (37,902) | (27,114) | | | |
| Income from operations | 9,298 | 8,053 | 4,654 | 12,001 | 11,083 | 4,943 | 9,080 | 3,194 | 3,492 | | | |
| Interest expense | | (895) | (941) | | (1,996) | (1,086) | (598) | (454) | (831) | | | |
| Change in fair value of redeemable common shares | | 957 | (741) | | (34,348) | (6,566) | (370) | (10,662) | (7,033) | | | |
| Equity loss of | | 751 | | | (31,310) | (0,500) | | (10,002) | (1,033) | | | |
| non-consolidated entity | (710) | (710) | (311) | (1,055) | (1,055) | (267) | (95) | | | | | |
| Other income | 607 | 517 | 112 | 275 | 196 | 337 | 764 | 85 | 157 | | | |
| Income (loss) before | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| income taxes | 9,195 (3,592) | 7,922 (4,557) | 3,514 | 11,221 (3,970) | (26,120) | (2,639) | 9,151 | (7,837) | (4,215) | | | |
| Income tax expense(5) | (3,392) | (4,337) | | (3,970) | | | | | | | | |
| Net income (loss) | 5,603 | 3,365 | 3,514 | 7,251 | (26,120) | (2,639) | 9,151 | (7,837) | (4,215) | | | |
| Net income allocable to | ,,,,,, | ., | - /- | , , | (1, 1, | ()) | .,. | (1,111) | () - / | | | |
| preferred shareholders | | 401 | | | | | | | | | | |
| Net income (loss) allocable | ¢ 5.602 4 | t 2.064 | ф. 2.514 | ф. 7.051 | ф. (26.120) | ф (2.620) | ¢ 0.151 | ф (7.027) ф | (4.015) | | | |
| to common shareholders | \$ 5,603 \$ | \$ 2,964 | \$ 3,514 | \$ 7,251 | \$ (26,120) | \$ (2,639) | \$ 9,151 | \$ (7,837) \$ | (4,215) | | | |
| Weighed average common shares outstanding(6): | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Basic | 50,076,258 | 3,691 | 3,899 | 50,076,258 | 3,899 | 3,899 | 3,899 | 3,903 | 3,925 | | | |
| Diluted Net income (loss) per | 52,351,672 | 3,970 | 3,976 | 50,787,732 | 3,899 | 3,899 | 4,029 | 3,903 | 3,925 | | | |
| common share(6): | \$ 0.11 5 | 002.16 | ¢ 001.22 | ¢ 0.14 | ¢ (6 600 12) | ¢ (676.74) | ¢ 2 246 06 | ¢ (2,000,20), ¢ | (1.074.00) | | | |
| Basic | \$ 0.11 \$ | p 6U3.10 | \$ 901.32 | φ 0.14 | \$ (6,699.13) | φ (0/0./4) | φ <i>2</i> ,340.90 | \$(2,008.20) \$ | (1,074.00) | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | |

| Other Data | | | | | | | | | |
|--------------------------------------|--------------|--------------|-------------|--------------|--------------|--------------|--------------|-------------|-------------|
| Adjusted EBITDA(7) | \$ 17,584 | \$ 14,083 | \$ 7,704 | \$ 29,672 | \$ 18,970 | \$ 10,852 | \$ 15,121 | \$ 7,716 | \$ 6,059 |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| Prescriptions dispensed(8) | 397,000 | 381,000 | 352,000 | 752,000 | 722,000 | 680,000 | 602,000 | 580,000 | 484,000 |
| Prescriptions serviced (not | | | | | | | | | |
| dispensed)(9) | 102,000 | 102,000 | 97,000 | 208,000 | 208,000 | 118,000 | 7,000 | | |
| Total prescriptions | 499,000 | 483,000 | 449,000 | 960,000 | 930,000 | 798,000 | 609,000 | 580,000 | 484,000 |
| Net sales per prescription | | | | | | | | | |
| dispensed(10) | \$ 2,641 | \$ 2,639 | \$ 1,993 | \$ 2,156 | \$ 2,090 | \$ 1,652 | \$ 1,282 | \$ 996 | \$ 780 |
| Gross profit per prescription | | | | | | | | | |
| dispensed(11) | \$ 162 | \$ 148 | \$ 109 | \$ 142 | \$ 116 | \$ 97 | \$ 93 | \$ 71 | \$ 63 |
| Net sales per prescription | | | | | | | | | |
| serviced (not dispensed)(12) | \$ 27 | \$ 27 | \$ 25 | \$ 27 | \$ 27 | \$ 29 | \$ 49 | | |
| Gross profit per prescription | | | | | | | | | |
| serviced (not dispensed)(12) | \$ 27 | \$ 27 | \$ 25 | \$ 27 | \$ 27 | \$ 29 | \$ 49 | | |
| Adjusted EBITDA per prescription(13) | \$ 35 | \$ 29 | \$ 17 | \$ 31 | \$ 20 | \$ 14 | \$ 25 | \$ 13 | \$ 13 |
| | | | | | | | | | |

| | | As | of J | une 30, 20 | 14 | ļ | | | | | | | | | |
|------------------------------------|-----|---------------|------|------------|----|-----------|--------|-----|-----------|-----|----------|-----------|-----------|----|----------|
| | Pr | o-Forma as | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | adj | usted(14J | Pro- | Forma(15 |) | Actual | | | 2013 | | 2012 | 2011 | 2010 | | 2009 |
| | | | | | | | (Dolla | ars | in thousa | and | s) | | | | |
| | | | (Un | audited) | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Consolidated Balance Sheet Data | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Property and equipment, | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| net | \$ | 12,900 | \$ | 12,900 | \$ | 12,900 | | \$ | 12,378 | \$ | 12,634 | \$ 16,930 | \$ 14,116 | \$ | 8,196 |
| Total assets | | 357,195 | | 338,909 | | 338,909 | | | 211,777 | | 139,595 | 100,380 | 82,722 | | 55,615 |
| Total debt | | | | 100,718 | | 100,718 | | | 88,164 | | 63,102 | 12,942 | 19,694 | | 9,963 |
| Total liabilities | | 208,045 | | 308,763 | | 347,186 | | | 289,559 | | 191,157 | 130,471 | 122,265 | | 84,152 |
| Redeemable preferred | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| stock(16) | | | | | | 101,815 | | | | | | | | | |
| Shareholders' (deficit) | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| equity(16)(17) | | 149,150 | | 30,146 | | (110,092) | | | (77,782) | | (51,562) | (30,091) | (39,543) | (| (28,538) |

The unaudited pro forma consolidated financial information for the six months ended June 30, 2014 gives effect to: (A) the January and April 2014 issuance of preferred stock and the use of a portion of the proceeds from these issuances to redeem outstanding shares of common stock and common stock options, (B) our acquisition of MedPro in June 2014 and related borrowings under our line of credit, (C) our conversion from an S corporation to a C corporation on January 23, 2014, (D) the conversion of all outstanding shares of our capital stock into shares of our common stock, and immediately thereafter a stock split effected as a stock dividend of 8,500 shares for each share of our common stock and (E) this offering and the use of proceeds therefrom, assuming in each case that such event occurred on January 1, 2013. See "Index to the Consolidated Financial Statements Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Consolidated Financial Information".

(5)

⁽²⁾ We acquired MedPro on June 27, 2014 and its financial results have been included in our historical financial statements since such date.

⁽³⁾The unaudited pro forma consolidated financial information for the year ended December 31, 2013 gives effect to the transactions described in Note 1 above as well as to the December 2013 acquisition of AHF and related borrowings under our line of credit, assuming in each case that such event occurred on January 1, 2013. Index to the Consolidated Financial Statements Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Consolidated Financial Information".

⁽⁴⁾ We acquired AHF on December 16, 2013 and its financial results have been included in our historical financial statements since that date.

Prior to January 23, 2014, we had elected to be taxed under the provisions of Subchapter S of the Internal Revenue Code. Therefore, we did not pay corporate income taxes on our taxable income. Instead, our shareholders were liable for individual income taxes on their respective shares of our taxable income. On January 23, 2014, we changed from an S Corporation to a C Corporation, and therefore we will pay corporate income taxes on our taxable income for periods after January 23, 2014.

Table of Contents

- (6)

 All share and per share amounts presented have been adjusted to reflect the applicable conversions of capital stock and stock dividend occurring immediately prior to the completion of this offering.
- (7)

 See "Index to the Consolidated Financial Statements Adjusted EBITDA" below for our definition of Adjusted EBITDA, why we present Adjusted EBITDA and a reconciliation of net income (loss) to Adjusted EBITDA.
- (8)

 Prescriptions dispensed (rounded to nearest thousand), represents actual prescriptions filled and dispensed by Diplomat.
- (9)

 Prescriptions serviced (not dispensed) (rounded to nearest thousand), represents prescriptions filled and dispensed by a non-Diplomat pharmacy, including retailers and health systems, for which we provide support services required to assist patients and pharmacies with the complexity of filling specialty medications, and for which we earn a fee.
- (10)

 Net sales per prescription dispensed represents total prescription revenue from prescriptions dispensed by Diplomat, divided by the number of prescriptions dispensed by Diplomat. Total prescription revenue from prescriptions dispensed includes all revenue collected from patients, third party payors and various patient assistance programs, as well as revenue collected from pharmaceutical manufacturers for data and other services directly tied to the actual dispensing of their drug(s).
- (11)
 Gross profit per prescription dispensed represents gross profit from prescriptions dispensed by Diplomat, divided by the number of prescriptions dispensed by Diplomat. Gross profit represents total prescription revenue from prescriptions dispensed less the cost of the drugs purchased.
- Net sales per prescription serviced (not dispensed) represents total prescription revenue from prescriptions serviced divided by the number of prescriptions serviced for the non-Diplomat pharmacies. Gross profit per prescription serviced (not dispensed) is equal to net sales per prescription serviced because there is no Diplomat drug cost of goods sold associated with such transactions. Total prescription revenue from prescriptions serviced includes revenue collected from partner pharmacies, including retailers and health systems, for support services rendered to their patients.
- (13)
 Adjusted EBITDA per prescription is Adjusted EBITDA divided by the total number of prescriptions dispensed or serviced.
- The unaudited pro forma consolidated financial information, as of June 30, 2014, as adjusted, gives effect to the items specified in Note 15 below and further effect to this offering and the use of proceeds therefrom, assuming in each case that such event occurred on June 30, 2014. See "Index to the Consolidated Financial Statements" Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Consolidated Financial Information".
- The unaudited pro forma consolidated balance sheet information as of June 30, 2014 gives effect to the conversion of all outstanding shares of our capital stock into shares of our common stock, and immediately thereafter a stock split effected as a stock dividend of 8,500 shares for each share of our common stock, assuming that such event occurred on June 30, 2014. See "Index to the Consolidated Financial Statements" Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Consolidated Financial Information".
- In January 2014, we sold to certain funds of T. Rowe Price, 2,986,228 shares of Series A Preferred stock at a purchase price of \$16.74 per share. We used \$20,000 of the \$50,000 investment proceeds for general corporate purposes, including fees associated with the transaction, and the remaining \$30,000 was used to redeem shares of common stock and common stock options. Further, in April 2014, we sold to certain funds of Janus Capital Group 3,225,127 shares of Series A preferred stock at a purchase price of \$16.74 per share. We used \$25,200 of the \$54,000 investment for general corporate purposes, including fees associated with the transaction, and the remaining \$28,800 was used to redeem shares of common stock and common stock options. These redemptions increased our shareholders' deficit by \$58,800 in the six months ended June 30, 2014.
- In 2012, we entered into settlement agreements with current or former shareholders whereby we purchased shares of common stock formerly owned by the stakeholders for consideration of \$29,393 of which \$2,851 was paid in cash, forgiveness of note of \$196 and the remaining \$26,346 was payable in full, as per the terms of an executed promissory notes, maturing 2017. This entire amount of \$29,393 is reflected as a decrease to our shareholders' (deficit) equity in 2012. Also, in 2012 we had unusually high shareholder distributions of \$17,281.

Adjusted EBITDA

We define Adjusted EBITDA as net income (loss) before interest expense, income taxes, depreciation and amortization, share-based compensation expense, restructuring and impairment charges, equity loss of non-consolidated entity, and certain other items that we do not consider indicative of our ongoing operating performance (which items are itemized below). Adjusted EBITDA is a non-GAAP financial measure.

We consider Adjusted EBITDA to be a supplemental measure of our operating performance. We present Adjusted EBITDA because it is used by our Board of Directors and management to evaluate our operating performance. It is also used as a factor in determining incentive compensation, for budgetary planning and forecasting overall financial and operational expectations, for identifying underlying trends and for evaluating the effectiveness of our business strategies. Further, we believe it assists us, as well as investors, in comparing performance from period to period on a consistent basis. Adjusted EBITDA is not in accordance with, or an alternative to, measures prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States ("GAAP"). In addition, this non-GAAP measure is not based on any comprehensive set of accounting rules or principles.

As a non-GAAP measure, Adjusted EBITDA has limitations in that it does not reflect all of the amounts associated with our results of operations as determined in accordance with GAAP and therefore you should not consider Adjusted EBITDA in isolation from, or as a substitute for, financial information prepared in accordance with GAAP. You should be aware that in the future we may incur expenses that are the same as or similar to some of the adjustments in the presentation, and we do not infer that our future results will be unaffected by unusual or non-recurring items. Adjusted EBITDA does not:

include depreciation expense from property and equipment or amortization expense from acquired intangible assets (and although they are non-cash charges, the assets being depreciated will often have to be replaced in the future);

Table of Contents

reflect interest expense on our debt and capital leases or interest income we earn on cash and cash equivalents;

reflect the amounts we paid in taxes or other components of our tax provision (which reduces cash available to us);

include the impact of share-based compensation (which is a recurring expense that will remain a key element of our long-term incentive compensation package, although we exclude it when evaluating our operating performance for a particular period); or

include restructuring and impairment charges, the equity income or loss of our non-consolidated entity, or other matters we do not consider to be indicative of our ongoing operations.

Further, other companies in our industry may calculate Adjusted EBITDA differently than we do and these calculations may not be comparable to our Adjusted EBITDA metric. Because of these limitations, you should consider Adjusted EBITDA alongside other financial performance measures, including net income (loss) and our financial results presented in accordance with GAAP.

The table below presents a reconciliation of net income (loss) to Adjusted EBITDA for the periods indicated:

| | For the | six months June 30, | ended | For the year ended December 31, 2013 | | | | | | | | | | |
|---|-----------|------------------------|----------|--------------------------------------|--------------|------------|-----------|------------|------------|--|--|--|--|--|
| | Pro-Forma | 2014 | 2013 | Pro-Forma | 2013 | 2012 | 2011 | 2010 | 2009 | | | | | |
| | | | | (Dolla | rs in thousa | nds) | | | | | | | | |
| Net income (loss) | \$ 5,603 | \$ 3,365 | \$ 3,514 | \$ 7,251 | \$ (26,120) | \$ (2,639) | \$ 9,151 | \$ (7,837) | \$ (4,215) | | | | | |
| Depreciation and amortization | 5,559 | 2,545 | 1,821 | 11,171 | 3,934 | 3,842 | 3,079 | 2,157 | 1,858 | | | | | |
| Interest expense | | 895 | 941 | | 1,996 | 1,086 | 598 | 454 | 831 | | | | | |
| Income tax expense | 3,592 | 4,557 | | 3,970 | | | | | | | | | | |
| EBITDA | 14,754 | 11,362 | 6,276 | 22,392 | (20,190) | 2,289 | 12,828 | (5,226) | (1,527) | | | | | |
| Share-based compensation expense(1) | 1,135 | 1,135 | 455 | 1,006 | 886 | 915 | 1,410 | 839 | 423 | | | | | |
| Change in fair value of | Í | | | , | | | , | | | | | | | |
| redeemable common shares | | (957) | | | 34,348 | 6,566 | | 10,662 | 7,033 | | | | | |
| Restructuring and impairment | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| charges(2) | | | 50 | 1,033 | 1,033 | 424 | 429 | 1,456 | | | | | | |
| Equity loss of non-consolidated entity(3) | 710 | 710 | 311 | 1,055 | 1,055 | 267 | 95 | | | | | | | |
| Severance and related fees(4) | 254 | 254 | 119 | 239 | 205 | 412 | 740 | | | | | | | |
| Merger & acquisition related fees | 234 | 234 | 119 | 239 | 203 | 412 | 740 | | | | | | | |
| and expenses(5) | 323 | 1,171 | 162 | 1,281 | 677 | | | | | | | | | |
| Private company expenses(6) | 180 | 180 | 57 | 1,932 | 222 | | | | | | | | | |
| Tax Credits and other(7) | (419) | | | 1,732 | | (148) | (626) | | | | | | | |
| Other Items(8) | 647 | 647 | 274 | 734 | 734 | 127 | 245 | (15) | 130 | | | | | |
| Adjusted EBITDA | \$ 17,584 | \$ 14,083 | \$ 7,704 | \$ 29,672 | \$ 18,970 | \$ 10,852 | \$ 15,121 | \$ 7,716 | \$ 6,059 | | | | | |

- (1) Share-based compensation expense relates to eligible employee stock options.
- Restructuring and impairment charges reflect decreases in the fair market value of non-core property and assets, or actual losses on disposal of such assets. 2013 charges primarily relate to the \$932 write-down of our former Swartz Creek, Michigan headquarters facility to its fair value, after we vacated it in favor of our present Flint, Michigan facility. 2012 charges primarily relate to our write-down of an externally purchased software package we no longer utilize, as well as sales of Company-owned vehicles. 2011 charges include expense associated with the closure of our former Cleveland, Ohio facility, the move of our Chicago, Illinois area facility, and sales of Company-owned vehicles.
- (3)

 Represents our share of losses recognized by our non-consolidated entity, Ageology, using the equity method of accounting. We first invested in Ageology, an anti-aging physician network dedicated to nutrition, fitness and hormones, in October 2011, in connection with its formation.
- (4) Employee severance and related fees primarily relates to severance for former management.

49

Table of Contents

- (5)

 Fees and expenses directly related to merger and acquisition activities, including our acquisitions of AHF and MedPro and the impact of changes in the fair value of related contingent consideration liabilities.
- Primarily includes (a) philanthropic activities performed at the direction of our majority shareholder and (b) for the 2013 pro forma, \$1,710 is cost related to excess incentive compensation paid by AHF to its primary shareholder and certain other shareholder executives, such excess determined relative to the incentive compensation for similar positions consistent with what could be earned under Diplomat's incentive programs.
- (7) Represents various tax credits received from the state of Michigan for facility improvement and employee hiring initiatives, and the one-time costs associated with converting from an S-Corporation to a C-Corporation.
- Includes other expenses, including information technology ("IT") operating leases. These operating leases were initiated, in lieu of purchases or capital leases for a subset of our IT spend, for a short period of time in 2013 and 2014 for liquidity purposes. We have since discontinued the practice of leasing IT equipment. The cost of purchased IT equipment is reflected in depreciation and amortization.

Table of Contents

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

(Dollars in thousands, except prescription, per share, per patient and per prescription data)

You should read the following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations together with our consolidated financial statements and the related notes and other financial information included elsewhere in this prospectus. Some of the information contained in this discussion and analysis or set forth elsewhere in this prospectus, including information with respect to our plans and strategy for our business, includes forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. You should review information under the heading "Risk Factors" for a discussion of important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from the results described in or implied by the forward-looking statements contained in the following discussion and analysis.

Overview

We are the nation's largest independent specialty pharmacy and the fourth largest overall specialty pharmacy in the United States, and are focused on improving lives of patients with complex chronic diseases. Our patient-centric approach positions us at the center of the healthcare continuum for treatment of complex chronic diseases through partnerships with patients, payors, pharmaceutical manufacturers, and physicians. We offer a broad range of innovative solutions to address the dispensing, delivery, dosing and reimbursement of clinically intensive, high-cost specialty drugs (many of which can cost over \$100,000 per patient, per year). We have expertise across a broad range of high-growth specialty therapeutic categories, including oncology, immunology, hepatitis, multiple sclerosis, HIV, and specialty infusion therapy. We dispense to all 50 states through our advanced distribution center that enables us to ship medications nationwide as well as a centralized clinical call center that helps us deliver localized services on a national scale. We were founded in 1975 by our Chief Executive Officer, Philip Hagerman, and his father, Dale, both trained pharmacists who transformed our business from a traditional pharmacy into a leading specialty pharmacy beginning in 2005.

Our core revenues are derived from the customized care management programs we deliver to our patients, including the dispensing of their specialty medications. Because our core therapeutic disease states generally require multi-year or life-long therapy, our singular focus on complex chronic diseases helps drive recurring revenues and sustainable growth. Our revenue growth is primarily driven by new drugs coming to market, new indications for existing drugs, volume growth with current clients, and addition of new clients. For the six months ended June 30, 2014 and the year ended December 31, 2013, we derived over 99% of our revenue from the dispensing of drugs and the reporting of data associated with those dispenses to pharmaceutical manufacturers and other outside companies.

Most of our revenue is collected through contracts with third party payors, such as managed care organizations, insurance companies, self-insured employers, pharmacy benefit managers, and Medicare and Medicaid programs. For the six months ended June 30, 2014 and the year ended December 31, 2013, our payor-derived revenue was (1) approximately 34% and 34%, respectively, from exclusive or preferred relationships with third party payors (including some government-sponsored managed Medicaid programs), (2) approximately 21% and 22%, respectively, from open network commercial payors, and (3) approximately 41% and 41%, respectively, from open network government programs, with the remainder collected from patients, directly or on their behalf, as a result of their co-pay obligations or patient assistance programs. Our exclusive or preferred relationships are with regional and mid-sized payors and independent pharmacy benefit managers, employer groups, and union groups. As of June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, such relationships included approximately 13 million managed lives under contract in the United States.

Our historical growth has largely been driven by our position as a leader in oncology and immunology therapeutic categories. For the six months ended June 30, 2014 and the year ended

Table of Contents

December 31, 2013, we generated approximately 68% and 74%, respectively, of our revenues in these two categories.

We believe that limited distribution is becoming the delivery system of choice for many specialty drug manufacturers because it facilitates high patient engagement, clinical expertise, and an elevated focus on service. Accordingly, we believe our current portfolio of over 70 limited distribution drugs, all of which are post-launch, is important to our growth.

We also provide specialty pharmacy support services to a national network of retailers as well as hospitals and health systems. As of June 30, 2014, we provided services to 8 retailers and independent pharmacy groups, representing approximately 4,500 stores, and 48 hospitals and health systems. For many of our retail, hospital and health system partners, we earn revenue by providing clinical and administrative support services on a fee-for-service basis to help them dispense specialty medications. Our other revenue in 2013, 2012 and 2011 was derived from these services provided to retail and hospital pharmacy partners.

As a result of our clinical expertise and our ability to expand scope of services, demand for our services has grown, which has driven growth in revenue. Our revenue for the six months ended June 30, 2014 was \$1,007,352 and for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012, and 2011 was \$1,515,139, \$1,126,943, and \$771,962, respectively. Our net income (loss) for the six months ended June 30, 2014 was \$3,365 and for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012, and 2011 was \$(26,120), \$(2,639), and \$9,151, respectively. Our Adjusted EBITDA for the six months ended June 30, 2014 was \$14,083 and for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012, and 2011 was \$18,970, \$10,852, and \$15,121, respectively. See "Selected Consolidated Financial Data Adjusted EBITDA" for our definition of Adjusted EBITDA, why we present Adjusted EBITDA and a reconciliation of net income (loss) to Adjusted EBITDA.

Recent Developments and Other Important Factors Affecting Operating Results

Business Acquisitions

On December 16, 2013, we acquired all of the authorized, issued and outstanding shares of capital stock for AHF for a total acquisition price of approximately \$13,449, excluding related acquisition costs of approximately \$499 that were expensed. Included in the total acquisition price is \$12,100 in cash and contingent consideration fair valued at \$1,300 with a maximum payout of \$2,000, that is based on achieving certain revenue and gross profit targets in each of the years ending December 31, 2014 and 2015. AHF is a specialty pharmacy focused on bleeding disorders, such as hemophilia, and headquartered in Enfield, Connecticut. AHF provides clotting medications, ancillaries and supplies to individuals with bleeding disorders, such as hemophilia. The acquisition of AHF will allow us to participate in AHF's direct purchase agreements with key hemophilia manufacturers, while also providing AHF access to our proprietary care management modules to better manage clinical care of the AHF patients. The results of operations for AHF are included in our consolidated financial statements from the acquisition date. See Note 2 to our consolidated financial statements for the three years ended December 31, 2013 and the six months ended June 30, 2014 included elsewhere in this prospectus for additional information.

On June 27, 2014, we acquired all of the outstanding stock of MedPro for a total acquisition price of approximately \$68,240, excluding related acquisition costs of \$635. Included in the total acquisition price is \$51,970 in cash, 716,695 shares of our Class B Nonvoting Common Stock, valued at approximately \$12,000, and contingent consideration fair valued at \$4,270, with a maximum payout of \$11,500, that is based on the achievement of certain revenue and gross profit targets for each of the twelve months ended June 30, 2015 and 2016. MedPro is a specialty pharmacy focused on specialty infusion therapies, including hemophilia and immune globulin, based in Raleigh, North Carolina. We acquired MedPro to expand our existing specialty infusion business and to increase our presence in the mid-Atlantic and Southern regions of the country. See Note 2 to our consolidated financial statements

Table of Contents

for the six months ending June 30, 2014 included elsewhere in this prospectus for additional information.

We anticipate our future revenues derived from specialty infusion pharmacy services will increase significantly as a percentage of total revenues as a result of such acquisitions.

Issuances of Preferred Stock

On January 23, 2014, we sold to certain funds of T. Rowe Price 2,986,228 shares of Series A Preferred stock at a purchase price of \$16.74 per share. We used \$20,000 of the \$50,000 investment proceeds for general corporate purposes, including fees associated with the transaction, and the remaining \$30,000 was used to redeem shares of common stock and common stock options.

On April 1, 2014, we sold to certain funds of Janus Capital Group 3,225,127 shares of Series A Preferred stock at a purchase price of \$16.74 per share. We used \$25,200 of the \$54,000 investment proceeds for general corporate purposes, including fees associated with the transaction, and the remaining \$28,800 was used to redeem shares of common stock and common stock options.

Stock Option Redemption

In May 2014, we redeemed all of the rights to the outstanding common stock options from a former employee. The purchase price for the options was \$4,000 and was paid in full at time of closing.

Certain Operating Expenses

We have focused on growing our business and we plan to continue to invest in building for growth. As a result, we have experienced increased operating expenses driven by the additional IT staff required to develop improved operating systems. We have also experienced increased expense related to the additional operational staff required to service our customers in a less efficient fashion while the new systems are being developed. We expect to experience operational improvements following the implementation of key system improvements over the next one to two years. Further, we expect that the size of our operational staff, as well as the size of our sales and marketing staff, will continue to grow with the business.

Contribution Agreement

On August 28, 2014, we and two unrelated third party entities entered into a contribution agreement to form a new company, Primrose Healthcare, LLC ("Primrose") which will function as a management company, managing a network of physicians and medical professionals providing continuum care for patients infected with the Hepatitis C virus. We have committed to contributing \$5,000 to Primrose, of which \$2,000 was contributed in August 2014 with the remainder to be contributed during 2014 and 2015. We have a 51% controlling ownership in Primrose and will therefore consolidate Primrose into our financial statements.

Debt Reductions

In May 2014, we paid \$2,609 in full settlement of the outstanding principal and interest amount on the mortgage loan associated with our corporate headquarters and main dispensing pharmacy facility.

Initial Public Offering

We intend to use the net proceeds from this offering to repay indebtedness to certain former stakeholders and employees. The balance of the net proceeds from this offering will be used to fully repay borrowings under our revolving line of credit to the extent of any borrowings outstanding as of the completion of this offering and for working capital and other general corporate purposes, which we expect will include opportunistic acquisitions or strategic investments.

Table of Contents

Key Performance Metrics

We regularly review a number of metrics, including the following key metrics, to evaluate our business, measure our performance, identify trends affecting our business, formulate financial projections, and make strategic decisions.

| | F | or the six m | | | For the year ended December 31, | | | | | | |
|--|----------|--------------|----|---------|---------------------------------|---------|----|---------|----|---------|--|
| | June 30, | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | 2014 | | 2013 | | 2013 | | 2012 | | 2011 | |
| Adjusted EBITDA | \$ | 14,083 | \$ | 7,704 | \$ | 18,970 | \$ | 10,852 | \$ | 15,121 | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Prescriptions dispensed | | 381,000 | | 352,000 | | 722,000 | | 680,000 | | 602,000 | |
| Prescriptions serviced (not dispensed) | | 102,000 | | 97,000 | | 208,000 | | 118,000 | | 7,000 | |
| Total prescriptions | | 483,000 | | 449,000 | | 930,000 | | 798,000 | | 609,000 | |
| Net sales per prescription dispensed | \$ | 2,639 | \$ | 1,993 | \$ | 2,090 | \$ | 1,652 | \$ | 1,282 | |
| Gross profit per prescription dispensed | \$ | 148 | \$ | 109 | \$ | 116 | \$ | 97 | \$ | 93 | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Net sales per prescription serviced (not dispensed) | \$ | 27 | \$ | 25 | \$ | 27 | \$ | 29 | \$ | 49 | |
| Gross profit per prescription serviced (not dispensed) | \$ | 27 | \$ | 25 | \$ | 27 | \$ | 29 | \$ | 49 | |
| • | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Adjusted EBITDA per prescription | \$ | 29 | \$ | 17 | \$ | 20 | \$ | 14 | \$ | 25 | |

Adjusted EBITDA

See "Selected Consolidated Financial Data Adjusted EBITDA" for our definition of Adjusted EBITDA, why we present Adjusted EBITDA and a reconciliation of net income (loss) to Adjusted EBITDA.

Prescription Data

Prescriptions dispensed (rounded to nearest thousand) represents actual prescriptions filled and dispensed by Diplomat to patients, or in rare cases, to physicians. Prescriptions serviced (not dispensed) (rounded to nearest thousand), represents prescriptions filled and dispensed from a non-Diplomat pharmacy, including unaffiliated retailers and health systems, for which we provide support services required to assist these patients and pharmacies through the complexity of filling specialty medications, and for which we earn a fee.

Our volume for the six months ended June 30, 2014 was approximately 483,000 prescriptions dispensed or serviced, an 8% increase compared to approximately 449,000 prescriptions dispensed or serviced for the six months ended June 30, 2013. The volume increase was due to a mix of new drugs to market, new indication approvals for existing drugs, growth in patients from current payors and physician practices, and the addition of patients from new payors and physician practices.

Our volume for the year ended December 31, 2013 was approximately 930,000 prescriptions dispensed or serviced, a 17% increase compared to approximately 798,000 prescriptions for the year ended December 31, 2012. The volume increase was due to a mix of patient growth from current payors and physician practices, the addition of patients from new payors and physician practices, new drugs to market, and the approval of new indications for existing drugs.

Our volume for the year ended December 31, 2012 was approximately 798,000 prescriptions dispensed or serviced, a 31% increase compared to approximately 609,000 prescriptions for the year ended December 31, 2011. The volume increase was due to a mix of patients from new payors and physician practices, patient growth from current payors and physician practices, new drugs to market, and the approval of new indications for existing drugs.

Table of Contents

Other Metrics

Other key metrics used in analyzing our business are net sales per prescription dispensed, gross profit per prescription dispensed, net sales per prescription serviced (not dispensed), gross profit per prescription serviced (not dispensed), and adjusted EBITDA per prescription.

Net sales per prescription dispensed represents total prescription revenue from prescriptions dispensed by Diplomat divided by the number of prescriptions dispensed by Diplomat. Gross profit per prescription dispensed represents gross profit from prescriptions dispensed by Diplomat divided by the number of prescriptions dispensed by Diplomat. Total prescription revenue from prescriptions dispensed includes all revenue collected from patients, third party payors, and various patient assistance programs, as well as revenue collected from pharmaceutical manufacturers for data and other services directly tied to the actual dispensing of their drug(s). Gross profit represents total prescription revenue from prescriptions dispensed less the cost of the drugs purchased.

Net sales per prescription serviced (not dispensed) represents total prescription revenue from prescriptions serviced divided by the number of prescriptions serviced for the non-Diplomat pharmacies. Gross profit per prescription serviced (not dispensed) is equal to net sales per prescription serviced because there is no cost of drug associated with such transactions. Total prescription revenue from prescriptions serviced includes revenue collected from partner pharmacies, including retailers and health systems, for support services rendered to their patients.

Adjusted EBITDA per prescription is Adjusted EBITDA divided by the total number of prescriptions dispensed or serviced.

Components of Results of Operations

Net Sales

Net sales are recognized at the time of service completion. Revenue for a dispensed prescription is recognized at the time of shipment or pick-up of the prescription. We can earn revenue from multiple sources for any one claim, including the primary insurance plan, the secondary insurance plan, the tertiary insurance plan, patient co-pay, and patient assistance programs. Prescription revenue also includes revenue from pharmaceutical manufacturers and other outside companies for data reporting or additional services rendered for dispensed prescriptions. Service revenue is primarily derived from fees earned by us from retail and hospital pharmacies for patient support that is required for those non-Diplomat pharmacies to dispense specialty drugs to patients. The retail and hospital pharmacies dispense the drug, and pay us for clinically and administratively servicing their patients.

Cost of Goods Sold

Cost of goods sold represents the purchase price of the drugs that we ultimately dispense. These drugs are purchased directly from the manufacturer or from an authorized wholesaler and the purchase price is negotiated with the selling entity. In general, period over period percentage changes in cost of goods sold will move directionally with period over period percentage changes in net sales for prescription dispensing transactions. This is due to the mathematical relationship between average wholesale price ("AWP") and wholesale acquisition cost ("WAC"), and our contractual relationships to purchase at a discount off of WAC and receive reimbursement at a discount off of AWP. The discounts off of AWP and WAC that we receive vary significantly by drug and by contract. Rebates we receive from manufacturers are reflected in cost of goods sold when they are earned.

Selling, General, and Administrative Expenses

Our operating expenses primarily consist of employee and associated costs, as well as outbound prescription drug transportation and logistics costs. Our employee and associated costs relate to both our patient-facing personnel and our non-patient facing support and administrative personnel. Other

Table of Contents

operating expenses consist of occupancy and other indirect costs, insurance costs, professional fees, and other general overhead expenses. We expect that general and administrative expenses will increase as we incur additional expenses related to being a public company, including professional fees and share-based compensation expenses related to the equity incentive plan established in connection with this offering.

Other Income (Expense)

Other income (expense) primarily consists of interest expense associated with our debt, the change in fair value associated with our redeemable common shares, equity income or losses associated with our 25% owned non-consolidated entity, tax credits and income from property rentals. Because certain shares of our common stock include features that require us to redeem such shares upon the death or termination of employment with us by the shareholder, we reflect such shares as liabilities on our consolidated balance sheets and the change in such fair value as a non-operating charge or credit in our consolidated statements of operations.

Income Tax Expenses

On January 23, 2014, we changed from an S Corporation to a C Corporation. The historical audited financial results included elsewhere in this prospectus reflect our results as an S Corporation before this date. The pro forma financial information included elsewhere in this prospectus have been adjusted to show results as if we had been a C Corporation for specified periods.

Results of Operations

The following table provides consolidated statements of operations data for each of the periods presented.

| | For the six mo June | | | For the year ended December 31, | | | | | |
|--|------------------------|------|-----------|---------------------------------|----|--------------|----|-----------|--|
| | 2014 | | 2013 | 2013(4) | | 2012 | | 2011 | |
| | (Unaud | lite | d) | | | | | | |
| Consolidated Statement of Operations | | | | | | | | | |
| Data | | | | | | | | | |
| Net sales | \$ 1,007,352 | \$ | 704,525 | \$ 1,515,139 | \$ | 1,126,943 | \$ | 771,962 | |
| Cost of goods sold | (948,275) | | (663,883) | (1,426,112) | | (1,057,608) | | (715,448) | |
| | | | 10.512 | | | 50.00 | | | |
| Gross profit | 59,077 | | 40,642 | 89,027 | | 69,335 | | 56,514 | |
| Selling, general, and administrative | | | | | | | | | |
| expenses | (51,024) | | (35,988) | (77,944) | | (64,392) | | (47,434) | |
| Income from operations | 8,053 | | 4,654 | 11,083 | | 4,943 | | 9,080 | |
| Interest expense | (895) | | (941) | (1,996) | | (1,086) | | (598) | |
| Change in fair value of redeemable common shares | 957 | | | (34,348) | | (6,566) | | | |
| Equity loss of non-consolidated entity | (710) | | (311) | (1,055) | | (267) | | (95) | |
| Other income | 517 | | 112 | 196 | | 337 | | 764 | |
| Other income | 317 | | 112 | 190 | | 331 | | 704 | |
| Income (loss) before income taxes | 7,922 | | 3,514 | (26,120) | | (2,639) | | 9,151 | |
| Income tax expense | (4,557) | | · | | | | | · | |
| Net income (loss) | \$ 3,365 | \$ | 3,514 | \$ (26,120) | \$ | (2,639) | \$ | 9,151 | |

Net Sales

Our net sales for the six months ended June 30, 2014 was \$1,007,352, a \$302,827 increase, or 43%, compared to \$704,525 for the six months ended June 30, 2013. The increase was the result of

56

Table of Contents

approximately \$145,000 of additional revenue from drugs that were new to the market or newly dispensed by us. Prescription volume growth of existing drugs accounted for approximately \$57,000 of the increased revenue and was the result of new indications, increased penetration through physician's offices, growth with existing payors, and the addition of patients from new payors and physician practices. The acquisition of AHF contributed approximately \$15,000 and the remaining increase is attributable to manufacturer price increases and payor mix.

Cost of Goods Sold

Our cost of goods sold for the six months ended June 30, 2014 was \$948,275, a \$284,392 increase, or 43%, compared to \$663,883 for the six months ended June 30, 2013. The increase was primarily the result of the same factors that drove the increase in our net sales over the same time period.

Selling, General, and Administrative Expense

Our selling, general, and administrative expense for the six months ended June 30, 2014 was \$51,024, a \$15,036 increase, or 42%, compared to \$35,988 for the six months ended June 30, 2013. Selling, general, and administrative costs in the 2014 period were higher than in the prior period primarily due to variable costs related to increased net sales and prescription volume during the 2014 period. Total employee cost increased by \$8,329, or 38%, and was primarily attributable to two factors. First, the 8% prescription volume increase drove the need to hire additional employees. Second, our ongoing efforts to improve IT systems to support current and future growth required additional indirect labor to develop our key systems. Similarly, our logistics expense increased by \$1,064, or 22%, as a result of the additional prescription volume dispensed, as well as increased supplier costs and mix of drugs being shipped to patients. The remaining increase was in all other selling, general, and administrative expenses to support our growth including consulting fees, utilities, travel, supplies, and other miscellaneous expenses. These increases also include \$2,104 of AHF expenses related to its pharmacies and support staff.

Other Income (Expense)

Our other income (expense) for the six months ended June 30, 2014 net was \$(131), compared to \$(1,140) for the six months ended June 30, 2013. The decrease in net expense was primarily attributable to (a) a \$957 decrease in the fair value of redeemable common shares in the 2014 period as compared to no such change in the 2013 period, and (b) a \$469 state tax credit in the 2014 period compared to none in the 2013 period, partially offset by (c) a \$399 greater equity loss on our non-consolidated entity in the six months ended June 30, 2014.

Income Tax Expense

On January 23, 2014, we changed our income tax status from an S corporation to a C corporation and, as such, will now bear income taxes which had previously been borne by our shareholders. Our income tax expense for the six months ended June 30, 2014 was \$4,557, versus \$0 for the six months ended June 30, 2013. For additional information on our conversion from an S corporation to a C corporation, reference Note 1 and Note 10 in the interim financial statements included elsewhere in this prospectus.

Comparison of Years Ended December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012

Net Sales

Our net sales for the year ended December 31, 2013 was \$1,515,139, a \$388,196 increase, or 34%, compared to \$1,126,943 for the year ended December 31, 2012. Prescription volume growth on existing drugs accounted for approximately \$178,000 of the increased revenue and was driven by new indications, increased penetration through physician's offices, growth with existing payors, and the

Table of Contents

addition of patients from new payors and physician practices. The increase was also the result of approximately \$62,000 of additional revenue from drugs that were new to the market or newly dispensed by us. The remaining increase is attributable to manufacturer price increases and payor mix.

Cost of Goods Sold

Our cost of goods sold for the year ended December 31, 2013 was \$1,426,112, a \$368,504 increase, or 35%, compared to \$1,057,608 for the year ended December 31, 2012. The increase was primarily the result of the same factors that drove the increase in our net sales over the same time period.

Selling, General, and Administrative Expense

Our selling, general, and administrative expense for the year ended December 31, 2013 was \$77,944, a \$13,552 increase, or 21%, compared to \$64,392 for the year ended December 31, 2012. Selling, general, and administrative costs in 2013 were higher than in the prior year primarily due to variable costs related to increased net sales and prescription volume during 2012. This increased volume drove the need for additional employees and the overhead required to support the growth.

The increased employee expense of \$6,938, or 18%, was predominantly the result of the additional headcount required to manage the 17% prescription volume increase. Our ongoing efforts to improve IT systems to support current and future growth required additional indirect labor to develop our key systems. The increase in freight expense of \$1,920, or 23%, was the result of the increased volume of prescriptions being shipped to patients, as well as price and mix changes related to the type of drugs being shipped to patients. Impairment, restructuring, and acquisition related activities accounted for \$1,286 of additional increased expense in 2013. The remaining increase in selling, general, and administrative expenses included consulting fees, utilities, and other miscellaneous operating expenses.

Other Income (Expense)

Our change in fair value of redeemable common shares for the year ended December 31, 2013 was \$(34,348), compared to \$(6,566) for the year ended December 31, 2012. The change in the fair value of redeemable common shares was attributable to appreciation of the value of the common shares. Our interest expense for the year ended December 31, 2013 was \$1,996, compared to \$1,086 for the year ended December 31, 2012. The additional interest expense was the result of growth and the overall need to draw on the line of credit periodically to manage working capital. Our equity loss on our non-consolidated entity for the year ended December 31, 2013 was \$1,055, compared to \$267 for the year ended December 31, 2012, an increase attributed to the start-up company's escalation in ramping up their operations. Our other income for the year ended December 31, 2013 was \$196, compared to \$337 for the year ended December 31, 2012. Other income is derived from state tax credits and the rental of property which we currently own.

Comparison of Years Ended December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011

Net Sales

Our net sales for the year ended December 31, 2012 was \$1,126,943, a \$354,981 increase, or 46%, compared to \$771,962 for the year ended December 31, 2011. Prescription volume growth on existing drugs accounted for approximately \$236,000 of the increased revenue and was the result of new indications, increased penetration through physician's offices, growth with existing payors, and the addition of patients from new payors and physician practices. The increase was also the result of approximately \$30,000 of additional revenue from drugs that were new to the market or newly dispensed by us. The remaining increase is attributable to manufacturer price increases. These revenue increases were partially offset by payor mix changes. These were also the reasons for the decline in our net income over the same periods.

Cost of Goods Sold

Our cost of goods sold for the year ended December 31, 2012 was \$1,057,608, a \$342,160 increase, or 48%, compared to \$715,448 for the year ended December 31, 2011. The increase was primarily the result of the same factors that drove the increase in our net sales over the same period.

Table of Contents

Selling, General, and Administrative Expense

Our selling, general, and administrative expense for the year ended December 31, 2012 was \$64,392, a \$16,958 increase, or 36%, compared to \$47,434 for the year ended December 31, 2011. Selling, general, and administrative costs in 2012 were higher than in the prior year primarily due to variable costs related to increased net sales and prescription volume during 2011. This increased volume drove the need for additional employees and the overhead required to support the growth.

The increased employee expense of \$12,073, or 44%, was predominantly the result of the additional headcount required to manage the 31% prescription volume increase. Also, in 2012 as we worked to build and modify our core IT systems used to run the business, it had a two-fold impact on increasing headcount. First, much of the growth required us to manually manage processes while our systems were being substantially modified. Second, there were many additional heads associated with the IT staff needed to develop these same systems. Freight expense increased \$2,655, or 48%, was the result of by the increased volume of prescriptions being shipped to patients, including price and mix changes based on the drugs being shipped to these patients. The remaining increase in selling, general, and administrative expenses included consulting fees, utilities, and other miscellaneous operating expenses.

Other Income (Expense)

Our change in fair value of redeemable common shares for the year ended December 31, 2012 was \$(6,566), compared to no change for the year ended December 31, 2011. The change in the fair value of redeemable common shares was attributable to the appreciation of the value of the common shares. Our interest expense for the year ended December 31, 2012 was \$1,086, compared to \$598 for the year ended December 31, 2011. The additional interest expense was driven by our growth and need to draw more on our line of credit to manage working capital. Our equity loss of our non-consolidated entity for the year ended December 31, 2012 was \$267, compared to \$95 for the year ended December 31, 2011. Our other income for the year ended December 31, 2012 was \$337, compared to \$764 for the year ended December 31, 2011. Other income is derived from state tax credits and the rental of property which we currently own.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our primary uses of cash include funding our working capital, acquiring and maintaining property and equipment and internal use software, business acquisitions, stock and stock option redemptions, and debt service. We have funded our recent cash requirements primarily from our operating activities as driven mainly by our revenue growth, borrowings under our revolving line of credit, and capital stock issuances. As of June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, we had \$25,550 and \$9,109, respectively, of cash and cash equivalents. Our cash balances fluctuate based on working capital needs and the timing of sweeping available cash each day to pay down any outstanding balance on our line of credit. On June 26, 2014, we increased our maximum borrowing availability under our revolving line of credit to \$120,000 from \$85,000, to fund the \$51,970 upfront cash portion of the MedPro acquisition price as well as ongoing working capital needs. We believe our cash and cash equivalents, revolving line of credit, cash flow from operations, and net proceeds from this offering will be sufficient to meet our working capital and capital expenditure requirements for at least 12 months. Generally, our need to access the capital markets has been limited to refinancing our line of credit at or prior to maturity. From time to time as a public company, we also may access the equity or debt markets to raise additional funds on a strategic basis, including for acquisitions.

| | | Six month | | nded | | •• | | | | |
|---|----------|-----------|----|---------|----|-------------------------|----|---------|----|---------|
| | June 30, | | | | | Year ended December 31, | | | | |
| | | 2014 | | 2013 | | 2013 | | 2012 | | 2011 |
| Net cash provided by operating activities | \$ | 20,827 | \$ | 517 | \$ | 6,227 | \$ | 5,006 | \$ | 12,539 |
| Net cash used in investing activities | | (55,954) | | (3,719) | | (20,292) | | (4,849) | | (6,747) |
| Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities | | 51,568 | | 3,202 | | 23,174 | | (157) | | (7,861) |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| Net increase (decrease) in cash and equivalents | \$ | 16,441 | \$ | | \$ | 9,109 | \$ | | \$ | (2.069) |

Table of Contents

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities.

Cash provided by operating activities consists of significant components of the statement of operations adjusted for changes in various working capital items including accounts receivable, inventories, prepaid expenses, accounts payable and other accrued expenses.

The increase of \$20,310 in cash provided by operating activities during the six months ended June 30, 2014 compared to the six months ended June 30, 2013, was primarily due to a \$15,614 change in working capital items, primarily accounts payable, as a result of the timing of key vendor payments. We also experienced an increase in other non-cash expenses; the most significant being \$2,105 in deferred income tax expense and \$724 in depreciation and amortization offset by a \$957 decrease in the fair value of redeemable common shares and a \$149 decrease in net income in the 2014 period which is described above.

The \$1,221 increase in cash provided by operating activities during the year ended December 31, 2013, compared to the year ended December 31, 2012 is primarily attributable to a \$(23,481) decrease in net income and a \$26,189 increase in non-cash expenses partially offset by a \$4,753 change in our working capital. The increase in non-cash expenses was mostly attributable to a \$27,782 increase in the fair value of redeemable common shares and a \$932 impairment charge on write-down of our former Swartz Creek, MI headquarters facility. The most significant change in working capital relates to our accounts receivable increasing \$5,941 more in 2013 than in 2012, which was primarily the result of an increase in billing and revenue in the month of December 2013 as compared to December 2012.

The \$7,533 decrease in cash provided by operating activities during the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to the year ended December 31, 2011 is primarily attributable to a \$11,789 decrease in net income, a \$6,566 increase in the fair value of redeemable common shares and a \$2,557 change in our working capital. Certain working capital items, including accounts receivable, inventories, and accounts payable, changed significantly in 2012 due to increased requirements to support the growth of our business. These three items accounted for a net decrease in cash of \$5,974 in 2012 compared to a decrease of \$2,335 in 2011.

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities.

Our primary investing activities have consisted of the acquisitions of infusion specialty pharmacies (AHF and MedPro), investment in a non-consolidated entity, capital expenditures to purchase computer equipment, software, furniture and fixtures, labor expenditures associated with capitalized software for internal use, as well as building improvements to support the expansion of our infrastructure and workforce. As our business grows, we expect our capital expenditures and our investment activity to continue to increase.

The \$52,235 increase in cash used in investing activities during the six months ended June 30, 2014 compared to the six months ended June 30, 2013 was primarily related to \$51,302 used for the acquisition of MedPro. We also experienced a \$2,391 increase in expenditures for software for internal use and property and equipment as we continue to expand our information systems. These increases were partially offset by \$1,250 lower investment in our non-consolidated entity during the six months ended June 30, 2014.

The \$15,443 increase in cash used in investing activities for the year ended December 31, 2013 compared to the year ended December 31, 2012 was primarily related to \$10,232 of cash paid for the acquisition of AHF, net of cash acquired. We also increased spend by \$1,313 for expenditures related to software for internal use and property and equipment as part of our ongoing effort to improve our information systems. The remaining increase was the result of a \$1,000 higher investment in our non-consolidated entity and \$2,898 increase primarily related to issuance of a related party notes receivable to our non-consolidated entity.

Table of Contents

The \$1,898 decrease in cash used in investing activities for the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to the year ended December 31, 2011 was primarily the result of less expenditures for software for internal use and property and equipment.

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Financing Activities.

The \$48,366 increase in cash provided by financing activities during the six months ended June 30, 2014 compared to the six months ended June 30, 2013 was primarily due to \$39,015 of net proceeds received in our January 2014 sale of Series A Preferred Stock to certain funds of T. Rowe Price and our April 2014 sale of Series A Preferred Stock to certain funds of January, net of the redemption of certain outstanding common stock and common stock options. We also increased the cash draw on our revolving line of credit by \$8,205 due to timing of working capital needs and the acquisition of a specialty pharmacy (MedPro).

The \$23,331 increase in cash available from financing activities during the year ended December 31, 2013 compared to the year ended December 31, 2012 is primarily related to a \$12,212 increase in borrowing under our line of credit, which in part facilitated the \$9,910 payments on our outstanding notes payable and the \$496 larger payment in 2013 on our long term mortgage debt. Also, during 2012, there were shareholder distributions of \$10,868, much larger than those in 2013, and stock and stock option redemption payments of \$3,894, which did not repeat in 2013.

The \$7,704 decrease in cash used in financing activities during the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to the year ended December 31, 2011 is primarily attributable to \$29,890 increased net proceeds from our line of credit to support \$9,759 more shareholder distributions in 2012, and \$3,894 of stock and stock option redemptions in 2012. Additionally, we made \$7,167 more long-term debt payments in 2012 than we did in 2011.

Revolving Line of Credit

On June 26, 2014, we entered into an amended and restated credit agreement with GE Capital Bank, as agent, Comerica Bank, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. and Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., as additional lenders. The amount available for borrowing under the revolving line of credit is the lesser of \$120,000 and a borrowing base which is equal to the sum of 85% of eligible accounts receivable and a portion of eligible inventory, less any outstanding letters of credit and swing loans. Additionally, the revolving line of credit permits increases in the line of credit or issuance of term loans up to an aggregate amount of \$25,000, subject to specified conditions. Interest on our line of credit is charged at a rate equal to either (a) the base rate, which equates to the rate last quoted by The Wall Street Journal as the "Prime Rate" or as further defined in the agreement in the absence of such, plus an applicable margin (the "Base Rate"); or (b) LIBOR, as defined by the agreement, plus an applicable margin. The applicable margin on the Base Rate borrowings, during all periods presented, is 0.75% and on LIBOR rate borrowings is 1.75%. The effective interest rate for Base Rate borrowing at June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013 was 4.00%. The effective rate on LIBOR rate borrowings outstanding in the amount of \$39,876 and LIBOR rate borrowings outstanding in the amount of \$40,000.

The line of credit requires us to comply with certain covenant requirements and to certify compliance on a monthly basis. We have been in compliance every period since the inception of the agreement, including on June 30, 2014. The table below sets forth the amount borrowed, and remaining amount available to be borrowed, based on eligible accounts receivable and inventory, as of the specified dates.

| | Six mont June | nded | | d 31, | | | |
|---------------------------------|------------------|------|--------|----------|----------|------|-----------|
| | 2014 | | 2013 | | 2013 | | 2012 |
| Maximum borrowing during period | \$ 85,152 | \$ | 50,855 | \$ | 68,970 | \$ | 44,305 |
| Period end balance | \$ 79,876 | \$ | 36,069 | \$ | 62,622 | \$ | 27,020 |
| Period end availability | \$ 18,176(1 |)\$ | 23,931 | \$ | 12,666(1 |) \$ | 30,419(1) |

(1)

Calculated as the borrowing base in effect on the period end date, less the period end balance outstanding.

Table of Contents

We intend to use the net proceeds from this offering to repay indebtedness to certain former stakeholders and employees. The balance of the net proceeds from this offering will be used to fully repay borrowings under our revolving line of credit to the extent of any borrowings outstanding as of the completion of this offering and working capital and other general corporate purposes, which we expect will include opportunistic acquisitions or strategic investments.

Contractual Obligations

Our principal debt commitments consist of our revolving line of credit, a mortgage for our corporate headquarters, and various notes payable to prior and current stakeholders. The following table summarizes our scheduled debt and other contractual obligations at December 31, 2013.

| | 2014 | 2015 | 5 - 2016 | 201 | 7 - 2018 | Thereafter | Total |
|-------------------------------|--------------|------|----------|-----|----------|------------|--------------|
| Revolving line of credit | \$ 62,622 | \$ | | \$ | | \$ | \$ 62,622 |
| Mortgage loan | 2,728 | | | | | | 2,728 |
| Stakeholders notes | 3,965 | | 7,314 | | 11,535 | | 22,814 |
| Interest payments | 999 | | 1,279 | | 283 | | 2,561 |
| Operating leases | 1,241 | | 1,272 | | 21 | | 2,534 |
| | | | | | | | |
| Total Contractual Obligations | \$ 71,555 | \$ | 9,865 | \$ | 11,839 | \$ | \$ 93,259 |

Revolving Line of Credit

On July 20, 2012, we entered into a five year line of credit with GE. As of August 12, 2014, the amount available for borrowing under the revolving line of credit is the lesser of \$120,000 and the sum of 85% of eligible accounts and a portion of eligible inventory, less any outstanding letters of credit and swing loans. Additionally, the revolving line of credit permits incremental increases in the line of credit or issuance of term loans up to an aggregate amount of \$25,000, subject to specified conditions.

As of September 16, 2014, we had outstanding borrowings of \$80,187, an increase of borrowings of \$17,565 since December 31, 2013.

The effective interest rate for base rate borrowing at June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013 was 4.00%. The effective rate on LIBOR rate borrowing at June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013 was 1.90% and 1.92%, respectively. At June 30, 2014, we had base rate borrowings outstanding in the amount of \$39,876 and LIBOR rate borrowings outstanding in the amount of \$40,000.

Mortgage Loan

We entered into a \$7,440 mortgage loan with JP Morgan Chase in December 2010 for the purchase of our headquarters building. The remaining outstanding loan amount was scheduled to mature in June 2014. We paid the JP Morgan Chase mortgage off in May 2014.

Stakeholder Notes

We entered into several notes payable to current or former stakeholders primarily upon the redemption of certain shares of common stock and common stock options formerly owned by the stakeholders. The obligations mature in 2017, as per the terms of the executed promissory notes. We intend to use certain proceeds from this offering to retire all of the stakeholder notes.

Table of Contents

Interest Payments

This represents future interest payments due with respect to the line of credit, mortgage note and prior stakeholder notes as of December 31, 2013 based on their scheduled maturities.

Additional Items Not Reflected in Table Above

We purchase a large portion of our prescription drug inventory from AmerisourceBergen. In January 2012, we entered into an agreement with AmerisourceBergen that required a minimum of approximately \$3,500,000 in purchase obligations over a five year period. We fully expect to meet this requirement.

As of December 31, 2013, we had 3,187,500 shares of redeemable common shares outstanding with an estimated fair value of \$53,370. We must redeem such shares upon the death or termination of employment with us of the shareholder. We, upon mutual consent between us and the shareholder, voluntarily redeemed 340,000 such shares during the six months ended June 30, 2014 and the shareholder transferred an additional 425,000 such shares into trusts upon which the associated redemption features were cancelled. The redemption features are contractually terminated at no cost to us upon certain events, including the declaration of effectiveness of any initial capital stock public offering.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

During the periods presented, we did not have any relationships with unconsolidated entities or financial partnerships, such as entities often referred to as structured finance or special purpose entities, which would have been established for the purpose of facilitating off-balance sheet arrangements or other contractually narrow or limited purposes.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

We are not currently required to comply with the requirements of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, as amended, regarding internal control over financial reporting and are therefore not required to make a formal assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting, for that purpose. In addition, we will not be required to make our first annual assessment of our internal control over financial reporting pursuant to Section 404 until the year following our first annual report required to be filed with the SEC. Further, our independent registered public accounting firm, BDO USA, LLP, will not be required to audit the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting until the year following our first annual report required to be filed with the SEC.

In connection with the preparation of amendments to the registration statement on Form S-1 of which this prospectus forms a part, we identified a material weakness in our internal control over financial reporting for all periods presented. A "material weakness" is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of our annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. The identified material weakness relates to our accounting for mandatorily redeemable common stock for public reporting companies. Specifically, upon becoming subject to the applicable accounting standards of public reporting companies as of the initial filing of the registration statement of which this prospectus forms a part, we erroneously did not re-characterize our shares of mandatorily redeemable common stock from equity to a liability in our consolidated balance sheets, and we did not mark-to-market this liability and record additional non-operating expense in our consolidated statements of operations. Accordingly, we have restated our consolidated financial statements to appropriately account for such common stock for all periods presented. Although we believe we have substantially remediated the material weakness through additional training, we are not required to and have not conducted a formal assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control

Table of Contents

over financial reporting as of June 30, 2014. Prior to the completion of our initial public offering, all outstanding shares of our redeemable common stock will convert into shares of our newly authorized common stock and will therefore no longer have similar mandatory redemption rights. Furthermore, we do not anticipate issuing equity securities with such mandatorily redeemable provisions while we are a public company. See "Risk Factors Risks Related to Our Business and Industry We have identified a material weakness in our internal control over financial reporting that impacted all periods presented in this prospectus. If we fail to establish and maintain effective internal control over financial reporting, our ability to produce accurate and timely financial statements could be impaired, which could adversely affect investor views of us and the value of our common stock."

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The accompanying consolidated financial statements, included elsewhere in this prospectus, have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and, accordingly, our significant accounting policies have been disclosed in Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. We consider accounting estimates to be critical accounting policies when:

the estimates involve matters that are highly uncertain at the time the accounting estimate is made; and

different estimates or changes to estimates could have a material impact on the reported financial position, changes in financial position, or results of operations.

When more than one accounting principle, or the method of its application, is generally accepted, management selects the principle or method that it considers to be the most appropriate given the specific circumstances. Application of these accounting principles requires our management to make estimates about future resolution of existing uncertainties. Estimates are typically based upon historical experience, current trends, contractual documentation, and other information, as appropriate. Due to the inherent uncertainty involving estimates, actual results reported in the future may differ from those estimates. In preparing these financial statements, management has made its best estimate and judgments of the amounts and disclosures included in the financial statements, giving due regard to materiality. The following summarizes our critical accounting policies.

Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenue from prescription drug sales for home delivery at the time the drugs are shipped. At the time of shipment, we have performed substantially all of our obligations under our payor contracts and do not experience a significant level of returns or reshipments. If we administer a drug treatment regimen in a patient's home, we recognize revenue at time of administration. Revenues from dispensing specialty prescriptions that are filled at an open door or retail pharmacy location are recorded at prescription adjudication, which approximates fill date. Sales taxes are presented on a net basis (excluded from revenues and costs).

Accounting for Stock-based Compensation

We have authorized the granting of stock options to key employees with an exercise price no less than the estimated value of the underlying common shares on the date the option is granted. Options generally become exercisable in installments of 25% per year, beginning on the first anniversary of the grant date and each of the three anniversaries thereafter, and have a maximum term of ten years. We use the Black-Scholes-Merton option pricing model to determine the valuation of options.

We expense the grant date fair values of our employee stock options over their respective vesting periods on a straight-line basis. Estimating grant date fair values for employee stock options requires

Table of Contents

management to make assumptions regarding expected volatility of the underlying shares, the risk-free rate over the life of the stock options, and the date on which share-based payments will be settled. Expected volatility is based on an implied volatility for a group of industry-relevant healthcare companies as of the measurement date. Risk-free rate is determined based upon U.S. Treasury rates over the estimated expected option lives. Expected dividend yield is zero as we do not anticipate that any dividend will be declared during the expected term of the options. Expected option life is less than the option term. If actual results differ significantly from these estimates and assumptions, particularly in relation to management's estimation of volatility which requires the most judgment due to our being a private entity, share-based compensation expense, primarily with respect to future share-based awards, could be materially impacted.

The following table summarizes all option grants from December 31, 2012 through the date of this prospectus:

| | Common stock underlying | | Common stock fair value | Fair value |
|-------------------|----------------------------|----------------|-------------------------|---------------|
| Grant Date | options granted | Exercise price | at grant date | at grant date |
| January 1, 2013 | 181,685 | \$ 5.95 | \$ 5.95 | \$ 1.23 |
| January 15, 2013 | 545,063 | 5.88 | 5.88 | 1.22 |
| December 18, 2013 | 375,275 | 16.16 | 16.16 | 3.32 |
| February 1, 2014 | 787,191 | 16.74 | 16.74 | 3.50 |
| June 1, 2014 | 98,399 | 16.74 | 16.74 | 3.51 |

Common Stock Valuation

The fair value of the common stock underlying our share-based awards was determined by our Board of Directors, with input from management. Given the absence of a public trading market of our common stock, and in accordance with the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants Accounting and Valuation Guide: *Valuation of Privately-Held-Company Equity Securities Issued as Compensation*, the Board of Directors exercised reasonable judgment and considered numerous objective and subjective factors to determine the best estimate of the fair value of our common stock including:

recent significant investments by sophisticated, institutional investors for purchases of our convertible preferred stock, and the rights, privileges and preferences of such preferred stock to our common stock;

valuations of our common stock performed by an unrelated third-party valuation specialist;

our historical and projected operating and financial results;

the market performance and financial results of comparable publicly-traded companies;

industry or company-specific considerations;

likelihood of achieving a liquidity event, such as an initial public offering or a sale of the Company;

lack of marketability of our common stock; and

the U.S. and global capital market conditions.

The nature of the material assumptions and estimates considered to determine the fair market value of our common stock are highly complex and subjective.

Table of Contents

In valuing our common stock in December 2012 and January 2013, our Board of Directors determined the business enterprise value ("BEV") of our business generally using the income approach and the market approach using the market comparable method.

The income approach estimates fair value based on the expectation of future cash flows that a company will generate such as cash earnings, cost savings, tax deductions, and the proceeds from disposition of assets. These future cash flows are discounted to their present values using a discount rate which reflects the risks inherent in our cash flows. This approach requires significant judgment in estimating projected growth rates and cost trends and in determining a discount rate adjusted for the risks associated with our business.

The market comparable method estimates fair value based on a comparison of the subject company to comparable public companies in similar lines of business. From the comparable companies, a representative market value multiple is determined which is applied to the subject company's operating results to estimate the value of the subject company. In our valuations, the multiple of the comparable companies was determined using a ratio of the market value of invested capital to projected revenue and/or earnings before interest, taxes and depreciation and amortization for the current and following year. Our peer group of companies included a number of market leaders in the healthcare services industry and related businesses similar to, or adjacent to our own business. The market comparable method requires judgment in selecting the public companies that are most similar to our business and in the application of the relevant market multiples to our financial performance metrics. We have from time to time updated the set of comparable companies utilized as new or more relevant information became available, including changes in the market and our business models and input from third party market and valuation experts.

Once we determine our BEV under each approach, we apply a weighting to the income approach and the market approach primarily based on the relevance of the peer companies chosen for the market approach analysis as well as other relevant factors. We then reduced the BEV by our total net debt to arrive at the estimated fair value of our common stock. Based on this information, our Board of Directors made the final determination of the estimated fair value of our equity and common stock.

In valuing our common stock in December 2013, February 2014 and June 2014, our Board of Directors estimated BEV using the subject company transaction method, which is one of the three primary methodologies of the market-based approach. This methodology utilizes the most recent negotiated arm's-length transactions involving the sale or transfer of our stock or equity interests. Our indicated BEV at each valuation date was allocated to the shares of preferred stock, common stock and options using the Black-Scholes-Merton option-pricing model. In January 2014 and April 2014, we negotiated significant investments with sophisticated, institutional investors for purchases of our convertible preferred stock.

Upon completion of this offering, our common stock will be publicly traded and the fair value of our common stock underlying our share-based awards will be determined by such market price. Increases and decreases in the market price of our common stock may also increase and decrease the fair value of our share-based awards granted in future periods.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

We allocate the purchase price of any acquisitions to tangible assets and liabilities and identifiable intangible assets acquired. Any residual purchase price is recorded as goodwill. The allocation of the purchase price requires management to make significant estimates in determining the fair values of assets acquired and liabilities assumed, especially with respect to intangible assets. These estimates are based on information obtained from management of the acquired companies and historical experience and are generally made with the assistance of an independent valuation firm. These estimates can include, but are not limited to, the cash flows that an asset is expected to generate in the future, and

Table of Contents

the cost savings expected to be derived from acquiring an asset. These estimates are inherently uncertain and unpredictable, and if different estimates were used the purchase price for the acquisition could be allocated to the acquired assets and liabilities differently from the allocation that we have made. In addition, unanticipated events and circumstances may occur which affect the accuracy or validity of such estimates, and if such events occur we may be required to record a charge against the value ascribed to an acquired asset or an increase in the amounts recorded for assumed liabilities. Our goodwill and intangible assets as of June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013 result from our acquisitions of AHF on December 16, 2013 and of MedPro on June 27, 2014.

Goodwill Impairment Testing

Goodwill will be reviewed for impairment annually or more frequently if impairment indicators exist. Accounting guidance provides the option of performing a qualitative assessment that may allow companies to forego the annual two-step quantitative impairment test for goodwill if it is determined that the fair value of the applicable reporting unit is more likely than not greater than its carrying value. This qualitative assessment evaluates various events and circumstances, such as macro-economic conditions, industry and market conditions, cost factors, relevant events and financial trends that may impact a reporting unit's fair value. If the two-step impairment test for goodwill is deemed necessary, this quantitative impairment analysis would compare the fair values of our reporting unit to its carrying value. If a reporting unit's carrying value exceeds its fair value, we must then calculate the reporting unit's implied fair value of goodwill and impairment charges are recorded for an excess of the goodwill varying value over the implied fair value of goodwill. The reporting unit's fair value is based upon consideration of various valuation methodologies, including projected future cash flows discounted at rates commensurate with the risks involved, guideline transaction multiples, and multiples of current and future earnings. Any adverse change in these factors could have a significant impact on the recoverability of these assets and could have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.

Following this offering, our goodwill impairment analysis will also include a comparison of the estimated fair value of our reporting unit to our total market capitalization. We will consider a significant and sustained decline in our stock price and market capitalization as an additional factor in our goodwill assessments.

Long-lived Asset Impairment Testing

Long-lived assets, which include property, equipment, capitalized software, investment in non-consolidated entity and definite-lived intangible assets are periodically reviewed for impairment indicators. In assessing long-lived assets for impairment, assets are grouped with other assets and liabilities at the lowest level for which identifiable cash flows are largely independent of the cash flows of other assets and liabilities. If impairment indicators exist, we perform an undiscounted cash flow test to determine recoverability. If this recoverability test identifies a possible impairment, management will perform a fair value analysis. Fair values of long-lived assets are determined through various techniques, such as applying probability weighted, expected present value calculations to the estimated future cash flows using assumptions a market participant would utilize or through the use of valuation specialist. We compare the fair value of the long-lived asset to its net carrying value and an impairment charge is recorder for the amount by which the net carrying value of the long-lived asset exceeds its fair value.

Management believes that the estimates of future cash flows and fair value assumptions are reasonable; however, changes in assumptions underlying these estimates could affect the valuations. Long-lived assets held for sale are recorded at the lower of their carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell. Significant judgments and estimates used by management when evaluating long-lived assets for impairment include (i) an assessment as to whether an adverse event or circumstance has triggered the

Table of Contents

need for an impairment review, (ii) undiscounted future cash flows generated by the asset, and (iii) fair valuation of the asset.

Income Taxes

Prior to January 23, 2014, we had elected to be taxed under the provisions of Subchapter S of the Internal Revenue Code. Under these provisions, we did not pay federal corporate income taxes on our taxable income. Instead, the shareholders were liable for individual federal income taxes on their respective shares of our taxable income. Distributions were made periodically to our shareholders to the extent needed to cover their income tax liability based on our taxable income.

On January 23, 2014, we changed our income tax status from S corporation to a C corporation. Accordingly, on that date, we recorded a net deferred income tax liability of \$2,492 and reclassified all of our accumulated deficit, inclusive of the net deferred tax liability adjustment, into additional paid-in capital. The pro forma data presented on the consolidated statements of operations give effect to our election to be a C corporation as if that election was made effective January 1, 2013.

As a C corporation, we account for income taxes under the asset and liability approach. Deferred tax assets or liabilities are determined based on the difference between the financial statement and tax bases of assets and liabilities and on tax credit carry forwards as measured by the enacted tax rates which will be in effect when these items impact the tax returns. We provide a valuation allowance against net deferred tax assets unless, based upon the available evidence, it is more likely than not that the deferred tax assets will be realized.

We prepare and file tax returns based on interpretations of tax laws and regulations. In the normal course of business, our tax returns are subject to examination by various taxing authorities. Such examinations may result in future tax and interest assessments by these taxing authorities. In determining our tax provision for financial reporting purposes, we establish a reserve for examination, based on their technical merits. That is, for reporting purposes, we only recognize tax benefits taken on the tax return if we believe it is "more likely than not" that such tax position would be sustained. There is considerable judgment involved in determining whether it is "more likely than not" that such tax positions would be sustained. As of June 30, 2014, we have no recorded uncertain tax positions.

We adjust our tax reserve estimates periodically because of ongoing examinations by, and settlements with, varying taxing authorities, as well as changes in tax laws, regulations and interpretations. The consolidated tax provision of any given year includes adjustments to prior year income tax accruals and related estimated interest charges that are considered appropriate. Our policy is to recognize, when applicable, interest and penalties on uncertain income tax positions as part of income tax expense.

Bad Debt Allowance

We maintain an allowance for doubtful accounts that reduces receivables to amounts that we expect to be collected. In estimating this allowance, we consider overall economic conditions, historical and anticipated customer performance, historical experience with write-offs, and the level of past due accounts.

Inventory Adjustments

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market and cost is determined using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) methodology. The cost of inventory is adjusted quarterly based on a physical inventory count. We also recognize a loss whenever inventory is impaired by damage, deterioration, obsolescence, change in price levels, or other cause. We consider factors such as excess or slow-moving inventories,

Table of Contents

product expiration dating, current and future customer demand, and market conditions to determine if any adjustment to inventory cost is necessary.

Recent Accounting Policies

New Accounting Pronouncements: In February 2013, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued Accounting Standards Update ("ASU") No. 2013-4, Liabilities (Topic 405): Obligations Resulting from Joint and Several Liability Arrangements for Which the Total Amount of the Obligation is Fixed at the Reporting Date. This ASU is effective for interim and annual periods beginning after December 15, 2013 and requires the measurement of obligations resulting from joint and several liability arrangements for which the total amount of the obligation is fixed at the reporting date as the sum of: a) the amount the reporting entity agreed to pay on the basis of its arrangement among its co-obligors; and b) any additional amount the reporting entity expects to pay on behalf of its co-obligors. Required disclosures include a description of the joint-and-several arrangement and the total outstanding amount of the obligation for all joint parties. We anticipate the adoption of this guidance will have minimal impact on our financial position, results of operations, cash flows or disclosures.

In July 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013-11, *Income Taxes (Topic 740): Presentation of an Unrecognized Tax Benefit When a Net Operating Loss Carryforward, a Similar Tax Loss, or a Tax Credit Carryforward Exists.* This ASU is effective for fiscal years and interim periods beginning after December 15, 2013 and changes the presentation of unrecognized tax benefits. We are currently evaluating the impact that the adoption of this guidance will have on our financial position, results of operations, cash flows and/or disclosures.

In April 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-8, *Presentation of Financial Statements (Topic 205) and Property, Plant, and Equipment (Topic 360): Reporting Discontinued Operations and Disclosures of Disposals of Components of an Entity.* This ASU is effective within annual periods beginning on or after December 15, 2014, and interim periods within annual periods beginning on or after December 15, 2015 with early adoption permitted in certain circumstances. This ASU changes the requirements for reporting discontinued operations. We are currently evaluating the impact that the adoption of this guidance will have on our financial position, results of operations, cash flows and/or disclosures.

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-9, *Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606)*. This ASU is effective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2016, including interim periods within that reporting period. This ASU changes the requirements for revenue recognition. We are currently evaluating which of the several adoption methods we will select and what impact that the adoption of this guidance will have on our financial position, results of operations, cash flows and/or disclosures.

In June 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-12, Compensation Stock Compensation (Topic 718): Accounting for Share-Based Payments When the Terms of an Award Provide That a Performance Targets Could Be Achieved after the Requisite Service Period. This ASU is effective within annual periods beginning on or after December 15, 2015, including interim periods within that reporting period. This ASU requires that a performance target that affects vesting and that could be achieved after the requisite service period be treated as a performance condition. We are currently evaluating the impact that the adoption of this guidance will have on our financial position, results of operations, cash flows and/or disclosures.

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

We are exposed to interest rate fluctuations with regard to future issuances of fixed-rate debt, and existing and future issuances of floating-rate debt. Primary exposures include the U.S. Prime Rate and LIBOR related to debt outstanding under our line of credit. In the past, we have used interest rate swaps to reduce the volatility of our financing costs and to achieve a desired proportion of fixed versus

Table of Contents

floating-rate debt. We did not use our interest rate swap for trading or other speculative purposes. We currently are not using any interest rate swaps, but may in the future.

At December 31, 2013, the principal outstanding on our revolving line of credit was \$62,622. Interest on our line of credit is charged at a rate equal to either (a) the base rate, which equates to the rate last quoted by The Wall Street Journal as the "Prime Rate" or as further defined in the agreement in the absence of such, plus an applicable margin (the "Base Rate"); or (b) LIBOR, as defined by the agreement, plus an applicable margin. The applicable margin on the Base Rate borrowings is 0.75% and on LIBOR rate borrowings is 1.75%. The effective interest rate for Base Rate borrowings at December 31, 2013 was 4.00%. The effective rate on LIBOR rate borrowings at December 31, 2013 was 1.92%. At December 31, 2013, we had Base Rate borrowings outstanding in the amount of \$37,622 and LIBOR rate borrowings outstanding in the amount of \$25,000. Additionally, we are charged a monthly unused commitment fee ranging from 0.25% to 0.50% on the average unused daily balance.

Based on the revolving line of credit balance outstanding on December 31, 2013, a 100 basis point decrease in the applicable interest rate would increase our 2013 cash flow and pre-tax earnings by approximately \$626. An increase in the applicable interest rate would decrease our 2013 cash flow and pre-tax earnings by the same amount. Based on our ability to pay down any outstanding balance on our line of credit without prepayment penalty, as well as our plan to use proceeds from this offering to pay our balance down significantly or completely, we do not believe that interest rate fluctuations create a significant risk.

Table of Contents

BUSINESS

Our Company

This summary highlights information appearing elsewhere in this prospectus and does not contain all of the information that you should consider in making your investment decision. Before investing in our common stock, you should read the entire prospectus carefully, including the sections titled "Risk Factors," and "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" and our consolidated financial statements and related notes included elsewhere in this prospectus. Unless the context suggests otherwise, references in this prospectus to "Diplomat," "the Company," "we," "us" and "our" refer to Diplomat and its consolidated subsidiaries.

Business Overview

We are the nation's largest independent specialty pharmacy and are focused on improving lives of patients with complex chronic diseases. We believe our independence, which we define as our singular focus on specialty pharmacy services independent of other operations such as pharmacy benefit management or managed care, allows us to focus on the patients first and to address the specific needs of all of our constituents. We believe we have a unique patient-centric approach that positions us at the center of the healthcare continuum for the treatment of complex chronic diseases and enables us to drive superior care coordination through partnerships with patients, payors, pharmaceutical manufacturers and physicians. We offer a broad range of innovative solutions to address the dispensing, delivery, dosing and reimbursement of clinically intensive, high-cost specialty drugs. We believe that we are a chosen partner for leading biotechnology and pharmaceutical companies based on our ability to deliver customized support services and dispense new drugs to complex chronic disease patient populations.

Diplomat opened its doors in 1975 as a neighborhood pharmacy with one essential tenet: "Take good care of patients, and the rest falls into place." Today, that tradition continues and we have focused on creating a culture that is highly focused on increasing adherence and improving outcomes. We believe that our primary focus on the patient differentiates us from our significant competitors that also provide pharmacy benefit management services or other health care services that do not focus singularly on managing the patient experience. We understand that the primary concerns of a patient facing a chronic and serious condition are quality of care and ease of working with the pharmacy. We believe that our detailed, well managed, high-touch patient care program that is designed to address these concerns is essential to our success. Our specialty drug dispensing and services business model described below creates partnerships with patients, payors, pharmaceutical manufacturers and physicians with a focus on improving adherence and the patient experience.

We were founded in 1975 by our Chief Executive Officer, Philip Hagerman, and his father, Dale, both trained pharmacists who transformed our business from a traditional pharmacy into a leading specialty pharmacy. In 2005, we began to expand the scope of our specialty pharmacy business from a small regional operation to a large national enterprise, allowing us to capitalize on the growth of the specialty pharmacy market from \$20 billion in sales in 2005 to \$63 billion in sales in 2013. As a result, we have grown our revenues organically to over \$1.5 billion in 2013, achieving a compounded annual growth rate of over 65% since 2005, and we are now the fourth largest overall specialty pharmacy in the United States, with a 2% overall market share (based on 2013 revenues from pharmacy-dispensed specialty drugs). To achieve this growth, we have consistently strengthened our clinical expertise in key therapeutic categories, such as oncology and immunology, broadened the scope of our services to retailers, hospitals and health systems and strengthened our relationships with patients, payors, pharmaceutical manufacturers and physicians.

We focus on specialty drugs that are typically administered on a recurring basis to treat patients with complex chronic diseases that require specialized handling and administration as part of their distribution process. We have expertise across a broad range of high-growth specialty therapeutic

Table of Contents

categories, including oncology, immunology, hepatitis, multiple sclerosis, HIV and specialty infusion therapy (which involves infusing specialty pharmaceuticals for rare and chronic genetic disorders, primarily for hemophilia and immune globulin treatment). Our comprehensive, patient-focused services ensure that patients receive a superior standard of care, including assistance with complicated medication therapies, refill processing, third-party funding support programs, side effect management and adherence monitoring. We customize solutions for each patient based on the patient's overall health, disease and family history, lifestyle and financial means. Although generally we do not track or quantify specific cost savings for patients and payors, we believe we reduce long-term costs for patients and payors by improving patient care, managing high-risk members, monitoring patient adherence, and optimizing the utilization of specialty drugs, many of which can cost well over \$100,000 per patient, per year. This value proposition to payors and patients has helped us expand our managed lives under contract from approximately 5 million in 2009 to approximately 13 million in August 2014. We define managed lives under contract as patients enrolled in a managed care organization network, including pharmacy benefit managers, health plans, state governments, employer groups and unions with whom we contract, through exclusive and preferred relationships with such organizations, whereby we are the only authorized or one of a few preferred specialty pharmacy providers to the patients in their system.

Collectively, our unique ability to collect and report data, and to ensure effective dispensing of complex specialty medications supports the clinical and commercial needs of pharmaceutical manufacturers. Furthermore, our patient and provider support services ensure appropriate drug initiation, facilitate patient compliance and persistence, and capture important information regarding safety and effectiveness of the specialty medications that we dispense. Our services, together with our proactive engagement with pharmaceutical manufacturers early in the drug development process, have contributed to our current and growing access to limited distribution drugs, which we define as drugs that are only available for distribution by a select network of specialty pharmacies. Our inclusion in limited distribution networks provides critical sources of revenue growth and provides a catalyst for our future growth.

Our core revenues are derived from the customized care management programs we deliver to our patients, including the dispensing of their specialty medications. Because our core therapeutic categories generally require multi-year or life-long therapy, our singular focus on complex chronic diseases helps drive recurring revenues and sustainable growth. Our revenues grow in part as we help more patients access the drugs they need in order to live longer and healthier lives. As a part of our mission to improve patient care, currently we provide specialty pharmacy support services to a national network of 8 retailers and independent pharmacy groups, representing approximately 4,500 stores and 49 hospitals and health systems. For many of our retail, hospital and health system partners, we earn revenue by providing clinical and administrative support services on a fee-for-service basis to help them dispense specialty medications. Thus, our patient-focused solutions benefit multiple partners across the healthcare continuum, which we believe drives the sustainability of our business model.

Market Opportunity

Specialty pharmaceuticals represent a significant and growing total addressable market. The specialty pharmaceutical market has experienced significant growth in recent years as complex chronic conditions, care coordination, technology-enabled patient care, biotechnology research and outcomes-based healthcare have increased in focus. The total specialty pharmaceutical market represented approximately \$92 billion in drug spend in 2012. Total specialty pharmaceutical drug spend covered under the pharmacy benefit was approximately \$51 billion in 2012 and is estimated to grow to \$118 billion by 2018. Specialty drugs are managed not only under the pharmacy benefit, but also under the medical benefit. Payors typically determine whether a particular specialty drug is covered under the pharmacy benefit versus the medical benefit based on such factors as the patient's ability to self-administer, the degree of clinical support required, the need for patient monitoring and the site of care (e.g., hospital or home). Increasingly, drugs that have historically been reimbursed under the medical benefit are being moved to the pharmacy benefit by health plans and pharmacy benefit

Table of Contents

managers to better manage care and contain costs. We believe that our track record and leadership in limited distribution drug programs will create opportunities for us to gain market share in this growing segment of the specialty pharmacy market.

In addition, while our historic focus has been pharmacy benefit, we believe that the medical benefit represents a significant additional revenue opportunity for us and expect it to have a bigger impact in our business going forward. Specialty drugs reimbursed under the medical benefit have also expanded rapidly in recent years and were approximately \$39 billion, or approximately 45%, of the total specialty drug spend in 2012. Specifically, we view specialty infusion (which, for our purposes, includes infusion therapies for hemophilia, hereditary angioedema and immune globulins), with approximately 60% of the costs of such therapies covered under the medical benefit, as an attractive market due to significant projected growth and higher margins, and we intend to continue to invest in this important and growing area of our existing business. In addition, specialty medication provided under the medical benefit (typically office administered, hospital outpatient clinic administered, administered in the home setting, or in an infusion clinic) is more difficult to manage and control the cost of in comparison to specialty medication managed under the pharmacy benefit. The increased difficulty is, in part, because under the pharmacy benefit, claims are adjudicated electronically at the point of sale, which allows for dosage controls and cost verifications to take place before specialty medications are dispensed. In contrast, medical claims are processed after specialty medications are dispensed, which limits the payor's ability to verify costs, dosage amounts, and number of units dispensed. We believe the significant value of the management strategies and services implemented by specialty pharmacies under the pharmacy benefit has led to payors engaging with specialty pharmacies to provide similar assistance to help control spend and cost trends attributed to specialty medications under the medical benefit. We are well positioned to provide these services to payors due to our expertise in specialty pharmacy as well as t

Growth in specialty drug spend is significantly outpacing the broader pharmaceutical market. Specialty drugs are the fastest growing segment of the pharmaceutical market, and spend in this segment is estimated to grow at approximately 20% annually from 2013 to 2020, whereas traditional drug spend is expected to grow in the low to mid single digit percentage range. Specialty pharmaceutical products are targeted towards high-cost complex medical conditions, have fewer direct substitutes than traditional pharmaceuticals and face limited near-term generic market entry. These factors limit competition and drive higher prices. Additionally, specialty drug approvals comprised over 50% of all FDA drug approvals in 2013 as pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies have continued to invest in specialty drug development. This trend is expected to continue, driven by a robust pipeline of specialty drugs, which represent approximately 40% of the total number of drugs that we believe may receive FDA approval within the next twelve months. On the other hand, traditional drug trends are projected to be lower for a variety of reasons. We believe these reasons include the loss of patent protection of a number of market leading brand name drugs which allows generic equivalents to come to market to compete with the brand innovator. Further, as brand names lose patent protection, pharmaceutical manufacturers often stop providing marketing support for the brand. In addition, because specialty medications face less competition from generics compared to traditional drugs, we believe the lower growth trends for traditional drugs may be due in part to pharmaceutical manufacturers shifting research and development efforts and funding to specialty medications that do not have generic competition, therefore resulting in less new traditional brand name drugs coming to market.

Oncology and immunology, therapeutic categories in which we believe we are a leader, are large and growing therapeutic categories within the specialty pharmaceuticals industry. The oncology market represented 29% of specialty pharmaceutical sales in the U.S. in 2013. The immunology market, including the disease states rheumatoid arthritis, psoriasis and Crohn's disease, also represents a large and growing specialty market. We believe these two therapeutic categories will continue to grow, given that there are over 400 oncology and immunology drugs currently in clinical development which

Table of Contents

represent over 40% of the biologics pipeline. Further, there are over 3,000 oncology and immunology drugs in global drug development. Given the chronic nature of these disease states, we provide recurring services to these patients over long periods of time. In 2013, we generated over 70% of our revenues in oncology and immunology, and our historical growth has largely been driven by our position as a leader in these categories.

Competitive Strengths

We are the nation's largest independent and fourth largest overall specialty pharmacy, with a 2% overall market share (based on 2013 revenues from pharmacy-dispensed specialty drugs). We believe we are well positioned to continue to increase our market share based on the following competitive strengths.

Adding value to all constituents. The value we deliver to all constituents is centered upon our core focus on patients. We help patients adhere to complicated medication therapies, process refills and manage any side effects and insurance concerns to ensure they get the best standard of care. The clinical efficacy of drug therapies, especially for acute and chronic conditions, is typically enhanced when patients precisely follow the prescribed treatment regimens (including dosing and frequency). On the other hand, we believe, though we do not internally track, that medication non-adherence (i.e., patients not following the instructions for their medication or failing to finish taking their medication) can contribute to a substantial worsening of disease and, in some cases, accelerated mortality which increases hospital and other health care costs. We have achieved patient adherence rates of over 90% for the last six fiscal quarters. We believe our high adherence rates are, in part, due to, among other things, our patient training and education, compliance packaging, prophylactic starter kits and nurse adherence calls. We also help identify third-party funding support programs to help cover expensive out-of-pocket costs. In 2013, we helped our patients successfully obtain \$24 million of funding assistance to help cover out-of-pocket co-pay costs. Our focus on patients and our related patient-support programs have allowed us to achieve an overall patient satisfaction rate of approximately 99%.

Table of Contents

Supporting our core focus on patients, we also serve the constituents below.

- (1) Payors: We manage prescription regimens for chronically ill populations and help payors, which include insurance plans and pharmacy benefit managers, reduce costs through customized specialty pharmacy programs. Our electronic patient care platform, centered on our disease-specific technology solution, is customized for each payor's needs and is designed to improve efficiency and lower costs. For example, through our partial fill program of dispensing prescriptions with less than the typical 30-day supply, we promote more frequent direct intervention and tracking of patients and their therapies by our highly trained clinical experts. Our partial fill program focuses on medications that have a high discontinuation rate based on poor response, adverse effects and non-compliance to address potential waste as well as improve adherence to prescribed therapy. We dispense a two-week supply when prescribed and it is our policy to contact patients on the second and tenth days of therapy to verify patient tolerance. Once confirmed, we will dispense the remainder of that month's supply. If not tolerated, we contact the prescriber to seek an alternate therapy.
- (2) **Biotechnology and Pharmaceutical Manufacturers:** We offer specialized and highly customized prescription programs for pharmaceutical companies to help them optimize and track patient adherence which helps drive the clinical and commercial success of specialty drugs. In addition, we partner with pharmaceutical manufacturers early by helping them develop specialty pharmaceutical channel strategies as part of their commercial launch preparation.
- (3) Physicians and Health Systems: Our team works with physician offices to manage prior-authorization and other managed care organization requirements, such as denial and appeal process, to ensure that complicated administrative tasks do not impair the delivery of quality patient care. Additionally, we provide risk evaluation services, implement risk mitigation strategies and collect patient adherence data to provide physicians and health systems with enhanced visibility. Our transparency and support has led to a physician satisfaction rate of approximately 97%.
- (4) Retailers and Hospitals: We provide clinical and administrative support services for our retail and hospital partners on a fee-for-service basis. Based on our broad industry experience, infrastructure and treatment-tracking software, our retail specialty network solution provides customized clinical and administrative support services that help retailers and their specialty patients improve financial outcomes. We provide hospitals with unique solutions to maximize cost containment, improve efficiency and clinical outcomes from specialty pharmaceuticals. Our programs also support hospitals that are 340B covered entities, which are organizations that provide access to reduced price prescription drugs to health care facilities in accordance with the federal 340B Drug Pricing Program and that have been certified by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, through a contracted pharmacy strategy.

Significant and longstanding payor relationships approximately 13 million managed lives under contract. Currently we partner with 46 regional and mid-sized payors and independent pharmacy benefit managers to improve patient outcomes and lower costs by managing high-risk members and implementing patient-focused specialty programs. Although we do not collect aggregate data on the clinical outcomes of our patients (including with respect to any correlation between adherence and patient outcomes), we believe we improve the clinical outcomes for high-risk members through adherence monitoring, patient education and clinical intervention because we believe the benefit of effective pharmaceuticals, especially for acute and chronic conditions, will only be achieved if patients follow the prescribed treatment regimens (including amount and timing of doses) reasonably closely. We offer payors access to limited distribution drugs and unique cost containment programs, including partial refill programs, clinical management and motivational interviewing techniques for improving adherence. We believe that medication non-adherence is the largest avoidable cost in specialty pharmacy because it contributes to a substantial worsening of disease and death and significantly

Table of Contents

increases hospital and other health care costs, and our strong adherence rates benefit patients and payors. We believe that our focus on high-touch patient care, reflecting our therapy management and support services through multiple interactions by our clinical, operational and administrative personnel, and our experience with high-risk populations makes us well-positioned for the anticipated growth in managed lives under the Affordable Care Act, particularly with respect to managed Medicaid coverage.

Partner of choice for biotechnology and pharmaceutical manufacturers. We believe that our role as the partner of choice for many biotechnology and pharmaceutical manufacturers is based on the following attributes:

Expertise in managing limited distribution drugs. We have historically earned access to many limited distribution drugs, both at the time of their launch and post-launch. We actively monitor the drug pipeline and maintain dialogue with many of the major biotechnology and pharmaceutical manufacturers to identify opportunities in all pre-commercial stages of drug development. We believe that limited distribution is becoming the delivery system of choice for many drug manufacturers because it facilitates high patient engagement, clinical expertise and elevated focus on service. This belief is based in part on our past success in dispensing prescriptions for new drugs in as little as two days after launch, which we believe is materially faster than most of our competitors. Furthermore, we believe that our innovative solutions and service-oriented culture set us apart from our competitors, have enabled us to win a large number of limited distribution contracts and is more appealing than our competitors' platforms to emerging biotechnology firms and the boutique consulting firms that advise them. We believe that the trend toward limited distribution of specialty drugs will continue to expand in the future, making strong representation in this area essential. Accordingly, we believe our current portfolio of over 70 limited distribution drugs, all of which are post-launch, positions us for disproportionate growth as more limited distribution drugs come to market.

Proven track record of adding value. We believe we outperform our competitors in providing services that benefit specialty drug manufacturers. Our superior services are driven by our clinical expertise in oncology, immunology, hepatitis, multiple sclerosis, HIV and specialty infusion. We offer targeted pilot programs, full reporting capabilities and a variety of additional services that support patients' medication adherence when clinically appropriate. We believe these superior services and capabilities were a primary driver of our gaining access to, and becoming the largest of five specialty pharmacies that can, dispense Imbruvica, Pharmacyclics' Mantle Cell Lymphoma drug launched in November 2013.

Breadth of channel partners. In addition to our strong relationships with payors, physicians, manufacturers and patients, we also partner with retailers, hospitals and health systems by providing critical patient-facing clinical and administrative services that help support the specialty pharmacy capabilities of these constituents. We believe that our ability to provide the patient-centric services under the brand names of our retail, hospital and health system partners makes us a valued partner for these entities that lack the infrastructure and expertise to service their specialty drug patients on their own. These partnerships broaden our exposure and influence across the healthcare continuum.

Relationships with clinical experts and key opinion leaders. Our singular focus on specialty pharmacy and complex chronic diseases has enabled us to develop strong relationships with clinical experts and thought leaders in key therapeutic categories, such as oncology and immunology. We leverage these relationships to gain greater visibility into future drug launches and to stay current on the latest advances in patient care.

National footprint with highly scalable infrastructure. During the past several years, we have made significant investments to expand our capabilities and capacity, which we believe will help us to enhance sales volume, improve efficiency and create significant barriers to entry. In December 2010, we moved our corporate headquarters to a 550,000 square foot facility in Flint, Michigan. Our operations within

Table of Contents

this facility are highly scalable, as we currently utilize approximately 40% of the facility giving us significant capacity to execute our long term growth plan without significant additional capital expenditures. Our physical footprint has enabled us to develop a centralized infrastructure that we have successfully scaled to dispense to all 50 states. We now have an advanced distribution center that enables us to ship medications nationwide as well as a centralized clinical call center that helps us deliver localized services on a national scale. In addition to our headquarters, we also operate smaller regional facilities in Flint, Michigan; Grand Rapids, Michigan; Chicago, Illinois; Ft. Lauderdale, Florida; Ontario, California; Enfield, Connecticut; Raleigh, North Carolina; and Springfield, Massachusetts. We are fully accredited and licensed to conduct business in each of the states that require such licensure.

Strong financial profile combines sustainable growth and low capital intensity. Our financial profile is comprised of a recurring revenue model that is driven by the chronically ill populations we serve. As a result, we have demonstrated strong growth in revenue and profitability. We have achieved consistent revenue and Adjusted EBITDA growth with revenues increasing from \$377 million in 2009 to \$1,515 million in 2013 and Adjusted EBITDA increasing from \$6 million in 2009 to \$19 million in 2013, representing compound annual growth rates of 42% and 33%, respectively. Net income (loss) was \$(4) million in 2009, which includes non-operating expenses of \$8 million, and net income (loss) was \$(26) million in 2013, which includes non-operating expenses of \$37 million. See "Selected Consolidated Financial Data" for our definition of Adjusted EBITDA, why we present Adjusted EBITDA and a reconciliation of our Adjusted EBITDA to net income (loss). We expect our growth to continue to be driven by a highly visible and recurring base of revenues, favorable demographic trends, advanced clinical developments, expanding drug pipelines, earlier detection of chronic diseases, improved access to medical care, manufacturer price increases and mix shift toward higher-cost specialty drugs. In addition, we believe that our expanding breadth of services, our growing penetration with new customers, and our access to limited distribution drugs, will help us achieve significant and sustainable growth and profitability in future.

Highly experienced and passionate management team. Our senior management team, which consists of six executives, has an average of over 26 years of experience in the pharmacy and specialty pharmacy industry and represents a group of highly recognized and respected industry veterans. Led by our Chief Executive Officer and co-founder, Philip Hagerman, our management team is responsible for our proven track record of growth, consistent performance and industry leading service. Mr. Hagerman, a licensed pharmacist and recognized specialty pharmacy industry thought-leader, is a frequent speaker at state and national pharmacy conferences and has received several awards as a leading business executive in the country, including recognition by the White House Business Council for his leadership in job creation and community development. Our senior management team has an average tenure with Diplomat of over 12 years and brings a healthy balance of significant experience with Diplomat and with other companies in the industry, including public companies. In addition, our broader sales, clinical and operations team, has deep clinical expertise and currently includes over 70 licensed pharmacists.

Growth Strategy

We plan to grow our business by continuing to execute on the following key growth strategies:

Capitalize on track record to expand leadership positions in high-growth oncology and limited distribution markets. We believe our track record of providing a customized, high level of service to our manufacturer partners in the oncology and immunology markets has led to repeat contract awards and initial limited distribution contracts related to new drugs our partners bring to market. For example, we believe our success as a distributing pharmacy for Zytiga, a metastatic castration resistant prostate cancer drug approved by the FDA in April 2011, helped earn us limited distribution access to Xtandi, another metastatic castration resistant prostate cancer drug approved by the FDA in August 2012. Xtandi has grown to become one of our top 10 drugs with over \$40 million in annual sales in

Table of Contents

2013. Our clinical and sales teams consistently engage our emerging biotechnology partners on commercialization strategy 12 to 18 months in advance of potential FDA approval. These pre-existing relationships position us to capture market share in these high-growth markets. One example was the launch of Cometriq, a drug currently indicated for a form of thyroid cancer, on which we collaborated with the manufacturer and became the exclusive distributor.

Expand clinical expertise to a broad range of therapeutic categories. We serve a broad range of therapeutic categories, and we believe we can expand our clinical expertise to increasingly penetrate additional markets such as hepatitis, multiple sclerosis, HIV and specialty infusion. We believe these categories will become increasingly important to our patient population in the coming years due to advancement of therapies and increased incidences of chronic illness and that our platform will allow us to grow with market expansion. Specifically, we view specialty infusion as an attractive market due to significant projected growth and higher margins, and we intend to continue to invest in this important and growing area of our existing business. Our recent acquisitions of AHF and MedPro have significantly expanded our ability to access this market. Additionally, orphan and ultra-orphan drugs, which are associated with relatively small patient populations, are an increasingly important focus for us as the specific characteristics of these categories make utilization and compliance particularly challenging.

Deepen and expand partner relationships. We currently contract with and support regional and mid-sized payors and independent pharmacy benefit managers, employer groups, and union groups representing approximately 13 million managed lives across the United States. We plan to continue to work with our current clients to grow their membership and are focused on expanding our client base nationally. In addition to providing specialty pharmacy services for self-administered medications covered under the pharmacy benefit, we also offer office-administered medications covered under the medical benefit to ensure that we provide a full spectrum of care to our specialty patients regardless of type of their benefit coverage and where they receive care. Further, our partnerships with retail pharmacies and hospitals allow us to serve specialty patients beyond the traditional specialty pharmacy approach. These partnerships allow patients to more easily access specialty medications in the retail setting and also positions Diplomat to be a key partner for Accountable Care Organizations, which are networks formed by groups of doctors, hospitals, and other health care providers that share financial and medical coordination of services to patients to limit unnecessary spending and to create an efficient patient care system. We can work with Accountable Care Organizations to manage patient therapy, dispense specialty drugs, and advise prescribers regarding the relative effectiveness and value of their drug treatment options for patients.

Grow high-margin businesses and capitalize on investments to enhance key operating metrics. In May 2014, we contracted to significantly expand our retail customer base and expand our opportunities through a service contract with Novation, LLC (which includes Provista, LLC and VHA Inc.), one of the largest hospital networks and group purchasing organizations. In addition, our continued expansion into the infusion market will provide us with opportunities to capitalize on a market which historically has provided higher margins. We have made significant investments in our technology, infrastructure and service lines to build a scalable foundation for growth, which we believe provides meaningful opportunities to grow revenues and enhance key operating metrics. We believe our investments in technology, both completed and in-process, will improve our operating cost profile and provide valuable revenue opportunities, as we enhance our data collection and delivery capabilities, services that are highly valued by our partners. Finally, we currently utilize approximately 40% of our 550,000 square foot facility in Flint, Michigan (purchased in 2010), providing meaningful capacity as we continue to scale our business.

Selectively pursue growth through strategic acquisitions. We believe the specialty pharmacy industry is highly fragmented and provides numerous opportunities to expand through acquisitions. While we will continue to focus on growing our business organically, we believe we can opportunistically enhance

Table of Contents

our competitive position through complementary acquisitions in both existing and new markets. For example, in December 2013, we completed the acquisition of AHF, a specialty infusion therapy provider focused primarily on hemophilia. In June 2014, we acquired MedPro, a specialty pharmacy focused on specialty infusion therapies including hemophilia and immune globulin. Specialty infusion is differentiated from traditional home infusion in that it requires highly customized services and level of care with therapies that can exceed \$300,000 in costs per patient per year. We anticipate our future revenues derived from specialty infusion pharmacy services will increase significantly as a percentage of total revenues as a result of these acquisitions. Additionally, we plan to selectively evaluate potential acquisition opportunities in other therapeutic categories, services and technologies, with the goal of preserving our culture, optimizing patient outcomes, enhancing value to other constituents and building long-term value for our shareholders.

Specialty Pharmacy Industry

direct to consumer advertising.

Specialty pharmacy services are a distinct form of pharmacy services that coordinate full service patient care and complex disease management. Specialty pharmacy services are designed to take advantage of economies of scale by using standardized and efficient processes to deliver medications with customized handling, storage and distribution requirements. Specialty pharmacies are also designed to improve clinical, adherence, and economic outcomes for patients with complex, often chronic, or rare conditions through a wide range of oral, injectable and infusible specialty pharmaceuticals.

The U.S. market for specialty pharmaceuticals is estimated to be around \$51 billion in 2012 and the market is expected to grow rapidly. See "Market Opportunity" above for additional information regarding anticipated industry growth. We expect several factors to contribute to the continuing growth of the specialty pharmacy services industry, including the following:



Less acute, chronic conditions are generally treated with self-administered, oral, injectable or inhalable specialty pharmaceuticals but may also be administered by a physician or nurse. These pharmaceuticals can be distributed directly to the patient for at-home administration or to the patient's physician for in-office administration. Several chronic, genetic conditions and orphan diseases are treated with infused pharmaceuticals via a more complex intravenous form of administration. These pharmaceuticals are dispensed under the supervision of a registered pharmacist and the therapies are typically delivered to the patient for self-administration in the home or administration by a credentialed

Table of Contents

home-health care nurse or trained caregiver at home or in another care site. Many of the pharmaceuticals handled by specialty pharmacies require refrigeration during shipping as well as special handling to prevent potency degradation. Patients receiving treatment usually require personalized counseling and education regarding their condition and treatment programs.

The specialty pharmacy segment primarily treats conditions such as cancer, immune deficiency disorders, hepatitis, multiple sclerosis, hemophilia, neurological conditions and other chronic conditions. Retail pharmacies and other traditional distributors generally are designed to carry inventories of low cost, high volume products and therefore are not equipped to handle the high cost, low volume specialty pharmaceuticals that have specialized handling and administration requirements. In addition, those entities generally lack both the deep clinical expertise and the administrative and call center support functions necessary to effectively deliver specialty pharmacy services. As a result, specialty pharmaceuticals generally are provided by pharmacies that focus primarily on filling, labeling and delivering oral, injectable, infusible or inhalable pharmaceuticals and related medication and support services.

Our Services

We provide specialty pharmacy services dedicated to servicing the needs of patients, while also providing clinical expertise, technology-driven innovation tools, and administrative efficiencies that support physicians, payors, pharmaceutical manufacturers, and retail pharmacies. We purchase specialty pharmaceuticals from manufacturers and wholesale distributors, fill prescriptions, and label, package and deliver the pharmaceuticals to patients' homes or physicians' offices through contract couriers. We utilize our Company-owned, high-volume distribution facility, seven smaller regional facilities and centralized clinical call centers to provide such services to all 50 states. The services provided to our patients and other constituents described below are integral to securing the relationships that drive our revenue and prescription volumes, and are a central focus of our specialty pharmacy business. In order to successfully compete, we must provide value to each constituent in the specialty pharmacy industry.

Our value to constituents is based on our ability to provide large specialty and limited distribution product access, utilization management, high patient adherence rates, patient funding assistance, data management, outstanding patient and prescriber satisfaction rates and direct and indirect cost savings. Our adherence programs, including monthly monitoring calls, unique packaging to drive compliance, side effect management, patient education, and prescriber outreach, have resulted in patient adherence rates of more than 90%. The benefit of effective pharmaceuticals, especially for acute and chronic conditions, will only be achieved if patients follow the prescribed treatment regimens (including amount and timing of doses) reasonably closely. On the other hand, we believe, though we do not internally track, that medication non-adherence (i.e., patients not following the instructions for their medication or failing to finish taking their medication) contributes to a substantial worsening of disease and death and significantly increases hospital and other health care costs. Further, we manage the high cost of specialty drugs by pursuing cost savings through channel management, utilization management, formulary management (i.e., the list of specialty drugs that will be reimbursed by a health plan or managed care organization), and waste minimization (including our partial fill program). Channel management is a strategy that targets specialty medications covered under the medical benefit by payors and moving the coverage of these medications to the pharmacy benefit in order to take advantage of deeper discounts, rebates or more detailed reporting when available. Utilization management is the evaluation of the appropriateness, medical need and efficiency of health care services, procedures, drugs and facilities according to established criteria or guidelines and under the provisions of an applicable health benefit plan. Formulary management is an integrated patient care process which enables physicians, pharmacists and other health care professionals to work together to promote clinically sound, cost-effective medication therapy and positive therapeutic outcomes. A drug formulary, or preferred drug list, is a continually updated list of medications and related products supported by current evidence-based medicine, judgment of physicians, pharmacists and other experts in the diagnosis and treatment of disease and preservation of health.

Table of Contents

Our programs consist of the following business services:

Specialty Drug Dispensing. For the six months ended June 30, 2014 and the year ended December 31, 2013, we derived over 99% of our revenue from the dispensing of drugs and the reporting of data associated with those dispenses to pharmaceutical manufacturers and other outside companies. The other services described below are services included as part of our core business offerings and are included as part of the overall payor reimbursement for dispensed drugs, rather than as separately reimbursable events. We are licensed to dispense prescriptions in all 50 states and all U.S. territories. Our business processes and dispensing solutions are well established and can provide specialty prescriptions to patients as required by the communicated "need by" date. All specialty prescriptions are verified by registered pharmacists for accuracy and appropriateness at two separate points in the dispensing process prior to shipping to patient. Our specialty dispensing and distribution capabilities include package tracking through contracted couriers, temperature controls and signature confirmation upon delivery.

Specialty drug dispensing includes our specialty infusion pharmacy services. Our December 2013 and June 2014 acquisitions of AHF and MedPro, respectively, expanded our specialty infusion pharmacy services, and we anticipate our future revenues derived from specialty infusion pharmacy services will increase significantly as a percentage of total revenues as a result of such acquisitions. We provide individualized patient-centric specialty infusion services to patients with bleeding disorders, and other chronic conditions, while managing overall drug spend through factor utilization using dose management, assay management (which means ensuring that the prescribed amount is the dispensed amount), clinical and therapy education, intervention, and nursing support in efforts to advance better patient outcomes. Specialty infusion drugs are high cost, with routes of administration intravenously or subcutaneously and can be managed at home or in a hospital or free-standing ambulatory infusion clinic, physician office or through our extensive outsourced network of credentialed specialty nurses whom administer medications in the patent's home or at other sites of care. We estimate our drug reimbursement for specialty infusion patients is approximately 25% medical benefit and 75% pharmacy benefit.

Our specialty drug dispensing services include:

O Patient Care Coordination. Our patient care system is used to coordinate and track patient adherence and safety. It is built around specific drug therapies and disease states for greater consistency of care using clinical

safety. It is built around specific drug therapies and disease states for greater consistency of care using clinical algorithms. Each step within the patient's treatment regimen is extensively researched based on various disease guideline publications. Our system automatically tracks all clinical interventions and activities and provides real-time access to patient information. Using this system, our care coordinators, including pharmacists, work with both patients and prescribers to identify potential adherence failures and implement proactive plans to optimize

treatment outcomes.

0

Clinical Services. Our pharmacists and nurses, with the assistance of our pharmacy technicians, provide clinically based drug therapy management programs for clients and patients. Pharmacists provide counseling on compliance and side-effect management. Our Clinical Help Desk includes several pharmacists, as well as nurses and pharmacy technicians. A pharmacist is available to patients and prescribers 24 hours a day, seven days a week and nurses are available during normal business hours. Clinical pharmacists are responsible for high level clinical interaction with patients and healthcare practitioners including medication counseling and clinical advice. Our clinicians work with the patients' primary prescriber to identify adherence failures and to implement a proactive plan to achieve intended outcomes.

81

Table of Contents

o

Compliance and Persistency Programs. Our compliance and persistency programs are drug specific and support the needs of patients based on their therapy regimen. In some cases, a dedicated nurse proactively contacts patients at specific intervals of therapy to discuss precautions, side effect management, administration of medication, and refill procedures. Prior to every refill, we call patients to verify the patient's dose and dosing regimen and shipping address, discuss side effects and confirm that the patient is appropriately taking the medication. Aside from standard protocol, we initiate calls at critical points during the therapy to improve adherence. This adherence program also addresses non-compliance by offering enhanced patient education and communication through customized programs specific to the medications we provide.

o

Patient Financial Assistance. Our funding specialists help patients navigate their benefits and find third-party financial assistance to address coverage deficiencies. We provide services to help patients understand and receive reimbursement benefits and we work with available co-pay assistance programs, including co-pay card enrollment and program management. We currently work with substantially all major commercial co-pay card programs. Our team also coordinates with many external charitable foundations and research grant organizations that help subsidize the cost of medications for patients. We also help patients access manufacturer patient assistance (free drug) programs when necessary and available. These programs result in increased access to specialty drug therapies for the patients and increased revenues for us.

o

Specialty Pharmacy Training/Consulting (Diplomat University). Diplomat University is our education and training department that educates both Diplomat employees and external professionals (including pharmacists, payors, pharmaceutical partners and physicians) on topics unique to the specialty pharmacy industry. Our in-depth, ongoing training program promotes clinical competence and builds new skills, enabling employees to provide high-level care for our patients and improve overall business performance. Diplomat University also houses our quality assurance department, which focuses on programs that promote quality and patient safety. Diplomat University-produced materials have been used in trade conference materials and magazine articles, as well as business meetings, to explain the specialty pharmacy industry generally and the broad range of solutions we can provide.

o

Benefits Investigation. Our standard procedures require that we conduct a benefits investigation for each patient we work with. In addition to processing test claims, our benefit specialists contact the appropriate medical or pharmacy benefit plan to verify coverage, deductible, coinsurance, and out-of-pocket maximum. Our specialists provide all necessary coding for the prescribed therapy or service. Any prior authorization or predetermination requirements are defined at the time of the benefits investigation. Our standard procedures require an initial test adjudication upon receipt of the referral and require subsequent investigations under certain circumstances.

o

Prior Authorization. Our prior authorization specialists contact the patient's insurance plan and collect all necessary patient specific information, together with supporting documentation, to provide to the third-party payor to support reimbursement for the prescribed medication, and coordinates with the prescribing physician. In the event that the required therapy is not listed on the third-party payor's formulary, we also compile the necessary information to file a formulary exception on behalf of the patient.

o

Risk Evaluation and Medication Strategy ("REMS"). Our employees are skilled at administering REMS (Risk Evaluation and Mitigation Strategy) protocols on all levels of risk mitigation, which is required by many pharmaceutical manufacturers due to regulatory requirements. The FDA requires REMS from certain manufacturers to ensure that the benefits of a drug or biological product outweigh its risks. Manufacturers are required to comply with specific FDA requirements that may include medication use guides, Black box

Table of Contents

warnings / patient package insert language, and a communication plan to health care providers. As part of REMS protocols, manufacturers may also be required to comply with Elements to Ensure Safe Use to mitigate a specific serious risk listed in the labeling of the drug, including special training and certifications, required dispensing locations, patient monitoring and associated reporting. We have standard operating procedures in place to support all aspects of a REMS program, including REMS administration, REMS drug fulfillment, disease management, medication guide dispensing and the Elements to Assure Safe Use specific to pharmaceutical manufacturer's program. We also partner with manufacturers to report and track Adverse Drug Events where required. Our patient care system has been designed to capture much of the information the pharmaceutical manufacturer must report to the FDA.

Retail Specialty Services. Retail specialty services connects a retail pharmacy business to the specialty arena. Based on our broad industry experience, infrastructure and unique treatment-tracking software, retail specialty services offers companies a strategic partner for clinical and administrative support services that help the business and their specialty patients achieve their best outcomes. Large retailers with pharmacies, such as Safeway and Target, have access to many of the same specialty drugs we distribute, but lack the expertise and the infrastructure necessary to manage patients, payors, and physicians regarding these specialty drugs. Development of this infrastructure is very costly, time consuming, and requires trained clinical experts. Our retail specialty services fills this gap with our breadth of service expertise, which includes nearly every aspect of our business other than purchasing the drugs and filling the prescriptions. We conduct patient-facing services under the specific retailer's brand name. For example, when our retail specialty services employees interact with patients and prescribers, these customers are unaware they are not engaging with our retail specialty services clients directly. These strategic relationships with retail pharmacies are important to pharmaceutical manufacturers and can further our access to additional limited distribution drugs, resulting in increased volumes of the specialty drug dispensing services described above.

Hospital and Health System Services. We provide clinical and administrative support services to hospitals and health systems that dispense specialty medications through their outpatient pharmacies. We partner with hospitals and health systems to assist with strategies and service delivery that is designed to maximize cost containment and improve efficiency and clinical outcomes related to specialty pharmaceuticals. Our program also supports hospitals that are 340B covered entities through a contracted pharmacy strategy.

Hub Services. We also recently launched the provision of hub services to capitalize on our expertise in providing the services described above and to compete with other hub service providers. Hub services generally are centralized management services for collaboration and efficiency among the key participants in the specialty pharmacy system (including patients, physicians, payors, pharmaceutical manufacturers, retail pharmacies and other prescribers). In order to maintain client satisfaction and compliance we will keep certain information and software systems, infrastructure and employees "firewalled" from our specialty pharmacy business to avoid commingling or favoring any specialty pharmacy (including ours) within the networks of the hub customers.

Constituent Relationships

Our services provide value to our constituents in the following ways.

Patients

We help manage patients' complex disease states through counseling and education regarding their treatment and by providing ongoing monitoring and, in some cases, proactive follow-up contact to encourage patient compliance with the prescribed therapy. The goal of Diplomat's patient care programs is to provide clinical services in a caring and supportive environment, optimize medication

Table of Contents

adherence, prevent disease progression and improve outcomes. To accomplish this, Diplomat focuses on each individual patient and provides solutions related to medication access, tolerance, and adherence.

Diplomat provides patients with personalized medication programs and services for a variety of complex disease states, including the following:

Oncology. Cancer therapy often involves the use of highly-toxic chemotherapy or oral oncolytic agents with a high incidence of adverse events. Goals for these patients include the provision of the most effective therapy at the appropriate dose, adverse event management to ensure treatment can continue for as long as it is effective, and improvement in quality of life. Our clinicians strive to ensure optimal treatment for these patients by providing high-touch proactive and reactive care, focusing on appropriate dosage and administration, adverse event management, and adherence monitoring.

Immunology. Care of patients with autoimmune and/or inflammatory conditions generally involves the use of therapies aimed at slowing disease progression, reducing the rate of disease relapse, and managing disease symptoms. Goals for these patients include reducing the signs and symptoms of disease, minimizing short- and long-term side effects and complications of the disease and therapy, and improving or normalizing the patient's quality of life. Our clinicians assist these patients by providing clinical management providing adverse event management support, proactively monitoring for adherence issues, and following up with prescribers in response to identified therapy issues.

Hepatitis. Management of hepatitis C virus infection involves the selection of appropriate therapy based on HCV genotype, the presence or absence of cirrhosis, transplant status, prior response to therapy, and whether or not the patient is co-infected with HIV or hepatitis B virus. Goals for these patients include achievement of sustained virologic response, decreasing the disease and therapy burden, and optimal adherence to therapy. Our clinicians ensure that hepatitis C virus therapy regimens are complete and appropriate, provide adverse event management support, and follow-up with prescribers to ensure optimal therapy.

Multiple Sclerosis. Care for patients diagnosed with multiple sclerosis involves life-long support. Goals for these patients include providing efficacious therapy to reduce the frequency of relapse and improving quality of life. Our clinicians ensure that patients are receiving the appropriate dose of therapy, provide adverse event counseling and management support, provide education on relapse mitigation strategies, and are available to respond to patient questions regarding therapy effectiveness and adverse events.

Specialty Infusion Therapy. Several chronic, genetic conditions and orphan diseases are treated with infused pharmaceuticals with a more complex intravenous form of administration. These pharmaceuticals are prescribed for individuals including but not limited to the following conditions: hemophilia, immune globulin and auto-immune deficiencies, hereditary angioedema and lysosomal storage disorders. Patients are generally referred to specialty infusion pharmacy services providers by physicians or case managers. The medications are dispensed under the supervision of a registered pharmacist and the therapy is typically delivered to the patient or caregiver for self-administration in the home or administration by a credentialed home-health care nurse or trained caregiver at home or in another care site.

Other Disease States. We also treat patients who have received organ transplants or who have HIV. Life-long therapy is essential for the prevention of organ rejection in transplant patients, and we seek to optimize adherence to therapy in order to decrease the likelihood of organ rejection. The management of HIV is complex and involves the use of highly active anti-retroviral therapy. Goals for our patients diagnosed with HIV include achieving long-term, maximal suppression of viral load, preserving and improving immune system function (prevention of progression to acquired immunodeficiency syndrome), and prevention of the spread of HIV to others.

Table of Contents

A number of our patient-focused services are driven by adherence. The benefit of effective pharmaceuticals, especially for acute and chronic conditions, will only be achieved if patients follow the prescribed treatment regimens (including amount and timing of doses) reasonably closely. Our standard procedures require that we maintain a team of pharmacists, nurses and certified pharmacy technicians available to answer patient questions by phone, 24 hours a day, seven days a week. We send patients all the medication and supplies they need for their prescribed therapy, including, when applicable, our "CarePak" adherence packaging and starter kits, which helps patients manage the side effects of their primary prescriptions. Management of side effects is a key component of patient adherence. We also proactively contact patients with reminders when refills are required and contact their physician if a new prescription is necessary.

Payors

We provide payors with a comprehensive approach to meeting their pharmacy service needs. Our specialty pharmacy services offer payors a cost effective solution for the distribution of specialty pharmaceuticals, generally direct to patients for self-administration. We manage high-risk members in the payors' network and assist with adherence to such members' health plans to minimize waste in the purchase of specialty drugs and to optimize patient outcomes. We also provide access to a significant number of limited distribution drugs. Other services include coordination of care with the members' physicians and payors and the provision of clinical and adherence data to evaluate therapy effectiveness.

The value we provide to payors is reflected in the number of managed care organizations to whom we provide exclusive services. We have approximately 13 million managed lives under contract. For the six months ended June 30, 2014 and the year ended December 31, 2013, our payor-derived revenue was (1) approximately 34% and 34%, respectively, from exclusive or preferred relationships with third party payors (including some government-sponsored managed Medicaid programs), (2) approximately 21% and 22%, respectively, from open network commercial payors, and (3) approximately 41% and 41%, respectively, from open network government programs, with the remainder collected from patients, directly or on their behalf, as a result of their co-pay obligations or patient assistance programs. Our exclusive or preferred relationships are with regional and mid-sized payors and independent pharmacy benefit managers, employer groups, and union groups. As of June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, such relationships included approximately 13 million managed lives under contract in the United States.

Pharmaceutical Manufacturers

We provide pharmaceutical manufacturers with a strong distribution channel for their existing pharmaceuticals and their new product launches. We implement patient monitoring programs that encourage compliance with the prescribed therapy. We also provide drug trial assistance including product encapsulation and packaging.

The adherence rates that result from our patient-centered services described above directly benefit pharmaceutical manufacturers through clinically appropriate continued sales of their products to patients, who might otherwise have failed to continue their prescribed therapies. In addition, the financial assistance and reimbursement management we provide to patients further drives pharmaceutical sales.

In addition, pharmaceutical manufacturers frequently seek patient data on the efficacy and utilization of their products, which we currently provide in a de-identified and HIPAA-compliant format. This data provides valuable clinical information in the form of outcomes and compliance data to manufacturers to aid in their evaluation of the efficacy of their products. We continue to invest in new technologies that will enable us to better provide such analytical services.

We have also assisted emerging biotechnology pharmaceutical companies in their commercialization of new drugs. In cases where pharmaceutical companies have successful clinical trials, but little commercialization experience, we are engaged to formulate strategies to market to, educate and fulfill the needs of patients, prescribers and payors. We refer to this tailored, multifaceted approach as "channel strategies." We believe that in some cases, these engagements have led to exclusive rights to administer

Table of Contents

the products of these pharmaceutical companies or our inclusion in a small panel of authorized specialty pharmacies for limited distribution of drugs. We believe our significant expertise in providing channel strategies to emerging biotechnology manufacturers is unique, and has enabled us to dispense prescriptions for new drugs successfully in as little as two days after launch.

Physicians and Other Prescribers

We assist physicians and other prescribers with personalized and intensive patient support by providing care management related to their patients' pharmacy needs and improving patient compliance with therapy protocols. We eliminate the need for physicians to carry inventories of high cost prescriptions by distributing medications directly to patients' homes or, in other cases, to the physicians' offices. We also assist physicians and their clinical and non-clinical staff members by performing many of the administratively intensive tasks associated with benefits investigations, prior authorizations and other reimbursement related matters. We generally bill payors directly, on the patient's behalf, in nearly all cases. Further, we assist physicians by helping their patients manage the side effects of their therapies and monitoring adherence. We also provide physicians with clinical updates and assist with managing the pipeline of potential new therapies.

Retail Pharmacies, Hospitals and Health Systems

We provide specialty pharmacy management services for a fixed fee to various national, regional and independent retail pharmacies. We also provide such services to hospitals and health systems. These services are similar to those provided to payors with respect to their specialty pharmacy customers, except that we do not buy or dispense the specialty product. The services generally include the same patient engagement and adherence programs, reimbursement processing and patient funding programs, and general disease state management services described above. These services constituted less than 1% of our revenues in 2013.

Our Suppliers

We obtain the pharmaceuticals and medical supplies and equipment that we provide to our patients through pharmaceutical manufacturers, distributors and group purchasing organizations. Most of the pharmaceuticals that we purchase are available from multiple sources and are available in sufficient quantities to meet our needs and the needs of our patients. However, some biotechnology drugs are only available through the manufacturer and may be subject to limits on distribution. In such cases, it is important for us to establish and maintain good working relations with the manufacturer in order to ensure sufficient supply to meet our patients' needs. We primarily utilize UPS in the delivery of our specialty pharmaceutical products.

Most of the manufacturers of the pharmaceuticals we sell have the right to cancel their supply contracts with us without cause and after giving notice (generally 90 days or less). Specialty drug purchases from AmerisourceBergen and Celgene (from whom we purchase several drugs) represented 58% and 19%, respectively, of cost of goods sold in 2013, and 64% and 21%, respectively, of cost of goods sold in 2012. The reason we purchase large quantities from a single wholesaler is primarily for ease of administration and pricing. In the event of a termination of our relationship with AmerisourceBergen, we believe that there is typically at least one alternative drug wholesaler from whom we could source each non-limited distribution drug we dispense. We further believe that we could replace the inventories without a material disruption to our operations.

Through the coverage and clinical expertise of our Company-owned, high-volume, main distribution facility and seven regional locations, some with retail capabilities and some with limited to moderate distribution capabilities, we provide pharmaceutical manufacturers with a strong distribution channel for their existing pharmaceutical products. In many cases, our national presence is critical to becoming a selected partner in the launch of new products. When providing new products to patients, we implement a monitoring program to encourage compliance with the prescribed therapy and we provide valuable clinical information to the manufacturer to aid in their evaluation of the efficacy of

Table of Contents

the product. We receive fees, which we record as revenue or a reduction to cost of goods sold, from certain pharmaceutical manufacturers in return for providing them with clinical data.

Billing and Significant Payors

We derive most of our revenue from contracts with third-party payors, such as managed care organizations, insurance companies, self-insured employers, pharmacy benefit managers and Medicare and Medicaid programs. We contract directly with some payors and pharmacy benefit managers or, in other cases, contract with third parties which in turn contract with payors and pharmacy benefit managers on our behalf.

We bill payors and track all of our accounts receivable through computerized billing systems. These systems allow our billing staff the flexibility to review and edit claims in the system before they are submitted to payors. For the great majority of our dispensing business, claims are submitted to payors electronically. We have extensive experience managing the coordination of benefits between commercial and government-sponsored plans. We participate with Medicare as a Durable Medical Equipment, Prosthetics, Orthotics and Supplies ("DMEPOS") pharmacy supplier, and participate in Medicare Part D. A benefit coverage specialist reviews all Medicare coverage determinations to ensure that the appropriate benefit is being billed. Upon completion of all benefit verifications, we follow each plan's guidelines to identify which plan is primary and secondary and submit the billing accordingly.

Our financial performance is highly dependent upon effective billing and collection practices. The process begins with an accurate and complete patient admission process, in which all critical information about the patient, the patient's insurance and the patient's care needs is gathered. A critical part of this process is verification of insurance coverage and authorization from insurance to provide the required care, which typically takes place before we initiate services. An exception occurs when a patient referral is received outside of normal business hours, but we have an existing contractual relationship with the patient's insurance carrier. In such cases, we provide the patient with sufficient drugs and services to last until the next business day, when the patient's insurance coverage can be verified.

Sales and Marketing

Our sales and marketing efforts focus on three primary objectives: (1) building new relationships and expanding existing contracts with managed care organizations and other payors or pharmacy benefit managers; (2) establishing, maintaining and strengthening relationships with key opinion leaders, physicians and other prescribers; and (3) maintaining existing and developing new relationships with pharmaceutical manufacturers to gain distribution access as they release new products or improved products. Our national and regional sales directors focus primarily on establishing and expanding our contracts with managed care organizations, while our local account managers focus on maximizing value from these contracts by developing and maintaining relationships with local and regional referral sources, such as physicians, hospital discharge planners, other hospital personnel, health maintenance organizations, preferred provider organizations or other managed care organizations, and insurance companies. In addition, we have a dedicated sales force, through a combination of internal (phone sales) and external (field sales) team members for scalability and efficiency, focused on maintaining and expanding our relationships with biotechnology drug manufacturers to establish our position as an exclusive, semi-exclusive or participating provider. As of June 30, 2014, we had 78 sales employees, including 48 internal and 30 external team members.

Information Technology

Our information technology centers around a custom-developed scalable patient care system that provides real-time prescription and patient care status to us, prescribers and contracted partners. Our technology allows us to track and report industry standard metrics on call centers, dispensing, adherence, length of therapy, and persistency. We can also provide HIPAA compliant reports that contain inventory data, prescription status, persistency, compliance, discontinuation, and payor data. In addition to reporting

Table of Contents

on patient and prescriber demographics, turnaround times, spend, and error reporting, we can also report on patient assessment data, clinical status, and other monitoring parameters. We have invested significantly in information technology in recent years to position us to improve cost efficiencies among us and our constituents and to provide additional services regarding the de-identified data we accumulate to take greater advantage of our relationships with data-driven pharmaceutical manufacturers. We also use an off-the-shelf pharmacy software system for purposes of transmitting claims to payors.

Competition

There are a significant number of competitors that distribute specialty pharmacy drugs and provide related services, some of which have greater resources than we do. Our competitors include: pharmacy benefit managers; retail pharmacy chains and independent retail pharmacies; health plans; national, regional and niche specialty pharmacies; specialty infusion therapy companies; physician practices and hospital systems; and group purchasing organizations. We believe that our singular focus on specialty pharmacy services allows us to more nimbly adapt to the needs of our constituents, while our size relative to other singularly focused specialty pharmacies will enable us to continue to be a leader among such entities.

We are currently the largest independent specialty pharmacy and the fourth largest specialty pharmacy in the U.S., with a 2% overall market share (based on 2013 revenues from pharmacy-dispensed specialty drugs). The three largest specialty pharmacies are Express Scripts, CVS Caremark and Walgreens. We understand that a number of other traditionally non-specialty pharmacies with significant resources are attempting to build, acquire or partner with specialty pharmacies due to the double-digit growth anticipated in spending on specialty prescription drugs compared to low to mid single digit growth in spending on traditional prescription drugs. There are also many smaller specialty pharmacies and other entities in the healthcare industry that provide limited specialty pharmacy services that compete with us to a lesser extent. Some of these smaller entities, however, may be able to invest significant resources, through acquisition or otherwise, to compete with us on a larger scale.

Many of the retail pharmacies to which we provide patient management services may in the future acquire a competing specialty pharmacy business or start their own specialty pharmacy business and thereby become our competitors. In addition, many of our pharmacy benefit management customers have their own specialty pharmacy businesses, and to the extent certain of our products can be obtained internally, these customers could cease doing business with us.

Governmental Regulation

The healthcare industry is subject to extensive regulation by a number of governmental entities at the federal, state and local level. The industry is also subject to frequent regulatory change. Laws and regulations in the healthcare industry are extremely complex and, in many instances, the industry does not have the benefit of significant regulatory or judicial interpretation. Moreover, our business is impacted not only by those laws and regulations that are directly applicable to us but also by certain laws and regulations that are applicable to our managed care and other clients. If we fail to comply with the laws and regulations directly applicable to our business, we could suffer civil and/or criminal penalties, and we could be excluded from participating in Medicare, Medicaid and other federal and state healthcare programs, which would have an adverse impact on our business.

Professional Licensure

Pharmacists, nurses, and certain other healthcare professionals employed by us are required to be individually licensed or certified under applicable state law. We perform criminal, government exclusion and other background checks on employees and take steps to ensure that our employees possess all necessary licenses and certifications, and we believe that our employees comply in all material respects with applicable licensure laws.

Table of Contents

Pharmacy Licensing and Registration

State laws require that each of our pharmacy locations be appropriately licensed and/or registered to dispense pharmaceuticals in that state. We are licensed in all states that require such licensure and believe that we substantially comply with all state licensing laws applicable to our business. Where required by law, we also have pharmacists licensed in all states in which we dispense.

Laws enforced by the U.S. Drug Enforcement Administration, as well as some similar state agencies, require our pharmacy locations to individually register in order to handle controlled substances, including prescription pharmaceuticals. A separate registration is required at each principal place of business where we dispense controlled substances. Federal and state laws also require that we follow specific labeling, reporting and record-keeping requirements for controlled substances. We maintain U.S. Drug Enforcement Administration registrations for each of our facilities that require such registration and follow procedures intended to comply with all applicable federal and state requirements regarding controlled substances.

Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act

Certain provisions of the federal Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act govern the handling and distribution of pharmaceutical products. This law exempts many pharmaceuticals and medical devices from federal labeling and packaging requirements as long as they are not adulterated or misbranded and are dispensed in accordance with and pursuant to a valid prescription. We believe that we comply with all applicable requirements.

Fraud and Abuse Laws Anti-Kickback Statute

The federal Anti-Kickback Statute prohibits individuals and entities from knowingly and willfully paying, offering, receiving, or soliciting money or anything else of value in order to induce the referral of patients or to induce a person to purchase, lease, order, arrange for, or recommend services or goods covered by Medicare, Medicaid, or other government healthcare programs. The federal courts have held that an arrangement violates the Anti-Kickback Statute if any one purpose of the remuneration is to induce the referral of patients covered by the Medicare or Medicaid programs, even if another purpose of the payment is to compensate an individual for rendered services. The Anti-Kickback Statute is broad and potentially covers many standard business arrangements. Violations can lead to significant penalties, including criminal fines of up to \$25,000 per violation and/or five years imprisonment, civil monetary penalties of up to \$50,000 per violation plus treble damages, and/or exclusion from participation in Medicare, Medicaid, and other federal government healthcare programs. In an effort to clarify the conduct prohibited by the Anti-Kickback Statute, the Office of the Inspector General of the United States Department of Health and Human Services has published regulations that identify a limited number of safe harbors. Business arrangements that satisfy all of the elements of a safe harbor are immune from criminal enforcement or civil administrative actions. The Anti-Kickback Statute is an intent based statute and the failure of a business relationship to satisfy all of the elements of a safe harbor does not in and of itself mean that the business relationship violates the Anti-Kickback Statute. The Office of the Inspector General, in its commentary to the safe harbor regulations, has recognized that many business arrangements that do not satisfy a safe harbor nonetheless operate without the type of abuses the Anti-Kickback Statute is designed to prevent. We attempt to structure our business relationships to satisfy an applicable safe harbor. However, in those situations where a business relationship does not fully satisfy the elements of a safe harbor, or where no safe harbor exists, we attempt to satisfy as many elements of an applicable safe harbor as possible. The Office of the Inspector General is authorized to issue advisory opinions regarding the interpretation and applicability of the Anti-Kickback Statute, including whether an activity constitutes grounds for the imposition of civil or criminal sanctions. We have sought advisory opinions regarding future business relationships prior to execution, and may do so in the future.

A number of states have statutes and regulations that prohibit the same general types of conduct as those prohibited by the Anti-Kickback Statute described above. Some state anti-fraud and

Table of Contents

anti-kickback laws apply only to goods and services covered by Medicaid. Other state anti-fraud and anti-kickback laws apply to all healthcare goods and services, regardless of whether the source of payment is governmental or private. Where applicable, we attempt to structure our business relationships to comply with these statutes.

Fraud and Abuse Laws False Claims Act

We are subject to state and federal laws that govern the submission of claims for reimbursement. These laws generally prohibit an individual or entity from knowingly and willfully presenting a claim or causing a claim to be presented for payment from a federal healthcare program that is false or fraudulent. The standard for "knowing and willful" may include conduct that amounts to a reckless disregard for the accuracy of information presented to payors. Penalties under these statutes include substantial civil and criminal fines, exclusion from the Medicare or Medicaid programs and imprisonment. One of the most prominent of these laws is the federal False Claims Act, which may be enforced by the federal government directly or by a private plaintiff by filing a *qui tam* lawsuit on the government's behalf. Under the False Claims Act, the government and private plaintiffs, if any, may recover monetary penalties in the amount of \$5,500 to \$11,000 per false claim, as well as an amount equal to three times the amount of damages sustained by the government as a result of the false claim. A number of states, including states in which we operate, have adopted their own false claims statutes as well as statutes that allow individuals to bring *qui tam* actions. In recent years, federal and state government authorities have launched several initiatives aimed at uncovering practices that violate false claims or fraudulent billing laws, and they have conducted numerous investigations of pharmaceutical manufacturers, PBMs, pharmacies and health care providers with respect to false claims, fraudulent billing and related matters. We believe that we have procedures in place to ensure the accuracy of our claims.

Ethics in Patient Referrals Law Stark Law

The federal Stark Law generally prohibits a physician from making referrals for certain Designated Health Services, reimbursable by Medicare or Medicaid, to entities with which the physician or an immediate family member has a financial relationship, unless an exception applies. A financial relationship is generally defined as an ownership, investment or compensation relationship. Designated Health Services include, but are not limited to, outpatient pharmaceuticals, parenteral and enteral nutrition products, home health services, durable medical equipment, physical and occupational therapy services, and inpatient and outpatient hospital services. Among other sanctions, a civil monetary penalty of up to \$15,000 may be imposed for each bill or claim for a service a person knows or should know is for a service for which payment may not be made due to the Stark Law. Such persons or entities are also subject to exclusion from the Medicare and Medicaid programs. Any person or entity participating in a circumvention scheme to avoid the referral prohibitions is liable for a civil monetary penalty of up to \$100,000. A \$10,000 fine may be imposed for failure to comply with reporting requirements regarding an entity's ownership, investment and compensation arrangements for each day for which reporting is required to have been made under the Stark Law.

The Stark Law is a broad prohibition on certain business relationships, with detailed exceptions. However, unlike the Anti-Kickback Statute under which an activity may fall outside a safe harbor and still be lawful, a referral for Designated Health Services that does not fall within an exception is strictly prohibited by the Stark Law. We attempt to structure all of our relationships with physicians who make referrals to us in compliance with an applicable exception to the Stark Law.

In addition to the Stark Law, many of the states in which we operate have comparable restrictions on the ability of physicians to refer patients for certain services to entities with which they have a financial relationship. Certain of these state statutes mirror the Stark Law while others may be more restrictive. We attempt to structure all of our business relationships with physicians to comply with any applicable state self-referral laws.

Table of Contents

HIPAA and Other Privacy and Confidentiality Legislation

Our activities involve the receipt, use and disclosure of confidential health information, including disclosure of the confidential information to a customer's health benefit plan, as permitted in accordance with applicable federal and state privacy laws. In addition, we use and disclose de-identified data for analytical and other purposes. Many state laws restrict the use and disclosure of confidential medical information, and similar new legislative and regulatory initiatives are underway at the state and federal level.

HIPAA imposes extensive requirements on the way in which healthcare providers that engage in certain actions covered by HIPAA, and healthcare clearinghouses (known as "covered entities") and the persons or entities that create, receive, maintain, or transmit protected health information ("PHI") to provide services to covered entities or to perform functions on their behalf (known as "business associates"), use, disclose and safeguard PHI, including requirements to protect the integrity, availability and confidentiality of electronic PHI. Many of these obligations were expanded under HITECH, passed as part of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009. In January 2013, the Office for Civil Rights of HHS issued a final rule under HITECH that makes significant changes to the privacy, security, breach notification and enforcement regulations promulgated under HIPAA (the "Final Omnibus Rule"), and which generally took effect in September 2013. The Final Omnibus Rule enhances individual privacy protections, provides individuals new rights to their health information and strengthens the government's ability to enforce HIPAA.

The privacy regulations (the "Privacy Rule") issued by the Office of Civil Rights pursuant to HIPAA give individuals the right to know how their PHI is used and disclosed, as well as the right to access, amend and obtain information concerning certain disclosures of PHI. Covered entities, such as pharmacies and health plans, are required to provide a written Notice of Privacy Practices to individuals that describes how the entity uses and discloses PHI, and how individuals may exercise their rights with respect to their PHI. For most uses and disclosures of PHI other than for treatment, payment, healthcare operations, and certain public policy purposes, HIPAA generally requires that covered entities obtain a valid written individual authorization. In most cases, use or disclosure of PHI must be limited to the minimum necessary to achieve the purpose of the use or disclosure. The Final Omnibus Rule modifies the content of Notice of Privacy Practices in significant ways, requiring, among other things, statements informing individuals of their rights to receive notifications of any breaches of unsecured PHI and to restrict disclosures of PHI to a health plan where the individual pays out of pocket.

We are a covered entity under HIPAA in connection with our operation of specialty service pharmacies. To the extent that we provide services other than as a covered entity and we perform a function or activity, or provide a service to, a covered entity that involves PHI, the covered entity may be required to enter into a business associate agreement with us. Business associate agreements mandated by the Privacy Rule create a contractual obligation for us, as a business associate, to perform our duties for the applicable covered entity in compliance with the Privacy Rule. In addition, HITECH subjects us to certain aspects of the Privacy Rule and the HIPAA security regulations when we act as a business associate, including imposing direct liability on business associates for impermissible uses and disclosures of PHI and the failure to disclose PHI to the covered entity, the individual or the individual's designee (as specified in the business associate agreement), as necessary to satisfy a covered entity's obligations with respect to an individual's request for an electronic copy of PHI. The Final Omnibus Rule also extends the business associate provisions of the HIPAA Rules to subcontractors where the function, activity, or service delegated by the business associate to the subcontractor involves the creation, receipt, maintenance, or transmission of PHI. As such, business associates are required to enter into business associate agreements with subcontractors for services involving access to PHI and may be subject to civil monetary penalties for the acts and omissions of their subcontractors.

Importantly, the Final Omnibus Rule greatly expands the types of product- and service-related communications to patients or enrollees that will require individual authorizations by requiring

Table of Contents

individual authorization for all treatment and health care operations communications where the covered entity receives payment in exchange for the communication from or on behalf of a third-party whose product or service is being described. While the Office of Civil Rights has established limited exceptions to this rule where individual authorization is not required, the marketing provisions finalized in the Final Omnibus Rule could potentially have an adverse impact on our business and revenues.

If we fail to comply with HIPAA or our policies and procedures are not sufficient to prevent the unauthorized disclosure of PHI, we could be subject to liability, fines and lawsuits under federal and state privacy laws, consumer protection statutes and other laws. Criminal penalties and civil sanctions may be imposed for failing to comply with HIPAA standards either as a covered entity or business associate, and these penalties and sanctions have significantly increased under HITECH. In addition to imposing potential monetary penalties, HITECH also requires the Office of Civil Rights to conduct periodic compliance audits and empowers state attorneys general to bring actions in federal court for violations of HIPAA on behalf of state residents harmed by such violations. Several such actions have already been brought against both covered entities and at least one business associate, and continued enforcement actions are likely to occur in the future.

The transactions and code sets regulation promulgated under HIPAA requires that all covered entities that engage in certain electronic transactions, directly or through a third-party agent, use standardized formats and code sets. We, in our role as a business associate of a covered entity, must conduct such transactions in accordance with such transaction rule and related regulations that require the use of operating rules in connection with HIPAA transactions. We, in our role as a specialty pharmacy operator, must also conduct such transactions in accordance with such regulations or engage a clearinghouse to process their covered transactions. HHS promulgated a National Provider Identifiers ("NPI") Final Rule which requires covered entities to utilize NPIs in all standard transactions. NPIs replaced NABP numbers for pharmacies, Drug Enforcement Agency numbers for physicians and similar identifiers for other health care providers for purposes of identifying providers in connection with HIPAA standard transactions. Covered entities may be excluded from federal health care programs for violating the Transaction Rule.

The security regulations issued pursuant to HIPAA mandate the use of administrative, physical and technical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of electronic PHI. Such security rules apply to covered entities and business associates.

We must also comply with the "breach notification" regulations, which implement provisions of HITECH. In the case of a breach of "unsecured PHI," covered entities must promptly notify affected individuals and the HHS Secretary, as well as the media in cases where a breach affects more than 500 individuals. Breaches affecting fewer than 500 individuals must be reported to the HHS Secretary on an annual basis. The regulations also require business associates of covered entities to notify the covered entity of such breaches by the business associate.

Final regulations governing the accounting of disclosures are forthcoming. The applicable proposed rule, if finalized, would require covered entities to develop systems to monitor and record (1) which of their employees and business associates access an individual's electronic PHI contained in a designated record set, (2) the time and date access occurs, and (3) the action taken during the access session (e.g., modification, deletion, viewing). The final regulations could impose significant burdens on covered entities and business associates.

The Health Care Reform Laws require the Secretary of HHS to develop new health information technology standards that could require changes to our existing software products. For example, the statute requires the establishment of interoperable standards and protocols to facilitate electronic enrollment of individuals in federal and state health and human services programs and provides the government with authority to require incorporation of these standards and protocols in health information technology investments as a condition of receiving federal funds for such investments.

Table of Contents

Pursuant to HIPAA, state laws that are more protective of PHI are not pre-empted. Therefore, to the extent states continue to enact more protective legislation, we could be required to make significant changes to our business operations. In addition, independent of any regulatory restrictions, individual health plan clients could increase limitations on our use of medical information, which could prevent us from offering certain services.

Medicare Part D

The Medicare Part D program, which makes prescription drug coverage available to eligible Medicare beneficiaries through private insurers, regulates all aspects of the provision of Medicare drug coverage, including enrollment, formularies, pharmacy networks, marketing, and claims processing. The Medicare Part D program has undergone significant legislative and regulatory changes since its inception, including changes made by ACA.

In April 2012, CMS issued a rule that requires coverage other than basic prescription drug coverage offered through Medicare Part D employer group waiver plans to be included in the definition of "other health or prescription drug coverage," starting January 1, 2014. CMS has clarified that, because the supplemental benefits primarily reduce cost sharing on claims covered under the basic benefit, they will continue as a practical matter to be subject to the Medicare Part D rules.

Medicare Part D continues to attract a high degree of legislative and regulatory scrutiny, and the applicable government rules and regulations continue to evolve. CMS sanctions for non-compliance may include suspension of enrollment and even termination from the program. CMS has imposed restrictions and consent requirements for automatic prescription delivery programs, further limited the circumstances under which Medicare Part D plans may recoup payments to pharmacies for claims that are subsequently determined not payable under Medicare Part D. CMS may issue regulations that limit the ability of Medicare Part D plans to establish preferred pharmacy networks. Accordingly, it is possible that legislative and regulatory developments and regulatory oversight could materially affect our Medicare Part D business or profitability.

Health Reform Legislation

Congress passed major health reform legislation, including the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act in 2010, referred to in this document as ACA. This legislation affects virtually every aspect of health care in the country. In addition to establishing the framework for every individual to have health coverage beginning in 2014, ACA enacted a number of significant health care reforms. While not all of these reforms affect our business directly, many affect the coverage and plan designs that are or will be provided by many of our health plan clients. As a result, these reforms could indirectly impact many of our services and business practices, and, in many other cases, directly impact our services and business practices. Given that certain regulations implementing ACA are still being finalized and that ongoing sub-regulatory guidance is still being issued, there is considerable uncertainty as to its full impact on our Company.

Managed Care Reform

In addition to health reforms enacted by ACA, proposed legislation has been considered at the state level, and legislation has been enacted in several states, aimed primarily at providing additional rights and access to drugs to individuals enrolled in managed care plans. This legislation may impact the design and implementation of prescription drug benefit plans sponsored by our PBM health plan clients and/or the services we provide to them. Both the scope of the managed care reform proposals considered by state legislatures and reforms enacted by states to date vary greatly, and the scope of future legislation that may be enacted is uncertain.

Table of Contents

Accreditations

We have and maintain the following accreditations:

Accreditation Commission for Health Care. We hold both a pharmacy infusion and a DMEPOS accreditation, effective July 21, 2011 from the Accreditation Commission for Health Care. Under such accreditation, the Accreditation Commission for Health Care reviews and assesses our activities as a pharmacy and a DMEPOS supplier for external infusion pumps and supplies. Areas of focus include infusion pharmacy business, infusion pharmacy continuum of care, intravenous drug mixture preparation, administration, therapy monitoring, and client/patient counseling and education, among other aspects of our business.

American Society of Health-System Pharmacists. We hold a post-graduate year one pharmacy residency accreditation effective as of June 20, 2012 from the American Society of Health-System Pharmacists. The American Society of Health-System Pharmacists reviews and evaluates our residency training program against established criteria to ensure the pharmacy residents are properly trained. The American Society of Health-System Pharmacists is a nationally recognized non-profit pharmacy association that has been accrediting pharmacy residency programs for over 50 years.

URAC. As of January 1, 2013, we received our URAC specialty pharmacy accreditation, a nationally recognized and rigorous accreditation that includes a thorough review of documentation, an on-site survey for verifying compliance standards, and final review by the URAC Accreditation and executive committees.

National Association of Boards of Pharmacy. Effective May 13, 2013 we are a verified-accredited wholesale distributor. This accreditation is designed for compliance with state and federal laws, and for purposes of preventing counterfeit drugs from entering into the United States, and to protect patients from below quality drug distribution by employing security and best practice standards for wholesale drug distribution. Effective July 23, 2012, we became a National Association of Boards of Pharmacy accredited DMEPOS provider, and we have submitted our application to become a verified internet pharmacy practice site with the National Association of Boards of Pharmacy.

Intellectual Property

We rely on a combination of copyright, trademark and trade secret laws, in addition to contractual restrictions, to establish and protect our proprietary rights. We have registered and/or applied to register a variety of our trademarks and service marks used throughout our business. DIPLOMAT SPECIALTY PHARMACY® and DIPLOMAT®, among others, are service marks registered with the U.S. Patent Trademark Office. We believe that our trade names are becoming increasingly recognized by many referral sources as representing a reliable, cost-effective source of specialty pharmacy services. We are not aware of any facts that could materially impact our continuing use of any of our intellectual property.

Properties

We own a 550,000 square foot distribution facility in Flint, Michigan, which also contains our corporate headquarters. We currently utilize approximately 40% of our main distribution facility and corporate headquarters, which provides us with significant capacity to execute our long term growth plan without significant additional capital expenditures.

Table of Contents

The following table lists information regarding each of our properties:

| | Total Square | | |
|---------------------------------|-----------------|----------------------|--------------------------------|
| Location | Footage | Facility Description | Owned/Leased |
| Flint, Michigan | | Headquarters and | |
| | | main distribution | |
| | 550,000 | facility | Owned |
| Flint, Michigan | | Specialty and retail | |
| | 7,000 | pharmacy | Owned |
| Flint, Michigan | | Specialty and | |
| | 10,366 | wholesale pharmacy | Owned |
| Grand Rapids, Michigan | | | Leased (expires December 31, |
| | 12,000 | Retail pharmacy | 2014) |
| Enfield, Connecticut | | | Leased (expires December 17, |
| | 4,664 | Specialty pharmacy | 2018) |
| Ft. Lauderdale, Florida | | Specialty and retail | Leased (expires March 31, |
| | 2,665 | pharmacy | 2015) |
| West Springfield, Massachusetts | | Specialty and retail | |
| | | pharmacy and office | Leased (expires February 28, |
| | 1,273 | space | 2016) |
| Ontario, California | | | Leased (expires March 15, |
| | 5,790 | Specialty pharmacy | 2017) |
| Buffalo Grove, Illinois | 3,408 | Specialty pharmacy | Leased (expires May 31, 2016) |
| Raleigh, North Carolina | 6,032 | MedPro headquarters | Leased (expires June 30, 2019) |
| Raleigh, North Carolina | | Specialty pharmacy | Leased (expires December 31, |
| | 4,061 | and office space | 2016) |

In addition to the facilities listed above, we also own office facilities located in Swartz Creek, Michigan, which was formerly the site of our headquarters. The buildings consist of approximately 49,500 square feet, which is currently leased at approximately 50% capacity to various tenants. MedPro also leases an additional 13 small facilities for use as specialty infusion suites.

Legal Proceedings

Our business of providing specialized pharmacy services and other related services may subject us to litigation and liability for damages in the ordinary course of business. Although the results of litigation and claims cannot be predicted, as of the date of this prospectus, we do not believe we are party to any claim or litigation, the outcome of which, if determined adversely to us, would individually or in the aggregate be reasonably expected to have a material adverse effect on our business. Regardless of the outcome, litigation can have an adverse impact on us because of defense, insurance deductible and settlement costs, diversion of management resources and other factors.

We currently maintain insurance for general and professional liability claims. These policies provide coverage on a claims-made or occurrence basis and have certain exclusions from coverage. These insurance policies generally must be renewed annually. We cannot assure you that our insurance coverage will be adequate to cover liability claims that may be asserted against us. In addition, we carry property insurance coverage for the value of the physical assets, including drugs inventory, at all of our owned and leased facilities. These policies, which generally must be renewed annually, also include coverage for business interruption. While we believe our coverage to be sufficient, we cannot assure you that our property insurance coverage will be adequate to cover any and all property losses that we may suffer.

Employees

As of June 30, 2014, we employed 958 persons on a full-time basis and 60 persons on a part-time basis. In addition, of our employees, 325 were corporate personnel and the remaining 693 were clinically focused. The majority of our part-time employees are clinicians due to the nature and timing of the services we provide. None of our employees are covered by collective bargaining agreements.

MANAGEMENT

Executive Officers and Directors

The following table sets forth information regarding our executive officers and directors (ages as of September 17, 2014):

| Name | Age | Position |
|--------------------|-----|---|
| Philip R. Hagerman | 62 | Chief Executive Officer, Chairman of the Board of Directors |
| Sean M. Whelan | 43 | Chief Financial Officer, Secretary/Treasurer, Director |
| Gary W. Kadlec | 66 | President, Director |
| Jeffrey M. Rowe | 58 | Executive Vice President Operations, Director |
| | | Senior Vice President Sales & Business Development, |
| Atheer A. Kaddis | 46 | Director |
| David Drever | 58 | Director |

Set forth below are the biographies of the executive officers and directors, which describe their business experience during at least the past five years, as well as a discussion of the specific experience, qualifications, attributes and skills that led to the Board's conclusion that each director should continue to serve on the Board.

Philip R. Hagerman, RPh, has served as our Chief Executive Officer, a director and the Chairman of the Board of Directors since 1991. Mr. Hagerman co-founded the Company with his father in 1975.

Mr. Hagerman has led the Company as its principal executive officer, Chairman of the Board of Directors and a director for approximately 22 years. He has a unique perspective and understanding of our business, culture and history, having led the Company through many economic cycles and operational initiatives. His day-to-day leadership of the Company gives him critical insights into our operations, strategy and competition, and he facilitates the Board's ability to perform its oversight function. Throughout his career at the Company, he has demonstrated strong entrepreneurial skills, as well as regulatory, marketing, strategic, and operational expertise. Mr. Hagerman also possesses in-depth knowledge of, and key relationships in, the specialty pharmacy industry on a national basis.

Sean M. Whelan, CPA, has served as our Chief Financial Officer since December 2010, our Secretary and Treasurer since January 2012, and a director since February 2012. Prior to joining Diplomat, from 2007 to 2010, he served as Chief Financial Officer of InfuSystem Holdings, Inc. (INFU), a publicly traded healthcare services company located in Madison Heights, Michigan. While there, Mr. Whelan played an instrumental role in ensuring InfuSystem's success in diverse areas such as profitable revenue growth, capital markets, debt raising, and acquisition and integration. He also oversaw the Information Technology and Human Resources organizations during periods of rapid growth. Prior to joining InfuSystem, from 1996 through 2007, Mr. Whelan held senior finance positions with Ford Motor Company, including service as accounting director for Automotive Components Holdings, LLC, a Ford subsidiary, where he had direct oversight, and financial and divestiture responsibility for the \$5.0 billion entity.

Mr. Whelan has demonstrated strong financial reporting, finance, accounting, strategic, and operational expertise. His day-to-day leadership of the Company gives him critical insights into our financial performance, operations and strategy, and he will facilitate the Audit Committee's ability to perform its oversight function. Further, his prior experience at both InfuSystem and Ford Motor Company provides him expertise with public company reporting responsibilities and complex corporate transactions, including mergers and acquisitions and capital market transactions.

Gary W. Kadlec has served as our President since June 2012, and as a director of the Company since February 2013. From 2004 through 2007, Mr. Kadlec was the Chief Operating Officer, and from 2007 to 2011, the Chief Executive Officer and President, of excelleRx, an Omnicare company based in Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, specializing in medication therapy management. Mr. Kadlec fulfilled a one-year non-compete commitment to excelleRx/Omnicare before joining Diplomat. Prior to his time at

Table of Contents

excelleRx, Mr. Kadlec served as President of Specialized Pharmacy Services in Livonia, Michigan, from 1976 until it was acquired by Omnicare, Inc. in 1995. Mr. Kadlec then served as Regional and then Senior Regional Vice President of Omnicare until 2004.

Mr. Kadlec's day-to-day leadership of the Company gives him critical insights into our operations, clinical services, managed care, new business development, and sales and marketing divisions. He has demonstrated strong regulatory, marketing, strategic, and operational expertise and he possesses in-depth knowledge of, and key relationships in, the specialty pharmacy industry on a national basis.

Jeffrey M. Rowe, RPh, has served as Our Executive Vice President, Operations, since 2012. Prior to that Mr. Rowe served as Vice President of Operations since 2006 and as a director of the Company since 2005. Mr. Rowe joined Diplomat in 1993 as a staff pharmacist concentrating on building the Company's compounding and complementary services. He served as our Pharmacy Manager from 1997 to 2006. Before joining Diplomat, Mr. Rowe owned two successful independent pharmacies.

Mr. Rowe's day-to-day involvement in the Company's operations gives him critical insights into fundamental aspects of the Company's business, including accreditation, contracting and regulation. His broad range of knowledge includes diabetes, asthma, and other areas of disease state management, and he has expertise in the fields of compounding custom medications and complementary medicine, making him a key contributor to the Company's growth and success.

Atheer A. Kaddis, PharmD, has served as our Senior Vice President, Sales and Business Development, since July 2012, and as a director of the Company since February 2013. Dr. Kaddis previously served as the Company's Vice President, Managed Markets, from October 2007 to July 2012. Before joining Diplomat, from April 2000 to October 2007, Dr. Kaddis served as Director of Pharmacy Services Clinical at Blue Cross Blue Shield of Michigan, where his responsibilities included formulary development, clinical program development, utilization management programs, specialty pharmacy programs, and pay for performance programs. His other prior experience includes service as a staff pharmacist at William Beaumont Hospital, a clinical oncology specialist at Grace Hospital, a Clinical Program Manager for the Ford Motor Company account at Blue Cross Blue Shield of Michigan and an Associate Director in Clinical Account Management at Merck-Medco (now part of Express Scripts).

Dr. Kaddis has demonstrated strong sales and business development expertise. In his current role, Dr. Kaddis leads coordination of our strategies within these business units, giving him critical insights into operational efficiencies and areas of high growth potential. Further, he possesses in-depth knowledge of, and key relationships in, the specialty pharmacy industry on a national basis.

David Dreyer, CPA, has been a director since September 15, 2014. Since October 2010, Mr. Dreyer has served as Chief Financial Officer, Chief Operating Officer and Secretary of Patient Safety Technologies, which develops, markets and sells healthcare products relating to surgical safety, and is a former public reporting company (OTC: PSTX) and since March 2014 a subsidiary of Stryker Corporation (NYSE: SYK). Previously, Mr. Dreyer was Chief Financial Officer of Alphastaff Group, Inc., a human resource outsourcing company, from August 2009 to September 2010. From September 2004 to August 2009, Mr. Dreyer served as Chief Financial Officer and Chief Accounting Officer of AMN Healthcare Services, Inc. (NYSE: AHS), which provided healthcare staffing for physicians, travel nurses, and allied travel. From 1997 through 2004, Mr. Dreyer served as Chief Financial Officer and Chief Accounting Officer of Sicor, Inc. (formerly Nasdaq: SCRI), a manufacturer of complex pharmaceuticals with operations in the United States and internationally, which was acquired by Teva Pharmaceutical Limited in January 2004. Prior to joining Sicor, Mr. Dreyer served in related senior financial management positions within the pharmaceutical industry, working for Elan Corporation plc, Athena Neurosciences and Syntex Corporation. Mr. Dreyer is a Certified Public Accountant in California. Mr. Dreyer has been a director of InfuSystem Holdings, Inc. (listed on the NYSE-MKT), a provider of infusion pumps and related services, since April 2008, and currently serves

Table of Contents

as a member of the Compensation and Audit Committees and is the chair of the Nominating and Governance Committee.

Mr. Dreyer has almost 30 years of accounting, financial, compliance and operating experience and expertise in the healthcare field and has extensive senior leadership skills from his executive management positions. Mr. Dreyer also has public company board experience, from which he has expertise in finance, financial reporting, accounting, corporate governance, compensation, risk management, and healthcare matters. His long tenure as a certified public accountant and expertise in accounting and financial reporting matters, including in executive positions for public companies, led our Board to determine that Mr. Dreyer is a financial expert in accordance with SEC rules.

Board Composition

Our Board of Directors currently consists of six directors, five of whom currently serve as executive officers of Diplomat.

Upon the completion of this offering, members of the Hagerman family and the Rowe family will control approximately 59.8% of the total voting power of our outstanding common stock, assuming no exercise by the underwriters of their option to purchase additional shares of common stock in this offering. As a result, we will be considered a "controlled company" under the corporate governance listing standards of the New York Stock Exchange. As a controlled company, we will be exempt from the obligation to comply with certain New York Stock Exchange corporate governance requirements, including the following:

that a majority of our Board of Directors consists of "independent directors", as defined under the rules of the New York Stock Exchange;

that we have a nominating and corporate governance committee that is composed entirely of independent directors with a written charter addressing the committee's purpose and responsibilities;

that we have a compensation committee that is composed entirely of independent directors with a written charter addressing the committee's purpose and responsibilities; and

that there be an annual performance evaluation of our nominating and corporate governance committee and compensation committee.

These exemptions do not modify the independence requirements for our audit committee, and we intend to comply with the applicable requirements of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and rules with respect to our audit committee within the applicable time frame.

Director Independence

All of our current directors are employees of Diplomat and therefore are not independent. Our Board of Directors has determined that Mr. Dreyer is an independent director within the meaning of the applicable rules of the SEC and the New York Stock Exchange, and that he is also an independent director under Rule 10A-3 of the Exchange Act for the purpose of audit committee membership. We will rely on the phase-in rules of the SEC and New York Stock Exchange that require a majority of the audit committee members to be independent within 90 days of, and all audit committee members to be independent within one year of, the effectiveness of the registration statement of which this prospectus forms a part.

Staggered Board

Effective upon the completion of this offering, the Board will be divided into three staggered classes of directors of the same or nearly the same number and each director will be assigned to one of the three classes. Prior to the completion of this offering, Class I directors will be elected for a

Table of Contents

one-year term, Class II directors for a two-year term and Class III directors for a three-year term. At each succeeding annual meeting of shareholders, commencing in 2015, successors to the class of directors whose term expires at that annual meeting will be elected for a three-year term.

Our Class I directors will be Philip Hagerman and David Dreyer;

Our Class II directors will be Jeffrey Rowe and Atheer Kaddis; and

Our Class III directors will be Sean Whelan and Gary Kadlec.

Our amended and restated articles of incorporation and bylaws, which will be effective upon the completion of this offering, provide that the number of our directors shall be fixed from time to time by the Board. Any additional directorships resulting from an increase in the number of directors will be distributed among the three classes so that, as nearly as possible, each class shall consist of one-third of the Board.

The division of our Board into three classes with staggered three-year terms may delay or prevent shareholder efforts to effect a change of our management or a change in control. See "Description of Capital Stock Anti-Takeover Effects of Certain Provisions of Our Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws and Michigan Law" and "Risk Factors" Risks Related to this Offering and Ownership of Our Common Stock Certain provisions of our corporate governance documents and Michigan law could discourage, delay or prevent a merger or acquisition at a premium price."

Board Leadership Structure

Our Board is, and will be upon completion of this offering, led by Philip Hagerman, our Chief Executive Officer, a director and the Chairman of the Board of Directors since he co-founded us with his father in 1975. The Board believes this structure permits a unified strategic vision for us that ensures appropriate alignment between the Board and management and provides clear leadership for us, especially since we will continue to be a "controlled company" upon completion of this offering. The Board does not utilize a lead independent director. Although the Board recognizes the increasing utilization of Non-Executive Chairmen and lead directors in many public companies, the Board believes its current leadership structure is most appropriate for us now and upon completion of this offering and best serves our shareholders. There is no "one size fits all" approach to ensuring independent leadership. The Board believes that its independent directors, when appointed, will provide significant independent leadership and direction. Within 90 days of this offering, independent directors will consist of a majority of the Audit Committee, which will oversee the integrity of our financial statements. Upon completion of this offering, we expect the independent directors will also meet regularly in executive session at Board and committee meetings, and they will have access to independent advisors as they deem appropriate.

Board's Role in Risk Oversight

Upon completion of this offering, we intend that the Board will oversee our risk management primarily through the following:

the Board's review and approval of management's annual business plan, and review of management's longer-term strategic and liquidity plans;

the Board's review, on at least a quarterly basis, of business developments, strategic plans and implementation, liquidity and financial results:

the Board's oversight of succession planning;

the Board's oversight of capital spending and financings, as well as mergers, acquisitions and divestitures;

Table of Contents

the Audit Committee's oversight of our significant financial risk exposures (including credit, liquidity and legal, regulatory and other contingencies), accounting and financial reporting, disclosure control and internal control processes, the internal audit function (if any), and the legal, regulatory and ethical compliance functions;

the Board or separate committee's oversight of Board structure, our governance policies and the self-evaluation assessments conducted by the Board and committees;

the Board's review and approvals regarding executive officer compensation and its alignment with our business and strategic plans, and the review of compensation plans generally and the related incentives, risks and risk mitigants; and

Board and committee executive sessions consisting of the independent directors.

Committees of the Board of Directors

Our Board intends to establish an Audit Committee prior to completion of this offering. Due to our "controlled company" status, our Board will continue to carry out the duties and responsibilities normally carried out by (1) a compensation committee, including reviewing and approving compensation programs for executive officers and non-employee directors, oversight of compensation and benefit plans and policies generally and the related incentives, risks and risk mitigants, and approving equity awards and otherwise administering share-based plans and (2) a nominating and corporate governance committee, including identifying and nominating directors to serve on the Board, overseeing corporate governance policies and governance disclosures, and reviewing the composition, organization, function and performance of the Board and its committees. Copies of each committee's charter will be posted on our website, www.diplomat.is, upon completion of this offering. Our Board may from time to time establish other committees.

Audit Committee

The members of the Audit Committee are David Dreyer (Chair), Philip Hagerman and Gary Kadlec. The Audit Committee's responsibilities include:

providing general oversight of our financial reporting and internal control functions;

reviewing our reports filed with or furnished to the SEC that include financial statements or results;

monitoring compliance with significant legal and regulatory requirements and other risks related to financial reporting and internal control; and

the appointment, retention, compensation and oversight of the work of our independent registered public accounting firm, currently BDO USA, LLP, and any third-party consultant that assists us regarding internal audit functions.

The Board has further determined that David Dreyer qualifies as "audit committee financial expert" in accordance with SEC rules. The designation of an "audit committee financial expert" does not impose upon such persons any duties, obligations or liability that are greater than those which are generally imposed on each of them as a member of the committee and the Board, and such designation does not affect the duties, obligations or liability of any other member of the committee or the Board.

Director Compensation

Directors who are also our employees receive no additional compensation for serving as a director. In 2013, our Board consisted solely of employee directors.

Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

Our board of directors will adopt a written code of business conduct and ethics for our Company, effective upon completion of this offering, applicable to all of our employees, officers, directors and consultants, including our principal executive, financial and accounting officers and all persons performing similar functions. A copy of this code will be available on our website at www.diplomat.is upon the completion of this offering.

Table of Contents

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Compensation Discussion and Analysis

This section explains our compensation philosophy, objectives and design, our compensation-setting process and our executive compensation program components, as well as the decisions made in 2013 for each of our named executive officers. This section also provides certain other information as additional context for the named executive officer compensation tables that follow.

Our named executive officers for 2013 were Philip R. Hagerman, our Chief Executive Officer; Sean M. Whelan, our Chief Financial Officer; Gary W. Kadlec, our President; Atheer A. Kaddis, our Senior Vice President, Sales and Business Development; and Jeffrey M. Rowe, our Executive Vice President, Operations (collectively, our "named executive officers").

Named Executive Officer Compensation Philosophy, Objectives and Design

Our named executive officer compensation program has been designed to reward, attract and retain the management deemed essential to ensure our success. The program seeks to align compensation with our short- and long-term objectives, business strategy, financial performance and Company values. In furtherance of such philosophy, our compensation objectives for the named executive officers are designed to:

reward executives who consistently perform above expectations and are proficient in their roles with higher base pay and/or total compensation opportunity compared to Company salary range guidelines;

link pay to performance to create incentives for our named executive officers to perform their duties at a high level; and

grant equity awards to align long-term interests with those of our shareholders, to reward long-term performance and to assist retention.

Compensation-Setting Process

Unless otherwise stated, the discussion and analysis below is substantially based on decisions made by our Chief Executive Officer, in consultation with certain members of management, including our Chief Financial Officer, our President, our Executive V.P. and our General Counsel. Members of management often utilized market survey data to advise on reasonable base salary range guidelines; however, they did not engage in market or industry benchmarking in fiscal year 2013 with respect to the compensation of the named executive officers.

The Board has only recently begun to discuss our overall named executive officer compensation philosophy and related matters as a public company. Therefore, the philosophy of how we will compensate our named executive officers in the future may not be the same as how they have been compensated in prior periods, including 2013. In addition, the objectives, design and payouts of our named executive officer compensation program following this offering may, over time, vary significantly from our historical practices.

Compensation determinations for the named executive officers for 2014 have generally been completed based on historical practice. Therefore, the Board solely will be responsible for reviewing the achievement of performance-based measures for the 2014 bonus plan and approving payouts to the named executive officers in accordance with such program, as well as reviewing and approving the discretionary bonus component of the 2014 bonus plan. Beginning with the 2015 compensation program for named executive officers, the Board will review, evaluate and modify the named executive officer compensation framework as a result of our becoming a publicly traded company after this offering. The

Table of Contents

Board has appointed Towers Watson as its compensation consultant for the 2015 compensation program for named executive officers.

Named Executive Officer Compensation Program Components in 2013

For 2013, our executive compensation program was comprised of the following components:

Base Salary

We pay our executive officers an annual base salary in cash. We believe that payment of a fixed, base level of compensation enables us to attract and retain employees in a competitive market and preserves an employee's commitment during economic and/or industry downturns. Generally, we aim to set executive base salaries near the middle of the range of salaries that we have observed for executives in similar positions and with similar responsibilities. Base salaries are reviewed annually and adjusted from time to time to reflect individual responsibilities, performance and experience, as well as market compensation levels. Changes in base salary are generally effective in March each year.

The base salaries of our named executive officers from March to December 2013 were as follows: \$350,000 for Mr. Hagerman; \$251,760 for Mr. Whelan; \$257,146 for Mr. Kadlec; \$230,780 for Dr. Kaddis; and \$236,025 for Mr. Rowe.

Cash Bonuses

We adopted the 2013 Employee Annual Bonus Plan (the "bonus plan") in order to reward the performance of our employees, including certain of our named executive officers, in achieving our financial and strategic objectives.

Under the bonus plan, a participant's bonus target is set forth as a percentage of base salary. For 2013, Messrs. Whelan, Kaddis and Kadlec had a bonus target of 25%, 25% and 30% of base salary, respectively. Consistent with prior years, Messrs. Hagerman and Rowe did not participate in the 2013 bonus plan due to their significant equity ownership in Diplomat and the related shareholder distributions in 2013.

For the participating named executive officers, 30%, 40% and 30% of the bonus target was based on achievement of a 2013 revenue performance measure, a 2013 EBITDA performance measure and a subjective individual performance, respectively.

2013 Revenue Performance Component. For 2013, we established that achievement of threshold, target and maximum performance would correspond to payouts of 50%, 100% and 110%, respectively, with linear increases between them. We established target and maximum performance achievement levels that were challenging and aggressive. In particular, the threshold, target and maximum amounts for 2013 revenue performance represented increases of approximately 20%, 41% and 55%, respectively, over actual 2012 revenue.

Each of Messrs. Whelan, Kadlec and Kaddis earned an 84.18% payout of the 2013 revenue performance component.

2013 EBITDA Performance Component. For 2013, we established that achievement of threshold, target and maximum performance would correspond to payouts of 50%, 100% and 125%, respectively, with linear increases between them. We established target and maximum performance achievement levels that were challenging and aggressive. In particular, the threshold, target and maximum amounts for 2013 EBITDA performance represented increases of approximately 20%, 47% and 77%, respectively, over actual 2012 EBITDA.

Each of Messrs. Whelan, Kadlec and Kaddis earned a 113.83% payout of the 2013 EBITDA performance component.

Table of Contents

Individual Performance Component. For 2013, we established that achievement of individual performance would correspond to payouts of 0%, 50%, 90% or 110%, respectively, dependent on achievement of performance scores. Each of Messrs. Whelan, Kadlec and Kaddis received a high individual performance grade, which resulted in a 110% payout of the individual performance component.

Equity Incentive Program

As a privately held company, we have granted options under the 2007 Option Plan to create appropriate long-term incentives for our key employees, to reward performance, and to assist retention. The option plan is further described below under the heading "Stock Plans 2007 Option Plan." With limited exceptions, our option holders are parties to buy/sell agreements or employee securities agreements with us.

In particular, options generally are time-vested over four years from grant date and are always subject to the optionee's continued employment through the applicable vesting dates. Option grants also help us motivate key personnel to exert maximum efforts on behalf of the Company since the exercise price for options granted under the plan is the fair market value of the underlying stock on the grant date, and therefore our equity value must increase (a benefit to all shareholders) before the options have any value.

In 2013, we did not grant any stock options to our named executive officers. We determined that the then-current equity and option holdings of our named executive officers appropriately met our retention and incentive goals, and that no additional awards were necessary.

Prior to completion of this offering, we plan to adopt the Diplomat Pharmacy, Inc. 2014 Omnibus Incentive Plan, which provides for the grant of stock options (incentive stock options and nonqualified stock options), restricted stock, restricted stock units, stock appreciation rights, performance awards (which may take the form of performance units or performance shares) and other stock and stock unit awards. The omnibus plan is further described below under the heading "Stock Plans 2014 Omnibus Plan."

We intend to adopt a formal policy regarding the timing of stock option grants and other equity awards in connection with this offering. Such policy will provide that the Board will not grant equity awards in anticipation of the release of material nonpublic information and will continue to set the exercise price for stock options at an amount equal to at least the fair value of the underlying stock on the grant date.

Other Benefits and Perquisites

We design our employee benefits programs to be affordable and competitive in relation to the market, as well as compliant with applicable laws and practices. We adjust these programs as needed based upon regular monitoring of applicable laws and practices and the competitive market.

We maintain a tax-qualified, 401(k) retirement plan (the "401(k) plan"), pursuant to which any full-time employee who meets certain length-of-service and age requirements may contribute a portion of the employee's compensation to the plan on a pre-tax basis. The 401(k) plan is designed to meet "safe harbor" guidelines to comply with the Internal Revenue Code's anti-discrimination rules. We provide for 100% matching of the employees' first 3% of participation, plus 50% of the employees' next 2% of participation. Our named executive officers participate in the 401(k) plan on the same basis as our other full-time employees.

Each named executive officer receives a car allowance, which is not available generally to all salaried employees. Otherwise, our named executive officers generally are entitled to participate in the same employee benefit plans on the same terms and conditions as all other full-time employees.

Table of Contents

Compensation Agreements with Employees

As a privately-held company, we believe we have been able to develop competitive compensation packages to attract qualified candidates to fill our most critical positions without entering into written employment agreements. We do not intend to enter into written employment agreements with our named executive officers following completion of this offering, but may do so in the future.

Clawback Policy

We do not currently have a formal policy for recovery of amounts paid on the basis of financial results which are subsequently restated. Following completion of this offering, under the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer will be required to forfeit incentive compensation paid on the basis of previously issued financial statements for which they were responsible and which have to be restated as a result of misconduct. In the future, we intend to implement a formal policy for recovery of incentive-based compensation paid to current and former executive officers in compliance with requirements of the Dodd-Frank Act and related rulemaking.

Tax and Accounting Treatment

Deductibility of Executive Compensation

Because our common stock is not currently publicly traded, executive compensation has not been subject to the provisions of Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"), which limits the deductibility of compensation paid to certain individuals to \$1 million per year, excluding qualifying performance-based compensation and certain other compensation. Following this offering, at such time as we are subject to the deduction limitation under Section 162(m) of the Code, we expect that the Board will consider the impact of Section 162(m) of the Code when structuring our executive compensation arrangements with our named executive officers. However, the Board will retain flexibility to approve the compensation arrangements that promote the objectives of our compensation program but that may not qualify for full or partial tax deductibility.

Taxation of "Parachute" Payments and Deferred Compensation

We did not provide any named executive officer with a "gross-up" or other reimbursement payment for any tax liability that he might owe as a result of the application of Sections 280G, 4999, or 409A of the Code during 2013, and we have not agreed and are not otherwise obligated to provide any named executive officer with such a "gross-up" or other reimbursement. Sections 280G and 4999 of the Code provide that certain service providers who are officers, shareholders or highly compensated individuals may be subject to an excise tax if they receive payments or benefits in connection with a change in control that exceed certain prescribed limits, and that a company, or a successor, may forfeit a deduction on the amounts subject to this additional tax. Section 409A of the Code also imposes additional significant taxes on the individual in the event that an executive officer, director or other service provider receives "deferred compensation" that does not meet the requirements of Section 409A of the Code.

Table of Contents

Summary Compensation Table for 2013

The table below summarizes the total compensation paid or earned by the named executive officers in 2013.

| | | | | Non-Equity Incentive | | |
|---|------|---------|---------|-------------------------|---------------------------|---------|
| | | Salary | Bonus | Plan Compensation | All Other Compensation | Total |
| Name and Principal Position | Year | (\$) | (\$)(1) | (\$)(1) | (\$)(2) | (\$) |
| Philip R. Hagerman | 2013 | 350,000 | | | 21,447 | 371,447 |
| Chief Executive Officer | | | | | | |
| Sean M. Whelan | | | | | | |
| Chief Financial Officer | 2013 | 248,594 | 20,770 | 44,553 | 19,564 | 333,481 |
| Gary W. Kadlec | | | | | | |
| President | 2013 | 255,222 | 25,457 | 54,607 | 9,620 | 344,906 |
| Atheer A. Kaddis | | | | | | |
| Senior Vice President, Sales and Business | 2013 | 227,878 | 19,039 | 40,840 | 18,380 | 306,137 |
| Development | | | | | | |
| Jeffrey M. Rowe | | | | | | |
| Executive Vice President, Operations | 2013 | 233,056 | | | 18,212 | 251,268 |

- Amounts reflected in the "Bonus" column represent the discretionary portion of such person's cash bonus earned under the 2013 bonus plan, i.e. the portion related to individual performance measures. Amounts reflected in the "Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation" column represent the Company performance-based portion of such person's cash bonus earned under the 2013 bonus plan. In accordance with the 2013 bonus plan, payments of such amounts were made on April 10, 2014 and conditioned upon such person's continued employment through such date.
- (2) Includes: 401(k) matching contributions by the Company (\$11,827 for Mr. Hagerman, \$9,944 for Mr. Whelan, \$0 for Mr. Kadlec, \$8,760 for Dr. Kaddis, and \$8,592 for Mr. Rowe); and car allowances (\$9,620 for each named executive officer).

Grants of Plan-Based Awards in 2013

The following table provides information about non-equity awards granted to certain of our named executive officers in 2013. We did not grant any equity awards to our named executive officers in 2013.

| | Estimated Possible Payouts | | | | | |
|------------------|-----------------------------------|--------|--------|--|--|--|
| | Under Non-Equity Incentive | | | | | |
| | Plan Awards(1) | | | | | |
| | Threshold Target Maximum | | | | | |
| Name | (\$) | (\$) | (\$) | | | |
| Sean M. Whelan | 22,029 | 44,058 | 52,240 | | | |
| Gary W. Kadlec | 27,000 | 54,001 | 64,029 | | | |
| Atheer A. Kaddis | 20,193 | 40,387 | 47,887 | | | |
| | | | | | | |

(1) Relates to possible cash payouts attributable to the company performance-based components of the 2013 bonus plan.

Table of Contents

Outstanding Equity Awards at December 31, 2013

The table below sets forth certain information with respect to outstanding stock options held by certain of our named executive officers on December 31, 2013. All of the options in the table were granted under and pursuant to our 2007 Option Plan, described below under the heading "Stock Plans 2007 Option Plan." Certain of the options disclosed in the table were redeemed by us in 2014, which is not reflected in the table below.

| Name | Grant Date | Number of Securities Underlying Unexercised Options (#) Exercisable | Number of Securities Underlying Unexercised Options (#) Unexercisable | Equity Incentive Plan Awards: Number of Securities Underlying Unexercised Unearned Options (#) | Option Exercise Price (\$) | Option Expiration Date |
|---------------------|--------------------------|---|---|--|-------------------------------------|------------------------------|
| Sean M. Whelan | 12/16/10(1) 3/1/12(1) | 331,500(2) 96,688(4) | 110,500(3) 290,063(5) | | 3.79 4.29 | 12/16/20 3/1/22 |
| Gary W. Kadlec | 9/1/12(1) 9/1/12(8) | 96,688(6) 96,688(9) | 290,063(7) | 290,063(10) | 4.28 4.28 | 9/1/22 9/1/22 |
| Atheer A. Kaddis | 3/1/08(1) 4/1/09(1) | 443,700(11 443,700(12 | ' | | 2.25 3.07 | 3/1/18 4/1/19 |

- (1) Vests 25% on each of the first, second, third and fourth anniversaries of the grant date.
- (2) Consists of option to acquire 15,938 shares of Class A Voting Common Stock and 315,562 shares of Class B Nonvoting Common Stock.
- (3) Consists of option to acquire 5,313 shares of Class A Voting Common Stock and 105,187 shares of Class B Nonvoting Common Stock.
- (4)
 Consists of option to acquire 4,835 shares of Class A Voting Common Stock and 91,853 shares of Class B Nonvoting Common Stock.
- (5) Consists of option to acquire 14,503 shares of Class A Voting Common Stock and 275,560 shares of Class B Nonvoting Common Stock.
- (6)
 Consists of option to acquire 4,835 shares of Class A Voting Common Stock and 91,853 shares of Class B Nonvoting Common Stock.
- (7) Consists of option to acquire 14,503 shares of Class A Voting Common Stock and 275,560 shares of Class B Nonvoting Common Stock.
- (8)

 Mr. Kadlec's performance-based option vests as follows: 25% upon the Company generating EBITDA of \$30 million or sales of \$1.5 billion in a calendar year (achieved in 2013); an additional 25% upon the Company generating EBITDA of \$40 million or sales of \$2 billion in a calendar year; and the remaining 50% upon the Company generating EBITDA of \$50 million or sales of \$2.5 billion in a calendar year.

Consists of option to acquire 4,835 shares of Class A Voting Common Stock and 91,853 shares of Class B Nonvoting Common Stock.

- (10)
 Consists of option to acquire 14,503 shares of Class A Voting Common Stock and 275,560 shares of Class B Nonvoting Common Stock.
- (11)
 Consists of option to acquire 22,100 shares of Class A Voting Common Stock and 421,600 shares of Class B Nonvoting Common Stock.

106

Table of Contents

(12)

Consists of option to acquire 22,100 shares of Class A Voting Common Stock and 421,600 shares of Class B Nonvoting Common Stock.

Option Exercises and Stock Vested

None of our named executive officers exercised any stock options or became vested in any stock awards during 2013.

Pension Benefits

We do not offer any defined benefit pension plans to any of our executive officers.

Nonqualified Deferred Compensation

We do not offer any nonqualified deferred compensation plans to any of our executive officer.

Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change in Control

Termination of Employment

We do not provide severance benefits to any of our named executive officers. Therefore, none of our named executive officers would have received any severance benefits in connection with a termination of employment as of December 31, 2013.

Certain of our named executive officers hold stock options granted under the 2007 Option Plan. See "Stock Plans 2007 Option Plan" for information regarding the potential effects of a termination of employment on outstanding options held by Messrs. Whelan, Kadlec and Kaddis.

Change in Control

The following table sets forth the value of acceleration of unvested stock options that would have accrued to certain of our named executive officers if a change in control had occurred on December 31, 2013, pursuant to the 2007 Option Plan and the related award agreements described below under "Stock Plans 2007 Option Plan."

| | Value of |
|-------------------|------------------------|
| | Accelerated |
| Name | Options (\$)(1) |
| Sean M. Whelan(2) | 5,043,257 |
| Gary W. Kadlec(3) | 3,615,411 |
| Atheer A. Kaddis | |
| | |

- (1)

 Calculated as the difference between the fair value of a share of our common stock (Class A Voting or Class B Nonvoting, as the case may be) underlying the options subject to accelerated vesting on December 31, 2013 and the exercise price of those options, multiplied by the number of unvested shares, and then rounded to the nearest dollar. The fair value of a share of our common stock on December 31, 2013 was \$16.74.
- (2) As of December 31, 2013, 400,563 shares of common stock subject to Mr. Whelan's options were unvested and would accelerate upon a change in control effective December 31, 2013.
- As of December 31, 2013, 290,063 shares of common stock subject to Mr. Kadlec's time-based options were unvested and would accelerate upon a change in control effective December 31, 2013. No amounts have been included in the table with respect to Mr. Kadlec's unvested performance-based options, since the applicable award agreement provides that in the event of a change in

Table of Contents

control of the Company, all such unvested options will immediately terminate unless otherwise determined by a vote of the Board of Directors.

Stock Plans

Following the completion of this offering, we will grant all equity awards under the 2014 Omnibus Plan, no further awards will be granted under our 2007 Option Plan, and all outstanding awards previously granted under the 2007 Option Plan will continue to be governed by their existing terms.

2007 Option Plan

Awards. The 2007 Option Plan provides for the grant of options, which include nonqualified stock options and incentive stock options, to our employees, directors and consultants. Nonqualified stock options granted under the option plan are not intended to qualify as incentive stock options under Section 422 of the Code. No incentive stock option grants are outstanding and none may be granted in the future under the option plan.

Plan Administration. The Board of Directors administers the option plan, having authority to select participants, grant options, determine the amount and other terms and conditions of options, interpret the option plan and the options granted thereunder, and adopt such rules and procedures for administering the option plan as it deems necessary and proper. All determinations and decisions made by the Board of Directors under the option plan are final and binding.

Authorized Shares. Subject to adjustment as described in the 2007 Option Plan, there are 2,720,000 shares of our common stock reserved for issuance as nonqualified stock options (after giving effect to the 8,500-for-1 stock split), which may be either authorized and unissued shares or shares acquired by the Company and held as treasury shares. Shares that are withheld by us in connection with payment of the exercise price or to satisfy tax withholding obligations, and any shares subject to an option that expires, terminates, is forfeited or is surrendered for cancellation may be subject to new options under the 2007 Option Plan.

Eligibility. The Board of Directors may grant awards to employees, directors and consultants of the Company.

Terms of Options. Options granted under the option plan are evidenced by, and subject to the terms and conditions of, award agreements. The following is a description of the terms of nonqualified stock options under the option plan, as further set forth in the award agreements.

Vesting. Generally, the options are subject to time-vesting in accordance with the following schedule: 25% on each of the first, second, third and fourth anniversaries of the grant date. In the event of a change in control of the Company, all unvested options immediately vest on the effective date of such change in control.

Exercise. Vested options may be exercised, in whole or in part, at any time beginning on the vesting date and ending on the date the options expire or otherwise terminate (as described below).

Exercise Price. Although the option plan does not so expressly provide with respect to nonqualified stock options, the exercise price for nonqualified stock options granted under the option plan has been at least the fair market value of the underlying stock on the grant date.

Consideration. Upon exercise, payment of the exercise price must be made in cash or by certified check or wire transfer of immediately available funds, or if permitted by the Board of Directors in its sole discretion, (i) by requesting that the Company withhold shares issuable upon exercise of the option having an aggregate fair market value on the date of exercise equal to the aggregate exercise price, or (ii) through a combination of cash and such shares.

Table of Contents

Term; Termination of Service. The options expire on the tenth anniversary of the grant date but are subject to earlier termination upon termination of a participant's employment or service. Upon a termination of employment or service for reason other than disability, death or cause, all unvested options will terminate on the termination date and all vested options will terminate three months after the termination date, except in the case of the participant's death during such three-month period, in which case, all vested options will terminate one year after the termination date. Upon a termination of employment or service due to disability or death, all unvested options will terminate on the termination date and all vested options will terminate one year after the termination date. In the event a deceased participant's vested options are properly exercised, the Board of Directors may elect to pay to the participant's legal representative the amount by which the fair market value per share on the date of exercise exceeds the exercise price, multiplied by the number of shares with respect to which the options are being exercised. Upon a termination of employment or service for cause, we may terminate any options (whether vested or unvested) in its sole discretion as of the termination date.

Restrictions on Transfer. The options may not be transferred except in the case of a participant's death, by will or the laws of descent and distribution. Shares issued upon exercise of the options are subject to provisions of a buy/sell agreement (or, in some cases, an employee securities agreement) with the Company which, among other things, places significant restrictions on the transfer of shares and gives the Company and other shareholders the right to purchase shares upon the happening of specified events.

Adjustments. In the event of any change in the outstanding shares of our common stock by reason of any recapitalization, stock split, stock dividend, combination of shares, or change in the corporate structure or capital structure of the Company, or by reason of any merger, consolidation, share exchange or similar statutory transaction other than a change in control, in order to preclude dilution or enlargement of participants' rights under the option plan, the Board of Directors will, in its sole discretion, adjust the maximum aggregate number and class of shares as to which options may be granted under the option plan, as well as the number and class of shares and the exercise price of options previously granted, under the option plan.

Change in Control. The option plan provides that, except as provided in the award agreements, in the event of a change in control, the Board of Directors may provide for the treatment of options in any manner it deems appropriate, including substituting for any or all outstanding options such alternative consideration as it in good faith may determine to be equitable in the circumstances, and may require in connection therewith the surrender of all options so replaced or the acceleration of the vesting of any option or the provision of the same consideration, calculated on a per share basis, as the holders of shares were entitled to receive as if the options were exercised. Generally, the award agreements provide that in the event of a change in control, all unvested options will immediately vest on the effective date of such change in control.

Amendment and Termination. The option plan will continue in effect until January 1, 2017, provided that the Board of Directors may terminate or amend the option plan at any time. In such event, shareholder approval will be required to the extent necessary to comply with Section 422 of the Code (or any other applicable law or regulation). No termination or amendment of the option plan will affect in any manner any option granted prior to the date of termination or amendment, without the consent of the participant.

2014 Omnibus Plan

The Board has adopted the 2014 Omnibus Plan to be effective immediately prior to the completion of this offering. The following summary describes the material terms of the omnibus plan. This summary is not a complete description of all provisions of the omnibus plan and is qualified in its

109

Table of Contents

entirety by reference to the omnibus plan, which has been filed as an exhibit to the registration statement of which this prospectus is a part.

Overview. The omnibus plan provides for the award to employees, directors, consultants, advisors or to nonemployees, to whom an offer of employment has been or is being extended, of the Company and its affiliates of options, restricted stock, restricted stock units, stock appreciation rights ("SARs"), performance awards (which may take the form of performance units or performance shares) and other stock and stock unit awards. The purpose of the omnibus plan is to (i) provide incentives and awards to participants in the omnibus plan by encouraging their ownership of stock and (ii) to aid the Company and its affiliates in retaining such participants, upon whose efforts our success and future growth depends, and to attract other such individuals.

Administration. The omnibus plan will be administered by the Board, although a compensation committee of the Board may administer the omnibus plan, in whole or in part, in certain circumstances. Subject to the terms of the omnibus plan, the Board may select participants to receive awards, determine the types of awards and terms and conditions of awards and interpret provisions of the omnibus plan. The Board may delegate, to a subcommittee of directors and/or officers, the authority to grant or administer awards to persons who are not then reporting persons under Section 16 of the Exchange Act and who are not "covered employees" under Section 162(m) of the Code.

Authorized Shares. Initially, there are 4,000,000 shares of our common stock reserved for issuance under the omnibus plan. Each fiscal year of the Company, beginning after the adoption of the 2014 Omnibus Plan, the number of shares reserved for issuance under the plan will be increased by an amount equal to 2% of the total number of outstanding shares of common stock as of the beginning of such fiscal year. No awards have yet been granted under the omnibus plan. The shares of common stock to be issued under the omnibus plan may consist of either authorized and unissued shares, or shares previously held in the treasury of the Company, or both.

Eligibility and Share Limitations. Awards may be made under the omnibus plan to employees, directors, consultants, advisors or to nonemployees, to whom an offer of employment has been or is being extended, of the Company or an affiliate as determined by the Board to be in our best interests, provided that only employees will be eligible to receive incentive stock options, and incentive stock options may be granted with respect to no more than 2,000,000 shares of common stock initially reserved for issuance under the plan. The maximum number of shares of common stock subject to options or SARs that may be awarded under the omnibus plan to any person is 1,000,000 per fiscal year. The maximum number of shares of common stock that may be awarded under the omnibus plan to any person, other than pursuant to options or SARs, is 1,000,000 per fiscal year. The maximum performance award opportunity that may be awarded to any person under the omnibus plan relating to performance units and payable in cash is \$10.0 million per fiscal year.

Types of Awards. The omnibus plan provides for the award of options, restricted stock, restricted stock units, SARs, performance awards and other stock and stock unit awards. The terms of the awards are described below.

Options. The omnibus plan permits the granting of options to purchase shares of common stock intended to qualify as incentive stock options under the Code and also options to purchase shares of common stock that do not qualify as incentive stock options, which we also refer to as non-qualified options. The exercise price of each option may not be less than 100% of the fair market value of the common stock subject to the option on the grant date. In the case of certain 10% shareholders who receive incentive stock options, the exercise price may not be less than 110% of the fair market value of the common stock subject to the option on the grant date. Options granted under the omnibus plan may generally not be sold, transferred, pledged or assigned other than by will or under applicable laws of descent and distribution.

Table of Contents

The term of each option will be fixed by the Board and may not exceed ten years from the grant date (or five years in the case of incentive stock options granted to 10% shareholders). The Board will determine at what time or times each option may be exercised. Except as set forth otherwise in an award agreement, options will generally be forfeited upon a termination of a participant's employment or service for cause, and a participant will generally have up to (i) 90 days to exercise any vested option for a termination for any reason other than cause, death or disability, and (ii) one year to exercise any vested option for a termination due to death or disability.

Options may be made exercisable in installments. In general, an optionee may pay the exercise price of an option by cash or certified check or by net share settlement, broker assisted cashless exercise, tendering shares of common stock already owned, or any other form permitted by the Board and applicable laws, rules and regulations. The Board may impose blackout periods on the exercise of any option to the extent required by applicable laws.

Restricted Stock Awards. The omnibus plan permits the granting of restricted stock awards, which includes restricted stock and restricted stock units. Restricted stock awards consist of shares of common stock granted subject to forfeiture if specified employment or service continuation requirements and/or performance targets are not met. The Board will determine the employment or service continuation requirements and/or performance targets. Restricted stock units are substantially similar to restricted stock but result in the issuance of shares of common stock upon meeting specified continued employment or service requirements and/or performance targets rather than the issuance of shares of common stock on the grant date (and therefore do not provide the holder the rights of a shareholder during the vesting period, although the Board may provide for dividend rights). Prior to the end of the restricted period, restricted stock and restricted stock units may not be sold, assigned, pledged, or otherwise disposed of or hypothecated by participants, and may be forfeited in the event of termination of employment or service. During the restricted period, the restricted stock entitles the participant to all of the rights of a shareholder, including the right to vote the shares and the right to receive any dividends thereon.

Performance Awards. Performance units and performance shares may also be granted under the omnibus plan. Performance units and performance shares are awards that will result in a payment to a participant only if performance goals established by the Board are achieved. The Board will establish performance goals in its discretion within the parameters of the omnibus plan, which, depending on the extent to which they are met, will determine the degree of granting, vesting and/or payout value of performance units and performance shares. The Board may impose additional conditions on an award to qualify it as performance-based compensation within the meaning of Section 162(m) of the Code (as described below). While the performance units and performance shares remain unvested, a participant may not sell, assign, transfer, pledge or otherwise dispose of the securities, subject to specified limitations.

Compliance with Section 162(m) of the Code. After a transition period following a company's initial public offering, Section 162(m) of the Code limits publicly-held companies to an annual deduction for U.S. federal income tax purposes of \$1 million for compensation paid to its Chief Executive Officer and the three highest compensated executive officers (other than the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer) determined at the end of each taxable year (the "covered employees"). However, performance-based compensation may be excluded from this limitation. The omnibus plan is designed to permit the Board to grant awards that may be intended to qualify for purposes of satisfying the conditions of Section 162(m), when applicable after the initial public offering transition period.

Business Criteria. The Board would exclusively use one or more of the following business criteria to measure company, affiliate, and/or business unit performance for a specified performance period, whether in absolute or relative terms (including, without limitation, terms relative to a peer group or

Table of Contents

index), in establishing performance goals for awards to covered employees if the award is to be intended to satisfy the conditions of Section 162(m):

achieving a level of company net sales;

achieving a level of earnings (including gross earnings; earnings before certain deductions, such as interest, taxes, depreciation, or amortization, or EBITDA, or other adjustments to EBITDA as determined by the Board (including discontinued operations, income (loss) from equity investment, gain on bargain purchase, gain (loss) on disposal of property, plant and equipment, non-operating income (expense), impairment, severance for officers, state tax credits and share-based compensation (income) expense); or earnings per share);

achieving a level of income (including net income or income before consideration of certain factors, such as overhead) or a level of gross profits for the Company, an affiliate, or a business unit;

achieving a return on the Company's (or an affiliate's) sales, revenues, capital, assets, or shareholders' equity;

achieving a level of appreciation in the price of the shares of common stock;

achieving a level of market share;

achieving a share price, or a share price return relative to specified stock market indices or other benchmarks, including peer companies, over a specified period;

achieving a level of earnings or income performance relative to peer companies over a specified period;

achieving specified reductions of costs or targeted levels in costs;

achieving specified improvements in collection of outstanding accounts or specified reductions in non-performing debts;

achieving a level of cash flow;

introducing one or more products into one or more new markets;

acquiring a prescribed number of (or sales volume related to) new customers in a line of business, or maintaining a prescribed number of (or sales volume related to) existing customers;

achieving a level of productivity within one or more business units;

completing specified projects within or below the applicable budget;

| completing acquisitions or dispositions of other businesses or assets, or integrating acquired businesses or assets; |
|--|
| expanding into other markets; |
| scientific or regulatory achievements; |
| implementation, completion or attainment of measurable objectives with respect to research, development, patents, inventions, products, projects or facilities and other key performance indicators; and |
| achieving any of the above performance measures on a per-prescription basis. |

The Board will have authority to exclude one or more of the following items in establishing such performance measures, provided any such determination is made within the applicable time period required by Section 162(m) of the Code: (i) extraordinary items outside the ordinary course of

Table of Contents

business, including acquisitions, dispositions or restructurings and related expenses; (ii) accounting policy changes required by the SEC or the FASB; (iii) the effects of any statutory adjustments to corporate tax rates; (iv) the effect of any change in the outstanding shares of common stock by reason of any stock dividend or split, stock repurchase, reorganization, recapitalization, merger, consolidation, spin-off, combination or exchange of shares of common stock or other similar corporate change, or any distributions to common shareholders other than regular cash dividends; and (v) such other objective criteria established by the Board within the applicable time period required by Section 162(m) of the Code or other applicable laws.

Dividends or Dividend Equivalents for Performance Awards. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the omnibus plan, the right to receive dividends, dividend equivalents or distributions with respect to a performance award will only be earned by a participant if and to the extent that the underlying award is earned.

Other Awards. The Board may also grant the following awards under the omnibus plan:

SARs, which are rights to receive a number of shares of common stock or, in the discretion of the Board, an amount in cash or a combination of shares of common stock and cash, based on the increase in the fair market value of the shares of common stock underlying the right over the market value of such shares on the grant date (or over an amount greater than the grant date fair market value, if the Board so determines) during a stated period specified by the Board not to exceed ten years from the grant date;

other stock and stock unit awards, which may be issued at such times, subject to or based upon achievement of such performance or other goals or on other such terms and conditions as the compensation committee shall deem appropriate and specify in the award agreement; and

unrestricted stock, which are shares of common stock granted without restrictions.

Adjustments. The Board will make appropriate adjustments in outstanding awards and the number of shares of common stock available for issuance under the omnibus plan, including the individual limitations on awards, to reflect stock dividends, splits, extraordinary cash dividends, reorganizations, recapitalizations, mergers, consolidations and other similar events.

Change in Control. The Board may in its discretion provide for the cancellation, if not exercised within a certain period determined by the Board, of; substitute other property for; cash-out of; or other adjustment of any outstanding award in connection with a change in control and may require that a participant incur a termination of employment or service or satisfy other conditions in connection with such treatment. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Board may not pay cash for any underwater options or SARs.

Forfeiture Provisions. The Board may provide by rule or regulation or in any award agreement, or may determine in any individual case, the circumstances in which awards shall be paid or forfeited in the event a participant ceases to be employed by us, or to provide services to us, prior to the end of a performance period, period of restriction or the exercise, vesting or settlement of such award. Generally the omnibus plan provides that awards will be forfeited if not earned or vested upon termination, unless otherwise provided for in an award agreement.

In addition, unless otherwise specified in an award agreement, the Board retains the right to cause a forfeiture of awards upon any breach or violation of agreements, policies or plans of the Company, as well as to the extent permitted by applicable law or regulations.

Amendment and Termination. Unless terminated earlier, the omnibus plan will terminate on the next day preceding the tenth anniversary of the date the Board adopted the omnibus plan, which was August 26, 2014. The Board may terminate or amend the omnibus plan at any time and for any reason,

Table of Contents

in its discretion. However, no amendment may adversely impair the rights of grantees with respect to outstanding awards. Amendments will be submitted for shareholder approval to the extent required by the Code or other applicable laws, rules or regulations.

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation

During fiscal 2013, we did not have a compensation committee or other Board committee performing similar functions; the Board consisted of our five named executive officers; and our Chief Executive Officer made determinations concerning our executive officer compensation, in consultation with certain members of management, including our Chief Financial Officer, our President, our Executive V.P. and our General Counsel. None of our executive officers served as a member of the compensation committee or board of directors of another entity, one of whose executive officers served on our Board of Directors in 2013.

114

Table of Contents

CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Procedures for Related-Party Transactions

Our Board of Directors will adopt a written code of business conduct and ethics for our Company in compliance with Sarbanes-Oxley, which will be effective and publicly available on our website at www.diplomat.is upon the completion of this offering. Under our code of business conduct and ethics, our employees, officers and directors will be discouraged from entering into any transaction that may cause a conflict of interest for us. In addition, they must report any potential conflict of interest, including related-party transactions, to their supervisor, an executive officer or the compliance officer, as defined in our code of business conduct and ethics, who then reviews and summarizes the proposed transaction for our audit committee. Pursuant to its charter, our audit committee will be required to approve any related-party transactions, including those transactions involving our directors. Such policy was not in place when the related-party transactions disclosed below were approved.

Indemnification of Officers and Directors

Our amended and restated bylaws will generally require us to indemnify our officers and directors to the fullest extent permitted by law, and to advance expenses incurred by our directors and officers prior to the final disposition of any action or proceeding arising by reason of the fact that any such person is or was our agent. In addition, our amended and restated bylaws will permit us to provide such other indemnification and advancement of expenses to our other employees and agents as permitted by law and authorized by the Board from time to time. We will also have the power to secure insurance on behalf of any director, officer, employee or other agent for any liability arising out of his or her status as such, regardless of whether we would have the power to indemnify such person against such liability pursuant to our amended and restated bylaws.

Prior to or following the completion of this offering, we expect to enter into separate indemnification agreements with our directors and executive officers. Such agreements will generally provide for indemnification by reason of being a director or executive officer, as the case may be. These agreements will be in addition to the indemnification provided by our amended and restated bylaws.

Related-Party Transactions

Redemptions of Company Securities

In January and April 2014, pursuant to various Stock Redemption Agreements, we redeemed 2,850,408 shares of our Class B Nonvoting Common Stock in exchange for a total cash payment of \$47,725,900 to the Hagerman family.

Also in 2014, we redeemed nonqualified stock options to purchase shares of our Class A Voting and Class B Nonvoting Common Stock with several of our employees. Upon the redemption of these rights to purchase, the existing nonqualified stock option was cancelled and we and the option holder entered into an Amended and Restated Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement, reflecting the option holder's continuing ownership of the remaining options. In connection with the January redemptions described below, each employee entered into an Employee Securities Agreement with us, which contains certain restrictions on transfer of our securities. The transactions with our executive officers are as follows:

We redeemed 143,339 shares of Class B Nonvoting Common Stock from Mr. Rowe in exchange for a cash payment in the amount of \$2,400,000, pursuant to a Stock Redemption Agreement dated January 2014. We also redeemed 195,544 shares of Class B Nonvoting Common Stock from Mr. Rowe in exchange for a cash payment in the amount of \$3,274,100 pursuant to a Stock Redemption Agreement dated April 2014.

Table of Contents

We redeemed the right to purchase 22,100 shares of Class A Voting Common Stock and 19,301 shares of Class B Nonvoting Common Stock in exchange for a cash payment of \$600,000 to Dr. Kaddis, pursuant to a Stock Option Redemption Agreement dated January 2014. Additionally, we redeemed his right to purchase 13,800 shares of Class B Nonvoting Common Stock in exchange for a cash payment in the amount of \$200,000 to Dr. Kaddis, pursuant to a Stock Option Redemption Agreement dated April 2014.

Mr. Kadlec received a cash payment in the amount of \$200,000 in exchange of the redemption of his right to purchase 16,046 shares of Class A Voting Common Stock, pursuant to a Stock Option Redemption Agreement dated January 2014. We also redeemed his right to purchase 3,292 shares of Class A Voting Common Stock and 12,754 shares of Class B Nonvoting Common Stock in exchange for a cash payment to Mr. Kadlec in the amount of \$200,000, pursuant to a Stock Option Redemption Agreement dated April 2014.

Mr. Whelan received a cash payment in the amount of \$600,000 in exchange for the redemption of his right to purchase 21,250 shares of Class A Voting Common Stock and 25,060 shares of Class B Nonvoting Common Stock, pursuant to a Stock Option Redemption Agreement dated January 2014. We also redeemed Mr. Whelan's right to purchase 38,591 shares of Class B Nonvoting Common Stock in exchange for a cash payment in the amount of \$500,000, pursuant to a Stock Option Redemption Agreement dated April 2014.

Company Loans

We previously made several loans to our executive officers. Loans to Philip Hagerman were in advance of regular distributions to Mr. Hagerman for S corporation tax obligations. Philip Hagerman was indebted to us in the amount of \$588,400 at June 2, 2011, which indebtedness accrued interest at an annual interest rate of 3% and was evidenced by an agreement (amended January 1, 2012) to repay the loan in full prior to, or at the time of, termination of employment with the Company; Philip Hagerman repaid the loan in full in May 2012. Philip Hagerman was indebted to us in the amount of \$300,000 at December 21, 2011, which indebtedness accrued interest at an annual interest rate of 1.3% and was evidenced by an agreement to repay the loan in full prior to April 1, 2012; Philip Hagerman repaid the loan in full in May 2012. In addition, Philip Hagerman had loans with us in the amounts of \$100,000 at January 31, 2012 and \$100,000 at February 29, 2012; he repaid the loans in full in May 2012. Philip Hagerman also had a loan with us in the amount of \$235,000 at July 25, 2012, which indebtedness accrued interest at an annual interest rate of 1.3% and was evidenced by an agreement to repay the loan in full prior to, or at the time of, termination of employment; he repaid the loan in full in August 2012. Philip Hagerman was also indebted to us in the amount of \$40,000 at August 10, 2012; he repaid the loan in full on such date. Additionally, we were indebted to Philip Hagerman in the original amount of \$5,851,642 for an ownership distribution effective December 30, 2012 with interest at 3% per annum, which was to be paid in a lump sum payment on January 20, 2017, having a balance owing at December 31, 2012 in the amount of \$5,852,130, including interest; the loan was paid off in 2013. Mr. Kadlec was indebted to us in the amount of \$50,000 at November 13, 2012, and in the amount of \$100,000 at March 21, 2013, which indebtedness accrued interest at an annual interest rate of 3%, and was evidenced by agreements to pay the loans in full on the earlier to occur of December 1, 2014 or termination of employment; Mr. Kadlec repaid the loans in full in May 2014.

We were indebted to Deborah L. Ward, Philip Hagerman's sister, in the original amount of \$300,000 for a covenant not to compete effective January 1, 2005, which indebtedness was evidenced by an agreement to pay equal monthly installments of \$2,500; the loan was paid off in 2011. We were also indebted to Deborah L. Ward in the original amount of \$480,000 pursuant to Amendment #1 of the Stock Redemption Agreement (the "Amendment") effective June 7, 2012, which indebtedness was evidenced by an agreement to pay equal quarterly installments of \$40,000. The Amendment further provides that in the event of a specified change of control transaction, certain trusts for the benefit of

Table of Contents

Ms. Ward and certain other immediate family members are entitled to 1.0% of the net proceeds of such sale (the "Payment Right"). Ms. Ward subsequently assigned 50% of the Payment Right to the Deborah L. Ward 2014 Irrevocable Exempt Trust and 50% of the Payment Right to the David F. Ward 2014 Irrevocable Exempt Trust (collectively, the "Ward Trusts"). In connection therewith, we subsequently entered into an Exchange and Release Agreement, dated August 12, 2014, pursuant to which we, Ms. Ward, the Ward Trusts, and David F. Ward agreed to cancel the Payment Right in exchange for 186,243 newly issued shares of the Company's Class B Nonvoting Common Stock to each of (1) the Deborah L. Ward 2014 Irrevocable Exempt Trust and (2) the David F. Ward 2014 Irrevocable Exempt Trust (372,486 shares of Class B Nonvoting Common Stock in the aggregate). The Exchange and Release Agreement also terminated the Stock Redemption Agreement in all respects, except as to the Company's continued indebtedness of \$120,000 under the promissory note to Ms. Ward expected to be paid off with a portion of the net proceeds from this offering.

We are indebted to Jeffrey M. Rowe in the original amount of \$8,061,966 for the redemption of common stock effective September 18, 2012, which indebtedness is evidenced by an agreement to pay equal quarterly installments of \$100,000 with a final payment of \$6,161,966 on July 20, 2017, and having a balance owing at December 31, 2013 in the amount of \$7,574,366, including interest. We were also indebted to Mr. Rowe in the original amount of \$562,657.89 for an ownership distribution effective December 30, 2012, which indebtedness was evidenced by a promissory note, with interest at 3% until paid in full and having a balance owing at December 31, 2012 in the amount of \$562,704.77, including interest; the loan was paid off in 2013.

Other Family Relationships

We employ Jennifer Hagerman, Philip Hagerman's daughter, as our senior director of education and quality. In this capacity, Dr. Hagerman directs Diplomat University, our educational and training department that educates both Diplomat employees and external professionals seeking education in the specialty pharmacy industry. Dr. Hagerman also oversees our quality assurance program and serves as the director of Diplomat's Postgraduate Year One Pharmacy Residency Program, which is accredited by the American Society of Health-System Pharmacists. Dr. Hagerman was recently voted president-elect of the Michigan Pharmacists Association (the "MPA") by the MPA's membership. Dr. Hagerman earned the following compensation for her services during fiscal 2013: base salary, \$142,015; discretionary and performance-based bonuses, \$14,868 in the aggregate; and 401(k) matching contribution, \$5,680. In addition, in January 2013, we granted Dr. Hagerman the right to purchase 90,844 shares of common stock (consisting of an option to acquire 4,542 shares of Class A Voting Common Stock and 86,302 shares of Class B Nonvoting Common Stock) at an exercise price of \$5.88 per share. We redeemed her right to purchase 2,301 shares of Class A Voting Common Stock in exchange for a cash payment of \$25,000, pursuant to a Stock Option Redemption Agreement dated January 2014. In connection with the January redemption of her stock options. Dr. Hagerman also entered into an Employee Securities Agreement. Also in January and April, 2014, respectively, we redeemed 14,931 shares of common stock from Dr. Hagerman in exchange for \$250,000 on each redemption, for a total of \$500,000 in the aggregate.

Shareholder Agreements

In December 2012, the Philip R. Hagerman Revocable Trust dated September 6, 1991, as Amended, gifted shares of Class B Nonvoting Common Stock to the Hagerman family (excluding Philip Hagerman). In connection with the gift, the donees entered into Buy/Sell Agreements with us, which contained certain restrictions on transfer of our securities.

The Hagerman family has entered into a voting agreement, which provides that the members of the Hagerman family will vote as a group (based on the voting determination of a majority of the shares held by the Hagerman family, which Philip Hagerman will hold as of the completion of this

Table of Contents

offering). After completion of this offering, members of the Hagerman family will collectively hold more than 50% of our common stock. The voting agreement terminates, among other things: upon the liquidation, dissolution or winding up of business operations of the Company or the Company's general assignment for the benefit of creditors; in the sole discretion of Philip Hagerman; upon the death or permanent and substantial incapacity of Philip Hagerman; and six months (or longer, as specified therein) after the later of the date on which Philip Hagerman (1) ceases to be the Chief Executive Officer of the Company and (2) ceases to be the Chairman of the Board of Directors or a director on the Board of Directors and is no longer devoting substantially all of his business efforts to the Company. On September 22, 2014, Mr. Rowe and certain family trusts joined in the voting agreement for a term of at least one year.

Registration Rights Agreement

We are a party to an amended and restated registration rights agreement dated as of March 31, 2014 (the "Registration Rights Agreement"), relating to our securities held by certain funds of T. Rowe Price Associates, Inc., Janus Capital Management, LLC, affiliates of Mr. Hagerman, and Mr. Rowe. Under the Registration Rights Agreement, we are responsible, subject to certain exceptions, for the expenses of any offering of our shares of common stock offered pursuant to the agreement other than underwriting discounts and selling commissions. The Registration Rights Agreement contains customary indemnification provisions. Further, under the Registration Rights Agreement, each shareholder party agreed, if required by us and the managing underwriter in an underwritten offering, not to effect (other than pursuant to such registration) any public sale or distribution of any of our or their holdings in our Company or securities convertible into any of our equity securities for (1) 180 days after the effective date of an initial public offering, and (2) 90 days after the registration of any offering other than an initial public offering.

Demand Registration Rights. Under the Registration Rights Agreement, subject to certain exceptions, certain funds of T. Rowe Price Associates, Inc. and Janus Capital Management have the right to require us to register for public sale under the Securities Act all shares of common stock held by them that they request be registered, in which case we would be required to notify and offer registration to the other shareholder parties insofar as the aggregate number of shares to be registered does not exceed the number which can be sold in such offering without materially and adversely affecting the offering price, as determined by the relevant managing underwriter or investment banking firm.

Piggyback Registration Rights. If we propose to register the offer and sale of any of our securities under the Securities Act in connection with the public offering of such securities other than with respect to (1) a registration related to a company stock plan or (2) a registration related to the exchange of securities in certain corporate reorganizations or certain other transactions, all shareholders party to the Registration Rights Agreement will be entitled to certain "piggyback" registration rights allowing them to include their shares in such registration, subject to certain marketing and other limitations. As a result, whenever we propose to file a registration statement under the Securities Act, certain of our shareholders are entitled to notice of the registration and have the right, subject to limitations that the underwriters may impose on the number of shares included in the registration, to include their shares in the registration.

PRINCIPAL AND SELLING SHAREHOLDERS

The following table sets forth information regarding beneficial ownership of our common stock as of September 17, 2014, by:

each person or group we know to beneficially own more than 5% of our outstanding shares of common stock;
each of our named executive officers;
each of our directors individually;
all of our executive officers, directors and as a group; and

each selling shareholder.

Beneficial ownership for the purposes of the following table is determined in accordance with the rules and regulations of the SEC. These rules generally provide that a person is the beneficial owner of securities if such person has or shares the power to vote or direct the voting thereof, or to dispose or direct the disposition thereof or has the right to acquire such powers within 60 days. Shares of common stock subject to options that are currently exercisable or exercisable within 60 days of September 17, 2014 are deemed to be outstanding and beneficially owned by the person holding the options. Shares issuable pursuant to stock options are deemed outstanding for computing the percentage ownership of the person holding such options but are not outstanding for computing the percentage of any other person. The percentage of beneficial ownership of our common stock for the following table is based on our common stock outstanding as of September 17, 2014.

Immediately prior to the completion of this offering, in the following order:

the conversion of all shares of our Series A Preferred Stock into shares of our Class C Voting Common Stock on a one-for-one basis:

the filing of our amended and restated articles of incorporation and the adoption of our amended and restated bylaws;

the conversion of all shares of our Class A Voting Common Stock, Class B Nonvoting Common Stock and Class C Voting Common Stock into shares of our common stock on a one-for-one basis;

the conversion of all options to acquire Class A Voting Common Stock and Class B Nonvoting Common Stock into options to acquire shares of our common stock on a one-for one basis; and

a stock split effected as a stock dividend of 8,500 shares for each share of our common stock to our common shareholders of record immediately prior to the completion of this offering, with an adjustment to the number of options to acquire shares of our common stock and exercise price therefor to be proportionately adjusted.

The number of shares of common stock outstanding after the completion of this offering also includes the shares of common stock being offered for sale by us in this offering.

Unless otherwise indicated, the address for each listed shareholder is c/o Diplomat Pharmacy, Inc., 4100 S. Saginaw St., Flint, MI 48507. To our knowledge, except as indicated in the footnotes to this

Table of Contents

table and pursuant to applicable community property laws, the persons named in the table have sole voting and investment power with respect to all shares of common stock.

| | Shares of Co Stock Owned this Offer | Before | Shares of Co Stock Owned this Offerin | d After | |
|---|---|---------|---|------------|---------|
| Name | Number | Percent | Offered | Number | Percent |
| 5% shareholders: | | | | | |
| Janus Funds(2) | | *% | | 3,225,127 | 6.4% |
| T. Rowe Price Funds(3) | | *% | | 2,986,228 | 5.9% |
| Named executive officers and directors: | | | | | |
| Philip R. Hagerman(4) | 33,520,694 | 97.9% | 2,916,667(9) | 30,187,361 | 59.8% |
| Sean M. Whelan(5) | 461,199 | 1.3% | | 461,199 | *% |
| Gary W. Kadlec(6) | 274,017 | *% | | 274,017 | *% |
| Jeffrey M. Rowe(7) | 2,848,617 | 7.7% | 416,666(10) | 2,431,951 | 4.8% |
| Atheer A. Kaddis(8) | 832,198 | 2.3% | | 832,198 | 1.6% |
| All executive officers and directors as a group | | | | | |
| (5 persons) | 35,088,108 | 90.8% | 3,333,333 | 31,754,774 | 63.0% |

Less than 1%

- (1)
 Column includes conversion of shares of Series A Preferred Stock, Class A Voting Common Stock and Class B Nonvoting Common Stock into shares of common stock as discussed under the heading "Description of Capital Stock Conversion of Issued and Outstanding Common Stock and Preferred Stock."
- Consists of (i) 596,496 shares held by Janus Global Life Sciences Fund, (ii) 1,709,835 shares held by Janus Triton Fund, (iii) 688,565 shares held by Janus Venture Fund, (iv) 136,892 shares held by Janus Capital Funds PLC Janus Global Life Sciences Fund, and (v) 93,339 shares held by Janus Capital Funds PLC Janus US Venture Fund. The foregoing funds (the "Janus Funds") are managed by Janus Capital Management LLC. Janus Capital Management LLC has sole voting and dispositive power over the securities held by the Janus Funds and may be deemed to be the beneficial owner of all the shares listed. The address for these entities is 151 Detroit Street, Denver CO, 80206.
- Consists of (i) 952,000 shares held by T. Rowe Price Health Sciences Fund, Inc., (ii) 51,000 shares held by TD Mutual Funds TD Health Sciences Fund, (iii) 59,500 shares held by Valic Company I Health Sciences Fund, (iv) 42,500 shares held by T. Rowe Price Health Sciences Portfolio, (v) 25,500 shares held by John Hancock Variable Insurance Trust Health Sciences Trust, (vi) 59,500 shares held by John Hancock Funds II Health Sciences Fund, (vii) 1,640,500 shares held by T. Rowe Price New Horizons Fund, Inc., (vii) 153,000 shares held by T. Rowe Price New Horizons Trust, and (ix) 2,728 shares held by T. Rowe Price U.S. Equities Trust. The foregoing funds and accounts are advised or sub-advised by T. Rowe Price Associates, Inc. T. Rowe Price Associates, Inc. serves as investment adviser with power to direct investments and/or sole power to vote the securities owned by these funds and accounts. T. Rowe Price Associates, Inc. may be deemed to be the beneficial owner of all the shares listed; however, T. Rowe Price Associates, Inc. expressly disclaims that it is, in fact, the beneficial owner of such securities. T. Rowe Price Associates, Inc. is the wholly owned subsidiary of T. Rowe Price Group, Inc., which is a publicly traded financial services holding company. The address for T. Rowe Price Associates, Inc. is 100 East Pratt Street, Baltimore, MD 21202.
- Represents 1,657,500 shares of Class A Voting Common Stock and 2,950,309 shares of Class B Nonvoting Common Stock held by the Philip R. Hagerman Revocable Trust, 4,596,207 shares of Class B Nonvoting Common Stock held by the 2007 Hagerman Family Trusts, 5,154,689 shares of Class B Nonvoting Common Stock held by the JH Trusts, 1,912,500 shares of Class B Nonvoting Common Stock held by the 2013 Irrevocable Exempt Trust for Thomas R. Hagerman, 1,912,500 shares of Class B Nonvoting Common Stock held by the 2013 Irrevocable Exempt Trust for Taylor

Table of Contents

G. Hagerman, 1,912,500 shares of Class B Nonvoting Common Stock held by the 2013 Irrevocable Exempt Trust for Jennifer K. Hagerman, 1,912,500 shares of Class B Nonvoting Common Stock held by the 2013 Irrevocable Exempt Trust for Megan Lineberger, 646,000 shares of Class B Nonvoting Common Stock held by the 2014 Irrevocable Exempt Trust for Thomas R. Hagerman, 646,000 shares of Class B Nonvoting Common Stock held by the 2014 Irrevocable Exempt Trust for Taylor G. Hagerman, 646,000 shares of Class B Nonvoting Common Stock held by the 2014 Irrevocable Exempt Trust for Jennifer K. Hagerman, 646,000 shares of Class B Nonvoting Common Stock held by the 2014 Irrevocable Exempt Trust for Megan Lineberger, 1,275,000 shares of Class B Nonvoting Common Stock held by the Philip Hagerman 2014 GRAT, 1,275,000 shares of Class B Nonvoting Common Stock held by the Jocelyn Hagerman 2014 GRAT, 263,500 shares of Class B Nonvoting Common Stock held by the JH Marital Trust, 272,000 shares of Class B Nonvoting Common Stock held by the PH Marital Trust, 394,910 shares of Class B Nonvoting Common Stock held by Philip Hagerman as custodian F/B/O Thomas Hagerman, and 394,910 shares of Class B Nonvoting Common Stock held by Philip Hagerman as custodian F/B/O Taylor Hagerman. Mr. Hagerman has entered into a voting agreement with each of the foregoing and certain additional family members holding an aggregate 30,672,077 shares of our common stock. If the underwriters' overallotment option is exercised in full, the Hagerman family would own 26,005,410 shares of common stock, or 51.5%, after the completion of this offering. Also included in Mr. Hagerman's beneficial ownership, as a result of Mr. Rowe's joinder to the voting agreement, is (i) prior to the offering, 2,848,617 shares of our common stock, (ii) after completion of this offering, 2,431,951 shares of our common stock, and (iii) if the underwriters' overallotment option is exercised in full, 2,306,951 shares of our common stock, in each case beneficially owned by Mr. Rowe. If the underwriters' overallotment option is exercised in full, Mr. Hagerman would have voting power over 29,187,361 shares of our common stock, or 56.7%, after the completion of this offering.

- (5)

 Represents shares of our common stock issuable on the exercise of options held by Mr. Whelan.
- (6) Represents shares of our common stock issuable on the exercise of options held by Mr. Kadlec.
- Represents 1,871,117 shares of our Class B Nonvoting Common Stock held by Mr. Rowe, 59,500 shares of our Class B Nonvoting Common Stock held by the Irrevocable Exempt Trust for Melissa Rowe, 59,500 shares of our Class B Nonvoting Common Stock held by the Irrevocable Exempt Trust for Matthew Rowe, 59,500 shares of our Class B Nonvoting Common Stock held by the Irrevocable Exempt Trust for Anthony Rowe, 59,500 shares of our Class B Nonvoting Common Stock held by the Irrevocable Exempt Trust for Aileen Rowe, 59,500 shares of our Class B Nonvoting Common Stock held by the Irrevocable Exempt Trust for Christopher Rowe, 127,500 shares of our Class B Nonvoting Common Stock held by the Rowe Charitable Remainder Unitrust, and 552,500 shares of our Class B Nonvoting Common Stock held by the Rowe Family Trusts. Pursuant to Mr. Rowe's joinder to the voting agreement, Mr. Hagerman has voting control over these shares of our common stock. If the underwriters' overallotment option is exercised in full, the Rowe family would own 2,306,951 shares, or 4.5%, of our common stock, after the completion of this offering.
- (8) Represents shares of our common stock issuable on the exercise of options held by Dr. Kaddis.
- (9)
 Represents 1,925,000 common shares to be sold by the Philip R. Hagerman Revocable Trust, 350,000 common shares to be sold by the JH Trusts, 350,000 common shares to be sold by the 2007 Hagerman Family Trusts, 145,833 common shares to be sold by the 2013 Irrevocable Exempt Trust for Megan Lineberger, and 145,834 common shares to be sold by the 2013 Irrevocable Exempt Trust for Jennifer K. Hagerman.
- (10)
 Represents 208,333 common shares to be sold by Mr. Rowe and 208,333 common shares to be sold by the Rowe Family Trust.

DESCRIPTION OF CAPITAL STOCK

The following discussion is a summary of the terms of our capital stock and our amended and restated articles of incorporation and bylaws following certain amendments that we intend to make in connection with this offering, as well as certain applicable provisions of Michigan law. Forms of our amended and restated articles of incorporation and bylaws as they will be in effect following this offering have been filed as exhibits to the registration statement of which this prospectus is a part.

Conversion of Issued and Outstanding Common Stock and Preferred Stock

Prior to this offering, we had three classes of common stock (Class A Voting Common Stock, Class B Nonvoting Common Stock and Class C Voting Common Stock) and one class of preferred stock (Series A Preferred Stock). As of July 31, 2014, there were 1,657,500 shares of our Class A Voting Common Stock outstanding that were held of record by 1 shareholder, 32,579,888 shares of our Class B Nonvoting Common Stock outstanding that were held of record by 41 shareholders, no shares of Class C Voting Common Stock outstanding, and 6,211,355 shares of our Series A Preferred Stock outstanding that were held of record by 14 shareholders (which were certain funds of Janus Capital Management LLC and T. Rowe Price Associates, Inc.). In addition, shares of our common stock were issuable upon exercise of outstanding options granted under our 2007 Option Plan.

Immediately prior to the completion of this offering, in the following order:

the conversion of all shares of our Series A Preferred Stock into shares of our Class C Voting Common Stock on a one-for-one basis;

the filing of our amended and restated articles of incorporation and the adoption of our amended and restated bylaws;

the conversion of all shares of our Class A Voting Common Stock, Class B Nonvoting Common Stock and Class C Voting Common Stock into shares of our common stock on a one-for-one basis;

the conversion of all options to acquire Class A Voting Common Stock and Class B Nonvoting Common Stock into options to acquire shares of our common stock on a one-for one basis; and

a stock split effected as a stock dividend of 8,500 shares for each share of our common stock to our common shareholders of record immediately prior to the completion of this offering, with an adjustment to the number of options to acquire shares of our common stock and exercise price therefor to be proportionately adjusted.

Authorized Capitalization

The following description summarizes certain important terms of our capital stock, as they are expected to be in effect immediately prior to the completion of this offering. We expect to amend our existing amended and restated articles of incorporation and bylaws such that they will reflect the descriptions of those charter documents below. Because it is only a summary, it does not contain all the information that may be important to you. For a complete description of the matters set forth in this section titled "Description of Capital Stock," you should refer to our amended and restated certificate of incorporation, amended and restated bylaws, which are included as exhibits to the registration statement of which this prospectus forms a part, and to the applicable provisions of Michigan law. Immediately following the completion of this offering, our authorized capital stock will consist of 590,000,000 shares of common stock, no par value per share, and 10,000,000 shares of preferred stock.

Table of Contents

Common Stock

Our amended and restated articles of incorporation will authorize us to issue up to 590,000,000 shares of common stock.

Voting Rights

Each holder of our common stock will be entitled to one vote per share on all matters submitted to a vote of the shareholders, including the election of directors. Our amended and restated articles of incorporation and bylaws will not provide for cumulative voting rights. As a result, the holders of a majority of the shares entitled to vote in any election of directors will be able to elect all of the directors standing for election, if they should so choose.

Dividend Rights

Subject to preferences that may be applicable to any then outstanding preferred stock, the holders of our common stock will be entitled to receive dividends, if any, as may be declared from time to time by the Board out of legally available funds.

Rights Upon Liquidation

In the event of our liquidation, dissolution or winding up, holders of our common stock will be entitled to share ratably in the net assets legally available for distribution to shareholders after the payment of all of our debts and other liabilities, subject to the satisfaction of any liquidation preference granted to the holders of any outstanding shares of preferred stock.

Other Rights and Preferences

As of this offering, holders of our common stock will have no preemptive, conversion or subscription rights, and there will be no redemption or sinking fund provisions applicable to our common stock. The rights, preferences and privileges of our common stock will be subject to, and may be adversely affected by, the rights, preferences and privileges of any series of preferred stock that we may issue in the future.

Fully Paid and Nonassessable

All of our outstanding shares are, and the shares to be issued in this offering will be, duly authorized, validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable.

Preferred Stock

Our amended and restated articles of incorporation will authorize us to issue up to 10,000,000 shares of preferred stock in one or more series. Our Board is authorized, subject to limitations prescribed by Michigan law, to issue preferred stock in one or more series, to establish from time to time the number of shares to be included in each series and to fix the designation, powers, preferences and rights of the shares of each series and any of its qualifications, limitations or restrictions, in each case without further vote or action by our shareholders. Our Board can also increase or decrease the number of shares of any series of preferred stock, but not below the number of shares of that series then outstanding, without any further vote or action by our shareholders. Our Board may authorize the issuance of preferred stock with voting or conversion rights that could adversely affect the voting power or other rights of the holders of our common shares. The issuance of preferred stock, while providing flexibility in connection with possible acquisitions and other corporate purposes, could, among other things, have the effect of delaying, deferring or preventing a change in control of our Company and

Table of Contents

might adversely affect the market price of our common stock and the voting and other rights of the holders of our common stock.

Anti-Takeover Effects of Certain Provisions of Our Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws and Michigan Law

Our amended and restated articles of incorporation and bylaws will contain certain provisions that could have the effect of delaying, deterring or preventing another party from acquiring control of us, and therefore could adversely affect the market price of our common stock. These provisions and certain provisions of the Michigan Business Corporation Act (as it may be amended from time to time, the "MBCA"), which are summarized below, may also discourage coercive takeover practices and inadequate takeover bids, and are designed, in part, to encourage persons seeking to acquire control of us to negotiate first with the Board. We believe that the benefits of increased protection of our potential ability to negotiate more favorable terms with an unfriendly or unsolicited acquirer outweigh the disadvantages of potentially discouraging a proposal to acquire us.

Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws

Following this offering, our amended and restated articles of incorporation and bylaws will contain provisions that:

permit the Board to issue up to 10,000,000 shares of preferred stock, with any rights, preferences and privileges as they may determine (including the right to approve an acquisition or other change in control);

provide that the authorized number of directors may be fixed only by the Board in accordance with our amended and restated bylaws;

do not provide for cumulative voting rights (therefore allowing the holders of a majority of the shares entitled to vote in any election of directors to elect all of the directors standing for election);

divide our Board into three staggered classes;

provide that all vacancies and newly created directorships may be filled by the affirmative vote of a majority of directors then in office, even if less than a quorum;

prohibit removal of directors without cause;

prohibit shareholders from calling special meetings of shareholders;

requires unanimous consent for stockholders to take action by written consent without approval of the action by our Board;

provide that shareholders seeking to present proposals before a meeting of shareholders or to nominate candidates for election as directors at a meeting of shareholders must provide advance notice in writing and also comply with specified requirements related to the form and content of a shareholder's notice;

require at least 80% supermajority shareholder approval to alter, amend or repeal certain provisions of our amended and restated articles of incorporation; and

require at least 80% supermajority shareholder approval in order for shareholders to adopt, amend or repeal our amended and restated bylaws.

The provisions of our amended and restated articles of incorporation and bylaws, effective upon the closing of this offering, could have the effect of discouraging others from attempting hostile takeovers and, as a consequence, they might also inhibit temporary fluctuations in the market price of

Table of Contents

our common stock that often result from actual or rumored hostile takeover attempts. These provisions might also have the effect of preventing changes in our management. It is possible that these provisions could make it more difficult to accomplish transactions that our shareholders might otherwise deem to be in their best interests.

Michigan Business Corporation Act

We may also opt-in to the provisions of Chapter 7A of the MBCA. In general, subject to certain exceptions, Chapter 7A of the MBCA prohibits a Michigan corporation from engaging in a "business combination" with an "interested shareholder" for a period of five years following the date that such shareholder became an interested shareholder, unless: (i) prior to such date, the board of directors approved the business combination; or (ii) on or subsequent to such date, the business combination is approved by at least 90% of the votes of each class of the corporation's stock entitled to vote and by at least two-thirds of such voting stock not held by the interested shareholder or such shareholder's affiliates. The MBCA defines a "business combination" to include certain mergers, consolidations, dispositions of assets or shares and recapitalizations. An "interested shareholder" is defined by the MBCA to include a beneficial owner, directly or indirectly, of 10% or more of the voting power of the outstanding voting shares of the corporation. While our Board of Directors to date has not elected to opt-in to these provisions, any future decision to do so could have an anti-takeover effect.

Limitation on Liability and Indemnification of Officers and Directors.

Our amended and restated articles will eliminate the liability of our directors for monetary damages to the fullest extent under the MBCA and other applicable law. The MBCA permits a corporation to eliminate or limit a director's liability to the corporation or its shareholders for money damages for any action taken or any failure to take any action as a director, except liability for:

the amount of a financial benefit received by a director to which he is not entitled;

any intentional infliction of harm on the corporation or its shareholders;

any illegal distributions to shareholders or the making of improper loans as provided in Section 551 of the MBCA; and

any intentional criminal act.

The limitation of liability in our amended and restated articles of incorporation will not affect the availability of equitable remedies such as injunctive relief or rescission, nor will it limit the liability of our directors under federal securities laws.

Our amended and restated bylaws will generally require us to indemnify our officers and directors to the fullest extent permitted by law, and to advance expenses incurred by our directors and officers prior to the final disposition of any action or proceeding arising by reason of the fact that any such person is or was our agent. In addition, our amended and restated bylaws will permit us to provide such other indemnification and advancement of expenses to our other employees and agents as permitted by law and authorized by the Board from time to time. We will also have the power to secure insurance on behalf of any director, officer, employee or other agent for any liability arising out of his or her status as such, regardless of whether we would have the power to indemnify such person against such liability pursuant to our amended and restated bylaws.

Prior to or following the completion of this offering, we expect to enter into separate indemnification agreements with our directors and executive officers. Such agreements will generally provide for indemnification by reason of being a director or executive officer, as the case may be. These agreements will be in addition to the indemnification provided by our amended and restated bylaws.

Table of Contents

The limitation of liability and indemnification provisions in our amended and restated articles of incorporation and bylaws may discourage our shareholders from bringing lawsuits against our directors for breach of their fiduciary duties. They may also reduce the likelihood of derivative litigation against our directors and officers, even though an action, if successful, might benefit us and our shareholders. A shareholder's investment may be harmed to the extent we pay the costs of settlement and damage awards against directors and officers pursuant to these indemnification provisions.

At present, there is no pending litigation or proceeding involving any of our directors or executive officers as to which indemnification is required or permitted, and we are not aware of any threatened litigation or proceeding that may result in a claim for indemnification.

Choice of Forum

Our amended and restated bylaws provides that the courts of the State of Michigan located in Genesee County and the United States District Court for the Eastern District of Michigan will be the exclusive forum for: any derivative action or proceeding brought on our behalf; any action asserting a claim of breach of fiduciary duty owed by any of our directors, officers or employees to us or our stockholders; any action asserting a claim against us arising pursuant to the MBCA; or any actions asserting a claim otherwise governed by the State of Michigan's internal affairs doctrine. The enforceability of similar choice of forum provisions has been challenged in legal proceedings, and it is possible that a court could find these types of provisions to be inapplicable or unenforceable.

Transfer Agent and Registrar

The transfer agent and registrar for our common stock is Computershare Trust Company, N.A.

Listing

Our common stock has been approved for listing on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol "DPLO".

DESCRIPTION OF INDEBTEDNESS

Line of Credit

On June 26, 2014, we entered into an amended and restated credit agreement with GE Capital Bank, as agent, Comerica Bank, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. and Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., as additional lenders. The amended and restated credit agreement provides allows us to borrow, on a revolving basis, the lesser of (x) \$120.0 million and (y) the Borrowing Base (as defined), less, in either case, the sum of (a) the aggregate amount of letter of credit obligations plus (b) outstanding swing loans. The amended facility provides for issuances of letters of credit up to \$3.0 million and swing loans up to \$5.0 million. Additionally, the line of credit permits incremental increases in the revolving line of credit or issuance of term loans up to an aggregate amount of \$25.0 million. The amended and restated credit agreement amended our prior credit agreement with GE Capital Bank, as agent, which allowed us to borrow up to \$85.0 million.

The line of credit will expire on July 20, 2017. The line of credit is guaranteed by all of our subsidiaries and collateralized by substantially all of our and our subsidiaries' respective assets.

At September 16, 2014, we had \$80.2 million of borrowings outstanding and had \$33.3 million of availability under the line of credit and we were in compliance with all applicable covenants under the line of credit.

We may select from two interest rate options for revolving and letter of credit borrowings under the line of credit: (i) LIBOR (as defined in the line of credit) plus 1.75% or (ii) Base Rate (as defined in the line of credit) plus 0.75%. Swing loans may not be Base Rate loans.

We are required to pay a commitment fee on the unused portion of the revolving line of credit commitment as of each calendar month at a rate of 0.25% if the unused portion is less than one-third of the commitment, 0.375% if the unused portion is greater than or equal to one-third but less than two-thirds of the commitment or 0.5% if the unused portion is greater than or equal to two-thirds of the commitment. We are also required to pay a letter of credit fee on the undrawn amount of all issued letters of credit as of each calendar month at a rate of 1.75%. The fees will be payable monthly in arrears.

The line of credit includes customary restrictions on, among other things and subject to certain exceptions, our ability to incur additional indebtedness, pay dividends or make other distributions, redeem or repurchase capital stock, make investments and loans and enter into certain transactions, including selling assets, engaging in mergers or acquisitions and transactions with affiliates. We are required to maintain cash management arrangements to manage payments received by account debtors. Such arrangements will include entering into control agreements providing for full cash dominion, establishing lockboxes if electronic deposit capture payments exceed a certain percentage of all account collections, and entering into sweep agreements with respect to governmental payors making payments under Medicare or Medicaid.

In the event the amount available to be drawn under our revolving line of credit is less than \$20.0 million, we are required to satisfy a minimum fixed charge coverage ratio of not less than 1.10 to 1.0, as measured on a trailing 12-month basis. At June 30, 2014, we were not required to satisfy the test as we met the specified excess availability threshold.

We have pledged the equity of substantially all of our subsidiaries as security for the line of credit. In addition, the line of credit includes customary events of defaults, including a change of control default and an event of default if a material adverse effect occurs with respect to certain FDA or health care matters. In case of an event of default, the agent would be entitled to, among other things, accelerate payment of amounts due under the line of credit, foreclose on the equity of our subsidiaries, and exercise all rights of a secured creditor on behalf of the lenders.

Table of Contents

Other Debt

Stakeholder Debt

We are also indebted to certain current or former stakeholders. The following outstanding principal balances are as of June 30, 2014. We are indebted to Mark Chaffee, a former shareholder, in the amount of \$12.7 million in connection with our redemption of Mr. Chaffee's shares. We issued Mr. Chaffee a promissory note, secured by a pledge on certain treasury shares, which bears interest at a rate of 1.3% per annum and matures in January of 2017. We are indebted to Jeffrey M. Rowe, an existing shareholder, executive officer, and director, in the amount of \$7.1 million for the redemption of common stock effective September 18, 2012. We issued Mr. Rowe a promissory note which requires us to pay equal quarterly installments of \$100,000 at an interest rate of 1.3% per annum with a final payment of \$6,161,966 on July 20, 2017. We are indebted to Deborah Ward, an existing shareholder and the sister of Philip Hagerman, our Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chief Executive Officer, in the amount of \$0.2 million in connection with our redemption of certain of Ms. Ward's shares. On June 7, 2012, we issued Ms. Ward a non-interest bearing promissory note which requires us to pay quarterly installments of \$40,000 until paid in full on April 20, 2015. We are indebted to Stephen M. Lund, a former employee and option holder, in the amount of \$0.9 million in connection with the repurchase of his then-existing options. We issued Mr. Lund a promissory note dated October 1, 2012 which bears interest at the prime rate plus 1.0%, requires payment of quarterly installments of \$71,150.65 plus interest, and matures on July 20, 2017.

Mortgage

We entered into a \$7,440,000 mortgage loan with JP Morgan Chase in December 2010 for the purchase of our headquarters building. The outstanding principal and interest amount of \$2.6 million was paid in full in May 2014.

128

SHARES ELIGIBLE FOR FUTURE SALE

Prior to this offering, there has been no market for our common stock. Future sales of substantial amounts of our common stock in the public market or the perception that such sales might occur could adversely affect market prices prevailing from time to time. Furthermore, because only a limited number of shares will be available for sale shortly after this offering due to existing contractual and legal restrictions on resale as described below, there may be sales of substantial amounts of our common stock in the public market after the restrictions lapse. This may adversely affect the prevailing market price and our ability to raise equity capital in the future.

Upon the completion of this offering, assuming no exercise of outstanding options, we will have 50,448,774 shares of common stock outstanding. Of these shares, the 13,333,333 shares sold in this offering will be freely transferable without restriction or registration under the Securities Act, except for any shares purchased by one of our existing "affiliates," as that term is defined in Rule 144 under the Securities Act. The remaining shares of common stock held by our existing shareholders are "restricted securities" as defined in Rule 144. Restricted shares may be sold in the public market only if registered under the Securities Act or if they qualify for an exemption from registration, including, among others, the exemptions provided by Rules 144 and 701 promulgated by the SEC under the Securities Act. As a result of the contractual 180-day lock-up period described in "Underwriting (Conflicts of Interest)" and the provisions of Rules 144 and 701, these shares will be available for sale in the public market as follows:

| Number of Shares | Date |
|------------------|---|
| 13,333,333 | On the date of this prospectus. |
| | After 90 days from the date of this prospectus. |
| | After 180 days from the date of this prospectus (subject, in some cases, to |
| 37,115,411 | volume limitations). |
| | |

Lock-Up Agreements

In connection with this offering, we, our directors and our executive officers (including the selling shareholders, but excluding shares to be sold in this offering by such selling shareholders), and certain other holders of our common stock or options to purchase common stock have agreed with the underwriters, subject to certain exceptions, not to dispose of or hedge any of our common stock or securities convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable for shares of our common stock, file or cause to be filed a registration statement covering shares of common stock or any securities that are convertible into, exercisable or exchangeable for any shares of our common stock, or publicly disclose the intention to do any of the foregoing, during the period from the date of this prospectus continuing through the date 180 days after the date of this prospectus, except with the prior written consent of Credit Suisse Securities (USA) LLC and Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC. For additional information, including regarding certain exceptions to which this agreement is subject, see "Underwriting (Conflicts of Interest)". Following the lock-up period, substantially all of the shares of our common stock that are restricted securities or are held by our affiliates as of the date of this prospectus will be eligible for sale in the public market in compliance with Rule 144.

Rule 144

In general, under Rule 144, an affiliate who beneficially owns shares that were purchased from us, or any affiliate, at least six months previously, is entitled to sell, upon the expiration of the lock-up agreement described in "Underwriting (Conflicts of Interest)," within any three-month period beginning 90 days after the date of this prospectus, a number of shares that does not exceed the greater of 1% of our then-outstanding shares of common stock, which will equal approximately 504,487 shares immediately after the completion of this offering, or the average weekly trading volume of our common

Table of Contents

stock on the New York Stock Exchange during the four calendar weeks preceding the filing of a notice of the sale with the SEC. Sales under Rule 144 are also subject to certain manner of sale provisions, notice requirements and the availability of current public information about us.

Following this offering, a person that is not an affiliate of ours at the time of, or at any time during the three months preceding, a sale and who has beneficially owned restricted securities within the meaning of Rule 144 for at least six months, may sell shares subject only to the availability of current public information about us, and any such person who has beneficially owned restricted shares of our common stock for at least one year may sell shares without restriction.

We are unable to estimate the number of shares that will be sold under Rule 144 since this will depend on the market price for our common stock, the personal circumstances of the shareholder and other factors.

Rule 701

In general, under Rule 701, any of our employees, directors, officers, consultants or advisors who purchased shares from us in connection with a compensatory stock or option plan or other written agreement before the effective date of this offering is entitled to resell such shares 90 days after the effective date of this offering in reliance on Rule 144, without having to comply with the holding period requirements or other restrictions contained in Rule 701.

The SEC has indicated that Rule 701 will apply to typical stock options granted by an issuer before it becomes subject to the reporting requirements of the Exchange Act, along with the shares acquired upon exercise of such options, including exercises after the date of this prospectus. Securities issued in reliance on Rule 701 are restricted securities and, subject to the contractual restrictions described above, beginning 90 days after the date of this prospectus, may be sold by persons other than "affiliates," as defined in Rule 144, subject only to the manner of sale provisions of Rule 144 and by "affiliates" under Rule 144 without compliance with its one-year minimum holding period requirement.

Registration Statements on Form S-8

We intend to file a registration statement on Form S-8 under the Securities Act to register all of the shares of common stock issued or reserved for issuance under our 2007 Option Plan, and our 2014 Omnibus Plan, which will be effective immediately prior to the completion of this offering. This registration statement would cover approximately 4,000,000 shares as of the date of this offering. Shares registered under the registration statement will generally be available for sale in the open market after the 180-day lock-up period immediately following the date of this prospectus (as such period may be extended in certain circumstances).

Registration Rights

Beginning 180 days after the date of this prospectus, subject to certain exceptions and automatic extensions in certain circumstances, certain holders of shares of our common stock will be entitled to the rights described under "Certain Relationships and Related-Party Transactions Registration Rights Agreement." Registration of these shares under the Securities Act would result in these shares becoming freely tradable without restriction under the Securities Act immediately upon effectiveness of the registration.

MATERIAL U.S. FEDERAL INCOME AND ESTATE TAX CONSIDERATIONS FOR NON-U.S. HOLDERS OF COMMON STOCK

The following discussion is a summary of the material U.S. federal income and estate tax considerations with respect to the acquisition, ownership and disposition of our common stock by "Non-U.S. Holders" (defined below). This discussion applies only if you (1) purchase our common stock in this offering, (2) will hold the common stock as a capital asset and (3) are a "Non-U.S. Holder." You are a Non-U.S. Holder if, for U.S. federal income tax purposes, you are a beneficial owner of shares of our common stock and are not:

an individual who is a citizen or resident of the United States;

a corporation or other entity taxable as a corporation created or organized in, or under the laws of, the United States, any state thereof or the District of Columbia;

an estate, the income of which is subject to U.S. federal income taxation regardless of its source;

a trust, if a court within the United States is able to exercise primary supervision over the administration of the trust and one or more U.S. persons have the authority to control all substantial decisions of the trust; or

a trust that has a valid election in place pursuant to the applicable Treasury regulations to be treated as a U.S. person for U.S. federal income tax purposes.

This discussion assumes that a Non-U.S. Holder will hold our common stock as a capital asset (generally, property held for investment). The summary does not address all of the U.S. federal income and estate tax considerations that may be relevant to you in the light of your particular circumstances or if you are a beneficial owner subject to special treatment under U.S. federal income tax laws (for instance, you are a controlled foreign corporation, passive foreign investment company, company that accumulates earnings to avoid U.S. federal income tax, foreign tax-exempt organization, bank, financial institution, broker or dealer in securities, insurance company, regulated investment company, real estate investment trust, person who holds our common stock as part of a hedging or conversion transaction or as part of a short-sale or straddle, U.S. expatriate, former long-term permanent resident of the United States or partnership or other pass-through entity for U.S. federal income tax purposes). This summary does not discuss non-income taxes (except, to a limited extent below, the U.S. federal estate tax), any aspect of the U.S. federal alternative minimum tax or state, local or non-U.S. taxation. This summary is based on current provisions of the Code, Treasury regulations, judicial opinions, published positions of the Internal Revenue Service ("IRS"), and all other applicable authorities (we refer to all such sources of law in this prospectus as "Tax Authorities"). The Tax Authorities are subject to change, possibly with retroactive effect.

If you are an individual, you may be deemed to be a resident alien, as opposed to a nonresident alien, by virtue of being present in the United States for at least 31 days in the calendar year and for an aggregate of at least 183 days during a three-year period ending in the current calendar year. For these purposes, all the days present in the current year, one-third of the days present in the immediately preceding year, and one-sixth of the days present in the second preceding year are counted. Resident aliens are subject to U.S. federal income tax as if they were U.S. citizens. Such an individual is urged to consult his or her own tax advisor regarding the U.S. federal income tax consequences of the ownership or disposition of our common stock.

If a partnership (or an entity or arrangement classified as a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes) beneficially owns our common stock, the tax treatment of a partner will generally depend on the status of the partner and the activities of the partnership. If you are a partner of a partnership owning our common stock, you should consult your own tax advisor.

Table of Contents

WE URGE PROSPECTIVE INVESTORS TO CONSULT THEIR OWN TAX ADVISORS REGARDING THE U.S. FEDERAL, STATE, LOCAL AND NON-U.S. INCOME AND OTHER TAX CONSIDERATIONS OF ACQUIRING, HOLDING AND DISPOSING OF SHARES OF OUR COMMON STOCK.

Distributions

Although we do not anticipate that we will pay any dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable future, to the extent dividends are paid to Non-U.S. Holders, such distributions will be subject to U.S. withholding tax at a rate of 30% of the gross amount of the dividend, unless you are eligible for a reduced rate of withholding tax under an applicable income tax treaty and you properly provide the payor or the relevant withholding agent with an IRS Form W-8BEN or IRS Form W-8BEN-E, or successor form, claiming an exemption from or reduction in withholding under the applicable income tax treaty. Special certification and other requirements may apply if you hold shares of our common stock through certain foreign intermediaries. For payments made to a partnership or other pass-through entity, the certification requirements generally apply to the partners or other owners rather than to the partnership or other entity, and the partnership or other entity must provide the partners' or other owners' documentation to us or our paying agent. A distribution of cash or other property (other than certain pro rata distributions of our common stock) in respect of our common stock will constitute a dividend for U.S. federal income tax purposes to the extent of our current or accumulated earnings and profits as determined under the Tax Authorities. Any distribution not constituting a dividend will be treated first as reducing your adjusted tax basis in your shares of our common stock and, to the extent it exceeds your tax basis, as capital gain from the sale of stock as described below under the heading "Sale or Other Disposition of Our Common Stock."

Dividends we pay to you that are effectively connected with your conduct of a trade or business within the United States (and, if certain income tax treaties apply, are attributable to a U.S. permanent establishment or a fixed base maintained by you) generally will not be subject to U.S. withholding tax if you provide an IRS Form W-8ECI, or successor form, to the payor. Instead, such dividends generally will be subject to U.S. federal income tax, net of certain deductions, at the same graduated individual or corporate rates applicable to U.S. persons. If you are a corporation, effectively connected income may also be subject to a "branch profits tax" at a rate of 30% (or such lower rate as may be specified by an applicable income tax treaty).

A Non-U.S. Holder that is eligible for a reduced rate of U.S. federal withholding tax under an income tax treaty may obtain a refund or credit of any excess amounts withheld by timely filing an appropriate claim for a refund together with the required information with the IRS.

Sale or Other Disposition of Our Common Stock

Subject to the discussions of backup withholding and FATCA below, you generally will not be subject to U.S. federal income tax on any gain realized upon the sale or other disposition of your shares of our common stock unless:

the gain is effectively connected with your conduct of a trade or business within the United States (and, under certain income tax treaties, is attributable to a U.S. permanent establishment or a fixed U.S. base maintained by you);

you are an individual, you are present in the United States for a period or periods aggregating 183 days or more in the taxable year of disposition and you meet other conditions; or

we are or have been a "United States real property holding corporation" for U.S. federal income tax purposes (which we believe we are not and have not been and do not anticipate we will become) and you hold or have held, directly or indirectly, more than five percent of our

Table of Contents

common stock at any time within the five-year period ending on the date of disposition of our common stock.

If you are described in the first bullet point above, you will be subject to U.S. federal income tax on the gain from the sale, net of certain deductions, at the same rates applicable to U.S. persons and, if you are a corporation, the 30% branch profits tax also may apply to such effectively connected gain. If you are described in the second bullet point above, you generally will be subject to U.S. federal income tax at a rate of 30% on the gain realized, although the gain may be offset by certain U.S. source capital losses realized during the same taxable year. Non-U.S. Holders should consult any applicable income tax or other treaties that may provide for different rules.

Information Reporting and Backup Withholding Requirements

We must report annually to the IRS the amount of any dividends or other distributions we pay to you and the amount of tax we withhold on these distributions regardless of whether withholding is required. A similar report will be sent to you. The IRS may make available copies of the information returns reporting those distributions and amounts withheld to the tax authorities in the country in which you reside pursuant to the provisions of an applicable income tax treaty or exchange of information treaty.

The United States imposes a backup withholding tax at a rate of 28% on any dividends and certain other types of payments to U.S. persons. You will not be subject to backup withholding tax on dividends you receive on your shares of our common stock if you provide proper certification of your status as a Non-U.S. Holder or you are one of several types of entities and organizations that qualify for an exemption (an "exempt recipient") and neither we nor the payor has actual knowledge (or reason to know) that you are a U.S. holder that is not an exempt recipient.

Information reporting and backup withholding generally are not required with respect to the amount of any proceeds from the sale of your shares of our common stock outside the United States through a foreign office of a foreign broker that does not have certain specified connections to the United States. If you sell your shares of our common stock through a U.S. broker or the U.S. office of a foreign broker, however, the broker will be required to report to the IRS the amount of proceeds paid to you and also backup withhold on that amount, unless you provide appropriate certification to the broker of your status as a Non-U.S. Holder or you are an exempt recipient. Information reporting will also apply if you sell your shares of our common stock through a foreign broker deriving more than a specified percentage of its income from U.S. sources or having certain other connections to the United States, unless such broker has documentary evidence in its records that you are a Non-U.S. Holder and certain other conditions are met, or you are an exempt recipient.

Backup withholding is not an additional tax. Any amounts withheld under the backup withholding rules from a payment to you with respect to your shares of our common stock will be refunded to you if withholding results in an overpayment of taxes or credited against your U.S. federal income tax liability, if any, by the IRS if you furnish the required information to the IRS in a timely manner.

FATCA

Sections 1471 through 1474 of the Code (provisions commonly known as "FATCA") may impose a withholding tax of 30% on dividends and the gross proceeds of a disposition of our shares paid to a foreign financial institution unless such institution enters into an agreement with the U.S. government to withhold on certain payments and collect and provide to the U.S. tax authorities substantial information regarding U.S. account holders of such institution (which would include certain account holders that are foreign entities with U.S. owners) and meets certain other requirements. This legislation may also impose a withholding tax of 30% on dividends and the gross proceeds of a disposition of our shares paid (directly or indirectly) to a non-financial foreign entity that is the

Table of Contents

beneficial owner of the payment unless such entity certifies that it does not have any substantial U.S. owners or provides the name, address and taxpayer identification number of each substantial U.S. owner and such entity meets certain other requirements. Under certain circumstances, a Non-U.S. Holder of our common stock may be eligible for a refund or credit of such taxes. Any withholding obligations under FATCA became effective July 1, 2014 with respect to dividends and are expected to become effective on or after January 1, 2017 with respect to gross proceeds. Congress has delegated broad authority to the U.S. Treasury Department to promulgate regulations to implement FATCA. We cannot predict whether or how any such regulations will affect you. You should consult your own tax advisor as to the possible implications of this legislation on your investment in shares of our common stock.

U.S. Federal Estate Tax

Shares of our common stock owned or treated as owned by an individual who is not a citizen or resident (as defined for U.S. federal estate tax purposes) of the United States at the time of his or her death will be included in the individual's gross estate for U.S. federal estate tax purposes and therefore may be subject to U.S. federal estate tax unless an applicable tax treaty provides otherwise.

The preceding discussion of U.S. federal income and estate tax considerations is for general information only. It is not tax advice. Each prospective investor should consult his or her own tax advisor regarding the particular U.S. federal, state, local and non-U.S. tax consequences of purchasing, holding and disposing of our common stock, including the consequences of any proposed change in applicable laws.

UNDERWRITING (CONFLICTS OF INTEREST)

Under the terms and subject to the conditions contained in an underwriting agreement dated October 9, 2014, we and the selling shareholders have agreed to sell to the underwriters named below, for whom Credit Suisse Securities (USA) LLC and Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC are acting as representatives (the "representatives"), the following respective numbers of shares of common stock:

| Underwriter | Number of Shares |
|------------------------------------|------------------|
| Credit Suisse Securities (USA) LLC | 4,000,000 |
| Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC | 4,000,000 |
| J.P. Morgan Securities LLC | 2,000,000 |
| Wells Fargo Securities, LLC | 1,666,667 |
| William Blair & Company, L.L.C. | 1,000,000 |
| Leerink Partners LLC | 666,666 |
| Total | 13,333,333 |

The underwriting agreement provides that the underwriters are obligated to purchase all the shares of common stock in the offering if any are purchased, other than those shares covered by the over-allotment option described below. The underwriting agreement also provides that, if an underwriter defaults, the purchase commitments of non-defaulting underwriters may be increased or the offering may be terminated.

The selling shareholders have granted to the underwriters a 30-day option to purchase up to 2,000,000 additional outstanding shares from the selling shareholders, in each case at the initial public offering price less the underwriting discounts and commissions. The option may be exercised only to cover any over-allotments of common stock.

The underwriters propose to offer the shares of common stock initially at the public offering price on the cover page of this prospectus and to selling group members at that price less a selling concession of \$0.5265 per share. After the initial public offering, the representatives may change the public offering price and concession.

The following table summarizes the compensation and estimated expenses we and the selling shareholders will pay:

| | Per Share | | | | | To | tal | | |
|---|------------------|-----------|----|-----------|------------------|-----------|------|-----------|--|
| | Without Over- | | | | Without Over- | | With | | |
| | | | | | | | | Over- | |
| | al | allotment | | allotment | | allotment | | allotment | |
| Underwriting Discounts and Commissions paid by us | \$ | 0.8775 | \$ | 0.8775 | \$ | 8,775,000 | \$ | 9,652,500 | |
| Expenses payable by us(1) | \$ | 0.1666 | \$ | 0.1448 | \$ | 2,221,000 | \$ | 2,221,000 | |
| Underwriting Discounts and Commissions paid by the selling shareholders | \$ | 0.8775 | \$ | 0.8775 | \$ | 2,925,000 | \$ | 3,802,500 | |
| Expenses payable by the selling shareholders | | | | | | | | | |

(1) We have agreed to reimburse the underwriters for the reasonable fees and expenses up to \$25,000 of counsel for the underwriters related to the review by the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority, Inc. of the offering.

The representatives have informed us that they do not expect sales to accounts over which the underwriters have discretionary authority to exceed 5% of the shares of common stock being offered.

We have agreed that we will not offer, sell, issue, contract to sell, issue, pledge or otherwise dispose of, directly or indirectly, or file with the Securities and Exchange Commission a registration statement under the Securities Act relating to, any shares of our common stock or securities convertible

Table of Contents

into or exchangeable or exercisable for any shares of our common stock, or publicly disclose the intention to make any offer, sale, pledge, disposition or filing, without the prior written consent of the representatives for a period of 180 days after the date of this prospectus, subject to certain exceptions. However, in the event that either (1) during the last 17 days of the "lock-up" period, we release earnings results or material news or a material event relating to us occurs or (2) prior to the expiration of the "lock-up" period, we announce that we will release earnings results during the 16-day period beginning on the last day of the "lock-up" period, then in either case the expiration of the "lock-up" will be extended until the expiration of the 18-day period beginning on the date of the release of the earnings results or the occurrence of the material news or event, as applicable, unless the representatives waive, in writing, such an extension.

Our officers and directors (including the selling shareholders, but excluding shares to be sold in this offering by such selling shareholders) and certain of our other shareholders, collectively representing in the aggregate 100% of our common stock on a fully diluted basis, have agreed, subject to specified exceptions, that they will not offer, sell, contract to sell, pledge or otherwise dispose of, directly or indirectly, any shares of our common stock or securities convertible into or exchangeable or exercisable for any shares of our common stock, enter into a transaction that would have the same effect, or enter into any swap, hedge or other arrangement that transfers, in whole or in part, any of the economic consequences of ownership of our common stock, whether any of these transactions are to be settled by delivery of our common stock or other securities, in cash or otherwise, or publicly disclose the intention to make any offer, sale, pledge or disposition, or to enter into any transaction, swap, hedge or other arrangement, without, in each case, the prior written consent of the representatives for a period of 180 days after the date of this prospectus. However, in the event that either (1) during the last 17 days of the "lock-up" period, we release earnings results or material news or a material event relating to us occurs or (2) prior to the expiration of the "lock-up" period, we announce that we will release earnings results during the 16-day period beginning on the last day of the "lock-up" period, then in either case the expiration of the "lock-up" will be extended until the expiration of the 18-day period beginning on the date of the release of the earnings results or the occurrence of the material news or event, as applicable, unless the representatives waive, in writing, such an extension. The representatives may, in their discretion, release any of the securities subject to the lock-up agreements at any time.

The underwriters have reserved for sale at the initial public offering price up to 666,667 shares of the common stock for employees, directors and other persons associated with us who have expressed an interest in purchasing common stock in the offering. If purchased by these persons, these shares will be subject to a 180-day lock-up restriction. The number of shares available for sale to the general public in the offering will be reduced to the extent these persons purchase the reserved shares. Any reserved shares not so purchased will be offered by the underwriters to the general public on the same terms as the other shares.

We and the selling shareholders have agreed to indemnify the underwriters against liabilities under the Securities Act, or contribute to payments that the underwriters may be required to make in that respect.

Our common stock has been approved for listing on the New York Stock Exchange, under the symbol "DPLO".

Prior to this offering, there has been no public market for our common stock. The initial public offering price was determined by negotiations among us, the selling shareholders and the representatives and will not necessarily reflect the market price of the common stock following this offering. The principal factors that were considered in determining the initial public offering price included:

the information presented in this prospectus and otherwise available to the underwriters;

the history of, and prospects for, the industry in which we will compete;

136

Table of Contents

the ability of our management;

the prospects for our future earnings;

the present state of our development, results of operations and our current financial condition;

the general condition of the securities markets at the time of this offering; and

the recent market prices of, and the demand for, publicly traded common stock of generally comparable companies.

We cannot assure you that the initial public offering price will correspond to the price at which the common stock will trade in the public market subsequent to this offering.

The underwriters and their respective affiliates are full-service financial institutions engaged in various activities, which may include securities trading, commercial and investment banking, financial advisory, investment management, investment research, principal investment, hedging, financing and brokerage activities. Certain of the underwriters and their respective affiliates have, from time to time, performed, and may in the future perform, various financial advisory and investment banking services for us, for which they received or will receive customary fees and expenses. An affiliate of J.P. Morgan Securities LLC and an affiliate of Wells Fargo Securities, LLC are lenders under our line of credit (see "Conflicts of Interest").

In addition, in the ordinary course of their business activities, the underwriters and their affiliates may make or hold a broad array of investments and actively trade debt and equity securities (or related derivative securities) and financial instruments (including bank loans) for their own account and for the accounts of their customers. These investments and securities activities may involve securities and/or instruments of ours or our affiliates. The underwriters and their affiliates may also make investment recommendations and/or publish or express independent research views in respect of such securities or financial instruments and may hold, or recommend to clients that they acquire, long and/or short positions in such securities and instruments.

In connection with the offering the underwriters may engage in stabilizing transactions, over-allotment transactions, syndicate covering transactions and penalty bids in accordance with Regulation M under the Exchange Act.

Stabilizing transactions permit bids to purchase the underlying security so long as the stabilizing bids do not exceed a specified maximum.

Over-allotment involves sales by the underwriters of shares in excess of the number of shares the underwriters are obligated to purchase, which creates a syndicate short position. The short position may be either a covered short position or a naked short position. In a covered short position, the number of shares over-allotted by the underwriters is not greater than the number of shares that they may purchase in the over-allotment option. In a naked short position, the number of shares involved is greater than the number of shares in the over-allotment option. The underwriters may close out any covered short position by either exercising their over-allotment option and/or purchasing shares in the open market.

Syndicate covering transactions involve purchases of the common stock in the open market after the distribution has been completed in order to cover syndicate short positions. In determining the source of shares to close out the short position, the underwriters will consider, among other things, the price of shares available for purchase in the open market as compared to the price at which they may purchase shares through the over-allotment option. If the underwriters sell more shares than could be covered by the over-allotment option, a naked short position, the position can only be closed out by buying shares in the open market. A naked short position is more likely to be created if the underwriters are concerned that there could be downward pressure on the price of the shares in the open market after pricing that could adversely affect investors who purchase in this offering.

Table of Contents

Penalty bids permit the representatives to reclaim a selling concession from a syndicate member when the common stock originally sold by the syndicate member is purchased in a stabilizing or syndicate covering transaction to cover syndicate short positions.

These stabilizing transactions, syndicate covering transactions and penalty bids may have the effect of raising or maintaining the market price of our common stock or preventing or retarding a decline in the market price of the common stock. As a result the price of our common stock may be higher than the price that might otherwise exist in the open market. These transactions may be effected on the New York Stock Exchange or otherwise and, if commenced, may be discontinued at any time.

A prospectus in electronic format may be made available on the web sites maintained by one or more of the underwriters, or selling group members, if any, participating in this offering, and one or more of the underwriters participating in this offering may distribute prospectuses electronically. The representatives may agree to allocate a number of shares to underwriters and selling group members for sale to their online brokerage account holders. Internet distributions will be allocated by the underwriters and selling group members that will make internet distributions on the same basis as other allocations.

Conflicts of Interest

Affiliates of J.P. Morgan Securities LLC and Wells Fargo Securities, LLC, two of the underwriters in this offering, are lenders under our line of credit that will be repaid with net proceeds of this offering. See "Use of Proceeds". As a result of the repayment of our line of credit, we expect affiliates of J.P. Morgan Securities LLC and Wells Fargo Securities, LLC, in each case will receive at least 5% of the net proceeds of this offering. As a result of this repayment, we expect a "conflict of interest" will be deemed to exist under FINRA Rule 5121(f)(5)(C)(i), and this offering will be made in compliance with the applicable provisions of FINRA Rule 5121. To comply with Rule 5121, each of J.P. Morgan Securities LLC and Wells Fargo Securities, LLC will not confirm any sales to any account over which it exercises discretionary authority without the specific written approval of the transaction from the account holder.

European Economic Area

In relation to each Member State of the European Economic Area which has implemented the Prospectus Directive (each, a "Relevant Member State"), with effect from and including the date on which the Prospectus Directive is implemented in that Relevant Member State (the "Relevant Implementation Date"), our common shares will not be offered to the public in that Relevant Member State prior to the publication of a prospectus in relation to the common shares that has been approved by the competent authority in that Relevant Member State or, where appropriate, approved in another Relevant Member State and notified to the competent authority in that Relevant Member State, all in accordance with the Prospectus Directive, except that, with effect from and including the Relevant Implementation Date, an offer of common shares may be made to the public in that Relevant Member State at any time:

to any legal entity that is a qualified investor as defined in the Prospectus Directive;

to fewer than 100 or, if the Relevant Member State has implemented the relevant provision of the 2010 PD Amending Directive, 150, natural or legal persons (other than qualified investors as defined in the Prospectus Directive), as permitted under the Prospectus Directive, subject to obtaining the prior consent of the manager for any such offer; or

in any other circumstances which do not require the publication by the issuer of a prospectus pursuant to Article 3(2) of the Prospectus Directive.

For the purposes of this provision, the expression an "offer of common shares to the public" in relation to any shares in any Relevant Member State means the communication in any form and by any

Table of Contents

means of sufficient information on the terms of the offer and the common shares to be offered so as to enable an investor to decide to purchase or subscribe to the common shares, as the same may be varied in that Relevant Member State by any measure implementing the Prospectus Directive in that Relevant Member State. The expression "Prospectus Directive" means Directive 2003/71/EC (and amendments thereto, including the 2010 PD Amending Directive, to the extent implemented in the Relevant Member State) and includes any relevant implementing measure in each Relevant Member State, and the expression "2010 PD Amending Directive" means Directive 2010/73/EU.

United Kingdom

Our common stock may not be offered or sold and will not be offered or sold to any persons in the United Kingdom other than persons whose ordinary activities involve them in acquiring, holding, managing or disposing of investments (as principal or as agent) for the purposes of their businesses and in compliance with all applicable provisions of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 ("FSMA") with respect to anything done in relation to our common stock in, from or otherwise involving the United Kingdom.

In addition, each underwriter:

has only communicated or caused to be communicated and will only communicate or cause to be communicated an invitation or inducement to engage in investment activity (within the meaning of section 21 of FSMA) to persons who have professional experience in matters relating to investments falling within Article 19(5) of the Financial Services and Markets Act of 2000 (Financial Promotion) Order 2005 or in circumstances in which section 21 of FSMA does not apply to us; and

has complied with, and will comply with all applicable provisions of FSMA with respect to anything done by it in relation to the common stock in, from or otherwise involving the United Kingdom.

Hong Kong

The shares of common stock may not be offered or sold by means of any document other than (i) in circumstances which do not constitute an offer to the public within the meaning of the Companies Ordinance (Cap.32, Laws of Hong Kong), or (ii) to "professional investors" within the meaning of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap.571, Laws of Hong Kong) and any rules made thereunder, or (iii) in other circumstances which do not result in the document being a "prospectus" within the meaning of the Companies Ordinance (Cap.32, Laws of Hong Kong), and no advertisement, invitation or document relating to the shares of common stock may be issued or may be in the possession of any person for the purpose of issue (in each case whether in Hong Kong or elsewhere), which is directed at, or the contents of which are likely to be accessed or read by, the public in Hong Kong (except if permitted to do so under the laws of Hong Kong) other than with respect to shares of common stock which are or are intended to be disposed of only to persons outside Hong Kong or only to "professional investors" within the meaning of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571, Laws of Hong Kong) and any rules made thereunder.

Singapore

This prospectus has not been registered as a prospectus with the Monetary Authority of Singapore. Accordingly, this prospectus supplement, the accompanying prospectus and any other document or material in connection with the offer or sale, or invitation for subscription or purchase, of the shares of common stock may not be circulated or distributed, nor may the shares of common stock be offered or sold, or be made the subject of an invitation for subscription or purchase, whether directly or indirectly, to persons in Singapore other than (i) to an institutional investor under Section 274 of the Securities and Futures Act, Chapter 289 of Singapore (the "SFA"), (ii) to a relevant person, or any person

139

Table of Contents

pursuant to Section 275(1A), and in accordance with the conditions, specified in Section 275 of the SFA or (iii) otherwise pursuant to, and in accordance with the conditions of, any other applicable provision of the SFA.

Where the shares of common stock are subscribed or purchased under Section 275 by a relevant person which is: (i) a corporation (which is not an accredited investor) the sole business of which is to hold investments and the entire share capital of which is owned by one or more individuals, each of whom is an accredited investor; or (ii) a trust (where the trustee is not an accredited investor) whose sole purpose is to hold investments and each beneficiary is an accredited investor, shares, debentures and units of shares and debentures of that corporation or the beneficiaries' rights and interest in that trust shall not be transferable for six months after that corporation or that trust has acquired the shares under Section 275 except: (a) to an institutional investor under Section 274 of the SFA or to a relevant person, or any person pursuant to Section 275(1A), and in accordance with the conditions, specified in Section 275 of the SFA; (b) where no consideration is given for the transfer; or (c) by operation of law.

LEGAL MATTERS

The validity of the issuance of the shares of common stock offered hereby and certain legal matters in connection with this offering will be passed upon for Diplomat Pharmacy, Inc. by Honigman Miller Schwartz and Cohn LLP, Detroit, Michigan. The underwriters have been represented by Cravath, Swaine & Moore LLP, New York, New York, in connection with this offering.

EXPERTS

The consolidated financial statements of Diplomat Pharmacy, Inc. as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 and for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2013 included in this prospectus have been so included in reliance on the report of BDO USA, LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, given on the authority of said firm as experts in auditing and accounting.

The consolidated financial statements of American Homecare Federation, Inc. as of September 30, 2013 and for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 included in this prospectus have been so included in reliance on the reports of Plante Moran PLLC, an independent certified public accounting firm, given on the authority of said firm as experts in auditing and accounting.

The consolidated financial statements of MedPro Rx, Inc. as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 and for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2013, included in this prospectus have been so included in reliance on the report of BDO USA, LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, given on the authority of said firm as experts in auditing and accounting.

140

WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

We have filed with the SEC a registration statement, of which this prospectus is a part of, on Form S-1 under the Securities Act with respect to the shares of common stock offered hereby. This prospectus does not contain all of the information set forth in the registration statement and the exhibits, amendments and schedules thereto. Statements contained in this prospectus relating to the contents of any contract, agreement or other document are not necessarily complete, and, in each instance, we encourage you to read in its entirety the copy of the contract, agreement or other document filed as an exhibit to the registration statement. Whenever this prospectus refers to any contract, agreement or other document, you should refer to the exhibits that are a part of the registration statement for a copy of the contract, agreement or document. A copy of the registration statement, including the exhibits thereto, may be read and copied at the SEC's Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549. Information on the operation of the Public Reference Room may be obtained by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. In addition, the SEC maintains an Internet website that contains reports, proxy statements and other information about issuers, like us, that file electronically with the SEC; you may inspect these reports and other information without charge on that Internet website. The address of that site is www.sec.gov.

As a result of this offering, we will become subject to the informational requirements of the Exchange Act. We will fulfill our obligations with respect to such requirements by filing periodic reports and other information with the SEC. We intend to furnish our shareholders with annual reports containing consolidated financial statements certified by an independent public accounting firm.

Table of Contents

INDEX TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

| Audited Financial Statements: Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012, and 2011 E-5. Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' (Deficit) Equity for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 E-5. Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' (Deficit) Equity for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 E-6. Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets as of June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013 Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations for the six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 E-30 Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 E-30 Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 E-31 Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements Financial Statements of American Homecare Federation, Inc. Audited Financial Statements of American Homecare Federation, Inc. Audited Financial Statements Independent Auditor's Report Consolidated Statement of Operations and Comprehensive Income for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 E-56 Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 E-58 Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 E-58 Consolidated Statements of MedPro Rx, Inc. Audited Financial Statements Financial Statements of MedPro Rx, Inc. Consolidated Statements of Income for the para ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 E-60 Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 E-61 Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 E-72 Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 E-7 | | Page |
|--|---|-------------|
| Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 E-54 Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012, and 2011 E-56 Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Updricti Equity for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 E-66 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012, and 2011 E-67 Unaudited Financial Statements Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets as of June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013 Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations for the six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 E-72 Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 E-73 Condensed Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Deficit for the six months ended June 30, 2014 E-74 Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements Financial Statements of American Homecare Federation, Inc. **Audited Financial Statements **Consolidated Balance Sheet as of September 30, 2013 E-75 Consolidated Balance Sheet as of September 30, 2013 E-75 Consolidated Statement of Operations and Comprehensive Income for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 E-75 Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 E-75 Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 E-75 Consolidated Statements of MedPro Rx, Inc. **Audited Financial Statements **Independent Auditor's Report Consolidated Statements of MedPro Rx, Inc. **Audited Financial Statements **Federatements **Consolidated Statements of Income for the vears ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 E-76 Consolidated Statements of Income for the vears ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 E-77 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the vears ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 E-78 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the vears end | Financial Statements of Diplomat Pharmacy, Inc. | |
| Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 E-5 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012, and 2011 E-5 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 E-5 Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' (Deficit) Equity for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 E-7 Consolidated Statements Unaudited Financial Statements Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets as of June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013 E-20 Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations for the six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 E-20 Condensed Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Deficit for the six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 E-20 Condensed Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Deficit for the six months ended June 30, 2014 E-23 Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements Financial Statements of American Homecare Federation, Inc. Audited Financial Statements Independent Auditor's Report Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 E-55 Consolidated Statement of Operations and Comprehensive Income for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 E-58 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Financial Statements of MedPro Rx, Inc. Audited Financial Statements Independent Auditor's Report Consolidated Statements of MedPro Rx, Inc. Audited Financial Statements Independent Auditor's Report Consolidated Statements of MedPro Rx, Inc. Consolidated Balance Sheets as of Secure as ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 E-67 Consolidated Statements of MedPro Rx, Inc. Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 E-70 Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 E-71 Consolidated Balance Sheets as of March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 E-72 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows | Audited Financial Statements: | |
| Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 Consolidated Statements of Cash Plows for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012, and 2011 P-5. Consolidated Financial Statements Consolidated Financial Statements Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets as of June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013 Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations for the six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations for the six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 Condensed Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Clericit for the six months ended June 30, 2014 Condensed Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Deficit for the six months ended June 30, 2014 Condensed Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Deficit for the six months ended June 30, 2014 Condensed Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Deficit for the six months ended June 30, 2014 Condensed Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Deficit for the six months ended June 30, 2014 Condensed Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Deficit for the six months ended June 30, 2014 Consolidated Statements of American Homecare Federation, Inc. **Addited Financial Statements** **Independent Auditor's Report** Consolidated Statement of Operations and Comprehensive Income for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 Consolidated Statements of MedPro Rx, Inc. **Addited Financial Statements** **Addited Financial Statements** **Independent Auditor's Report** Consolidated Financial Statements** **Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 Consolidated Statements o | Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm | <u>F-2</u> |
| Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012, and 2011 E. Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' (Deficit) Equity for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 F. Consolidated Financial Statements Unaudited Financial Statements: Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets as of June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013 E. Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations for the six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 E. Condensed Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Deficit for the six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 E. Condensed Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Deficit for the six months ended June 30, 2014 E. Condensed Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Deficit for the six months ended June 30, 2014 E. Condensed Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Deficit for the six months ended June 30, 2014 E. Consolidated Statements of American Homecare Federation, Inc. Audited Financial Statements Financial Statements of American Homecare Federation, Inc. Audited Financial Statement of Operations and Comprehensive Income for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 E. Sonsolidated Statement of Operations and Comprehensive Income for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 E. Sonsolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 E. Sonsolidated Statements of MedPro Rx, Inc. Audited Financial Statements Independent Auditor's Report Consolidated Statements of MedPro Rx, Inc. Audited Financial Statements Independent Auditor's Report Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the vears ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 E. Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the vears ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 E. Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the vears ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 E. Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the vears ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 E. Consoli | Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 | <u>F-3</u> |
| Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' (Deficit) Equity for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 Feb. Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets as of June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013 Feb. Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 Feb. Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 Feb. Condensed Consolidated Statements of Saherholders' Deficit for the six months ended June 30, 2014 Feb. Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements Financial Statements of Marcholders' Deficit for the six months ended June 30, 2014 Feb. Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements Financial Statements of American Homecare Federation, Inc. Audited Financial Statements Financial Statements Federation, Inc. Audited Financial Statements Federation, Inc. Audited Financial Statement of Operations and Comprehensive Income for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 Feb. Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 Feb. Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 Feb. Financial Statements of MedPro Rx, Inc. Audited Financial Statements Audited Financial Statements Feb. Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 Feb. Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 Feb. Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 Feb. Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 Feb. Consolidated Statements of Income for the twears ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 Feb. Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 Feb. Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the three months | Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 | |
| Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets as of June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013 Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations for the six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 Condensed Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Deficit for the six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 Condensed Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Deficit for the six months ended June 30, 2014 Page 32 Condensed Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Deficit for the six months ended June 30, 2014 Repair Statements of American Homecare Federation, Inc. Audited Financial Statements Independent Auditor's Report Consolidated Balance Sheet as of September 30, 2013 Consolidated Statement of Operations and Comprehensive Income for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 Feb 30 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Feb 40 Financial Statements of MedPro Rx, Inc. Audited Financial Statements Independent Auditor's Report Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2011 Feb 30 Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2011 Feb 30 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the wears ended December 31, 2013 and 2011 Feb 30 Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2011 Feb 30 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the wears ended December 31, 2013 and 2011 Feb 30 Consolidated Statements of Income for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 Feb 30 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the wears ended December 31, 2013 Consolidated Statements of Income for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 Feb 30 Consolidated Statements of Income for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 Feb 30 Consolidated Statements of Income for the thr | Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012, and 2011 | |
| Unaudited Financial Statements: Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets as of June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013 F-20 Condensed Consolidated Statements of Coperations for the six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 F-30 Condensed Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Deficit for the six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 F-30 Condensed Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Deficit for the six months ended June 30, 2014 F-30 Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements Financial Statements of American Homecare Federation, Inc. Audited Financial Statements Independent Auditor's Report Consolidated Balance Sheet as of September 30, 2013 Consolidated Balance Sheet as of September 30, 2013 Consolidated Statement of Operations and Comprehensive Income for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 F-36 Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 F-37 Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 F-38 Consolidated Statements of MedPro Rx, Inc. Audited Financial Statements Independent Auditor's Report Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 F-68 Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 F-70 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the vears ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 F-70 Consolidated Balance Sheets as of March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 F-70 Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 F-70 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 F-78 Consolidated Statements of Income for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 F-78 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2013 F-78 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2014 F-88 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended March | Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' (Deficit) Equity for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 | <u>F-6</u> |
| Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets as of June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013 Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations for the six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 E.30 Condensed Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Deficit for the six months ended June 30, 2014 E.32 Notes to Condensed Consolidated Statements Friancial Statements of American Homecare Federation, Inc. Audited Financial Statements Financial Statements of American Homecare Federation, Inc. Audited Financial Statements Independent Auditor's Report Consolidated Statement of Operations and Comprehensive Income for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 E.55 Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 E.58 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Financial Statements of MedPro Rx, Inc. Audited Financial Statements Independent Auditor's Report Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 E.68 Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 E.69 Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 E.70 Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 E.71 Notes to Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 E.72 Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 E.72 Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 E.73 Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 E.74 Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the three months ended March 31, | Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements | <u>F-7</u> |
| Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations for the six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 Condensed Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Deficit for the six months ended June 30, 2014 Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements Financial Statements of American Homecare Federation, Inc. **Addited Financial Statements of American Homecare Federation, Inc.** **Addited Financial Statements of American Homecare Federation, Inc.** **Addited Financial Statements** **Consolidated Balance Sheet as of September 30, 2013 E-56 Consolidated Statement of Operations and Comprehensive Income for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 E-56 Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 E-57 Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 E-58 Consolidated Financial Statements Financial Statements of MedPro Rx, Inc.** **Addited Financial Statements **Addited Financial Statements **Independent Auditor's Report** Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 E-68 Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the vears ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 E-70 Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the vears ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 E-71 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2011 E-72 Consolidated Statements of Income for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 E-78 Consolidated Statements of Income for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 E-79 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 E-79 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 E-79 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 E-79 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the | Unaudited Financial Statements: | |
| Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 Condensed Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Deficit for the six months ended June 30, 2014 Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements Financial Statements of American Homecare Federation, Inc. Audited Financial Statements: Independent Auditor's Report Consolidated Balance Sheet as of September 30, 2013 Consolidated Statement of Operations and Comprehensive Income for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 E-57 Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 F-58 Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 F-59 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Financial Statements of MedPro Rx, Inc. Audited Financial Statements Financial Statements of MedPro Rx, Inc. Audited Financial Statements Independent Auditor's Report Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 F-60 Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 F-70 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 F-70 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 F-71 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 F-72 Consolidated Statements Consolidated Financial Statements Consolidated Financial Statements Consolidated Financial Statements F-82 Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 F-78 Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 F-78 Consolidated Financial Statements F-88 Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the three months ended M | Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets as of June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013 | <u>F-29</u> |
| Condensed Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Deficit for the six months ended June 30, 2014 F-32 Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements Financial Statements of American Homecare Federation, Inc. Audited Financial Statements Independent Auditor's Report Consolidated Balance Sheet as of September 30, 2013 F-56 Consolidated Statement of Operations and Comprehensive Income for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 F-57 Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 F-57 Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 F-57 Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 F-58 Consolidated Statements of MedPro Rx, Inc. Audited Financial Statements Independent Auditor's Report Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 F-60 Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 F-60 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 F-70 Notes to Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 F-71 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 F-72 Unaudited Financial Statements Consolidated Statements of Income for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 F-78 Consolidated Statements of Income for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 F-79 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 F-79 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 F-79 Consolidated Financial Statements F-81 Notes to Consolidated Financial Information of Diplomat Pharmacy, Inc. Pro forma Combined Consolidated Statement of Operations for the six months ended June 30, 2014 F-89 Pro forma Combined Consolidated Statement o | Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations for the six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 | F-30 |
| Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements Financial Statements of American Homecare Federation, Inc. Audited Financial Statements: Independent Auditor's Report Consolidated Balance Sheet as of September 30, 2013 E-55 Consolidated Statement of Operations and Comprehensive Income for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 E-57 Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 E-58 Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 E-58 Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 E-59 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Financial Statements of MedPro Rx, Inc. Audited Financial Statements Independent Auditor's Report Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 E-67 Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 E-68 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 E-70 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 E-70 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 E-71 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Consolidated Balance Sheets as of March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 E-78 Consolidated Statements of Income for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 E-78 Consolidated Statements of Income for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 E-78 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 E-78 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 E-79 Consolidated Prinancial Statements Consolidated Financial Statements Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 E-80 Consolidated Prinancial Statements Consolidated Financial Statements Consolidated Financial Statements Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the three months ended March 31, 20 | Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 | F-31 |
| Audited Financial Statements of American Homecare Federation, Inc. Audited Financial Statements: Independent Auditor's Report Consolidated Balance Sheet as of September 30, 2013 Consolidated Statement of Operations and Comprehensive Income for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 F-57 Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 F-58 Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 F-59 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Financial Statements of MedPro Rx, Inc. Audited Financial Statements Independent Auditor's Report Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 F-68 Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 F-69 Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 F-70 Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 F-71 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 F-72 Unaudited Financial Statements Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended Macch 31, 2014 and 2013 F-78 Consolidated Statements of Income for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 F-78 Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the three months ended March 31, 2014 F-80 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 F-78 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 F-79 Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the three months ended March 31, 2014 F-80 Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the three months ended March 31, 2014 F-80 Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the three months ended March 31, 2014 F-80 Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the th | Condensed Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Deficit for the six months ended June 30, 2014 | F-32 |
| Audited Financial Statements: Independent Auditor's Report Consolidated Balance Sheet as of September 30, 2013 Consolidated Statement of Operations and Comprehensive Income for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 E-57 Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 E-58 Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 E-59 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Financial Statements of MedPro Rx, Inc. Audited Financial Statements: Independent Auditor's Report Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 E-68 Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 E-70 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 E-71 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Unaudited Financial Statements Consolidated Balance Sheets as of March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 E-78 Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the three months ended March 31, 2014 E-70 Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the three months ended March 31, 2014 E-70 Consolidated Statements of Income for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 E-78 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 E-78 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 E-78 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 E-79 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 E-79 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 E-79 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 E-79 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the three months ended March 31, 201 | Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements | F-33 |
| Independent Auditor's Report Consolidated Balance Sheet as of September 30, 2013 E-56 Consolidated Statement of Operations and Comprehensive Income for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 E-57 Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 E-58 Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 E-58 Consolidated Statements of MedPro Rx, Inc. Audited Financial Statements Financial Statements of MedPro Rx, Inc. Audited Financial Statements Independent Auditor's Report Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 E-69 Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 E-70 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 E-71 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 E-72 Unaudited Financial Statements Consolidated Statements of Income for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 E-78 Consolidated Statements of Income for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 E-78 Consolidated Statements of Income for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 E-79 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 E-78 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 E-80 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 E-81 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements F-82 Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Financial Information of Diplomat Pharmacy, Inc. F-89 Pro forma Combined Consolidated Statement of Operations for the six months ended June 30, 2014 E-80 F-80 F-80 F-80 F-80 F-80 F-80 F-80 F | Financial Statements of American Homecare Federation, Inc. | |
| Consolidated Balance Sheet as of September 30, 2013 Consolidated Statement of Operations and Comprehensive Income for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 F-57 Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 F-58 Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 F-59 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Financial Statements of MedPro Rx, Inc. Audited Financial Statements F-60 Financial Statements of MedPro Rx, Inc. Audited Financial Statements Independent Auditor's Report Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 F-68 Consolidated Statements of Income for the vears ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 F-70 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 F-71 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Consolidated Financial Statements Consolidated Balance Sheets as of March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 Consolidated Statements of Income for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 F-78 Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the three months ended March 31, 2014 F-80 Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the three months ended March 31, 2014 F-80 Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the three months ended March 31, 2014 F-80 Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the three months ended March 31, 2014 F-80 Consolidated Statement of Operations for the six months ended June 30, 2014 F-80 Pro forma Combined Consolidated Statement of Operations for the six months ended June 30, 2014 F-90 Pro forma Combined Consolidated Statement of Operations for the six months ended December 31, 2013 F-91 Notes to Pro forma Combined Consolidated Financial Information F-92 | Audited Financial Statements: | |
| Consolidated Balance Sheet as of September 30, 2013 Consolidated Statement of Operations and Comprehensive Income for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 F-57 Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 F-58 Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 F-59 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Financial Statements of MedPro Rx, Inc. Audited Financial Statements F-60 Financial Statements of MedPro Rx, Inc. Audited Financial Statements Independent Auditor's Report Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 F-68 Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 F-70 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 F-71 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Consolidated Balance Sheets as of March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 Consolidated Statements of Income for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 F-78 Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the three months ended March 31, 2014 F-80 Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the three months ended March 31, 2014 F-80 Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the three months ended March 31, 2014 F-81 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements F-82 Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Financial Information of Diplomat Pharmacy, Inc. F-89 Pro forma Combined Consolidated Balance Sheet as of June 30, 2014 F-90 Pro forma Combined Consolidated Statement of Operations for the six months ended June 30, 2014 F-90 Pro forma Combined Consolidated Statement of Operations for the six months ended December 31, 2013 F-91 Notes to Pro forma Combined Consolidated Financial Information F-92 | Independent Auditor's Report | F-55 |
| Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 F-58 Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 F-59 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements F-60 Financial Statements of MedPro Rx, Inc. Audited Financial Statements Independent Auditor's Report Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 F-60 Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 F-70 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the vears ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 F-71 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Consolidated Financial Statements Consolidated Balance Sheets as of March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 Consolidated Statements of Income for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 F-78 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 F-79 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 F-80 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 F-81 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements F-82 Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Financial Information of Diplomat Pharmacy, Inc. Pro forma Combined Consolidated Balance Sheet as of June 30, 2014 F-80 Pro forma Combined Consolidated Statement of Operations for the six months ended June 30, 2014 F-80 F | Consolidated Balance Sheet as of September 30, 2013 | |
| Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 F-50 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements F-60 Financial Statements of MedPro Rx, Inc. Audited Financial Statements: Independent Auditor's Report Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 Consolidated Balance Income for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 F-60 Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 F-70 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 F-71 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Consolidated Financial Statements Consolidated Balance Sheets as of March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 Consolidated Balance Sheets as of March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 F-78 Consolidated Statements of Income for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 F-79 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 F-79 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 F-80 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 F-81 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Financial Information of Diplomat Pharmacy, Inc. Pro forma Combined Consolidated Balance Sheet as of June 30, 2014 F-80 Pro forma Combined Consolidated Statement of Operations for the syst months ended June 30, 2014 F-80 Pro forma Combined Consolidated Statement of Operations for the year ended December 31, 2013 F-81 Notes to Pro forma Combined Consolidated Financial Information F-90 Pro forma Combined Consolidated Financial Information F-91 Notes to Pro forma Combined Consolidated Financial Information F-92 | Consolidated Statement of Operations and Comprehensive Income for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 | F-57 |
| Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Financial Statements of MedPro Rx, Inc. Audited Financial Statements: Independent Auditor's Report Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 F-68 Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 F-69 Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 F-70 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 F-71 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Consolidated Financial Statements Consolidated Balance Sheets as of March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 Consolidated Statements of Income for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 F-78 Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the three months ended March 31, 2014 F-80 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 F-81 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Pro forma Combined Consolidated Balance Sheet as of June 30, 2014 F-80 Pro forma Combined Consolidated Statement of Operations for the six months ended June 30, 2014 F-80 Pro forma Combined Consolidated Statement of Operations for the year ended December 31, 2013 F-91 Notes to Pro forma Combined Consolidated Financial Information F-92 | Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 | F-58 |
| Audited Financial Statements: Independent Auditor's Report Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 F-69 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 F-70 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 F-71 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements F-72 Unaudited Financial Statements Consolidated Balance Sheets as of March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 Consolidated Statements of Income for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 F-78 Consolidated Statements of Income for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 F-79 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 F-81 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements F-82 Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Financial Information of Diplomat Pharmacy, Inc. Pro forma Combined Consolidated Statement of Operations for the six months ended June 30, 2014 F-80 Pro forma Combined Consolidated Statement of Operations for the year ended December 31, 2013 F-81 Notes to Pro forma Combined Consolidated Financial Information F-92 Pro forma Combined Consolidated Financial Information F-92 | Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 | F-59 |
| Audited Financial Statements: Independent Auditor's Report Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 F-69 Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 F-69 Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 F-70 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 F-71 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements F-72 Unaudited Financial Statements Consolidated Balance Sheets as of March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 Consolidated Statements of Income for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 F-78 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 F-79 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 F-81 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements F-82 Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Financial Information of Diplomat Pharmacy, Inc. Pro forma Combined Consolidated Statement of Operations for the six months ended June 30, 2014 F-80 Pro forma Combined Consolidated Statement of Operations for the six months ended June 30, 2014 F-90 Pro forma Combined Consolidated Statement of Operations for the year ended December 31, 2013 Notes to Pro forma Combined Consolidated Financial Information F-92 | Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements | F-60 |
| Independent Auditor's Report Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 F-69 Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 F-70 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 F-71 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Unaudited Financial Statements: Consolidated Balance Sheets as of March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 F-78 Consolidated Statements of Income for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 F-79 Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the three months ended March 31, 2014 F-80 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 F-81 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Financial Information of Diplomat Pharmacy, Inc. Pro forma Combined Consolidated Balance Sheet as of June 30, 2014 F-89 Pro forma Combined Consolidated Statement of Operations for the six months ended June 30, 2014 F-90 F-91 Notes to Pro forma Combined Consolidated Statement of Operations for the year ended December 31, 2013 F-91 Notes to Pro forma Combined Consolidated Financial Information F-92 | Financial Statements of MedPro Rx, Inc. | |
| Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 F-69 Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 F-70 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 F-71 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Unaudited Financial Statements Consolidated Balance Sheets as of March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 F-78 Consolidated Statements of Income for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 F-79 Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the three months ended March 31, 2014 F-80 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 F-81 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Financial Information of Diplomat Pharmacy, Inc. Pro forma Combined Consolidated Statement of Operations for the six months ended June 30, 2014 F-89 Pro forma Combined Consolidated Statement of Operations for the year ended December 31, 2013 F-91 Notes to Pro forma Combined Consolidated Financial Information F-92 | Audited Financial Statements: | |
| Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 F-70 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 F-71 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Unaudited Financial Statements: Consolidated Balance Sheets as of March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 F-78 Consolidated Statements of Income for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 F-79 Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the three months ended March 31, 2014 F-80 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 F-81 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Financial Information of Diplomat Pharmacy, Inc. Pro forma Combined Consolidated Statement of Operations for the six months ended June 30, 2014 F-89 Pro forma Combined Consolidated Statement of Operations for the year ended December 31, 2013 F-91 Notes to Pro forma Combined Consolidated Financial Information F-92 | Independent Auditor's Report | F-67 |
| Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 F-70 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 F-71 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Unaudited Financial Statements Consolidated Balance Sheets as of March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 F-78 Consolidated Statements of Income for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 F-79 Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the three months ended March 31, 2014 F-80 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 F-81 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Financial Information of Diplomat Pharmacy, Inc. Pro forma Combined Consolidated Balance Sheet as of June 30, 2014 F-89 Pro forma Combined Consolidated Statement of Operations for the six months ended June 30, 2014 F-90 Pro forma Combined Consolidated Statement of Operations for the year ended December 31, 2013 F-91 Notes to Pro forma Combined Consolidated Financial Information F-92 | Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 | F-68 |
| Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Unaudited Financial Statements: Consolidated Balance Sheets as of March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 Consolidated Statements of Income for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the three months ended March 31, 2014 F-80 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 F-81 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Financial Information of Diplomat Pharmacy, Inc. Pro forma Combined Consolidated Balance Sheet as of June 30, 2014 F-89 Pro forma Combined Consolidated Statement of Operations for the six months ended June 30, 2014 F-90 Pro forma Combined Consolidated Statement of Operations for the year ended December 31, 2013 F-91 Notes to Pro forma Combined Consolidated Financial Information F-92 | Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 | F-69 |
| Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Unaudited Financial Statements: Consolidated Balance Sheets as of March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 Consolidated Statements of Income for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the three months ended March 31, 2014 F-80 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the three months ended March 31, 2014 F-81 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Financial Information of Diplomat Pharmacy, Inc. Pro forma Combined Consolidated Balance Sheet as of June 30, 2014 F-89 Pro forma Combined Consolidated Statement of Operations for the six months ended June 30, 2014 F-90 Pro forma Combined Consolidated Statement of Operations for the year ended December 31, 2013 F-91 Notes to Pro forma Combined Consolidated Financial Information F-92 | Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 | F-70 |
| Unaudited Financial Statements: Consolidated Balance Sheets as of March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 Consolidated Statements of Income for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the three months ended March 31, 2014 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the three months ended March 31, 2014 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 F-81 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Financial Information of Diplomat Pharmacy, Inc. Pro forma Combined Consolidated Balance Sheet as of June 30, 2014 F-89 Pro forma Combined Consolidated Statement of Operations for the six months ended June 30, 2014 F-90 Pro forma Combined Consolidated Statement of Operations for the year ended December 31, 2013 F-91 Notes to Pro forma Combined Consolidated Financial Information F-92 | Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 | F-71 |
| Consolidated Balance Sheets as of March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 Consolidated Statements of Income for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the three months ended March 31, 2014 E-80 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 F-81 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Financial Information of Diplomat Pharmacy, Inc. Pro forma Combined Consolidated Balance Sheet as of June 30, 2014 F-89 Pro forma Combined Consolidated Statement of Operations for the six months ended June 30, 2014 F-90 Pro forma Combined Consolidated Statement of Operations for the year ended December 31, 2013 F-91 Notes to Pro forma Combined Consolidated Financial Information F-92 | Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements | F-72 |
| Consolidated Statements of Income for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the three months ended March 31, 2014 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 F-81 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Financial Information of Diplomat Pharmacy, Inc. Pro forma Combined Consolidated Balance Sheet as of June 30, 2014 Pro forma Combined Consolidated Statement of Operations for the six months ended June 30, 2014 Pro forma Combined Consolidated Statement of Operations for the year ended December 31, 2013 F-91 Notes to Pro forma Combined Consolidated Financial Information F-92 | Unaudited Financial Statements: | |
| Consolidated Statements of Income for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the three months ended March 31, 2014 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 F-81 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Financial Information of Diplomat Pharmacy, Inc. Pro forma Combined Consolidated Balance Sheet as of June 30, 2014 Pro forma Combined Consolidated Statement of Operations for the six months ended June 30, 2014 Pro forma Combined Consolidated Statement of Operations for the year ended December 31, 2013 F-91 Notes to Pro forma Combined Consolidated Financial Information F-92 | Consolidated Balance Sheets as of March 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 | F-78 |
| Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the three months ended March 31, 2014 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Financial Information of Diplomat Pharmacy, Inc. Pro forma Combined Consolidated Balance Sheet as of June 30, 2014 Pro forma Combined Consolidated Statement of Operations for the six months ended June 30, 2014 Pro forma Combined Consolidated Statement of Operations for the year ended December 31, 2013 F-91 Notes to Pro forma Combined Consolidated Financial Information F-92 | | |
| Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Financial Information of Diplomat Pharmacy, Inc. Pro forma Combined Consolidated Balance Sheet as of June 30, 2014 Pro forma Combined Consolidated Statement of Operations for the six months ended June 30, 2014 F-90 Pro forma Combined Consolidated Statement of Operations for the year ended December 31, 2013 F-91 Notes to Pro forma Combined Consolidated Financial Information F-92 | | F-80 |
| Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Financial Information of Diplomat Pharmacy, Inc. Pro forma Combined Consolidated Balance Sheet as of June 30, 2014 Pro forma Combined Consolidated Statement of Operations for the six months ended June 30, 2014 Pro forma Combined Consolidated Statement of Operations for the year ended December 31, 2013 Pro forma Combined Consolidated Financial Information F-92 | Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013 | F-81 |
| Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Financial Information of Diplomat Pharmacy, Inc. Pro forma Combined Consolidated Balance Sheet as of June 30, 2014 Pro forma Combined Consolidated Statement of Operations for the six months ended June 30, 2014 Pro forma Combined Consolidated Statement of Operations for the year ended December 31, 2013 Pro forma Combined Consolidated Financial Information F-92 | | |
| Pro forma Combined Consolidated Statement of Operations for the six months ended June 30, 2014F-90Pro forma Combined Consolidated Statement of Operations for the year ended December 31, 2013F-91Notes to Pro forma Combined Consolidated Financial InformationF-92 | Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Financial Information of Diplomat Pharmacy, Inc. | |
| Pro forma Combined Consolidated Statement of Operations for the six months ended June 30, 2014F-90Pro forma Combined Consolidated Statement of Operations for the year ended December 31, 2013F-91Notes to Pro forma Combined Consolidated Financial InformationF-92 | Pro forma Combined Consolidated Balance Sheet as of June 30, 2014 | F-89 |
| Pro forma Combined Consolidated Statement of Operations for the year ended December 31, 2013F-91Notes to Pro forma Combined Consolidated Financial InformationF-92 | Pro forma Combined Consolidated Statement of Operations for the six months ended June 30, 2014 | F-90 |
| Notes to Pro forma Combined Consolidated Financial Information F-92 | | |
| | | |
| | | |

Table of Contents

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Shareholders Diplomat Pharmacy, Inc. Flint, Michigan

We have audited the accompanying restated consolidated balance sheets of Diplomat Pharmacy, Inc. as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 and the related restated consolidated statements of operations, shareholders' deficit, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2013. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. Our audits included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the restated consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Diplomat Pharmacy, Inc. at December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2013, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. As described in Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements, those financial statements have been restated to correct a misstatement.

/s/ BDO USA, LLP

Troy, Michigan June 27, 2014, except for Note 15 which is as of September 17, 2014

DIPLOMAT PHARMACY, INC.

Consolidated Balance Sheets

| | Decem | ıber 31, |
|--|------------|----------------------------------|
| | · · | 2012 Thousands, ar Values) |
| | (Res | tated) |
| ASSETS | | |
| Current assets: | | |
| Cash and cash equivalents | \$ 9,109 | \$ |
| Accounts receivable, net | 104,047 | 71,634 |
| Other receivables | 6,247 | 4,057 |
| Inventories | 56,454 | 41,206 |
| Prepaid expenses and other current assets | 1,924 | 2,485 |
| Total current assets | 177,781 | 119,382 |
| Property and equipment, net | 12,378 | 12,634 |
| Capitalized software for internal use, net | 6,564 | 4,605 |
| Goodwill | 1,537 | |
| Definite-lived intangible assets, net | 7,100 | |
| Investment in non-consolidated entity | 5,577 | 2,133 |
| Other noncurrent assets | 840 | 841 |
| | \$ 211,777 | \$ 139,595 |

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' DEFICIT

| Current liabilities: | | |
|--|---------------|---------------|
| Accounts payable | \$ 142,353 | \$ 104,567 |
| Line of credit | 62,622 | 27,020 |
| Short-term debt, including current portion of long-term debt | 6,693 | 4,126 |
| Accrued compensation | 2,703 | 2,197 |
| Other accrued expenses | 2,296 | 2,269 |
| | | |
| | | |
| Total current liabilities | 216,667 | 140,179 |
| | | |
| Long-term debt, less current portion | 18,849 | 31,956 |
| Other noncurrent liabilities | 673 | |
| Redeemable Common Shares (\$1.00 par value; 375 shares outstanding at both December 31, 2013 and 2012) | 53,370 | 19,022 |
| | | |
| Commitments and contingencies | | |

Shareholders' deficit:

Common stock:

Class A Voting Common Stock (\$1.00 par value; 5,000 authorized shares; 195 issued and outstanding shares at both December 31, 2013 and 2012)

| 4 | | 4 |
|------------|-------------------|-------------------------------|
| 4,186 | | 3,300 |
| (81,972) |) | (54,866) |
| (77,782) |) | (51,562) |
| \$ 211,777 | \$ | 139,595 |
| | 4,186 (81,972) | 4,186 (81,972) (77,782) |

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

DIPLOMAT PHARMACY, INC.

Consolidated Statements of Operations

| | | Year | , | | |
|---|----------|--|----|--------------|-------------|
| | | 2013 2012 (Dollars in Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts) | | | 2011 |
| | | | (1 | Restated) | |
| Net sales | \$ | 1,515,139 | \$ | 1,126,943 \$ | , |
| Cost of goods sold | | (1,426,112) | | (1,057,608) | (715,448) |
| Gross profit | | 89,027 | | 69,335 | 56,514 |
| Selling, general and administrative expenses | | (77,944) | | (64,392) | (47,434) |
| Income from operations | | 11,083 | | 4,943 | 9,080 |
| | | | | | |
| Interest expense | | (1,996) | | (1,086) | (598) |
| Change in fair value of redeemable common shares | | (34,348) | | (6,566) | (05) |
| Equity loss of non-consolidated entity Other income | | (1,055) 196 | | (267) | (95) 764 |
| Net income (loss) / net comprehensive income (loss) | \$ | (26,120) | \$ | (2,639) \$ | |
| Net Income (Loss) Per Common Share: Basic | \$ | (6,699.13) | \$ | (676.74) \$ | 5 2,346.96 |
| | | | | | |
| Diluted | \$ | (6,699.13) | \$ | (676.74) \$ | 3 2,271.36 |
| Weighted Average Shares Outstanding: | | | | | |
| Basic | | 3,899 | | 3,899 | 3,899 |
| Diluted | | 3,899 | | 3,899 | 4,029 |
| Pro Forma Data (Unaudited) (Note 14): | | | | | |
| Income (loss) before income taxes | \$ | (26,120) | \$ | (2,639) \$ | 9,151 |
| Income (loss) tax provision | | (2,911) | | (1,558) | (3,307) |
| | 6 | | Φ. | | |
| Net income (loss) / net comprehensive income (loss) | \$ | (29,031) | \$ | (4,197) \$ | 5,844 |

| Pro Forma Net Income Loss Per Common Share (Unaudited): | | | |
|---|---------------------|---------------|----------|
| Basic | \$ (7,445.73) \$ | (1,076.33) \$ | 1,498.80 |
| Diluted | \$ (7.445.73) \$ | (1.076.33) \$ | 1.450.51 |

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

F-4

DIPLOMAT PHARMACY, INC.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

| | Ye | Year Ended December 31, | | | |
|--|-----------|-------------------------|----------|----|----------|
| | 2013 | (Dollars in Thousands | | | 2011 |
| | | (Restated) | | | |
| Cash Flows From Operating Activities | | | | | |
| Net income (loss) | \$ (26,12 | 20) \$ | (2,639) | \$ | 9,151 |
| Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by operating activities: | | | | | |
| Depreciation and amortization | 3,93 | | 3,842 | | 3,079 |
| Equity loss of non-consolidated entity | 1,05 | | 267 | | 95 |
| Asset impairment | 93 | | | | |
| Share-based compensation expense | 88 | | 915 | | 1,410 |
| Net provision for doubtful accounts | 87 | | 605 | | 1,162 |
| Amortization of debt issuance costs | 20 | | 85 | | |
| Change in fair value of redeemable common shares | 34,34 | | 6,566 | | |
| Loss on disposal of property and equipment |] | 3 | 29 | | 230 |
| Certain expenses paid with notes | | | 480 | | |
| Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of acquired business: | | | | | |
| Accounts receivable | (29,77 | | (23,833) | | (13,437) |
| Inventories | (14,10 | | (13,995) | | (1,402) |
| Accounts payable | 36,13 | | 31,854 | | 12,504 |
| Other assets and liabilities | (2,15 | 53) | 830 | | (253) |
| Net cash provided by operating activities | 6,22 | 27 | 5,006 | | 12,539 |
| Cash Flows From Investing Activities | | | | | |
| Payment to acquire business, net of cash acquired | (10,23 | 32) | | | |
| Expenditures for capitalized software for internal use | (4,67 | | (1,105) | | (1,294) |
| Expenditures for property and equipment | (85 | | (3,214) | | (4,443) |
| Capital investment in and loans to non-consolidated entity | (4,50 | | (1,500) | | (994) |
| Net (issuance) repayment of related party notes receivable | | 59) | 829 | | (188) |
| Net proceeds from sale of property and equipment | ` | 10 | 141 | | 172 |
| | | | | | |
| Net cash used in investing activities | (20,29 | 92) | (4,849) | | (6,747) |
| Cash Flows From Financing Activities | | | | | |
| Net proceeds from (payments on) line of credit | 35,60 |)2 | 23,390 | | (6,500) |
| Payments on long term debt | (10,54 | 10) | (7,893) | | (726) |
| Proceeds from long term debt | , | | , , , | | 474 |
| Debt issuance and finance activity costs | (20 |)4) | (892) | | |
| Shareholder distributions | (1,68 | | (10,868) | | (1,109) |
| Payments associated with stock and stock option redemptions | . , | | (3,894) | | |
| | | | (1) | | |
| Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities | 23,17 | 74 | (157) | | (7,861) |
| 1 | 20,17 | • | (101) | | (.,501) |
| Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents | 9,10 |)9 | | | (2,069) |
| Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year | | | | | 2,069 |

Edgar Filing: Diplomat Pharmacy, Inc. - Form 424B4

| Cash and cash equivalents at end of year | \$ | 9,109 | \$ | \$ |
|--|----|-------|----|----|
|--|----|-------|----|----|

Supplemental Cash Flow Information

| Cash interest paid | \$ 1,793 | \$ 1,041 | \$ 596 |
|--|-------------|-------------|-----------|
| Issuance of notes payable associated with stock and stock option redemptions | | 28,249 | |
| Distributions declared, not yet paid | | 6,413 | |
| Forgiveness of note receivable | | 196 | |

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

DIPLOMAT PHARMACY, INC.

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Deficit

| | Comm | on Stock | | | | | | | |
|---------------------------------------|-------------------|---------------------|---|---|-----------|----------------------------------|-------------------|----|----------|
| | Class A Voting | Class B Nonvotin | g | Additional Paid-in Capital (Dollars in Thous | | Accumulated Deficit sands) | | | Total |
| | | | | (1 | Restated) | | | | |
| Balance at January 1, 2011 | \$ | \$ | 4 | \$ | 1,488 | \$ (| (41,035) | \$ | (39,543) |
| Net income / net comprehensive income | | | | | | | 9,151 | | 9,151 |
| Share-based compensation expense | | | | | 1,410 | | | | 1,410 |
| Shareholder distributions | | | | | | | (1,109) | | (1,109) |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| Balance at December 31, 2011 | | | 4 | | 2,898 | (| (32,993) | | (30,091) |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| Net loss / net comprehensive loss | | | | | | | (2,639) | | (2,639) |
| Share-based compensation expense | | | | | 915 | | | | 915 |
| Redemption of certain stock options | | | | | (513) | | (1,953) | | (2,466) |
| Shareholder distributions | | | | | | (| (17,281) | | (17,281) |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| Balance at December 31, 2012 | | | 4 | | 3,300 | (| (54,866) | | (51,562) |
| Net loss / net comprehensive loss | | | | | | (| (26,120) | | (26,120) |
| Share-based compensation expense | | | | | 886 | | | | 886 |
| Shareholder distributions | | | | | | | (986) | | (986) |
| D. L. (D. J. 21 2012 | Φ. | Ф | | Φ. | 4.106 | Φ | (01.0 73) | Φ. | (77.702) |
| Balance at December 31, 2013 | \$ | \$ | 4 | \$ | 4,186 | \$ (| (81,972) | \$ | (77,782) |

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

F-6

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(Dollars in Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Business Activity: Diplomat Pharmacy, Inc. d/b/a Diplomat Specialty Pharmacy (the "Company") is a specialty pharmacy sales business and includes all of its wholly owned subsidiaries including American Homecare Federation, Inc. ("AHF") that was acquired in December 2013. The Company stocks, dispenses and distributes prescriptions for various biotech and specialty pharmaceuticals and operates as one reportable segment. The Company has its corporate headquarters and main distribution facility in Flint, Michigan and maintains seven other pharmacy locations in Michigan, Illinois, Florida, California, Connecticut and Massachusetts.

Financial Statement Presentation: The audited consolidated financial statements of the "Company have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America ("U.S. GAAP").

Principles of Consolidation: The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Diplomat Pharmacy, Inc. and all of its wholly-owned subsidiaries. The Company also owns a 25% interest in a non-consolidated entity which is accounted for under the equity method of accounting. All intercompany transactions and accounts have been eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported therein. Due to the inherent uncertainty involved in making estimates, actual results reported in future periods may be based upon amounts that differ from these estimates.

Concentrations of Risk: Financial instruments which potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist principally of cash on deposit with banks or other financial institutions and trade accounts receivable.

A federal program provides non-interest bearing cash balances insurance coverage up to \$250 per depositor at each financial institution. The Company's cash balances may exceed federally insured limits.

Concentration of credit risk with respect to trade receivables is limited by the large number of patients comprising the Company's customer base and their dispersion across multiple payors and multiple geographic areas. As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Company had no significant trade receivable concentrations of credit risk.

Cash Equivalents: The Company considers all highly liquid investments with maturities of 90 days or less from the date of purchase to be cash equivalents.

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts: Accounts receivable primarily include amounts from third-party pharmacy benefit managers and insurance providers and are based on contracted prices. Trade receivables require no collateral and are on an unsecured basis. Accounts receivable terms vary by payor, but generally are due within 30 days after the sale of the product or performance of the service.

The Company maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts that reduces receivables to amounts that are expected to be collected. In estimating the allowance, management considers factors such as current overall economic conditions, historical and anticipated customer performance, historical

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(Dollars in Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

experience with write-offs, and the level of past due accounts. Changes in these conditions may result in additional allowances. Once an amount is deemed to be uncollectible, the amount is written off against the allowance.

The following is a rollforward of the Company's allowance for doubtful accounts for the three years ended December 31, 2013:

| Balance at January 1, 2011 | \$ | (547) |
|--------------------------------|----|---------|
| Provisions | | (1,162) |
| Write-offs, net of settlements | | 1,034 |
| | | |
| Balance at December 31, 2011 | | (675) |
| Provisions | | (605) |
| Write-offs, net of settlements | | 529 |
| | | |
| Balance at December 31, 2012 | | (751) |
| Provisions | | (873) |
| Write-offs, net of settlements | | 775 |
| | Φ. | (0.40) |
| Balance at December 31, 2013 | \$ | (849) |

Inventories: Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market and consist primarily of prescription medications, over-the-counter ("OTC") medications and medical supplies. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out method and are adjusted to actual cost quarterly based on a physical count. Inventory is returnable and fully refundable before six months of expiration, and any remaining expired medication is relieved from inventory quarterly. The Company records an estimated reserve for service fees and other deductions from the refund expected for returns of expired medication.

Property and Equipment: Property and equipment are valued at cost less accumulated depreciation. Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred, while expenditures that increase asset lives are capitalized. Depreciation is computed generally on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets. For income tax purposes, accelerated methods of depreciation are generally used.

When items of property or equipment are sold or retired, the related cost and accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts, and any gain or loss is included in earnings.

Construction in progress is stated at cost, which includes the cost of construction and other direct costs attributable to the construction. No provision for depreciation is made on construction in progress until such time as the relevant assets are completed and put into use.

Assets held for sale are carried at the lower of their historical depreciated costs or estimated fair values less costs to sell.

Capitalized Software for internal use: The Company has also developed software for internal use. The Company expenses the costs incurred during the preliminary project stage, and capitalizes the

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(Dollars in Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

direct development costs (including the associated payroll and related costs for employees working on development, and outside contractor costs) during the application development stage. The Company monitors development on an ongoing basis and capitalizes the costs of any major improvements or new functionality. Amortization is computed generally on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets. For income tax purposes, accelerated methods of amortization are generally used.

Goodwill: Goodwill represents excess purchase price paid for a business over the estimated fair value of its acquired net assets related to the Company's acquisition of AHF on December 16, 2013. See Note 2 for further details.

Goodwill will be reviewed for impairment annually, or more frequently if impairment indicators exist. Accounting guidance provides the option of performing a qualitative assessment that may allow companies to forego the annual two-step quantitative impairment test for goodwill if it is determined that the fair value of the applicable reporting unit is more likely than not greater than its carrying value. This qualitative assessment evaluates various events and circumstances, such as macro-economic conditions, industry and market conditions, cost factors, relevant events and financial trends, that may impact a reporting unit's fair value. If the two-step impairment test for goodwill is deemed necessary, this quantitative impairment analysis compares the fair values of the Company's reporting units to their related carrying values. If a reporting unit carrying value exceeds its fair value, the Company must then calculate the reporting unit's implied fair value of goodwill and impairment charges are recorded for any excess of the goodwill carrying value over the implied fair value of goodwill. The reporting units' fair values are based upon consideration of various valuation methodologies, including projected future cash flows discounted at rates commensurate with the risks involved, guideline transaction multiples, and multiples of current and future earnings.

Definite-Lived Intangible Assets: Intangible assets consist of the assets related to the acquisition of AHF, and are amortized over their estimated useful lives using the accelerated method for patient relationships, and the straight line method for the remaining intangible assets.

Long-Lived Asset Impairment Testing: Long-lived assets, which include property, equipment, capitalized software, investment in non-consolidated entity and definite-lived intangible assets, are periodically reviewed for impairment indicators. In assessing long-lived assets for impairment, assets are grouped with other assets and liabilities at the lowest level for which identifiable cash flows are largely independent of the cash flows of other assets and liabilities. If impairment indicators exist, the Company performs an undiscounted cash flow test to determine recoverability. If this recoverability test identifies a possible impairment, management will perform a fair value analysis. Fair values of long-lived assets are determined through various techniques, such as applying probability weighted, expected present value calculations to the estimated future cash flows using assumptions a market participant would utilize or through the use of valuation specialists. The Company compares the fair value of the long-lived asset to it net carrying value and an impairment charge is recorded for the amount by which the net carrying value of the long-lived asset exceeds its fair value.

Debt Issuance Costs: Debt issuance costs related to the Company's revolving line of credit are capitalized within "Other noncurrent assets" and amortized as interest expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the agreement for which the fees were paid.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(Dollars in Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Share-Based Compensation: The Company expenses the grant date fair values of its employee stock options over their respective vesting periods on a straight-line basis. Estimating grant date fair values for employee stock options requires management to make assumptions regarding the current value of the Company's common shares, expected volatility of value of those underlying shares, the risk-free rate over the expected life of the stock options, and the date on which share-based payments will be settled. The Company estimates its common share fair value using the income approach and market approach using the market comparable method. Expected volatility is based on an implied volatility for a group of industry-relevant healthcare companies as of the measurement date. Risk-free rate is determined based upon U.S. Treasury rates over the estimated expected option lives. Expected dividend yield is zero as the Company does not anticipate that any dividends will be declared during the expected term of the options. Expected option life is less than the option term. If actual results differ significantly from these estimates and assumptions, particularly in relation to management's estimation of volatility which requires the most judgment due to the Company being a private entity, share-based compensation expense, primarily with respect to future share-based awards, could be materially impacted.

Revenue Recognition: The Company recognizes revenue from prescription drug sales for home delivery at the time the drugs are shipped. At the time of shipment, the Company performed substantially all of its obligations under its payor contracts and does not experience a significant level of returns or reshipments. If the Company administers a drug treatment regimen in a patient's home, the Company recognizes revenue at time of administration. Revenues from dispensing specialty prescriptions that are filled at an open door or retail pharmacy location are recorded at prescription adjudication, which approximates fill date. Sales taxes are presented on a net basis (excluded from revenues and costs). Revenues generated from prescription drugs were \$1,504,534, \$1,119,775 and \$767,625 for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Shipping and handling costs are not billed to patients; therefore, there are no shipping and handling revenues. Conversely, the Company recognizes shipping and handling costs as incurred by the Company as a component of "Selling, general and administrative expenses" and were \$10,123, \$8,203 and \$5,548 for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

The Company recognizes revenue from service, data and consulting services when the services have been performed and the earnings process is complete. Revenues generated from service, data and consulting services were approximately \$10,605, \$7,168 and \$4,337 for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

F-10

Total Revenue

DIPLOMAT PHARMACY, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(Dollars in Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The Company derived its revenue from the following therapeutic classes:

| For 1 | the y | ear | ended | Dec | eml | ber | 31, |
|-------|-------|-----|-------|-----|-----|-----|-----|
| | | | | | | | |

\$ 1,515,139 \$ 1,126,943 \$ 771,962

| | 2013 | | 2012 | | 2011 |
|-------------------------------|---------------|----|---------|----|---------|
| Oncology | \$ 736,987 | \$ | 495,028 | \$ | 353,684 |
| Immunology(1) | 378,685 | | 319,092 | | 216,069 |
| Multiple Sclerosis | 169,470 | | 110,947 | | 71,199 |
| Other (none greater than 10%) | 229,997 | | 201,876 | | 131,010 |
| - | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |

Includes drugs dispensed to treat arthritis, Crohn's disease and psoriasis.

Advertising and Marketing Costs: Advertising and marketing costs are expensed as incurred and were \$823, \$604 and \$1,004 for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Income Taxes: The Company had elected to be taxed under the provisions of Subchapter S of the Internal Revenue Code. Under these provisions, the Company did not pay federal corporate income taxes on its taxable income. Instead, the stockholders were liable for individual federal income taxes on their respective shares of the Company's taxable income. Distributions were made periodically to the Company's shareholders to the extent needed to cover their income tax liability based on the Company's taxable income. See Note 14 for discussion on the Company's subsequent change to its income tax status.

New Accounting Pronouncements: In February 2013, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued Accounting Standards Update ("ASU") No. 2013-4, Liabilities (Topic 405): Obligations Resulting from Joint and Several Liability Arrangements for Which the Total Amount of the Obligation is Fixed at the Reporting Date. This ASU is effective for interim and annual periods beginning after December 15, 2013 and requires the measurement of obligations resulting from joint and several liability arrangements for which the total amount of the obligation is fixed at the reporting date as the sum of: a) the amount the reporting entity agreed to pay on the basis of its arrangement among its co-obligors; and b) any additional amount the reporting entity expects to pay on behalf of its co-obligors. Required disclosures include a description of the joint-and-several arrangement and the total outstanding amount of the obligation for all joint parties. The Company anticipates the adoption of this guidance will have minimal impact on its financial position, results of operations, cash flows or disclosures.

In July 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013-11, *Income Taxes (Topic 740): Presentation of an Unrecognized Tax Benefit When a Net Operating Loss Carryforward, a Similar Tax Loss, or a Tax Credit Carryforward Exists.* This ASU is effective for fiscal years and interim periods beginning after December 15, 2013 and changes the presentation of unrecognized tax benefits. The Company is currently evaluating the impact that the adoption of this guidance will have on its financial position, results of operations, cash flows and/or disclosures.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(Dollars in Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

In April 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-8, *Presentation of Financial Statements (Topic 205) and Property, Plant, and Equipment (Topic 360): Reporting Discontinued Operations and Disclosures of Disposals of Components of an Entity.* This ASU is effective within annual periods beginning on or after December 15, 2014, and interim periods within annual periods beginning on or after December 15, 2015 with early adoption permitted in certain circumstances. This ASU changes the requirements for reporting discontinued operations. The Company is currently evaluating the impact that the adoption of this guidance will have on its financial position, results of operations, cash flows and/or disclosures.

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-9, *Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606)*. This ASU is effective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2016, including interim periods within that reporting period. This ASU changes the requirements for revenue recognition. The Company is currently evaluating which of the several adoption methods it will select and what impact that the adoption of this guidance will have on its financial position, results of operations, cash flows and/or disclosures.

2. BUSINESS ACQUISITION

On December 16, 2013, the Company acquired all of the authorized, issued and outstanding shares of capital stock of AHF for a total acquisition price of approximately \$13,449, excluding related acquisition costs. Included in the total acquisition price was approximately \$12,100 in cash and contingent consideration fair valued at \$1,300, with a maximum payout of \$2,000 of contingent consideration that is based on achieving certain revenue and gross profit targets in each of the years ending December 31, 2014 and 2015. At the closing of the acquisition, approximately \$1,353 of the purchase consideration was deposited into an escrow account that will be held for two years after the closing date to satisfy any of the Company's indemnification claims. The Company incurred related acquisition costs of approximately \$309 that were expensed through "Selling, general and administrative expenses" during the year ended December 31, 2013.

AHF provides clotting medications, ancillaries and supplies to individuals with bleeding disorders, such as hemophilia. AHF has provided pharmacy services exclusively to the bleeding disorders community since 1989. The acquisition of AHF will allow the Company to participate in AHF's direct purchase agreements with key hemophilia manufacturers while also providing AHF access to the Company's proprietary care management modules to better manage clinical care of the AHF patients. The Company ascribes significant value to the cost reductions as well as synergies and other benefits that do not meet the recognition criteria of acquired identifiable intangible assets. Accordingly, the value of these components is included within goodwill. The acquisition is treated as a stock purchase for accounting purposes, and the goodwill resulting from this acquisition is deductible for tax purposes. The results of operations for AHF are included in the Company's consolidated financial statements from the acquisition date, which were not material for the year ended December 31, 2013.

The Company did not acquire AHF's affiliate from which AHF leased its operating facility. Instead, the Company, commensurate with the acquisition, entered into a five-year external lease agreement for the facility with similar terms. As the Company does not direct the significant activities of the lessor, it is not consolidated into the Company's financial statements.

DIPLOMAT PHARMACY, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(Dollars in Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

2. BUSINESS ACQUISITION (Continued)

The Company accounted for its acquisition of AHF using the acquisition method as required by FASB Accounting Standards Codification Topic 805, *Business Combinations*. A summary of the preliminary fair value determination of the acquired assets and liabilities from the AHF acquisition is as follows:

| Cash and cash equivalents | \$ | 1,917 |
|---|----------|---------|
| Accounts receivable | | 3,512 |
| Inventories | | 1,138 |
| Prepaid expenses and other current assets | | 27 |
| Property and equipment | | 158 |
| Goodwill | | 1,537 |
| Definite-lived intangible assets | | 7,100 |
| Current liabilities | | (1,940) |
| | | |
| | | |
| | o | 12 440 |
| | 2 | 15,449 |

The Company determined the estimated fair values of AHF's identifiable long-lived assets with assistance from an independent valuation firm. That firm also assisted in the Company's determination of the fair value of the contingent consideration utilizing historical results, forecasted operating results of AHF for each of the two years ending December 31, 2014 and 2015, and the corresponding contractual contingent payouts based on those results discounted at rates commensurate with the uncertainty involved.

The following unaudited pro forma results assume that the AHF acquisition occurred as of January 1, 2012 and are inclusive of purchase price adjustments. This pro forma information is not necessarily indicative of the results that actually would have been obtained had the acquisition been in effect for the periods presented nor that may be obtained in the future.

| | Year Ended December 31, | | | | |
|---------------------------------|-------------------------|------------|----|-----------|--|
| | | 2013 | | 2012 | |
| Net sales | \$ | 1,543,548 | \$ | 1,158,862 | |
| Net loss | \$ | (25,870) | \$ | (3,237) | |
| Net loss per common share basic | \$ | (6,635.01) | \$ | (830.11) | |

Edgar Filing: Diplomat Pharmacy, Inc. - Form 424B4

Net loss per common share diluted \$ (6,635.01) \$ (830.11)

Definite-lived intangible assets that were acquired and their respective useful lives are as follows:

| | Useful Life | Amount |
|-----------------------------------|-------------|----------|
| Patient relationships | 10 years | \$ 5,100 |
| Trade names and trademarks | 10 years | 1,400 |
| Non-compete employment agreements | 5 years | 600 |

\$ 7,100

F-13

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(Dollars in Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

2. BUSINESS ACQUISITION (Continued)

Given the proximity of the acquisition date to year-end, the Company recorded no amortization expense for the year ended December 31, 2013. Amortization of these definite-lived intangible assets began on January 1, 2014. The Company's estimated future amortization expense for these definite-lived intangible assets is as follows:

| 2014 | \$ 903 |
|------------|-----------|
| 2015 | 869 |
| 2016 | 838 |
| 2017 | 806 |
| 2018 | 777 |
| Thereafter | 2,907 |
| | |

\$ 7,100

3. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Accounting guidance clarifies that fair value is an exit price, representing the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants. As such, fair value is a market-based measurement that should be determined based upon assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability. As a basis for considering such assumptions, a three-tier fair value hierarchy was established, which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair value as follows:

- Level 1: Observable inputs such as quoted prices in active markets;
- Level 2: Inputs, other than quoted prices in active markets, that are observable either directly or indirectly; and
- Level 3: Unobservable inputs in which there is little or no market data, which require the reporting entity to develop its own assumptions. An asset's or liability's fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation techniques used need to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs.

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value are based on one or more of the following three valuation techniques:

- A.

 Market approach: Prices and other relevant information generated by market transactions involving identical or comparable assets or liabilities.
- B. *Cost approach:* Amount that would be required to replace the service capacity of an asset (replacement cost).
- C.

 **Income approach: Techniques to convert future amounts to a single present amount based upon market expectations (including present value techniques, option-pricing and excess earnings models).

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(Dollars in Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

3. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

Assets and liabilities of the Company remeasured and disclosed at fair value on a recurring basis at December 31, 2013 and 2012 are set forth in the table below:

| | Asset iability) | 1 | Level 2 | Level 3 | Valuation Technique |
|------------------------------------|--------------------|----|---------|----------|------------------------|
| December 31, 2013: | | | | | |
| Redeemable common shares | (53,370) | | | (53,370) | A, C |
| Contingent consideration liability | (1,300) | | | (1,300) | C |
| Interest rate swap contract | \$ (16) | \$ | (16) | | C |
| | | | | | |
| December 31, 2012: | | | | | |
| Redeemable common shares | (19,022) | | | (19,022) | A, C |
| Interest rate swap contract | \$ (53) | \$ | (53) | | C |

The following table sets forth a roll forward of the Level 3 measurements:

| C | ommon | Conside | eration |
|----|----------|---|---|
| \$ | (41,849) | \$ | |
| | | | |
| | (41,849) | | |
| | (6,566) | | |
| | 29,393 | | |
| | (19,022) | | |
| | (34,348) | | |
| | | | (1,300) |
| \$ | (53,370) | \$ | (1,300) |
| | \$ | (41,849) (6,566) 29,393 (19,022) (34,348) | Common Consider Liable \$ (41,849) \$ (41,849) (6,566) 29,393 (19,022) (34,348) |

The fair value of the redeemable common stock underlying was determined by the Company's Board of Directors, with input from management. The nature of the material assumptions and estimates considered to determine the fair market value of the redeemable common stock are highly complex and subjective. Given the absence of a public trading market of the Company's common stock, and in accordance with the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants Accounting and Valuation Guide: *Valuation of Privately-Held-Company Equity Securities issued as Compensation*, the Board of Directors exercised reasonable judgment and considered numerous objective and subjective factors to determine the best estimate of the fair value of the redeemable common stock including:

recent significant investments by sophisticated, institutional investors for purchases of the Series A Preferred Stock, and the rights, privileges and preferences of such preferred stock to the redeemable common stock;

Edgar Filing: Diplomat Pharmacy, Inc. - Form 424B4

valuations of the Company's common stock performed by an unrelated third-party valuation specialist;

The Company's historical and projected operating and financial results;

the market performance and financial results of comparable publicly-traded companies;

F-15

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(Dollars in Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

3. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

industry or company-specific considerations;

likelihood of achieving a liquidity event, such as an initial public offering or a sale of the Company;

lack of marketability of the Company's common stock; and

the U.S. and global capital market conditions.

See Note 2 for more information regarding the valuation of the contingent consideration liability.

The significant inputs, primarily the LIBOR yield curve, used to determine the fair value of the Company's interest rate swap contract were considered Level 2 observable market inputs. The Company monitored the credit and nonperformance risk associated with its counterparty and believed them to be insignificant and not warranting a credit adjustment at December 31, 2013 and 2012.

The Company's interest rate swap agreement had an original notional amount of \$2,160, equal to a mortgage loan with Bank of America. The purpose of the swap agreement was to fix the interest rate on the monthly balance of the mortgage and reduce exposure to interest rate fluctuations. Under the agreement, the Company paid the counterparty interest at a fixed rate of 2.72% and received interest at a variable rate, adjusted quarterly and based on LIBOR. Because this instrument is not classified as a hedging activity, changes in the fair value of this instrument are included in interest expense on the accompanying statements of operations. Fair value of the interest rate swap agreement was recorded in "Other accrued expenses" on the consolidated balance sheets.

Assets and liabilities of the Company measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis at December 31, 2013 are set forth in the table below:

| | | sset bility) | Le | vel 3 | | Gain Loss) | Valuation Technique |
|----------------------|------|-----------------|----|-------|----|---------------|------------------------|
| December 31, 2013: | (Lia | Diffey) | L | 1013 | (- | 2033) | reeminque |
| Assets held for sale | \$ | 300 | \$ | 300 | \$ | (932) | C |

Assets held for sale, which represent certain properties and are contained within "Prepaid expenses and other current assets" on the consolidated balance sheets, with a carrying value of \$1,232 as of December 31, 2012 were written down to their fair value of \$300, resulting in an impairment charge of \$932, which was recorded within "Selling, general and administrative expenses" for the year ended December 31, 2013. The Company determined the fair value of these assets through the use of a realtor.

There were no assets nor liabilities measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis at December 31, 2012 that required any adjustments to their respective carrying values.

The carrying amounts of the Company's financial instruments, consisting primarily of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable and other liabilities, approximate their estimated fair values due to the relative short-term nature of the amounts. The carrying amount of debt approximates fair value due to variable interest rates at customary terms and rates the Company could obtain in current financing.

DIPLOMAT PHARMACY, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(Dollars in Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

4. INVENTORIES

Inventories consist of the following:

| | December 31, 2013 | | De | cember 31, 2012 |
|--|----------------------|--------|----|--------------------|
| Prescription medications, OTC medications and medical supplies, and retail items | \$ | 56,155 | \$ | 40,912 |
| Raw materials | | 284 | | 280 |
| Finished goods | | 15 | | 14 |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | \$ | 56,454 | \$ | 41,206 |

5. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment are recorded at cost and are depreciated over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets using the straight-line method. Depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 was \$1,365, \$1,798 and \$1,144, respectively.

Property and equipment consist of the following:

| | Useful Life | December 31, 2013 | December 31, 2012 |
|-------------------------------------|---------------|----------------------|----------------------|
| Land | | \$ 332 | \$ 332 |
| Buildings | 40 years | 7,419 | 6,543 |
| Building and leasehold improvements | 5 - 15 years* | 889 | 656 |
| Equipment and fixtures | 5 - 10 years | 6,465 | 6,183 |
| Computer equipment | 3 - 5 years | 2,096 | 2,389 |
| Vehicles | 5 years | 82 | 268 |
| Construction in progress | | 25 | 59 |
| | | 17 200 | 16 420 |
| Accumulated depreciation | | 17,308 (4,930) | 16,430 (3,796) |
| Accumulated depreciation | | (4,930) | (3,790) |
| | | \$ 12,378 | \$ 12,634 |

^{*}

Unless applicable lease term is shorter

Edgar Filing: Diplomat Pharmacy, Inc. - Form 424B4

Included in "Prepaid expenses and other current assets" on the consolidated balance sheets are certain properties held for sale with carrying values of \$300 and \$1,232 as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. See Note 3 that describes a \$932 impairment loss that was recognized during the year ended December 31, 2013 associated with these held for sale assets.

F-17

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(Dollars in Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

6. CAPITALIZED SOFTWARE FOR INTERNAL USE

Capitalized software for internal use is recorded at cost and is amortized over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets using the straight-line method. Amortization expense for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 was \$2,568, \$2,021 and \$1,865, respectively.

Balances of capitalized software for internal use are as follows:

| | Useful Life December 31, 2013 | | , | | , | | ember 31, 2012 |
|---------------------------------------|-------------------------------|----|---------|----|---------|--|-------------------|
| Capitalized software for internal use | 3 years | \$ | 13,638 | \$ | 7,847 | | |
| Construction in progress | | | 941 | | 2,314 | | |
| | | | 14,579 | | 10,161 | | |
| Accumulated amortization | | | (8,015) | | (5,556) | | |
| | | \$ | 6,564 | \$ | 4,605 | | |

The Company's estimated future amortization expense for its capitalized software for internal use is as follows:

| 2014 | \$ 2,562 |
|------|-------------|
| 2015 | 2,110 |
| 2016 | 951 |
| 2017 | 941 |
| | |
| | |
| | |

7. INVESTMENT IN NON-CONSOLIDATED ENTITY

\$ 6,564

In October 2011, the Company purchased a 25% minority interest in WorkSmartMD, L.L.C., also known as Ageology, for \$5,000 of cash consideration, which was paid in installments during 2011, 2012 and 2013. No further payments or other commitments are required as of December 31, 2013. Because the Company does not direct the activities that most significantly impact the economic performance of Ageology, management has determined that the Company is not its primary beneficiary.

Ageology is an anti-aging physician network dedicated to nutrition, fitness and hormones, and has created a commercial software product for anti-aging physician practices that is in the late stages of development. The Company accounts for Ageology under the equity method, as it has significant influence over its operations. The Company's portion of Ageology's net losses for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 were \$1,055, \$267 and \$95, respectively. The Company's equity investment balance in Ageology at December 31, 2013 and 2012 was \$3,577 and \$2,133, respectively.

Edgar Filing: Diplomat Pharmacy, Inc. - Form 424B4

During November and December 2013, the Company entered into two \$1,000 6% per annum interest-bearing promissory notes receivable from Ageology. The notes are secured by all personal property and fixtures owned by Ageology. While due on demand, the Company does not intend to call the notes anytime prior to December 31, 2014 and, accordingly, reflects the notes as noncurrent assets within "Investment in Non-consolidated Entity" on the consolidated balance sheets.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(Dollars in Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

7. INVESTMENT IN NON-CONSOLIDATED ENTITY (Continued)

The following tables present summarized financial information of Ageology:

| | Years Ended December 31, | | | | | |
|--------------------------|--------------------------|---------|----|---------|----|-------|
| | 2 | 013 | | 2012 | 2 | 011 |
| Statements of Operations | | | | | | |
| Net sales | \$ | 1 | \$ | 26 | \$ | |
| Net loss | | (4,220) | | (1,069) | | (378) |

| | December 31, 2013 | | ember 31, 2012 |
|---------------------|----------------------|----|-------------------|
| Balance Sheets | | | |
| Current assets | \$ 633 | \$ | 267 |
| Noncurrent assets | 53 | | 782 |
| Current liabilities | 2,138 | | 13 |

8. LINE OF CREDIT

On July 20, 2012, the Company entered into a five-year line of credit with General Electric Capital Corporation ("GE"). The original facility was comprised of a \$60,000 revolving loan commitment, which is secured by security interest in and lien upon substantially all of the Company's assets, not otherwise encumbered. The Company maintains a depository bank account where money is swept directly to the line of credit. Advances under the revolving credit loan commitment are limited to a borrowing base that consists of approximately 85% of the book value of eligible accounts receivable. In 2013, the facility was amended to increase the aggregate revolving loan commitments under the line of credit from \$60,000 to \$85,000, leaving \$12,666 available to borrow as of December 31, 2013. See Note 14 for discussion on the Company's subsequent amendment to further increase the aggregate revolving loan commitments under the line of credit.

Interest on borrowings are charged at a rate equal to either: (a) the base rate, which equates to the rate last quoted by *The Wall Street Journal* as the "Prime Rate" or as further defined in the agreement in the absence of such, plus an applicable margin (the "Base Rate"); or (b) LIBOR, as defined by the agreement, plus an applicable margin. The applicable margin on the Base Rate borrowings is 0.75% and on LIBOR rate borrowings is 1.75%. The effective interest rate for Base Rate borrowings at December 31, 2013 was 4.00%. The effective rate on LIBOR rate borrowings at December 31, 2013 was 1.92%. At December 31, 2013, the Company had Base Rate borrowings outstanding in the amount \$37,622 and LIBOR rate borrowings outstanding in the amount of \$25,000. Additionally, the Company is charged a monthly unused commitment fee ranging from 0.25% to 0.50% on the average unused daily balance.

In connection with securing and amending this facility, the Company incurred transaction costs totaling \$1,097. These costs are being amortized as interest expense over the remaining life of the line of credit.

The revolving credit commitment with GE and the mortgage with JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. (Note 9) contain certain financial and non-financial covenants. The Company was in compliance with all covenants as of December 31, 2013 and 2012.

DIPLOMAT PHARMACY, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(Dollars in Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

9. DEBT

Debt consists of the following:

| | December 31, 2013 | December 31, 2012 |
|---|----------------------|----------------------|
| Note payable to an individual; payable monthly in the amount of \$242 - \$282 including interest at 1.3% | | |
| through January 2017; secured by redeemed shares held in escrow per the pledge agreement and | | |
| subordinated to the line of credit commitment and the mortgage loan | \$ 14,252 | \$ 17,023 |
| Note payable to a shareholder; payable quarterly in the amount of \$100 including interest at 1.3%; matures | | |
| July 20, 2017; secured by redeemed shares held in escrow per the pledge agreement and subordinated to | | |
| the line of credit commitment and the mortgage loan | 7,235 | 7,538 |
| Mortgage with JPMorgan Chase; payable in quarterly payments of principal of \$124 plus interest at a rate | | |
| per year equal to the adjusted LIBOR rate (2.16% effective rate at December 31, 2013) plus the floating | 0.700 | 2 224 |
| rate (4.25% effective rate at December 31, 2013); matures June 30, 2014; secured by certain property | 2,728 | 3,224 |
| Note payable to an individual; payable quarterly in the amount of \$79 including interest at 4.25%; matures | | |
| July 20, 2017; secured by redeemed shares held in escrow per the pledge agreement and subordinated to | 1,087 | 1 240 |
| the line of credit commitment and the mortgage loan Note payable to an individual; payable quarterly in the amount of \$40 interest free; matures June 15, 2015; | 1,067 | 1,349 |
| unsecured and subordinated to the line of credit commitment and the mortgage loan | 240 | 400 |
| Note payable to a shareholder; payable in a lump sum plus interest at 3% when it matures January 20, | 240 | +00 |
| 2017; unsecured and subordinated to the line of credit commitment and the mortgage loan. | | 5,851 |
| Capital lease payables to CISCO Capital; payable in monthly installments of \$16 including interest at | | 3,031 |
| 2.41%; matured Oct - Dec 2013; secured by equipment | | 134 |
| Note payable to a shareholder; payable in a lump sum plus interest at 3% when it matures January 20, | | |
| 2017; unsecured and subordinated to the line of credit commitment and the mortgage loan. | | 563 |
| | | |
| | | |
| | 25,542 | 36,082 |
| Less short-term debt, including current portion of long-term debt | (6,693) | (4,126) |
| 2000 Short term deet, metading various portion of long term deet | (0,075) | (1,120) |
| | | |
| Long-term debt, less current portion | \$ 18,849 | \$ 31.956 |

Future principal payments required as of December 31, 2013 are as follows:

| 2014 | \$ 6,693 |
|-------|--------------|
| 2015 | 3,932 |
| 2016 | 3,382 |
| 2017 | 11,535 |
| | |
| | |
| Total | \$ 25,542 |

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(Dollars in Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

10. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Claims and Lawsuits

The Company is subject to claims and lawsuits that arise primarily in the ordinary course of business. It is the opinion of the Company that the disposition or ultimate resolution of such claims and lawsuits will not have a material adverse effect on the consolidated financial position of the Company.

Purchase Commitments

The Company purchases a significant portion of its prescription drug inventory from AmerisourceBergen, a prescription drug wholesaler. These purchases accounted for approximately 58%, 64% and 59% of cost of goods sold for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively. The Company entered into an agreement in January 2012 with AmerisourceBergen that required a minimum of \$3,500,000 in purchase obligations over a five-year period. The Company fully expects to meet this requirement. Furthermore, the Company has alternative vendors available if necessary.

The Company purchases certain prescription drugs from Celgene, a drug manufacturer. These purchases accounted for approximately 19%, 21% and 26% of cost of goods sold for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively, with no minimum purchase obligation.

Lease Commitments

Capital lease obligations: In 2010, the Company entered into four agreements to lease telephone equipment with an original cost of \$551. These agreements qualify as a capital lease and, as such, they are included in the equipment account on the accompanying balance sheets. The leases have been fully depreciated in 2013 and there are no future minimum lease payments.

Operating lease obligations: The Company leases multiple pharmacy and distribution facilities and office equipment under various operating lease agreements expiring through December 2017. Total rental expense under operating leases for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 was \$1,109, \$460 and \$415, respectively, exclusive of property taxes, insurance and other occupancy costs generally payable by the Company.

Future minimum payments under non-cancelable operating leases with initial or remaining terms of more than one year are as follows:

| 2014 | \$ | 1,241 |
|------|----|-------|
| 2015 | | 968 |
| 2016 | | 304 |
| 2017 | | 21 |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| | Ф | 2 524 |

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(Dollars in Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

11. CAPITAL STOCK

The Company filed Amended Articles of Incorporation effective July 5, 2007 which establish classes of common stock. The amendment authorizes 5,000 shares of Class A Voting Common Stock and 95,000 shares of Class B Nonvoting Common Stock. Of those shares, 65 shares of Class A Voting Common Stock and 1,235 shares of Class B Nonvoting Common Stock were issued to two shareholders with certain redemption features which provide that upon the death of the shareholder or termination of his employment from the Company, all such outstanding shares owned by such shareholder will immediately be deemed to be offered for sale to the Company at an agreed-upon price meant to represent the then-current fair value of such shares. The Company will then be required to purchase the shares. Pursuant to this provision, the common shares are deemed to be mandatorily redeemable and, as such, are required to be reflected as Company liabilities at their period end estimated fair value. Changes in their fair value are reflected as Changes in fair value of redeemable common shares on the Company's consolidated statements of operation. Fair value is determined based on good faith estimates of the Company's board of directors, in some cases with the assistance of independent third party valuations of the Company. These redemption provisions terminate upon certain events, including the effectiveness of any initial capital stock public offering.

In January 2012, in conjunction with the termination of one of these shareholders, the Company redeemed his 32.50 shares of Class A Voting Common Stock and 617.50 shares of Class B Nonvoting Common Stock for an aggregate redemption price of \$20,978, of which \$2,065 was paid in cash, forgiveness of a note receivable of \$196 and the remaining \$18,717 was payable in full, as per the terms of an executed promissory note, maturing July 2017 (Note 9). In September 2012, pursuant to mutual agreement of the other shareholder and the Company, the Company redeemed his 32.50 shares of Class A Voting Common Stock and 242.50 shares of Class B Nonvoting Common Stock for an aggregate redemption price of \$8,415, of which \$786 was paid in cash and the remaining \$7,629 was payable in full, as per the terms of an executed promissory note, maturing July 2017 (Note 9).

Each share of common stock has equal and identical rights, preferences and limitations, except for voting rights. The holders of shares of the Class A Voting Common Stock are entitled to one vote for each share of common stock held on any matter submitted to a vote of the shareholders. The holders of shares of the Class B Nonvoting Common Stock have no voting rights, except as otherwise required by law. None of the classes of Common Stock are convertible into any other class of capital stock. See also subsequent events in Note 14 for further disclosure of common stock transactions.

Additionally in 2012, the Company settled a matter with a prior shareholder in which \$580 of expense was recognized of which \$100 was paid in cash and the remaining \$480 was payable in full, as per the terms of an executed promissory note, maturing June 2015 (Note 9).

12. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

The Company's 2007 Stock Option Plan, as approved by the Company's Board of Directors and amended March 1, 2009, authorizes the granting of stock options to its key employees at no less than the market price on the date the option is granted. Options generally become exercisable in installments of 25% per year, beginning on the first anniversary of the grant date and each of the three anniversaries thereafter, and have a maximum term of ten years. All share-based compensation awards for employees have been granted under the 2007 Stock Option Plan.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(Dollars in Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

12. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION (Continued)

The Company uses the Black-Scholes-Merton option pricing model to determine the grant date valuation of options and has applied the assumptions set forth in the following table:

| | Year Ended December 31, | | | | | |
|---|-------------------------|-----------------|--------------|--|--|--|
| | 2013 | 2012 | 2011 | | | |
| Exercise price of options (in thousands) | \$50.0 - \$137.4 | \$36.4 - \$50.8 | \$32.2 | | | |
| Expected volatility | 23.3% - 25.3% | 22.5% - 25.3% | 21.6 - 23.0% | | | |
| Expected dividend yield | 0% | 0% | 0% | | | |
| Risk-free rate over the estimated expected life | 0.65 - 1.27% | 0.55 - 0.66% | 0.94 - 1.53% | | | |
| Expected life (in years) | 4.0 | 4.0 | 4.0 | | | |

Total compensation cost expensed during the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 related to employee stock options was \$886, \$915 and \$1,410, respectively. During 2012, the Company redeemed stock options to buy 0.0104 shares of Class A Voting Common Stock and 0.1982 shares of Class B Nonvoting Common Stock from two former employees for cash consideration totaling \$1,043 and a note payable in the amount of \$1,423, resulting in a reduction of additional paid-in capital of \$513 and an increase in accumulated deficit of \$1,953.

At December 31, 2013, the total compensation cost related to non-vested options not yet recognized was \$2,340, which will be recognized over a weighted average period of 2.1 years, assuming the employees complete their service period for vesting of the options.

A summary of the Company's stock option activity on an annual basis is as follows:

| | Number of Shares | Ave Exe | ghted crage crcise cice | Ave Gi Date | ghted erage rant e Fair alue | Weighted Average Remaining Contractua Term | | Ir | gregate ntrinsic Value |
|----------------------------------|---------------------|------------|----------------------------------|-------------------|--|--|----|----|------------------------------|
| | | | (In Tho | usands | s) | (Years) | | | |
| Outstanding at January 1, 2011 | 702.2 | \$ | 21.4 | \$ | 8.9 | 8. | .0 | \$ | 292 |
| Granted | 78.0 | | 32.2 | | 1.8 | | | | |
| Forfeited | (208.6) | | 26.6 | | 6.5 | | | | |
| 0.44 15 4 15 15 21 2011 | 571 (| | 21.0 | | 0.0 | 7 | 2 | ф | 1 410 |
| Outstanding at December 31, 2011 | 571.6 | | 21.0 | | 8.8 | 7. | .2 | \$ | 1,412 |
| Granted | 248.2 | | 37.7 | | 2.5 | | | | |
| Expired/cancelled | (166.2) | | 18.5 | | 8.1 | | | | |
| Outstanding at December 31, 2012 | 653.6 | | 27.9 | | 6.6 | 7. | .5 | \$ | 14,976 |
| Granted | 129.6 | | 79.8 | | 11.0 | | | | |
| Outstanding at December 31, 2013 | 783.2 | \$ | 36.5 | \$ | 7.3 | 7. | .0 | \$ | 69,732 |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| Exercisable at December 31, 2013 | 411.7 | \$ | 22.9 | \$ | 7.4 | 5. | .6 | \$ | 37,851 |

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(Dollars in Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

Year Ended December 31,

13. INCOME PER COMMON SHARE

The following is a reconciliation of the numerators and the denominators of the basic and diluted income per common share:

| Teal Black December 61, | | | | | |
|-------------------------|--|---|---|---|--|
| 2013 | | 2012 | | 2011 | |
| \$ (26,120) | \$ | (2,639) | \$ | 9,151 | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| • • • • | | • | | • | |
| 3,899 | | 3,899 | | 3,899 | |
| | | | | 130 | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| 3,899 | | 3,899 | | 4,029 | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| \$ (6,699.13) | \$ | (676.74) | \$ | 2,346.96 | |
| \$ (6,699.13) | \$ | (676.74) | \$ | 2,271.36 | |
| \$ | \$ (26,120) 3,899 3,899 \$ (6,699.13) | \$ (26,120) \$ 3,899 3,899 \$ (6,699.13) \$ | \$ (26,120) \$ (2,639) 3,899 3,899 3,899 3,899 \$ (6,699.13) \$ (676.74) | \$ (26,120) \$ (2,639) \$ 3,899 3,899 3,899 3,899 \$ (6,699.13) \$ (676.74) \$ | |

Options to purchase 783, 654 and 0 common shares were not included in the computation of diluted earnings per share because they were anti-dilutive during the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

14. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Company has evaluated subsequent events through June 27, 2014, the date the consolidated financial statements were originally available for issuance and re-evaluated subsequent events through October 3, 2014.

Income Tax Status Change

On January 23, 2014, the Company changed its income tax status from an S corporation to a C corporation. Accordingly, on that date, the Company recorded a net deferred income tax liability of \$2,492 (unaudited) and reclassified all of its accumulated deficit, inclusive of the net deferred tax liability adjustment, into additional paid-in capital. The pro forma data presented on the consolidated statements of operations give effect to the Company's election to be a C corporation as if that election was made effective January 1, 2011.

As a C corporation, the Company will account for income taxes under the asset and liability method to account for income taxes. Deferred tax assets or liabilities will be determined based on the difference between the financial statement and tax bases of assets and liabilities and on tax credit carryforwards as measured by the enacted tax rates which will be in effect when these items are expected to impact the tax returns. The Company would provide a valuation allowance against net deferred tax assets unless, based upon the available evidence, it is more likely than not that the deferred tax assets will be realized.

The Company will prepare and file tax returns based on interpretations of tax laws and regulations. In the normal course of business the Company's tax returns will be subject to examination by various taxing authorities. Such examinations may result in future tax and interest assessments by

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(Dollars in Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

14. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (Continued)

these taxing authorities. In determining the Company's tax provision for financial reporting purposes, the Company will establish a reserve for uncertain income tax positions unless it is determined to be "more likely than not" that such tax positions would be sustained upon examination, based on their technical merits. That is, for financial reporting purpose, the Company will only recognize tax benefits taken on the tax return if it believes it is "more likely than not" that such tax position would be sustained. There will be considerable judgment involved in determining whether it is "more likely than not" that such tax positions would be sustained.

The Company will adjust its tax reserve estimates periodically because of ongoing examinations by, and settlements with, varying taxing authorities, as well as changes in tax laws, regulations and interpretations. The consolidated tax provision of any given period will include adjustments to prior year income tax accruals and related estimated interest charges that are considered appropriate. The Company's policy will be to recognize, when applicable, interest and penalties on uncertain income tax positions as part of income tax expense.

Equity Matters

In January and March 2014, the Company authorized an aggregate of 732 shares of a new class of common stock, Class C Voting Common Stock, of which none are outstanding as of May 15, 2014. The Class C Voting Common Stock is identical in all respects to the Class A Voting Common Stock and Class B Nonvoting Common Stock other than for voting rights. Pursuant to the amended and restated articles of incorporation effective March 31, 2014, the Class A Voting Common Stock is entitled to 20 votes per share, the Class B Nonvoting Common Stock is nonvoting and the Class C Voting Common Stock is entitled to one vote per share.

In January 2014, the Company also entered into a Series A Preferred Stock Purchase Agreement with certain funds of T. Rowe Price under which the Company issued to certain funds of T. Rowe Price 351.32097 shares of Series A Preferred Stock at a purchase price of \$142 per share. The Company will use \$20,000 of this \$50,000 investment for general corporate purposes inclusive of fees associated with this transaction, and the remaining \$30,000 was used to redeem common stock (\$26,900 including 16.86341 shares of redeemable common stock for \$2,400) and common stock options (\$3,100).

In April 2014, the Company entered into a Series A Preferred Stock Purchase Agreement with certain funds of Janus Capital Group ("Janus") under which the Company issued to certain funds of Janus 379.4267 shares of Series A Preferred Stock at a purchase price of \$142 per share. The Company will use \$25,200 of the \$54,000 investment for general corporate purposes inclusive of fees associated with this transaction, and the remaining \$28,800 was used to redeem common stock (\$26,500 including 23.0052 shares of redeemable common stock for \$3,274) and common stock options (\$2,300).

The Series A Preferred Stock is entitled to vote as if converted into Class C Voting Common Stock on the voting date. The Series A Preferred Stock has no coupon rate, is convertible into Class C Voting Common Stock at any time at the option of the holder, has optional redemption rights and has liquidation preferences. The conversion rate is on a one-for-one basis, subject to adjustment for stock splits and subdivisions, stock combinations, certain future issuances of common stock or common stock equivalents at effective prices lower than the then-applicable conversion rate, and other circumstances as described in the amended articles of incorporation. The Series A Preferred Stock automatically converts into Class C Voting Common Stock upon either (i) a qualified common stock public offering (as defined), or (ii) an affirmative vote of the majority of the Series A Preferred Stock.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(Dollars in Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

14. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (Continued)

Pursuant to an affirmative vote of the majority of the Series A Preferred Stock, the holders thereof can demand redemption of all outstanding shares of Series A Preferred Stock anytime on or after the earlier of (i) January 23, 2021, (ii) such time as the Company's aggregate market price (as defined) is equal or greater than \$5,000,000, and (iii) such time as certain changes are made to the Company's board of directors, certain executive officers and/or certain controlling shareholders. The redemption price is payable in cash and will be the greater of the original issuance price plus all declared but unpaid dividends and fair market value (as defined). Because of these redemption provisions, the Series A Preferred Shares will be reflected outside of permanent equity on the Company's Consolidated Balance Sheet. Upon a liquidation event (as defined), the Series A Preferred Stockholders are entitled to receive the greater of (i) the sum of the original issuance price plus a 15% return compounded annually, and (ii) the amount they would receive upon the liquidation had the Series A Preferred Stock converted into Class C Voting Common Stock just prior to the liquidation date.

Other Matters

In February 2014, the interest rate swap disclosed in Note 3 was terminated and the related liability of \$9 at that time was paid in full.

On May 30, 2014, the Company satisfied its mortgage loan obligation owed to JPMorgan Chase Bank. The total payment of \$2,609 was comprised of \$2,604 for the face amount of the note and \$5 for accrued interest.

On May 30, 2014, the Company entered into a Stock Option Redemption Agreement with a former executive whereby the Company redeemed options to acquire 0.104 shares of common stock, comprised of 0.0052 shares of Class A Voting Common Stock and 0.0988 shares of Class B Nonvoting Common Stock, for the cash purchase price of \$4,000.

On June 1, 2014, the remaining holder of the redeemable common shares, transferred 50 such shares of Class B Nonvoting Common Stock into a separate trust, upon which the redemption provisions were terminated for those transferred shares and the related liability was reclassified into additional paid-in capital.

On June 26, 2014, the Company's line of credit with GE was amended to increase the aggregate revolving loan commitments under the line of credit from \$85,000 to \$120,000.

On June 27, 2014, the Company acquired all of the outstanding stock of MedPro Rx, Inc. ("MedPro") for \$51,970 in cash, 84.31703 shares of the Company's Class B Nonvoting Common Stock, valued at approximately \$12,000, and up to \$11,500 of contingent consideration that is based on the achievement of certain revenue and gross profit targets. MedPro is a specialty pharmacy focused on specialty infusion therapies, including hemophilia and immune globulin, based in Raleigh, North Carolina. The Company acquired MedPro to expand its existing specialty infusion business and to increase its presence in the mid-Atlantic and Southern regions of the country. The results of operations for MedPro will be included in the Company's consolidated financial statements from the acquisition date.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(Dollars in Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

14. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (Continued)

The Company is in the process of preparing for an initial public offering ("IPO"). The Company's expectation is that the IPO will occur during the latter half of 2014, though no assurances can be made. Upon completion of the IPO, all outstanding shares of capital stock will automatically convert into shares of newly-authorized shares of voting common stock. Additionally, immediately prior to the IPO, the Company will affect a stock split in the form of a stock dividend. Accordingly, all share and per share amounts presented in these consolidated financial statements and notes thereto, will be adjusted, where applicable, to reflect the conversions and split.

15. RESTATEMENT

As described in Note 11, certain of the Company's outstanding common shares are mandatorily redeemable and are reflected as liabilities with changes in their fair value reflected as non-operating expense or income. Prior to 2014, the Company had relied on the deferral, for private companies, of accounting guidance that required such treatment. Accordingly, the redeemable common shares were previously classified as permanent equity and did not result in any associated non-operating expense or income, either when they were outstanding or upon any redemption. Upon the private company deferral no longer being applicable to the Company, the Company determined that it had to restate its

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

(Dollars in Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

15. RESTATEMENT (Continued)

historical presentation to comply with the applicable accounting guidance. The following table sets forth the impacts of such restatements:

| | As previously reported | Adjustment | As adjusted | |
|---|------------------------|-------------|-------------|--|
| As of and for the year ended December 31, 2013: | | | | |
| Balance Sheet: | | | | |
| Redeemable common shares | \$ | \$ (53,370) | | |
| Additional paid-in capital | 4,446 | (260) | 4,186 | |
| Accumulated deficit | (28,862) | (53,110) | (81,972) | |
| Total shareholders' deficit | (24,412) | (53,370) | (77,782) | |
| Statement of Operations: | | | | |
| Income from operations | 11,083 | | 11,083 | |
| Change in fair value of redeemable common shares | 11,003 | (34,348) | (34,348) | |
| Net income (loss) | 8,228 | (34,348) | (26,120) | |
| Basic earnings (loss) per share | 1,924.70 | (8,623.83) | (6,699.13) | |
| Diluted earnings (loss) per share | 1,885.45 | (8,584.58) | (6,699.13) | |
| Diluted earnings (loss) per share | 1,005.45 | (0,564.56) | (0,099.13) | |
| Statement of Cash Flows: | | | | |
| Net income (loss) | 8,228 | (34,348) | (26,120) | |
| Change in fair value of redeemable common shares | | (34,348) | (34,348) | |
| Net cash provided by operating activities | 6,227 | | 6,227 | |
| | | | | |
| As of and for the year ended December 31, 2012: | | | | |
| Balance Sheet: | | | | |
| Redeemable common shares | | (19,022) | (19,022) | |
| Additional paid-in capital | 3,560 | (260) | 3,300 | |
| Accumulated deficit | (36,104) | (18,762) | (54,866) | |
| Total shareholders' deficit | (32,540) | (19,022) | (51,562) | |
| | | | | |
| Statement of Operations: | | | | |
| Income from operations | 4,943 | | 4,943 | |
| Change in fair value of redeemable common shares | | (6,566) | (6,566) | |
| Net income (loss) | 3,927 | (6,566) | (2,639) | |
| Basic earnings (loss) per share | 878.35 | (1,555.09) | (676.74) | |
| Diluted earnings (loss) per share | 853.50 | (1,530.24) | (676.74) | |
| Statement of Cook Flores | | | | |
| Statement of Cash Flows: | 2.027 | (6.566) | (2.620) | |
| Net income (loss) | 3,927 | (6,566) | (2,639) | |
| Change in fair value of redeemable common shares Net cash provided by operating activities | 5.006 | (6,566) | (6,566) | |
| Net cash provided by operating activities | 5,006 | | 5,006 | |
| For the year ended December 31, 2011: | | | | |
| Statement of Operations: | | | | |
| Income from operations | 9,080 | | 9,080 | |
| Change in fair value of redeemable common shares | | | 2,000 | |
| Net income | 9,151 | | 9,151 | |
| Basic earnings per share | 1,759.77 | 589.19 | 2,346.96 | |
| Diluted earnings per share | 1,723.13 | 548.23 | 2,271.36 | |
| 9× F | F-28 | | _,_,, | |
| | 1 20 | | | |

DIPLOMAT PHARMACY, INC.

Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets (Unaudited)

June 30, 2014 Pro Forma Shareholders' Equity

Equity June 30, December 31, (Note 15) 2014 2013

(Dollars in Thousands, Except Par Values)

\$ 338,909 \$

211,777

| · · | , · | |
|--|--------------|---------|
| | (Restated) | |
| ASSETS | | |
| Current assets: | | |
| Cash and cash equivalents | \$ 25,550 \$ | 9,109 |
| Accounts receivable, net | 139,490 | 104,047 |
| Other receivables | 6,067 | 6,247 |
| Inventories | 69,490 | 56,454 |
| Deferred income taxes | 155 | |
| Prepaid expenses and other current assets | 3,178 | 1,924 |
| | | |
| | | |
| Total current assets | 243,930 | 177,781 |
| | | |
| Property and equipment, net | 12,900 | 12,378 |
| Capitalized software for internal use, net | 9,002 | 6,564 |
| Goodwill | 22,851 | 1,537 |
| Definite-lived intangible assets, net | 43,747 | 7,100 |
| Investment in non-consolidated entity | 5,368 | 5,577 |
| Other noncurrent assets | 1,111 | 840 |
| | | |
| | | |

| LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' DEFICIT | | |
|---|--------------|------------|
| Current liabilities: | | |
| Accounts payable | \$ 194,248 | \$ 142,353 |
| Line of credit | 79,876 | 62,622 |
| Short-term debt, including current portion of long-term debt | 3,949 | 6,693 |
| Accrued compensation | 2,500 | 2,703 |
| Income taxes payable | 1,333 | |
| Other accrued expenses | 5,414 | 2,296 |
| | | |
| Total current liabilities | 287,320 | 216,667 |
| | | |
| Long-term debt, less current portion | 16,893 | 18,849 |
| Deferred income taxes | 2,261 | |
| Other noncurrent liabilities | 2,289 | 673 |
| Redeemable Common Shares (\$1.00 par value; 285 shares outstanding at June 30, 2014 and | | |
| 375 shares outstanding at December 31, 2013) | \$ 38,423 | 53,370 |

Redeemable Series A Preferred Stock (\$0.001 par value; 732 authorized shares at June 30, 2014; 731 issued and outstanding shares at June 30, 2014) 101,815 Commitments and contingencies Shareholders' equity (deficit): Common stock: Class A Voting Common Stock (\$1.00 par value; 5,000 authorized shares; 195 issued and outstanding shares at both June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013) Class B Nonvoting Common Stock (\$1.00 par value; 95,000 authorized shares; 3,504 issued and outstanding shares at June 30, 2014 and 3,705 issued and outstanding shares at December 31, 2013) Class C Voting Common Stock (\$1.00 par value; 732 authorized shares; none issued or outstanding) Additional paid-in capital 26,203 (114,039)4,186 Retained earnings (accumulated deficit) 3,943 3,943 (81,972)Total shareholders' equity (deficit) \$ 30,146 (110,092)(77,782)\$ 338,909 \$ 211,777

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.

Table of Contents

Diluted

DIPLOMAT PHARMACY, INC.

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations (Unaudited)

746.81 \$

883.77

| | Six Months Ended June 30, | | | | |
|--|------------------------------|--|------|-----------|--|
| | E | 2014 (Dollars in T xcept Per Sha | | | |
| | | (Resta | ted) | | |
| Net sales | \$ | 1,007,352 | \$ | 704,525 | |
| Cost of goods sold | | (948,275) | | (663,883) | |
| Gross profit | | 59,077 | | 40,642 | |
| Selling, general and administrative expenses | | (51,024) | | (35,988) | |
| Income from operations | | 8,053 | | 4,654 | |
| Interest expense | | (895) | | (941) | |
| Change in fair value of redeemable shares | | 957 | | (> .1) | |
| Equity loss of non-consolidated entity | | (710) | | (311) | |
| Other income | | 517 | | 112 | |
| Income before income taxes Income tax expense | | 7,922 (4,557) | | 3,514 | |
| Net income / net comprehensive income | | 3,365 | | 3,514 | |
| Net income allocable to preferred shareholders | | 401 | | | |
| Net income allocable to common shareholders | \$ | 2,964 | \$ | 3,514 | |
| Net income per common share: | | | | | |
| Basic | \$ | 803.16 | \$ | 901.32 | |

Edgar Filing: Diplomat Pharmacy, Inc. - Form 424B4

| Weighted average shares outstanding: | | | |
|--|----|----------|--------------|
| Basic | | 3,691 | 3,899 |
| Diluted | | 3,970 | 3,976 |
| Pro Forma Data (Notes 1 and 15): | | | |
| Income before income taxes | \$ | 7,922 | \$ 3,514 |
| Income tax expense | | (2,665) | (1,243) |
| | | | |
| Net income / net comprehensive income | | 5,257 | 2,271 |
| Net income allocable to preferred shareholders | | | |
| Net income allocable to common shareholders | \$ | 5,257 | \$ 2,271 |
| Pro forma net income per common share: | _ | | |
| Basic | \$ | 1,424.18 | \$ 582.52 |
| Diluted | \$ | 1,324.26 | \$ 571.18 |

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (Unaudited)

| | | Six Months Ended June 30, | | | |
|--|-------------------|------------------------------|----|--------------------|--|
| | | 2014 | | 2013 | |
| | (Dollars in Thous | | | ands) | |
| | (Restated) | | | | |
| Cash Flows From Operating Activities | | | | | |
| Net income | \$ | 3,365 | \$ | 3,514 | |
| Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities: | | | | | |
| Depreciation and amortization | | 2,545 | | 1,821 | |
| Share-based compensation expense | | 1,135 | | 455 | |
| Equity loss of non-consolidated entity | | 710 | | 311 | |
| Net provision for doubtful accounts | | 997 | | 280 | |
| Amortization of debt issuance costs | | 182 | | 96 | |
| Change in fair value of redeemable common shares | | (957) | | | |
| Deferred income tax expense | | 2,105 | | (2) | |
| Gain on disposal of property and equipment | | (7) | | (2) | |
| Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of business acquisition: Accounts receivable | | (27.154) | | (5.012) | |
| Inventories | | (27,154) (9,217) | | (5,013) (7,735) | |
| Accounts payable | | 48,258 | | 9,021 | |
| Other assets and liabilities | | (1,135) | | (2,231) | |
| Other assets and nationales | | (1,133) | | (2,231) | |
| Net cash provided by operating activities | | 20,827 | | 517 | |
| | | | | | |
| Cash Flows From Investing Activities | | | | | |
| Payments to acquire business, net of cash acquired | | (51,302) | | | |
| Expenditures for capitalized software for internal use | | (3,893) | | (1,658) | |
| Expenditures for property and equipment | | (426) | | (270) | |
| Capital investment in and loans to non-consolidated entity | | (500) | | (1,750) | |
| Net repayment (issuance) of related parties' notes receivable | | 150 | | (54) | |
| Net proceeds from sales of equipment | | 17 | | 13 | |
| Net cash used in investing activities | | (55,954) | | (3,719) | |
| Coll Elema Error Error de A. A. P. Con | | | | | |
| Cash Flows From Financing Activities | | 17.054 | | 0.040 | |
| Net proceeds from line of credit | | 17,254 | | 9,049 | |
| Proposeds from sele of professed stock, not of transportion costs | | (4,701) | | (5,758) | |
| Proceeds from sale of preferred stock, net of transaction costs Payments associated with stock and stock option redemptions | | 101,815 (62,800) | | | |
| Shareholder distributions | | (02,800) | | (89) | |
| Shareholder distributions | | | | (69) | |
| Net cash provided by financing activities | | 51,568 | | 3,202 | |
| Increase in cash and cash equivalents | | 16,441 | | | |
| Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period | | 9,109 | | | |
| | | , | | | |

| Cash and cash equivalents at end of period | \$ 25,550 | \$ |
|--|--------------|-----|
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| Supplemental Cash Flow Information | | |
| Issuance of class B Nonvoting Common Stock as partial consideration for a business acquisition | \$ 12,000 | \$ |
| Cash paid for interest | 713 | 845 |
| | | |

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.

Table of Contents

DIPLOMAT PHARMACY, INC.

Condensed Consolidated Statement of Shareholders' Deficit (Unaudited)

| | Comn | on Stock | | Additional | | | Retained Earnings | | |
|---|-------------------|--------------------|---|------------|--------------------|-------|----------------------|----|-----------|
| | Class A Voting | Class I Nonvoti | _ |] | Paid-in Capital | (Acc | umulated eficit) | | Total |
| | | | | (Do | llars in Thou | sands |) | | |
| | | | | | (Restated) |) | | | |
| Balance at January 1, 2014 | \$ | \$ | 4 | \$ | 4,186 | \$ | (81,972) | \$ | (77,782) |
| Net income/net comprehensive income | | | | | | | 3,365 | | 3,365 |
| Reclassification of S corporation accumulated deficit | | | | | (82,550) | | 82,550 | | |
| Stock redemptions | | | | | (46,526) | | | | (46,526) |
| Removal of common stock redemption features | | | | | 7,116 | | | | 7,116 |
| Redemption of certain stock options | | | | | (9,400) | | | | (9,400) |
| Issuance of Class B Nonvoting Common Stock as partial | | | | | | | | | |
| consideration for a business acquisition | | | | | 12,000 | | | | 12,000 |
| Share-based compensation expense | | | | | 1,135 | | | | 1,135 |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| Balance at June 30, 2014 | \$ | \$ | 4 | \$ | (114,039) | \$ | 3,943 | \$ | (110,092) |

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)

(Dollars in Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Business Activity: Diplomat Pharmacy, Inc. d/b/a Diplomat Specialty Pharmacy (the "Company") is a specialty pharmacy sales business and includes all of its wholly owned subsidiaries including MedPro Rx, Inc. ("MedPro") and American Homecare Federation, Inc. ("AHF") that were acquired in June 2014 and December 2013, respectively. The Company stocks, dispenses and distributes prescriptions for various biotech and specialty pharmaceuticals and operates as one reportable segment. The Company has its corporate headquarters and main distribution facility in Flint, Michigan and maintains eight other pharmacy locations in Michigan, Illinois, Florida, California, Connecticut, Massachusetts and North Carolina.

Interim Financial Statements: The unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission. Certain information and footnote disclosures normally included in financial statements prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America ("U.S. GAAP") have been condensed or omitted pursuant to such rules and regulations. These statements include all adjustments (consisting of normal recurring adjustments) that management believes are necessary for a fair presentation of the results of operations, financial position and cash flows of the Company. The Company's management believes that the disclosures are adequate to make the information presented not misleading when read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and the notes thereto included in the Company's annual financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2013. Operating results for the six months ended June 30, 2014 are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for the year ending December 31, 2014.

Principles of Consolidation: The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Diplomat Pharmacy, Inc. and all of its wholly-owned subsidiaries. The Company also owns a 25% interest in a non-consolidated entity which is accounted for under the equity method of accounting. All intercompany transactions and accounts have been eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported therein. Due to the inherent uncertainty involved in making estimates, actual results reported in future periods may be based upon amounts that differ from these estimates.

Concentrations of Risk: Financial instruments which potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist principally of cash on deposit with banks or other financial institutions and trade accounts receivable.

A federal program provides non-interest bearing cash balances insurance coverage for up to \$250 per depositor at each financial institution. The Company's cash balances may exceed federally insured limits.

Concentration of credit risk with respect to trade receivables is limited by the large number of patients comprising the Company's customer base and their dispersion across multiple payors and multiple geographic areas. As of June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, the Company had no significant trade receivable concentrations of credit risk.

Cash Equivalents: The Company considers all highly liquid investments with maturities of 90 days or less from the date of purchase to be cash equivalents.

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited) (Continued)

(Dollars in Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts: Accounts receivable primarily include amounts from third-party pharmacy benefit managers and insurance providers and are based on contracted prices. Trade receivables require no collateral and are on an unsecured basis. Accounts receivable terms vary by payor, but generally are due within 30 days after the sale of the product or performance of the service.

The Company maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts that reduces receivables to amounts that are expected to be collected. In estimating the allowance, management considers factors such as current overall economic conditions, historical and anticipated customer performance, historical experience with write-offs, and the level of past due accounts. Changes in these conditions may result in additional allowances. Once an amount is deemed to be uncollectible, the amount is written off against the allowance. The allowance for doubtful accounts as of June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013 was \$1,159 and \$849, respectively.

Inventories: Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market and consist primarily of prescription medications, over-the-counter ("OTC") medications and medical supplies. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out method and are adjusted to actual cost quarterly based on a physical count. Inventory is returnable and fully refundable before six months of expiration, and any remaining expired medication is relieved from inventory quarterly. The Company records an estimated reserve for service fees and other deductions from the refund expected for returns of expired medication.

Property and Equipment: Property and equipment are valued at cost less accumulated depreciation. Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred, while expenditures that increase asset lives are capitalized. Depreciation is computed generally on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets. For income tax purposes, accelerated methods of depreciation are generally used.

When items of property or equipment are sold or retired, the related cost and accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts, and any gain or loss is included in earnings.

Construction in progress is stated at cost, which includes the cost of construction and other direct costs attributable to the construction. No provision for depreciation is made on construction in progress until such time as the relevant assets are completed and put into use.

Assets held for sale are carried at the lower of their historical depreciated costs or estimated fair values less costs to sell.

Capitalized Software for Internal Use: The Company has also developed software for internal use. The Company expenses the costs incurred during the preliminary project stage, and capitalizes the direct development costs (including the associated payroll and related costs for employees working on development, and outside contractor costs) during the application development stage. The Company monitors development on an ongoing basis and capitalizes the costs of any major improvements or new functionality. Amortization is computed generally on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets. For income tax purposes, accelerated methods of amortization are generally used.

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited) (Continued)

(Dollars in Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Goodwill: Goodwill represents excess purchase price paid for a business over the estimated fair value of its acquired net assets related to the Company's acquisitions of MedPro and AHF on June 27, 2014 and December 16, 2013, respectively. See Note 2 for further details.

Goodwill will be reviewed for impairment annually, or more frequently if impairment indicators exist. Accounting guidance provides the option of performing a qualitative assessment that may allow companies to forego the annual two-step quantitative impairment test for goodwill if it is determined that the fair value of the applicable reporting unit is more likely than not greater than its carrying value. This qualitative assessment evaluates various events and circumstances, such as macro-economic conditions, industry and market conditions, cost factors, relevant events and financial trends, that may impact a reporting unit's fair value. If the two-step impairment test for goodwill is deemed necessary, this quantitative impairment analysis compares the fair values of the Company's reporting units to their related carrying values. If a reporting unit's carrying value exceeds its fair value, the Company must then calculate the reporting unit's implied fair value of goodwill and impairment charges are recorded for any excess of the goodwill carrying value over the implied fair value of goodwill. The reporting units' fair values are based upon consideration of various valuation methodologies, including projected future cash flows discounted at rates commensurate with the risks involved, guideline transaction multiples, and multiples of current and future earnings.

Definite-Lived Intangible Assets: Intangible assets consist of the assets related to the acquisitions of AHF and MedPro, and are amortized over their estimated useful lives using the accelerated method for patient relationships, and the straight line method for the remaining intangible assets.

Long-Lived Asset Impairment Testing: Long-lived assets, which include property, equipment, capitalized software, investment in non-consolidated affiliate and definite-lived intangible assets, are periodically reviewed for impairment indicators. In assessing long-lived assets for impairment, assets are grouped with other assets and liabilities at the lowest level for which identifiable cash flows are largely independent of the cash flows of other assets and liabilities. If impairment indicators exist, the Company performs an undiscounted cash flow test to determine recoverability. If this recoverability test identifies a possible impairment, management will perform a fair value analysis. Fair values of long-lived assets are determined through various techniques, such as applying probability weighted, expected present value calculations to the estimated future cash flows using assumptions a market participant would utilize or through the use of valuation specialists. The Company compares the fair value of the long-lived asset to its net carrying value and an impairment charge is recorded for the amount by which the net carrying value of the long-lived asset exceeds its fair value.

Debt Issuance Costs: Debt issuance costs related to the Company's revolving line of credit are capitalized within "Other noncurrent assets" and amortized as interest expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the agreement for which the fees were paid.

Share-Based Compensation: The Company expenses the grant date fair values of its employee stock options over their respective vesting periods on a straight-line basis. Estimating grant date fair values for employee stock options requires management to make assumptions regarding the current value of the Company's common shares, expected volatility of value of those underlying shares, the risk-free rate over the expected life of the stock options, and the date on which share-based payments will be settled. The Company estimates its common share fair value using the income approach and

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited) (Continued)

(Dollars in Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

market approach using the market comparable method. Expected volatility is based on an implied volatility for a group of industry-relevant healthcare companies as of the measurement date. Risk-free rate is determined based upon U.S. Treasury rates over the estimated expected option lives. Expected dividend yield is zero as the Company does not anticipate that any dividends will be declared during the expected term of the options. Expected option life is less than the option term. If actual results differ significantly from these estimates and assumptions, particularly in relation to management's estimation of volatility which requires the most judgment due to the Company being a private entity, share-based compensation expense, primarily with respect to future share-based awards, could be materially impacted.

Revenue Recognition: The Company recognizes revenue from prescription drug sales for home delivery at the time the drugs are shipped. At the time of shipment, the Company has performed substantially all of its obligations under its payor contracts and does not experience a significant level of returns or reshipments. If the Company administers a drug treatment regimen in a patient's home, the Company recognizes revenue at the time of administration. Revenues from dispensing specialty prescriptions that are filled at an open door or retail pharmacy location are recorded at prescription adjudication, which approximates fill date. Sales taxes are presented on a net basis (excluded from revenues and costs). Revenues generated from prescription drugs were \$1,001,438 and \$699,700 for the six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Shipping and handling costs are not billed to patients; therefore, there are no shipping and handling revenues. Conversely, the Company recognizes shipping and handling costs as incurred by the Company as a component of "Selling, general and administrative expenses" and were \$5,881 and \$4,817 for the six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

The Company recognizes revenue from service, data and consulting services when the services have been performed and the earnings process is complete. Revenues generated from service, data and consulting services were \$5,914 and \$4,825 for the six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

The Company derived its revenue from the following therapeutic classes:

| | Six Months Ended June 30, | | | | |
|-------------------------------|------------------------------|-----------|----|---------|--|
| | | 2014 | | 2013 | |
| Oncology | \$ | 477,640 | \$ | 340,221 | |
| Immunology(1) | | 211,972 | | 174,712 | |
| Multiple Sclerosis | | 105,378 | | 76,459 | |
| Other (none greater than 10%) | | 212,362 | | 113,133 | |
| | | | | | |
| | \$ | 1,007,352 | \$ | 704,525 | |

Includes drugs dispensed to treat arthritis, crohn's disease and psoriasis.

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited) (Continued)

(Dollars in Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Advertising and Marketing Costs: Advertising and marketing costs are expensed as incurred and were \$488 and \$337 for the six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Income Taxes: Prior to January 23, 2014, the Company had elected to be taxed under the provisions of Subchapter S of the Internal Revenue Code. Under these provisions, the Company did not pay federal corporate income taxes on its taxable income. Instead, the stockholders were liable for individual federal income taxes on their respective shares of the Company's taxable income. Distributions were made periodically to the Company's shareholders to the extent needed to cover their income tax liability based on the Company's taxable income.

On January 23, 2014, the Company changed its income tax status from an S corporation to a C corporation. Accordingly, on that date, the Company recorded a net deferred income tax liability of \$2,492 and reclassified all of its accumulated deficit, inclusive of the net deferred tax liability adjustment, into additional paid-in capital. The pro forma data presented on the condensed consolidated statements of operations give effect to the Company's election to be a C corporation as if that election was made effective January 1, 2013, in addition to also giving effect to the conversion of Series A Preferred Stock as described in Note 15.

As a C corporation, the Company accounts for income taxes under the asset and liability approach. Deferred tax assets or liabilities are determined based on the difference between the financial statement and tax bases of assets and liabilities and on tax credit carryforwards as measured by the enacted tax rates which will be in effect when these items impact the tax returns. The Company provides a valuation allowance against net deferred tax assets unless, based upon the available evidence, it is more likely than not that the deferred tax assets will be realized.

The Company prepares and file tax returns based on interpretations of tax laws and regulations. In the normal course of business the Company's tax returns are subject to examination by various taxing authorities. Such examinations may result in future tax and interest assessments by these taxing authorities. In determining the Company's tax provision for financial reporting purposes, the Company establishes a reserve for uncertain income tax positions unless it is determined to be "more likely than not" that such tax positions would be sustained upon examination, based on their technical merits. That is, for financial reporting purposes, the Company only recognizes tax benefits taken on the tax return if it believes it is "more likely than not" that such tax position would be sustained. There is considerable judgment involved in determining whether it is "more likely than not" that such tax positions would be sustained. As of June 30, 2014, the Company has no recorded uncertain tax positions.

The Company adjusts its tax reserve estimates periodically because of ongoing examinations by, and settlements with, varying taxing authorities, as well as changes in tax laws, regulations and interpretations. The consolidated tax provision of any given year includes adjustments to prior year income tax accruals and related estimated interest charges that are considered appropriate. The Company's policy is to recognize, when applicable, interest and penalties on uncertain income tax positions as part of income tax expense.

Earnings per Share: The Company computes net earnings per common share using the two-class method as its preferred shares meet the definition of a participating security and thereby share in the net income or loss of the Company on a ratable basis with the common stockholders. The preferred shares portion of net income for the six months ended June 30, 2014 was 11%. Basic net income per

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited) (Continued)

(Dollars in Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

common share is computed by dividing net income allocable to common stockholders by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per common share further includes any common shares available to be issued upon exercise of outstanding stock options if such inclusion would be dilutive.

New Accounting Pronouncements: In February 2013, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued Accounting Standards Update ("ASU") No. 2013-4, Liabilities (Topic 405): Obligations Resulting from Joint and Several Liability Arrangements for Which the Total Amount of the Obligation is Fixed at the Reporting Date. This ASU is effective for interim and annual periods beginning after December 15, 2013 and requires the measurement of obligations resulting from joint and several liability arrangements for which the total amount of the obligation is fixed at the reporting date as the sum of: a) the amount the reporting entity agreed to pay on the basis of its arrangement among its co-obligors; and b) any additional amount the reporting entity expects to pay on behalf of its co-obligors. Required disclosures include a description of the joint-and-several arrangement and the total outstanding amount of the obligation for all joint parties. The Company's adoption of this guidance had no impact on its financial position, results of operations, cash flows or disclosures.

In July 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013-11, *Income Taxes (Topic 740): Presentation of an Unrecognized Tax Benefit When a Net Operating Loss Carryforward, a Similar Tax Loss, or a Tax Credit Carryforward Exists.* This ASU is effective for fiscal years and interim periods beginning after December 15, 2013 and changes the presentation of unrecognized tax benefits. The Company's adoption of this guidance had no impact on its financial position, results of operations, cash flows or disclosures.

In April 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-8, *Presentation of Financial Statements (Topic 205) and Property, Plant, and Equipment (Topic 360): Reporting Discontinued Operations and Disclosures of Disposals of Components of an Entity.* This ASU is effective within annual periods beginning on or after December 15, 2014, and interim periods within annual periods beginning on or after December 15, 2015 with early adoption permitted in certain circumstances. This ASU changes the requirements for reporting discontinued operations. The Company is currently evaluating the impact that the adoption of this guidance will have on its financial position, results of operations, cash flows and/or disclosures.

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-9, *Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606)*. This ASU is effective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2016, including interim periods within that reporting period. This ASU changes the requirements for revenue recognition. The Company is currently evaluating which of the several adoption methods it will select and what impact that the adoption of this guidance will have on its financial position, results of operations, cash flows and/or disclosures.

In June 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-12, Compensation Stock Compensation (Topic 718): Accounting for Share-Based Payments When the Terms of an Award Provide That a Performance Targets Could Be Achieved after the Requisite Service Period. This ASU is effective within annual periods beginning on or after December 15, 2015, including interim periods within that reporting period. This ASU requires that a performance target that affects vesting and that could be achieved after the requisite service period be treated as a performance condition. The Company is currently evaluating the impact that the adoption of this guidance will have on its financial position, results of operations, cash flows and/or disclosures.

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited) (Continued)

(Dollars in Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

2. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS

MedPro

On June 27, 2014, the Company acquired all of the authorized, issued and outstanding shares of capital stock of MedPro for a total acquisition price of approximately \$68,240, excluding related acquisition costs. Included in the total acquisition price is \$51,970 in cash, 84.31703 restricted shares of the Company's Class B Nonvoting Common Stock valued at approximately \$12,000, and contingent consideration fair valued at \$4,270, with a maximum payout of \$11,500 of contingent consideration that is based upon the achievement of certain revenue and gross profit targets in each of the twelve month periods ending June 30, 2015 and 2016. At the closing of the acquisition, approximately \$3,503 of the purchase consideration was deposited into an escrow account that will be held for two years after the closing date to satisfy any of the Company's indemnification claims. The Company incurred related acquisition costs of approximately \$635 that were expensed through "Selling, general and administrative expenses" during the six months ended June 30, 2014.

MedPro is a specialty pharmacy focused on specialty infusion therapies including hemophilia and immune globulin based in Raleigh, North Carolina. The Company acquired MedPro to expand its existing specialty infusion business and to increase its presence in the mid-Atlantic and Southern regions of the country. The Company ascribes significant value to the cost reductions as well as synergies and other benefits that do not meet the recognition criteria of acquired identifiable intangible assets. Accordingly, the value of these components is included within goodwill. The acquisition is treated as a stock purchase for accounting purposes, and the goodwill resulting from this acquisition is deductible for tax purposes. The results of operations for MedPro are included in the Company's condensed consolidated financial statements from the acquisition date and are not material for the three days ended June 30, 2014.

The Company did not acquire MedPro's affiliate from which MedPro leased certain operating and other facilities. Instead, the Company, commensurate with the acquisition, entered into a five-year external lease agreement for the facilities with similar terms. As the Company does not direct the significant activities of the lessor, it is not consolidated into the Company's financial statements.

The Company accounted for its acquisition of MedPro using the acquisition method as required by FASB Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC") Topic 805, *Business Combinations* ("FASB ASC 805"). A summary of the preliminary fair value determination of the acquired assets and liabilities from the MedPro acquisition is as follows:

| Cash and cash equivalents | \$ 668 |
|---|-----------|
| Accounts receivable | 9,050 |
| Inventories | 3,819 |
| Prepaid expenses and other current assets | 204 |
| Property and equipment | 697 |
| Capitalized software for internal use | 25 |
| Goodwill | 21,338 |
| Definite-lived intangible assets | 37,099 |
| Current liabilities | (4.660) |

\$ 68,240

Table of Contents

DIPLOMAT PHARMACY, INC.

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited) (Continued)

(Dollars in Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

2. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS (Continued)

Definite-lived intangible assets that were acquired and their respective useful lives are as follows:

| | Useful Life | Amount |
|-----------------------------------|-------------|-----------|
| Patient relationships | 7 years | \$ 24,000 |
| Trade names and trademarks | 10 years | 8,700 |
| Non-compete employment agreements | 5 years | 4,399 |

\$ 37,099

The Company determined the estimated fair values of MedPro's identifiable long-lived assets with assistance from an independent valuation firm. That firm also assisted in the Company's determination of the fair value of the contingent consideration utilizing historical results, forecasted operating results of MedPro for each of the twelve month periods ending June 30, 2015 and 2016, and the corresponding contractual contingent payouts based on those results discounted at rates commensurate with the uncertainty involved.

Given the proximity of the acquisition date to quarter-end, the Company recorded no amortization expense for the six months ended June 30, 2014. Amortization of these definite-lived intangible assets began on July 1, 2014.

AHF

On December 16, 2013, the Company acquired all of the authorized, issued and outstanding shares of capital stock of AHF for a total acquisition price of approximately \$13,449, excluding related acquisition costs. Included in the total acquisition price was approximately \$12,100 in cash and contingent consideration fair valued at \$1,300, with a maximum payout of \$2,000 of contingent consideration that is based on achieving certain revenue and gross profit targets in each of the two years ending December 31, 2014 and 2015. At the closing of the acquisition, approximately \$1,353 of the purchase consideration was deposited into an escrow account that will be held for two years after the closing date to satisfy any of the Company's indemnification claims. The Company incurred related acquisition costs of approximately \$499 that were expensed through "Selling, general and administrative expenses" during the twelve months ended June 30, 2014.

AHF provides clotting medications, ancillaries and supplies to individuals with bleeding disorders, such as hemophilia. AHF has provided pharmacy services exclusively to the bleeding disorders community since 1989. The acquisition of AHF will allow the Company to participate in AHF's direct purchase agreements with key hemophilia manufacturers while also providing AHF access to the Company's proprietary care management modules to better manage clinical care of the AHF patients. The Company ascribes significant value to the cost reductions as well as synergies and other benefits that do not meet the recognition criteria of acquired identifiable intangible assets. Accordingly, the value of these components is included within goodwill. The acquisition is treated as a stock purchase for accounting purposes, and the goodwill resulting from this acquisition is deductible for tax purposes. The results of operations for AHF are included in the Company's condensed consolidated financial statements from the acquisition date.

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited) (Continued)

(Dollars in Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

2. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS (Continued)

The Company did not acquire AHF's affiliate from which AHF leased its operating facility. Instead, the Company, commensurate with the acquisition, entered into a five-year external lease agreement for the facility with similar terms. As the Company does not direct the significant activities of the lessor, it is not consolidated into the Company's financial statements.

The Company accounted for its acquisition of AHF using the acquisition method as required by FASB ASC 805. A summary of the preliminary fair value determination of the acquired assets and liabilities from the AHF acquisition is as follows:

| Cash and cash equivalents | \$ 1,917 |
|---|-------------|
| Accounts receivable | 3,512 |
| Inventories | 1,138 |
| Prepaid expenses and other current assets | 27 |
| Property and equipment | 182 |
| Goodwill | 1,513 |
| Definite-lived intangible assets | 7,100 |
| Current liabilities | (1,940) |
| | |
| | |
| | |

\$ 13,449

Definite-lived intangible assets that were acquired and their respective useful lives are as follows:

| | Useful Life | Amount |
|-----------------------------------|-------------|----------|
| Patient relationships | 10 years | \$ 5,100 |
| Trade names and trademarks | 10 years | 1,400 |
| Non-compete employment agreements | 5 years | 600 |

\$ 7,100

The Company determined the estimated fair values of AHF's identifiable long-lived assets with assistance from an independent valuation firm. That firm also assisted in the Company's determination of the fair value of the contingent consideration utilizing historical results, forecasted operating results of AHF for each of the two years ending December 31, 2014 and 2015, and the corresponding contractual contingent payouts based on those results discounted at rates commensurate with the uncertainty involved. Based on operating results since AHF's acquisition, the Company increased the estimated contingent payout to the maximum \$2,000 total and therefore increased the related liability at fair value to \$1,621 as of June 30, 2014, with a \$321 charge to "Selling, general and administrative expenses" during the six months ended June 30, 2014.

Given the proximity of the acquisition date to year-end, the Company recorded no amortization expense for the year ended December 31, 2013. Amortization of these definite-lived intangible assets began on January 1, 2014. Amortization expense was \$452 for the six months ended June 30, 2014.

Pro Forma Results

The following unaudited pro forma results for the six months ended June 30, 2014 assume that the MedPro acquisition occurred as of January 1, 2013 and are inclusive of purchase price adjustments. The

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited) (Continued)

(Dollars in Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

2. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS (Continued)

following unaudited pro forma results for the six months ended June 30, 2013 assume that both the MedPro acquisition and the AHF acquisition occurred as of January 1, 2013 and are inclusive of purchase price adjustments. This pro forma information is not necessarily indicative of the results that actually would have been obtained had the acquisitions been in effect for the periods presented nor that may be obtained in the future.

| | | Six Months Ended June 30, | | | | |
|-----------------------------|---------|------------------------------|-----------|----|---------|--|
| | | | 2014 | | 2013 | |
| Net sales | | \$ | 1,051,132 | \$ | 757,911 | |
| Net income | | \$ | 3,634 | \$ | 1,985 | |
| | | | | | | |
| Net income per common share | basic | \$ | 856.42 | \$ | 509.17 | |
| | | • | 707.40 | Φ. | 100.07 | |
| Net income per common share | dıluted | \$ | 797.48 | \$ | 499.26 | |

3. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Accounting guidance clarifies that fair value is an exit price, representing the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants. As such, fair value is a market-based measurement that should be determined based upon assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability. As a basis for considering such assumptions, a three-tier fair value hierarchy was established, which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair value as follows:

Level

1: Observable inputs such as quoted prices in active markets;

Level

2: Inputs, other than quoted prices in active markets, that are observable either directly or indirectly; and

Level

3: Unobservable inputs in which there is little or no market data, which require the reporting entity to develop its own assumptions.

An asset's or liability's fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation techniques used need to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs.

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value are based on one or more of the following three valuation techniques:

- A.

 Market approach: Prices and other relevant information generated by market transactions involving identical or comparable assets or liabilities.
- B. *Cost approach:* Amount that would be required to replace the service capacity of an asset (replacement cost).
- C. *Income approach:* Techniques to convert future amounts to a single present amount based upon market expectations (including present value techniques, option-pricing and excess earnings models).

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited) (Continued)

(Dollars in Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

3. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

Assets and liabilities of the Company remeasured and disclosed at fair value on a recurring basis at June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013 are set forth in the table below:

| | sset ability) | Level 2 | Level 3 | Valuation Technique |
|------------------------------------|----------------------|---------|----------|------------------------|
| June 30, 2014: | | | | |
| Redeemable common shares | (38,423) | | (38,423) | A, C |
| Contingent consideration liability | (5,891) | | (5,891) | C |
| December 31, 2013: | | | | |
| Redeemable common shares | (53,370) | | (53,370) | A, C |
| Contingent consideration liability | (1,300) | | (1,300) | C |
| Interest rate swap contract | \$ (16) | \$ (16) |) | C |

The following table sets forth a roll forward of the Level 3 measurements:

| | Redeemable Common Shares | | Common | | Contingent Consideration Liability |
|--|--------------------------------|--------------------------|------------------|--|--|
| Balance as of January 1, 2013 | \$ | (19,022) | \$ | | |
| Change in fair value | | (34,348) | | | |
| Acquisition of AHF | | | (1,300) | | |
| Balance as of December 31, 2013 Change in fair value Redemptions | | (53,370) 957 5,674 | (1,300) (321) | | |
| Removal of redemption features | | 8,316 | | | |
| Acquisition of MedPro | | ,,,,,, | (4,270) | | |
| Balance as of June 30, 2014 | \$ | (38,423) | \$ (5,891) | | |

The fair value of the redeemable common stock underlying was determined by the Company's Board of Directors, with input from management. The nature of the material assumptions and estimates considered to determine the fair market value of the redeemable common stock are highly complex and subjective. Given the absence of a public trading market of the Company's common stock, and in accordance with the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants Accounting and Valuation Guide: *Valuation of Privately-Held-Company Equity Securities issued as Compensation*, the Board of Directors exercised reasonable judgment and considered numerous objective and subjective factors to determine the best estimate of the fair value of the redeemable common stock including:

recent significant investments by sophisticated, institutional investors for purchases of the Series A Preferred Stock, and the rights, privileges and preferences of such preferred stock to the redeemable common stock;

valuations of the Company's common stock performed by an unrelated third-party valuation specialist;

The Company's historical and projected operating and financial results;

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited) (Continued)

(Dollars in Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

3. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

the market performance and financial results of comparable publicly-traded companies;

industry or company-specific considerations;

likelihood of achieving a liquidity event, such as an initial public offering or a sale of the Company;

lack of marketability of the Company's common stock; and

the U.S. and global capital market conditions.

See Note 2 for more information regarding the valuation of the contingent consideration liability.

The significant inputs, primarily the LIBOR yield curve, used to determine the fair value of the Company's interest rate swap contract were considered Level 2 observable market inputs. The Company monitored the credit and nonperformance risk associated with its counterparty and believed them to be insignificant and not warranting a credit adjustment at December 31, 2013.

The Company's interest rate swap agreement had an original notional amount of \$2,160, equal to a mortgage loan with Bank of America. The purpose of the swap agreement was to fix the interest rate on the monthly balance of the mortgage and reduce exposure to interest rate fluctuations. Under the agreement, the Company paid the counterparty interest at a fixed rate of 2.72% and received interest at a variable rate, adjusted quarterly and based on LIBOR. Because this instrument is not classified as a hedging activity, changes in the fair value of this instrument are included in interest expense on the accompanying condensed consolidated statements of operations. Fair value of the interest rate swap agreement was recorded in "Other accrued expenses" on the December 31, 2013 condensed consolidated balance sheet. This agreement was terminated in February 2014 at a cost of \$9.

The carrying amounts of the Company's financial instruments, consisting primarily of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable and other liabilities, approximate their estimated fair values due to the relative short-term nature of the amounts. The carrying amount of debt approximates fair value due to variable interest rates at customary terms and rates the Company could obtain in current financing.

4. INVENTORIES

Inventories consist of the following:

| | J | une 30, 2014 | De | ecember 31, 2013 |
|--|----|-----------------|----|---------------------|
| Prescription medications, OTC medications and medical supplies, and retail items | \$ | 69,216 | \$ | 56,155 |
| Raw materials | | 256 | | 284 |
| Finished goods | | 18 | | 15 |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | \$ | 69,490 | \$ | 56,454 |

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited) (Continued)

(Dollars in Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

5. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment are recorded at cost and are depreciated over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets using the straight-line method. Depreciation expense was \$695 and \$689 for the six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Property and equipment consist of the following:

| | Useful Life | June 30, 2014 | ber 31, 13 |
|-------------------------------------|---------------|------------------|---------------|
| Land | | \$ 332 | \$ 332 |
| Buildings | 40 years | 7,549 | 7,419 |
| Building and leasehold improvements | 5 - 15 years* | 889 | 889 |
| Equipment and fixtures | 5 - 10 years | 7,212 | 6,465 |
| Computer equipment | 3 - 5 years | 2,147 | 2,096 |
| Vehicles | 5 years | 59 | 82 |
| Construction in progress | | 294 | 25 |
| | | 18,482 | 17,308 |
| Accumulated depreciation | | (5,582) | (4,930) |
| , recommend supressmillor | | (3,302) | (.,,,,,,,) |
| | | \$ 12,900 | \$ 12,378 |

Unless applicable lease term is shorter

Included in "Prepaid expenses and other current assets" on the condensed consolidated balance sheets are certain properties held for sale with a carrying value of \$300 at both June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013.

6. CAPITALIZED SOFTWARE FOR INTERNAL USE

Capitalized software for internal use is recorded at cost and is amortized over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets using the straight-line method. Amortization expense was \$1,398 and \$1,132 for the six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Balances of capitalized software for internal use are as follows:

| | | June 30, | December 31, |
|---------------------------------------|-------------|-----------|--------------|
| | Useful Life | 2014 | 2013 |
| Capitalized software for internal use | 3 years | \$ 13,692 | \$ 13,638 |
| Construction in progress | | 4,723 | 941 |

Edgar Filing: Diplomat Pharmacy, Inc. - Form 424B4

| | | 18,415 | 14,579 |
|--------------------------|---------|----------|---------|
| Accumulated amortization | (9,413) | | (8,015) |
| | | | |
| | | | |
| | \$ | 9,002 \$ | 6,564 |
| | | | |

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited) (Continued)

(Dollars in Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

7. INVESTMENT IN NON-CONSOLIDATED ENTITY

In October 2011, the Company purchased a 25% minority interest in WorkSmartMD, L.L.C., also known as Ageology, for \$5,000 of cash consideration, which was paid in installments during 2011, 2012 and 2013. No further payments or other commitments are required as of June 30, 2014. Because the Company does not direct the activities that most significantly impact the economic performance of Ageology, management has determined that the Company is not its primary beneficiary.

Ageology is an anti-aging physician network dedicated to nutrition, fitness and hormones, and has created a commercial software product for anti-aging physician practices that is in the late stages of development. The Company accounts for Ageology under the equity method, as it has significant influence over its operations. The Company's portion of Ageology's net losses were \$710 and \$311 for the six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The Company's equity investment balance in Ageology at June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013 was \$2,868 and \$3,577, respectively.

During January 2014, the Company entered into a \$500 8% per annum interest-bearing secured promissory note receivable from Ageology. During November and December 2013, the Company entered into two \$1,000 6% per annum interest-bearing promissory notes receivable from Ageology. The notes are secured by all personal property and fixtures owned by Ageology. While due on demand, the Company does not intend to call the notes anytime prior to June 30, 2015 and, accordingly, reflects the notes as noncurrent assets within "Investment in non-consolidated entity" on the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets.

The following table presents summarized financial information of Ageology:

| | Six Months Ended June 30, | | | |
|---------------------------|------------------------------|--------|----|---------|
| | 201 | 4 | | 2013 |
| Statements of Operations: | | | | |
| Net sales | \$ | 1 | \$ | 1 |
| Net loss | (2 | 2,839) | | (1,244) |

8. LINE OF CREDIT

On July 20, 2012, the Company entered into a five-year line of credit with General Electric Capital Corporation ("GE"). The original facility was comprised of a \$60,000 revolving loan commitment, which is secured by security interest in and lien upon substantially all of the Company's assets, not otherwise encumbered. The Company maintains a depository bank account where money is swept directly to the line of credit. Advances under the revolving credit loan commitment are limited to a borrowing base that consists of approximately 85% of the book value of eligible accounts receivable. In 2013, the facility was amended to increase the aggregate revolving loan commitments under the line of credit from \$60,000 to \$85,000. On June 26, 2014, the facility was amended to increase the aggregate revolving loan commitments under the line of credit from \$85,000 to \$120,000. As of June 30, 2014, the Company had \$79,876 of borrowings outstanding and had \$18,176 of availability under the line of credit. Additionally, the facility allows incremental increases in the line of credit or issuances of term loans up to an aggregate amount of \$25,000, subject to specific conditions.

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited) (Continued)

(Dollars in Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

8. LINE OF CREDIT (Continued)

Interest on borrowings are charged at a rate equal to either: (a) the base rate, which equates to the rate last quoted by *The Wall Street Journal* as the "Prime Rate" or as further defined in the agreement in the absence of such, plus an applicable margin (the "Base Rate"); or (b) LIBOR, as defined by the agreement, plus an applicable margin. The applicable margin on the Base Rate borrowings is 0.75% and on LIBOR rate borrowings is 1.75%. The effective interest rate for Base Rate borrowings at both June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013 was 4.00%. The effective rate on LIBOR rate borrowings at June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013 was 1.90% and 1.92%, respectively. At June 30, 2014, the Company had Base Rate borrowings outstanding in the amount \$39,876 and LIBOR rate borrowings outstanding in the amount of \$40,000. Additionally, the Company is charged a monthly unused commitment fee ranging from 0.25% to 0.50% on the average unused daily balance.

In connection with securing and amending this facility, the Company incurred transaction costs totaling \$1,424. These costs are being amortized as interest expense over the remaining life of the line of credit.

The revolving credit commitment with GE contains certain financial and non-financial covenants. The Company was in compliance with all covenants as of June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013.

9. DEBT

Debt consists of the following:

| | | une 30, 2014 | | ember 31, 2013 |
|---|----|-----------------|----|-------------------|
| Note payable to an individual; payable monthly in the amount of \$242-\$282 including interest at 1.3% | | | | |
| through January 2017; secured by redeemed shares held in escrow per the pledge agreement and subordinated to the line of credit commitment | \$ | 12,651 | \$ | 14,252 |
| Note payable to a shareholder; payable quarterly in the amount of \$100 including interest at 1.3%; matures July 20, 2017; secured by redeemed shares held in escrow per the pledge agreement and subordinated to the | Ψ | 12,031 | Ψ | 17,232 |
| line of credit commitment | | 7,082 | | 7,235 |
| Mortgage with JPMorgan Chase; was payable in quarterly payments of principal of \$124 plus interest at a | | | | |
| rate per year equal to the adjusted LIBOR rate plus the floating rate; was paid off in May 2014 | | | | 2,728 |
| Note payable to an individual; payable quarterly in the amount of \$79 including interest at 4.25%; matures | | | | |
| July 20, 2017; secured by redeemed shares held in escrow per the pledge agreement and subordinated to the line of credit commitment | | 949 | | 1,087 |
| Note payable to an individual; payable quarterly in the amount of \$40 interest free; matures June 15, 2015; | | 949 | | 1,067 |
| unsecured and subordinated to the line of credit commitment | | 160 | | 240 |
| unsecured and subordinated to the fine of eredit communicity | | 100 | | 240 |
| | | | | |
| | | 20,842 | | 25,542 |
| Less short-term debt, including current portion of long-term debt | | (3,949) | | (6,693) |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| Long-term debt, less current portion | \$ | 16,893 | \$ | 18,849 |

Table of Contents

DIPLOMAT PHARMACY, INC.

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited) (Continued)

(Dollars in Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

10. INCOME TAXES

Significant components of the expense for income taxes for the period from January 23, 2014 to June 30, 2014 are as follows:

| Current: | |
|-----------------|---------------|
| Federal | \$ (2,256) |
| State and local | (195) |
| | |
| Total current | (2,451) |
| Deferred: | |
| Federal | (1,973) |
| State and local | (133) |
| Total deferred | (2,106) |
| | \$ (4,557) |
| | |

Included in the deferred tax expense is a \$2,492 expense recorded upon the January 23, 2014 effectiveness of the Company's election to become a C corporation.

The reconciliation of income taxes computed at the United States federal statutory tax rate to income tax expense for the six months ended June 30, 2014 is:

| Income tax expense at United States statutory rate | \$ (2,773) |
|--|---------------|
| Tax effect from: | |
| Earnings while an S corporation | 651 |
| Adoption of C corporation status | (2,492) |
| State income taxes, net of federal benefit | (195) |
| Change in fair value of redeemable common shares | 335 |
| Other | (83) |
| | |
| | |
| Income tax expense | \$ (4,557) |

Significant components of the Company's deferred tax assets and liabilities at June 30, 2014 are as follows:

| Deferred tax assets: | |
|----------------------|----------|
| Inventories | \$ 53 |

| Compensation and benefits | 1,795 |
|---------------------------------------|------------|
| Other temporary differences | 557 |
| Total deferred tax assets | 2,405 |
| Deferred tax liabilities: | |
| Property and intangible assets | (1,928) |
| Investment in non-consolidated entity | (1,987) |
| Prepaid expenses | (596) |
| Total deferred tax liabilities | (4,511) |
| Net deferred tax liabilities | \$ (2,106) |
| | |

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited) (Continued)

(Dollars in Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

11. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Claims and Lawsuits

The Company is subject to claims and lawsuits that arise primarily in the ordinary course of business. It is the opinion of the Company that the disposition or ultimate resolution of such claims and lawsuits will not have a material adverse effect on the consolidated financial position of the Company.

Purchase Commitments

The Company purchases a significant portion of its prescription drug inventory from AmerisourceBergen, a prescription drug wholesaler. The Company entered into an agreement in January 2012 with AmerisourceBergen that required a minimum of \$3,500,000 in purchase obligations over a five-year period. The Company fully expects to meet this requirement. Furthermore, the Company has alternative vendors available if necessary.

The Company purchases certain prescription drugs from Celgene, a drug manufacturer. These purchases also comprise a large portion of the Company's prescription drug inventory. The Company has no minimum purchase obligation with Celgene.

Lease Commitments

The Company leases multiple pharmacy and distribution facilities and office equipment under various operating lease agreements expiring through December 2017. Total rental expense under operating leases, exclusive of property taxes, insurance and other occupancy costs generally payable by the Company, was \$916 and \$457 for the six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

12. CAPITAL STOCK

Pursuant to the Second Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation dated March 31, 2014, the Company has the following classes of capital stock:

| Class | Pa | r Value | Authorized | Voting Rights |
|--------------------|----|---------|------------|--------------------|
| Class A Common | \$ | 1.00 | 5,000 | 20 votes per share |
| Class B Common | \$ | 1.00 | 95,000 | Nonvoting |
| Class C Common | \$ | 1.00 | 732 | One vote per share |
| Series A Preferred | \$ | 0.001 | 732 | As described below |

101,464

Each class of common stock has equal and identical rights, preferences and limitations, other than for voting rights. The Series A Preferred Stock is entitled to vote as if converted into Class C Voting Common Stock on the voting date.

Of the common shares, 65 shares of Class A Voting Common Stock and 1,235 shares of Class B Nonvoting Common Stock were issued to two shareholders with certain redemption features which provide that upon the death of the shareholder or termination of his employment from the Company, all such outstanding shares owned by such shareholder will immediately be deemed to be offered for sale to the Company at an agreed-upon price meant to represent the then-current fair value of such shares. The Company will then be required to purchase the shares. Pursuant to this provision, the common shares are deemed to be mandatorily redeemable and, as such, are required to be reflected as

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited) (Continued)

(Dollars in Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

12. CAPITAL STOCK (Continued)

Company liabilities at their period end estimated fair value. Changes in their fair value are reflected as Changes in fair value of redeemable common shares on the Company's consolidated statements of operation. Fair value is determined based on good faith estimates of the Company's board of directors, in some cases with the assistance of independent third party valuations of the Company. These redemption provisions terminate upon certain events, including the effectiveness of any initial capital stock public offering. As of each of December 31, 2012 and 2013, only 375 shares of redeemable Class B Nonvoting Common Stock remained outstanding.

The Series A Preferred Stock has no coupon rate, is convertible into Class C Voting Common Stock at any time at the option of the holder, has optional redemption rights and has liquidation preferences. The conversion rate is on a one-for-one basis, subject to adjustment for stock splits and subdivisions, stock combinations, certain future issuances of common stock or common stock equivalents at effective prices lower than the then-applicable conversion rate, and other circumstances as described in the amended articles of incorporation. The Series A Preferred Stock automatically converts into Class C Voting Common Stock upon either (i) a qualified common stock public offering (as defined), or (ii) an affirmative vote of the majority of the Series A Preferred Stock.

Pursuant to an affirmative vote of the majority of the Series A Preferred Stock, the holders thereof can demand redemption of all outstanding shares of Series A Preferred Stock anytime on or after the earlier of (i) January 23, 2021, (ii) such time as the Company's aggregate market price (as defined) is equal or greater than \$5,000,000, and (iii) such time as certain changes are made to the Company's board of directors, certain executive officers and/or certain controlling shareholders. The redemption price is payable in cash and will be the greater of the original issuance price plus all declared but unpaid dividends and fair market value (as defined). Because of these redemption features, the Series A Preferred Stock is reflected outside of permanent equity on the Company's Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet. Upon a liquidation event (as defined) the Series A Preferred Stockholders are entitled to receive the greater of (i) the sum of the original issuance price plus a 15% return compounded annually and (ii) the amount they would receive upon the liquidation had the Series A Preferred Stock converted into Class C Voting Common Stock on the liquidation date.

In January 2014, the Company entered into a Series A Preferred Stock Purchase Agreement with T.Rowe Price under which the Company issued to T.Rowe Price 351.32097 shares of Series A Preferred Stock at a purchase price of \$142 per share. The Company used \$20,000 of this \$50,000 investment for general corporate purposes inclusive of fees associated with this transaction, and the remaining \$30,000 was distributed to the currently existing holders of common stock (\$26,900 including 16.86341 shares of redeemable common stock for \$2,400) and currently existing holders of options to acquire common stock (\$3,100) (Note 13).

In April 2014, the Company entered into a Series A Preferred Stock Purchase Agreement with Janus Capital Group ("Janus") under which the Company issued to Janus 379.4267 shares of Series A Preferred Stock at a purchase price of \$142 per share. The Company used \$25,200 of the \$54,000 investment for general corporate purposes inclusive of fees associated with this transaction, and the remaining \$28,800 was distributed to the currently existing holders of common stock (\$26,500 including 23.0052 shares of redeemable common stock for \$3,274) and currently existing holders of options to acquire common stock (\$2,300) (Note 13).

On June 1, 2014, the remaining holder of the redeemable common shares, transferred 50 such shares of Class B Nonvoting Common Stock into a separate trust, upon which the redemption

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited) (Continued)

(Dollars in Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

12. CAPITAL STOCK (Continued)

provisions were terminated for those transferred shares and the related liability was reclassified into additional paid-in capital.

13. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

The Company's 2007 Stock Option Plan, as approved by the Company's Board of Directors and amended March 1, 2009, authorizes the granting of stock options to its key employees at no less than the market price on the date the option is granted. Options generally become exercisable in installments of 25% per year, beginning on the first anniversary of the grant date and each of the three anniversaries thereafter, and have a maximum term of ten years. All share-based compensation awards for employees have been granted under the 2007 Stock Option Plan

The Company uses the Black-Scholes-Merton option pricing model to determine the grant date valuation of options and has applied the assumptions set forth in the following table to the options granted during the six months ended June 30, 2014:

| Exercise price of options (in thousands) | \$142.3 |
|---|---------------|
| Expected volatility | 24.1% - 24.3% |
| Expected dividend yield | 0% |
| Risk-free rate over the estimated expected life | 1.82 - 1.85% |
| Expected life (in years) | 6.25 |

Total compensation expense related to employee stock options was \$1,135 and \$455 during the six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. In January 2014, the Company redeemed stock options to buy 17.5 shares of Class A Voting Common Stock and 10.7 shares of Class B Nonvoting Common Stock from certain current and former employees for cash consideration totaling \$3,100 (Note 12). In April 2014, the Company redeemed stock options to buy 1.1 shares of Class A Voting Common Stock and 20.5 shares of Class B Nonvoting Common Stock from certain current and former employees for cash consideration totaling \$2,300 (Note 12). No incremental compensation expense was recognized as a result of these redemptions.

In May 2014, the Company entered into a Stock Option Redemption Agreement with a former executive whereby the Company redeemed options to acquire 104 shares of common stock, comprised of 5.2 shares of Class A Voting Common Stock and 98.8 shares of Class B Nonvoting Common Stock, for the cash purchase price of \$4,000. No incremental compensation expense was recognized as a result of this redemption.

At June 30, 2014, the total compensation cost related to non-vested options not yet recognized was \$6,056, which will be recognized over a weighted average period of 1.7 years, assuming the employees complete their service period for vesting of the options.

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited) (Continued)

(Dollars in Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

13. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION (Continued)

A summary of the Company's stock option activity for the six months ended June 30, 2014 is as follows:

| | Number of Shares | Weighted Average Exercise Price | | Weighted Average Grant Date Fair Value | | Weighted Average Remaining Contractual Term | | Aggregate Intrinsic Value | |
|--------------------------------|---------------------|--|---------|--|------|---|----|---------------------------------|--|
| | | | (In Tho | usai | nds) | (Years) | | | |
| Outstanding at January 1, 2014 | 783.2 | \$ | 36.5 | \$ | 7.3 | 7.0 | \$ | 69,732 | |
| Granted | 104.2 | | 142.3 | | 40.3 | | | | |
| Cancelled | (153.8) | | 12.3 | | 3.0 | | | | |
| Outstanding at June 30, 2014 | 733.6 | \$ | 56.5 | \$ | 13.0 | 7.5 | \$ | 62,977 | |
| Exercisable at June 30, 2014 | 334.0 | \$ | 31.6 | \$ | 9.1 | 6.2 | \$ | 36,970 | |

14. INCOME PER COMMON SHARE

The following is a reconciliation of the numerators and the denominators of the basic and diluted income per common share:

| | Six Months Ended June 30, | | | |
|---|------------------------------|----|-------|--|
| | 2014 | | 2013 | |
| Net income | \$ 3,365 | \$ | 3,514 | |
| Net income allocable to preferred shareholders | 401 | | | |
| Net income allocable to common shareholders | \$ 2,964 | \$ | 3,514 | |
| Weighted average common shares outstanding, basic | 3,691 | | 3,899 | |
| Incremental shares on assumed exercise of stock options | 279 | | 77 | |
| Weighted average common shares outstanding, diluted | 3,970 | | 3,976 | |

| Net income per common share: | | |
|------------------------------|--------------|--------------|
| Basic | \$ 803.16 | \$ 901.32 |
| Diluted | \$ 746.81 | \$ 883.77 |

There were no anti-dilutive options outstanding as of either June 30, 2014 or 2013.

15. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Company has evaluated subsequent events through August 18, 2014, the date these condensed consolidated financial statements were originally available for issuance and re-evaluated subsequent events through October 3, 2014.

On August 12, 2014, the Company issued 43.82183 shares of Class B Nonvoting Common Stock in the aggregate to Deborah L. Ward (Philip Hagerman's sister) and associated trusts, in connection with the termination of an existing Stock Redemption Agreement.

On August 28, 2014, the Company and two unrelated third party entities entered into a contribution agreement to form a new company, Primrose Healthcare, LLC ("Primrose") which will

Table of Contents

DIPLOMAT PHARMACY, INC.

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited) (Continued)

(Dollars in Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

15. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (Continued)

function as a management company, managing a network of physicians and medical professionals providing continuum care for patients infected with the Hepatitis C virus. The Company has committed to contributing \$5,000 to Primrose, of which \$2,000 was contributed in August 2014 with the remainder to be contributed during 2014 and 2015. The Company has a 51% controlling ownership in Primrose and will therefore consolidate Primrose into the Company's financial statements.

The Company is in the process of preparing for an initial public offering ("IPO"). The Company's expectation is that the IPO will occur during the latter half of 2014, though no assurances can be made. Upon completion of the IPO, all outstanding shares of capital stock will automatically convert into shares of newly-authorized shares of voting common stock. Additionally, immediately prior to the IPO, the Company will affect a stock split in the form of a stock dividend. Accordingly, all share and per share amounts presented in these consolidated financial statements and notes thereto, will be adjusted, where applicable, to reflect the conversions and split.

In addition to giving effect to the Company's election to be a C corporation as described in Note 1, the pro forma data presented on the condensed consolidated statements of operations give effect to the conversion of outstanding capital stock as if such conversion occurred at the later of the beginning of the applicable period or upon their issuance dates. Similarly, the pro forma shareholders' equity data presented on the condensed consolidated balance sheets give effect to these conversions as if they occurred on June 30, 2014. This pro forma data does not reflect the common shares issued in the IPO nor the expected uses of the related net proceeds.

16. RESTATEMENT

As described in Note 12, certain of the Company's outstanding common shares are mandatorily redeemable and are reflected as liabilities with changes in their fair value reflected as non-operating expense or income. Prior to 2014, the Company had relied on the deferral, for private companies of accounting guidance that required such treatment. Accordingly, the redeemable common shares were previously-classified as permanent equity and did not result in any associated non-operating expense or income, either when they were outstanding or upon any redemption. Upon the private company deferral no longer being applicable to the Company, the Company determined that it had to restate its

DIPLOMAT PHARMACY, INC.

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited) (Continued)

(Dollars in Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

16. RESTATEMENT (Continued)

historical presentation to comply with the applicable accounting guidance. The following table sets forth the impacts of such restatements:

| | | eviously orted | Adjı | ıstment | As | adjusted |
|---|----|-------------------|------|----------|----|-----------|
| As of and for the six months ended June 30, 2014: | Î | | Ĭ | | | Ū |
| Balance Sheet: | | | | | | |
| Redeemable common shares | \$ | | \$ | (38,423) | \$ | (38,423) |
| Additional paid-in capital | | (74,659) | | (39,380) | | (114,039) |
| Retained earnings | | 2,986 | | 957 | | 3,943 |
| Total shareholders' deficit | | (71,669) | | (38,423) | | (110,092) |
| | | | | | | |
| Statement of Operations: | | | | | | |
| Income from operations | | 8,053 | | | | 8,053 |
| Change in fair value of redeemable common shares | | | | 957 | | 957 |
| Net income | | 2,408 | | 957 | | 3,365 |
| Basic earnings per share | | 533.40 | | 269.76 | | 803.16 |
| Diluted earnings per share | | 491.55 | | 255.26 | | 746.81 |
| · . | | | | | | |
| Statement of Cash Flows: | | | | | | |
| Net income | | 2,408 | | 957 | | 3,365 |
| Change in fair value of redeemable common shares | | | | 957 | | 957 |
| Net cash provided by operating activities | | 20,827 | | | | 20,827 |
| | | | | | | |
| As of and for the six months ended June 30, 2013: | | | | | | |
| Statement of Operations: | | | | | | |
| Income from operations | | 4,654 | | | | 4,654 |
| Change in fair value of redeemable common shares | | | | | | |
| Net income | | 3,514 | | | | 3,514 |
| Basic earnings per share | | 822.05 | | 79.27 | | 901.32 |
| Diluted earnings per share | | 818.56 | | 65.21 | | 883.77 |
| | | | | | | |
| As of December 31, 2013: | | | | | | |
| Balance Sheet: | | | | | | |
| Redeemable common shares | | | | (53,370) | | (53,370) |
| Additional paid-in capital | | 4,446 | | (260) | | 4,186 |
| Accumulated deficit | | (28,862) | | (53,110) | | (81,972) |
| Total shareholders' deficit | | (24,412) | | (53,370) | | (77,782) |
| | | F-54 | | | | |
| | | | | | | |

Table of Contents

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Stockholders and Board of Directors American Homecare Federation, Inc. and Affiliate

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of American Homecare Federation, Inc. and Affiliate (the "Company"), which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as of September 30, 2013 and the related consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income, changes in stockholders' equity, and cash flows for the nine months then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of American Homecare Federation, Inc. and Affiliate as of September 30, 2013 and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the nine months then ended, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter

As described in Note 12 to the consolidated financial statements, on December 16, 2013, all of the outstanding stock of American Healthcare Federation, Inc. was acquired by an unrelated party.

/s/ PLANTE MORAN PLLC

Flint, Michigan June 24, 2014

American Homecare Federation, Inc. and Affiliate

Consolidated Balance Sheet

September 30, 2013

| Assets | | |
|---|----|---|
| Current Assets | | |
| Cash and cash equivalents | \$ | 1,069,028 |
| Investments (Note 2) | Ψ | 557,876 |
| Accounts receivable Net of allowance for doubtful accounts of \$244,000 | | 3,992,481 |
| Inventories (Note 1) | | 1,167,065 |
| Prepaid expenses | | 38,295 |
| | | 20,270 |
| Total current assets | | 6,824,745 |
| Property and Equipment Net (Note 3) | | 741,878 |
| | | |
| Other Assets Security deposits | | 1,897 |
| | | |
| Total assets | \$ | 7,568,520 |
| Total assets | | |
| Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity | | |
| Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity | | |
| Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity Current Liabilities | \$ | 1.283,820 |
| Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity Current Liabilities Accounts payable | \$ | 1,283,820 362,762 |
| Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity Current Liabilities | \$ | 1,283,820 362,762 1,193,707 |
| Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity Current Liabilities Accounts payable Current portion of long-term debt (Note 5) | \$ | 362,762 |
| Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity Current Liabilities Accounts payable Current portion of long-term debt (Note 5) | \$ | 362,762 |
| Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity Current Liabilities Accounts payable Current portion of long-term debt (Note 5) Accrued and other current liabilities | \$ | 362,762 1,193,707 |
| Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity Current Liabilities Accounts payable Current portion of long-term debt (Note 5) Accrued and other current liabilities Total current liabilities | \$ | 362,762 1,193,707 2,840,289 |
| Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity Current Liabilities Accounts payable Current portion of long-term debt (Note 5) Accrued and other current liabilities Total current liabilities | \$ | 362,762 1,193,707 2,840,289 |
| Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity Current Liabilities Accounts payable Current portion of long-term debt (Note 5) Accrued and other current liabilities Total current liabilities Long-term Debt Net of current portion (Note 5) | \$ | 362,762 1,193,707 2,840,289 1,246,798 |
| Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity Current Liabilities Accounts payable Current portion of long-term debt (Note 5) Accrued and other current liabilities Total current liabilities Long-term Debt Net of current portion (Note 5) Redeemable Common Stock (Note 8) | \$ | 362,762 1,193,707 2,840,289 1,246,798 746,459 |

American Homecare Federation, Inc. and Affiliate

Consolidated Statement of Operations and Comprehensive Income

Nine Months Ended September 30, 2013

| Net Sales | \$ | 21,757,091 |
|--|-----------------|--|
| Cost of Goods Sold | | 16,859,764 |
| | | , , |
| | | |
| Gross Profit | | 4,897,327 |
| Selling, General, and Administrative Expenses | | 3,888,748 |
| Somme, Source, and Parison | | 2,000,7.10 |
| | | |
| Income from Operations | | 1,008,579 |
| Other Income (Expenses) | | 1,000,579 |
| Interest income | | 25,288 |
| Loss on sale of investments Realized | | (10,719) |
| Interest expense | | (63,847) |
| | | (00,011) |
| | | |
| N. c. d. | | (40.270) |
| Net other expenses | | (49,278) |
| | | |
| | | |
| Net Income | | 959,301 |
| Other Comprehensive Income Unrealized gain on investments | | 3,656 |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| Comprehensive Income | \$ | 962,957 |
| | \$ | 962,957 |
| Amounts Attributable to Noncontrolling Interest and AHF Stockholders | | |
| Amounts Attributable to Noncontrolling Interest and AHF Stockholders Net Income | \$ \$ | 959,301 |
| Amounts Attributable to Noncontrolling Interest and AHF Stockholders | | |
| Amounts Attributable to Noncontrolling Interest and AHF Stockholders Net Income | | 959,301 |
| Amounts Attributable to Noncontrolling Interest and AHF Stockholders Net Income | | 959,301 |
| Amounts Attributable to Noncontrolling Interest and AHF Stockholders Net Income | | 959,301 |
| Amounts Attributable to Noncontrolling Interest and AHF Stockholders Net Income Less Net Income Attributable to Noncontrolling Interest in Affiliate | \$ | 959,301 25,851 |
| Amounts Attributable to Noncontrolling Interest and AHF Stockholders Net Income Less Net Income Attributable to Noncontrolling Interest in Affiliate | \$ | 959,301 25,851 |
| Amounts Attributable to Noncontrolling Interest and AHF Stockholders Net Income Less Net Income Attributable to Noncontrolling Interest in Affiliate | \$ | 959,301 25,851 |
| Amounts Attributable to Noncontrolling Interest and AHF Stockholders Net Income Less Net Income Attributable to Noncontrolling Interest in Affiliate | \$ | 959,301 25,851 |
| Amounts Attributable to Noncontrolling Interest and AHF Stockholders Net Income Less Net Income Attributable to Noncontrolling Interest in Affiliate Net Income Attributable to AHF Stockholders | \$ \$ | 959,301 25,851 933,450 |
| Amounts Attributable to Noncontrolling Interest and AHF Stockholders Net Income Less Net Income Attributable to Noncontrolling Interest in Affiliate Net Income Attributable to AHF Stockholders Comprehensive Income | \$ | 959,301 25,851 933,450 962,957 |
| Amounts Attributable to Noncontrolling Interest and AHF Stockholders Net Income Less Net Income Attributable to Noncontrolling Interest in Affiliate Net Income Attributable to AHF Stockholders | \$ \$ | 959,301 25,851 933,450 |
| Amounts Attributable to Noncontrolling Interest and AHF Stockholders Net Income Less Net Income Attributable to Noncontrolling Interest in Affiliate Net Income Attributable to AHF Stockholders Comprehensive Income | \$ \$ | 959,301 25,851 933,450 962,957 |
| Amounts Attributable to Noncontrolling Interest and AHF Stockholders Net Income Less Net Income Attributable to Noncontrolling Interest in Affiliate Net Income Attributable to AHF Stockholders Comprehensive Income | \$ \$ | 959,301 25,851 933,450 962,957 |
| Amounts Attributable to Noncontrolling Interest and AHF Stockholders Net Income Less Net Income Attributable to Noncontrolling Interest in Affiliate Net Income Attributable to AHF Stockholders Comprehensive Income | \$ \$ | 959,301 25,851 933,450 962,957 |

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

American Homecare Federation, Inc. and Affiliate

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders' Equity

Nine Months Ended September 30, 2013

AHF Stockholders

| | | | | Ac | cumulated | | | | |
|---|-----------------|-------------------|----------------------|------|-----------------------------|--------------|----|--------------------------|-----------------|
| | Common Stock | Treasury Stock | Retained Earnings | Con | Other prehensive Loss | Total | No | ncontrolling Interest | Total Equity |
| Balance January 1, 2013 | \$ 221,650 | \$ (262,747) | \$ 2,071,382 | 2 \$ | (10,627) | \$ 2,019,658 | \$ | 184,882 | \$ 2,204,540 |
| Net income | | | 933,450 |) | | 933,450 | | 25,851 | 959,301 |
| Other comprehensive income | | | | | 3,656 | 3,656 | | | 3,656 |
| Distributions | | | (449,687 | 7) | | (449,687) |) | (22,620) | (472,307) |
| Issuance of noncontrolling interest | | | | | | | | 70,000 | 70,000 |
| (Note 11) Redemption (Note 7) | | (18,110) | | | | (18,110) |) | 70,000 | (18,110) |
| Accretion of redeemable common stock (Note 8) | | | (19,606 | 9 | | (19,606) | , | | (19,606) |
| Reclassification Expiration of | | | (17,000 | ') | | (17,000) | | | (15,000) |
| redemption options (Note 8) | | | 7,500 |) | | 7,500 | | | 7,500 |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| Balance September 30, 2013 | \$ 221,650 | \$ (280,857) | \$ 2,543,039 | \$ | (6,971) | \$ 2,476,861 | \$ | 258,113 | \$ 2,734,974 |

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

American Homecare Federation, Inc. and Affiliate

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Nine Months Ended September 30, 2013

| Cash Flows from Operating Activities | | |
|---|-----|-------------|
| Net income | \$ | 959,301 |
| Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash from operating activities: | | |
| Depreciation | | 33,576 |
| Loss on disposal of property and equipment | | 314 |
| Net realized loss on investments | | 10,719 |
| Changes in operating assets and liabilities which (used) provided cash: | | |
| Accounts receivable | | (704,780) |
| Inventories | | 213,048 |
| Prepaid expenses and other assets | | 12,592 |
| Accounts payable | | 562,179 |
| Accrued and other liabilities | | 884,460 |
| | | |
| | | |
| Not each provided by appreting activities | | 1,971,409 |
| Net cash provided by operating activities Cash Flows from Investing Activities | | 1,971,409 |
| Purchases of property and equipment | | (16.421) |
| Purchases of investments | | (16,421) |
| Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments | | (212,925) |
| Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments | | 212,155 |
| | | |
| | | |
| Net cash used in investing activities | | (17,191) |
| Cash Flows from Financing Activities | | |
| Payments on debt | | (343,381) |
| Payments on stockholders' loans | | (373,430) |
| Payments on revolving credit facilities | | (750,000) |
| Issuance of noncontrolling interest | | 70,000 |
| Redemption of stock | | (18,110) |
| Distributions to noncontrolling interest | | (22,620) |
| Distributions to stockholders | | (449,687) |
| | | |
| | | |
| Not each yeard in financing activities | | (1,887,228) |
| Net cash used in financing activities | | (1,007,220) |
| | | |
| | | |
| Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents | | 66,990 |
| Cash and Cash Equivalents Beginning of period | | 1,002,038 |
| | | |
| | | |
| Cash and Cash Equivalents End of period | \$ | 1,069,028 |
| Cash and Cash Equivalents End of period | Ψ | 1,000,020 |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| Supplemental Cash Flow Information Cash paid for interest | \$ | 63,847 |
| Tr Sam part of meteor | - + | , |

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

American Homecare Federation, Inc. and Affiliate

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2013

Note 1 Nature of Business and Significant Accounting Policies

American Homecare Federation Inc. (AHF) is a specialty pharmacy sales business headquartered in Enfield, Connecticut. The Company stocks, dispenses, and distributes prescriptions for various biotech and specialty pharmaceuticals, principally for the treatment of hemophilia and other blood disorders

Basis of Presentation The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) and include the accounts of AHF and an affiliate, 31 Moody Road, LLC, a variable interest entity for which the Company is the primary beneficiary (collectively, the "Company"). All significant intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated upon consolidation.

Cash and Cash Equivalents Cash includes cash on hand and cash held in banks which is readily convertible to known amounts of cash. For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, included in cash are money market funds totaling \$27,332 at September 30, 2013.

Investments Debt and equity securities purchased to be held for an indefinite period of time are classified as available-for-sale securities. Available-for-sale securities are reported at fair value with unrealized gains and temporary losses reported in other comprehensive income.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments Financial instruments consist of cash equivalents, investments, accounts receivable, accounts payable, and debt. The carrying amount of all debt approximates fair value due to the existence of interest rates that approximate prevailing market rates. The carrying amount of all other significant financial instruments approximates fair value due to the short maturities.

Accounting standards require certain assets and liabilities be reported at fair value in the financial statements and provide a framework for establishing that fair value. The framework for determining fair value is based on a hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs and valuation techniques used to measure fair value.

Fair values determined by Level 1 inputs use quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company has the ability to access.

Fair values determined by Level 2 inputs use other inputs that are observable, either directly or indirectly. These Level 2 inputs include quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets, and other inputs such as interest rates and yield curves that are observable at commonly quoted intervals.

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs, including inputs that are available in situations where there is little, if any, market activity for the related asset. These Level 3 fair value measurements are based primarily on management's own estimates using pricing models, discounted cash flow methodologies, or similar techniques taking into account the characteristics of the asset.

In instances whereby inputs used to measure fair value fall into different levels in the above fair value hierarchy, fair value measurements in their entirety are categorized based on the lowest level input that is significant to the valuation. The Company's assessment of the significance of particular inputs to these fair value measurements requires judgment and considers factors specific to each asset or liability.

American Homecare Federation, Inc. and Affiliate

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

September 30, 2013

Note 1 Nature of Business and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Trade Accounts Receivable Accounts receivable primarily include amounts from third-party pharmacy benefit managers and insurance providers and are based on contracted prices. Trade receivables require no collateral and are on an unsecured basis. Accounts receivable terms vary by payor, but generally are due within 30 days after the sale of the product or performance of the service.

The Company maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts that reduces receivables to amounts that are expected to be collected.

In estimating the allowance, management considers factors such as current overall economic conditions, historical and anticipated customer performance, historical experience with write-offs, and the level of past due accounts. Changes in these conditions may result in additional allowances. All amounts deemed to be uncollectible are charged against the allowance for doubtful accounts in the period that determination is made. The allowance for doubtful accounts on accounts receivable balances was \$244,000 as of September 30, 2013.

Inventories Inventories consist primarily of prescription medications and over-the-counter medications. Inventories are stated at the lower of average cost or market, with cost determined on the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method, and are adjusted to actual cost monthly based on a physical count.

Property and Equipment Property and equipment are recorded at cost and are depreciated using the straight-line method. Assets are depreciated over their estimated useful lives, including leasehold improvements since the lease is with a related party.

Costs of maintenance and repairs are charged to expense when incurred. Renewals and improvements that extend the useful life of the assets are capitalized. The cost of assets sold or retired and the related amount of the accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the accounts in the period of sale or retirement. Any resulting gain or loss is included in earnings.

Revenue Recognition The Company recognizes revenue from prescription drug sales for home delivery at the time the drugs are shipped. Shipping and handling costs are not billed to patients; therefore, there are no shipping and handling revenues. Conversely, shipping and handling costs incurred by the Company are included in selling, general, and administrative expenses and were approximately \$23,000.

Advertising Expenses Advertising expenses are charged to income during the period in which they are incurred. Advertising expenses were approximately \$88,000.

Income Taxes Pursuant to provisions of the Internal Revenue Code, AHF has elected to be taxed as an S Corporation. Generally, the income of an S Corporation is not subject to federal income tax at the corporate level, but rather the stockholders are required to include a pro rata share of the corporation's taxable income or loss in their personal income tax returns, irrespective of whether distributions have been paid. Accordingly, no provision for federal income taxes has been made in the accompanying financial statements.

31 Moody Road, LLC is treated as a partnership for federal income tax purposes. Consequently, federal income taxes are not payable or provided for by the entity. Members are taxed individually on their pro-rata ownership share of the earnings. The net income or loss is allocated among the members in accordance with the Company's operating agreement.

American Homecare Federation, Inc. and Affiliate

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

September 30, 2013

Note 1 Nature of Business and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

The Company classifies interest and penalties associated with tax liabilities as interest expense and operating expenses, respectively.

Income tax filings pertaining to the federal and state filings remain open for potential examinations for the 2010 through 2013 years.

Concentrations of Risk Financial instruments which potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist principally of cash on deposit with banks or other financial institutions and trade accounts receivable.

As of and for the nine months ended September 30, 2013, approximately 72 percent of sales and 80 percent of accounts receivable related to six insurance carriers. Concentrations of credit risk with respect to trade receivables are limited by the large number of patients comprising the Company's customer base and their dispersion across multiple payors and multiple geographic areas.

The Company purchases prescription drugs from pharmaceutical companies. Three companies make up 75 percent of the cost of sales and the accounts payable as of and for the nine months ended September 30, 2013.

Use of Estimates The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Although the estimates are considered reasonable, actual results could differ from those estimates. The most significant estimate that is susceptible to significant change in the near term relates to the determination of the allowance for doubtful accounts. Adjustments related to changes in the estimates are reflected in the Company's results of operations in the period in which those estimates changed.

Subsequent Events The consolidated financial statements and related disclosures include evaluation of events up through and including June 24, 2014, which is the date the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued. See Note 12 for disclosure of significant events subsequent to September 30, 2013.

Note 2 Investments and Fair Value

The details of the Company's investments in debt and equity securities are as follows at September 30, 2013:

Available-for-sale Securities

| | | | Gross | Gross |
|---------------------------|------------|------------|------------|------------|
| | Amortized | | Unrealized | Unrealized |
| | Cost | Fair Value | Gains | Losses |
| Debt securities Corporate | \$ 564.847 | \$ 557.876 | \$ 155 | \$ (7.126) |

American Homecare Federation, Inc. and Affiliate

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

September 30, 2013

Note 2 Investments and Fair Value (Continued)

Realized gains and losses are determined on the basis of specific identification. During 2013, sales proceeds and gross realized gains and losses on securities classified as available for sale were as follows:

| Sales proceeds | \$ 212,155 |
|-----------------------|---------------|
| Gross realized gains | 279 |
| Gross realized losses | (10.998) |

The following table shows the gross unrealized losses and fair value of the Company's investments with unrealized losses that are not deemed to be other-than-temporarily impaired.

September 30, 2013

| | | Less than | 12 M | onths | | 12 Months | or G | reater |
|---------------------------|----|-----------|------|----------|----|-----------|------|----------|
| | | | Un | realized | | | Ur | realized |
| | F | air Value |] | Losses | Fa | air Value | | Losses |
| Debt securities Corporate | \$ | 377,113 | \$ | (2,445) | \$ | 109,223 | \$ | (4,681) |

Corporate Bonds The Company's unrealized losses on investments in corporate bonds relate to high yield bonds. The severity of the impairment and duration of the losses reflect normal market fluctuations. The Company evaluated the near-term prospects of the issuers. Based on the evaluation and the Company's ability and intent to hold the investments for a reasonable period of time sufficient for a forecasted recovery of fair value, management does not consider these investments to be other-than-temporarily impaired at September 30, 2013.

The Company measures the available-for-sale debt securities at fair value on a recurring basis. The fair value of the debt securities is based primarily on Level 1 inputs as described in Note 1.

The contractual maturities of these available-for-sale investments as of September 30, 2013 were as follows:

| | F | air Value | Cost |
|--------------------|----|-----------|---------------|
| September 30, 2014 | \$ | 172,934 | \$ 176,805 |
| September 30, 2015 | | 175,619 | 178,337 |
| September 30, 2016 | | 209,323 | 209,705 |
| - | | | |
| | | | |
| Total | \$ | 557,876 | \$ 564,847 |

Note 3 Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are summarized as follows:

| | | | Depreciable |
|------|----|--------|-------------|
| | A | mount | Life Years |
| Land | \$ | 97,778 | |

| Building | 457,222 | 40 |
|----------------------------|------------|--------|
| Furniture and fixtures | 344,496 | 3 - 10 |
| Leasehold improvements | 228,846 | 5 - 39 |
| Total cost | 1,128,342 | |
| Accumulated depreciation | 386,464 | |
| Net property and equipment | \$ 741,878 | |
| | | |

Depreciation expense was \$33,576 for 2013.

American Homecare Federation, Inc. and Affiliate

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

September 30, 2013

Note 4 Line of Credit

Under a line of credit agreement with a bank, the Company had available borrowings of \$2,500,000 as of September 30, 2013. Interest on the outstanding balance was payable monthly at the prime rate (an effective rate of 3.25 percent at September 30, 2013). The line of credit was due upon demand and was collateralized by all of AHF's assets. There were no outstanding borrowings on the line at September 30, 2013. The line was closed in December 2013.

Note 5 Long-term Debt

Long-term debt at September 30, 2013 is as follows:

| Installment note payable to a foundation in monthly installments of \$33,360 including interest at 4.5 percent. The note matures in April 2017. The note was unsecured. The note was paid in full in December 2013 Installment note payable to a foundation in monthly installments of \$3,168 including interest at 5.00 percent. The note matures in July 2027. The note is secured by real estate | \$ 1,322,530 287,030 |
|--|----------------------------|
| Total | 1,609,560 |
| Less current portion | 362,762 |
| Long-term portion | \$ 1,246,798 |

The scheduled maturities of the above debt are as follows:

| Years Ending September 30 | Amount | | |
|---------------------------|--------|-----------|--|
| 2014 | \$ | 362,762 | |
| 2015 | | 379,504 | |
| 2016 | | 397,020 | |
| 2017 | | 247,287 | |
| 2018 | | 18,110 | |
| Thereafter | | 204,877 | |
| | | | |
| | | | |
| Total | \$ | 1,609,560 | |

Interest expense for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 was \$63,847.

Note 6 Capital Stock

Common stock consists of 200,000 authorized shares of no par value stock. As of September 30, 2013, there were 11,501 shares issued and outstanding.

Note 7 Stock Subscription, Redemption, and Restriction Agreements

Under the terms of stock subscription, redemption, and restriction agreements, the stockholders had the option to require AHF to repurchase any or all of their shares on or within 30 days of the third or fourth anniversary of the date of issuance of the shares, at a price specified in the agreement. Under the same agreement, AHF had the option to repurchase these shares upon 30 days' notice to the respective stockholders at any time after the third anniversary of the date of issuance of the shares, at a price specified in the agreement. Stock transfers were restricted under the terms of the agreement.

American Homecare Federation, Inc. and Affiliate

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

September 30, 2013

Note 7 Stock Subscription, Redemption, and Restriction Agreements (Continued)

During 2013, AHF repurchased 100 shares of common stock of one stockholder in accordance with the Articles of Incorporation and Corporate Bylaws, for the amount of \$18,110.

Note 8 Redeemable Common Stock

Redeemable common stock is a temporary equity account that consists of shares of outstanding common stock that contain unexpired stockholder options to require AHF to repurchase the shares under the circumstances described in Note 7. The shares are initially recorded at fair market value, and the carrying amount is accreted to the maximum redemption price over a three-year period. When the related put options expire, the carrying amounts of the shares are reclassified to permanent equity accounts.

The maximum redemption price for all outstanding shares with unexpired put options as of September 30, 2013 was \$755,400. The related put options were scheduled to expire at various dates through September 2015. As discussed in Note 12, all shares of the Company's stock were purchased by an unrelated party in December 2013. No put options were exercised prior to the purchase.

The changes in redeemable common stock for the nine-month period ended September 30, 2013 are as follows:

| Balance January 1, 2013 | \$ 734,353 |
|---------------------------------------|---------------|
| Accretion of redeemable common stock | 19,606 |
| Reclassifications to permanent equity | (7,500) |
| | |
| | |

Balance September 30, 2013 \$ 746,459

Note 9 Operating Lease

AHF leases office space in West Springfield, Massachusetts under an operating lease arrangement with consecutive three-year renewal options. The current renewal option expires in February 2016 and the final renewal option, if accepted, would expire in February 2019. The monthly base rent for 2013 was \$1,803. The lease also requires AHF to pay a proportionate share of taxes, insurance, utilities, and maintenance costs. Total rent under this agreement was \$16,019 for the nine months ended September 30, 2013.

Future minimum annual commitments under this operating lease are as follows:

| Years Ending September 30 | A | Amount | | | |
|---------------------------|----|--------|--|--|--|
| 2014 | \$ | 21,641 | | | |
| 2015 | | 21,641 | | | |
| 2016 | | 9,017 | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| Total | \$ | 52,299 | | | |

American Homecare Federation, Inc. and Affiliate

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

September 30, 2013

Note 10 Retirement Plans

AHF sponsors a 401(k) plan for substantially all of its employees. The plan allows for the employer to make discretionary matching contributions and discretionary profit-sharing contributions. Contributions to the plan totaled \$121,539 for the nine months ended September 30, 2013.

Note 11 Information About Variable Interest Entities

AHF leases its main operating facility from 31 Moody Road, LLC (Moody), an entity with common ownership. The entity was formed for the purpose of holding the building leased to AHF. The lease requires monthly rent payments that are adjusted annually based upon changes in the Consumer Price Index. The lease agreement expires in May 2017, and includes a five-year renewal option through May 2022. Moody generated \$69,036 of rental income during the nine months ended September 30, 2013, all of which was from AHF and was eliminated in consolidation.

Moody is considered to be a variable interest entity (VIE) because its sole property is leased to an entity under common control and the lease with AHF is the primary source of resources to service the VIE's obligations.

AHF determined that it is the primary beneficiary of the VIE because the lease agreement provides it with (1) the power to direct the activities of the VIE that most significantly impact its economic performance and (2) the obligation to absorb losses that could potentially be significant to the VIE. As a result, Moody has been included in the financial statements as a consolidated VIE.

Included in the consolidated balance sheet as of September 30, 2013 are the following amounts related to the VIE:

| Current assets | \$ 30,200 |
|--------------------------------|---------------|
| Property and equipment | 514,943 |
| Total assets | \$ 545,143 |
| | |
| Current liabilities | \$ 14,833 |
| Long-term debt | 272,197 |
| Total liabilities | \$ 287,030 |
| Equity Noncontrolling interest | \$ 258,113 |
| 1 5 | |

The creditors and beneficial interest holders of the VIE have no recourse against the assets or general credit of AHF.

Note 12 Subsequent Events

In November and December 2013, the Company paid discretionary bonuses totaling approximately \$1,500,000 attributable to 2013 operations. At September 30, 2013, \$950,000 of this bonus expense was recorded and was included in accrued and other current liabilities in the accompanying consolidated financial statements, representing the estimated amount attributable to the nine months ended September 30, 2013.

On December 16, 2013, all of the authorized, issued, and outstanding shares of capital stock of AHF were acquired by Diplomat Pharmacy, Inc. for a total acquisition price of \$13,448,982.

Independent Auditor's Report

Board of Directors MedPro Rx, Inc. and Affiliate Raleigh, North Carolina

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of MedPro Rx, Inc. and Affiliate (the "Company"), which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the related consolidated statements of income, changes in stockholders' equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2013, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of MedPro Rx, Inc. and its Affiliate as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2013, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter

As described in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, on June 27, 2014, all of the outstanding stock of the Company was acquired by an unrelated party.

/s/ BDO USA, LLP

August 18, 2014 Chicago, Illinois

MEDPRO RX, INC. AND AFFILIATE

Consolidated Balance Sheets

\$ 16,371,850 \$ 20,108,252

| | December 31, | | | | |
|--------------------------------------|--------------|------------|----|------------|--|
| | | 2012 | | | |
| Assets | | | | | |
| Current assets: | Φ | 1.051.650 | ф | 5 (10 0(0 | |
| Cash and cash equivalents | \$ | 1,251,650 | \$ | 5,618,068 | |
| Accounts receivable net | | 8,386,536 | | 8,766,135 | |
| Inventories | | 3,622,369 | | 2,973,491 | |
| Prepaid expenses | | 30,621 | | 27,000 | |
| Total current assets | | 13,291,176 | | 17,384,694 | |
| Duranto and antiquent and | | 2.049.296 | | 2 601 446 | |
| Property and equipment net | | 2,948,386 | | 2,601,446 | |
| Other assets | | 132,288 | | 122,112 | |
| | \$ | 16,371,850 | \$ | 20,108,252 | |
| Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity | | | | | |
| Current liabilities: | | | | | |
| Accounts payable | \$ | 1,455,011 | \$ | 3,629,325 | |
| Accrued expenses | | 713,741 | | 787,775 | |
| Total current liabilities | | 2,168,752 | | 4,417,100 | |
| Stockholders' equity: | | | | | |
| Controlling interest: | | | | | |
| Common stock no par value | | 150,000 | | 150,000 | |
| Additional paid-in capital | | 5,329,760 | | 5,275,160 | |
| Retained earnings | | 6,818,014 | | 8,651,451 | |
| Total controlling interest | | 12,297,774 | | 14,076,611 | |
| Non-controlling interest | | 1,905,324 | | 1,614,541 | |
| Total stockholders' equity | | 14,203,098 | | 15,691,152 | |

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

MEDPRO RX, INC. AND AFFILIATE

Consolidated Statements of Income

Years Ended December 31,

| | 1 Ca | 15 121 | iucu December | 31, | |
|--|------------------|--------|---------------|-----|------------|
| | 2013 | | 2012 | | 2011 |
| Net sales | \$ 82,686,011 | \$ | 77,053,888 | \$ | 69,168,411 |
| Cost of goods sold | 65,860,080 | | 60,105,220 | | 53,070,860 |
| Gross profit | 16,825,931 | | 16,948,668 | | 16,097,551 |
| Selling, general and administrative expenses | 10,095,680 | | 9,984,155 | | 9,073,191 |
| Income from operations | 6,730,251 | | 6,964,513 | | 7,024,360 |
| Other income (expense): | | | | | |
| Rental income | 12,415 | | 12,375 | | 11,375 |
| Interest expense | | | (1,277) | | (22,902) |
| Interest income | 47,243 | | 43,229 | | 77,847 |
| Total other income | 59,658 | | 54,327 | | 66,320 |
| Net income | 6,789,909 | | 7,018,840 | | 7,090,680 |
| Less net loss attributable to non-controlling interest | 5,118 | | 14,505 | | 31,932 |
| Net income attributable to MedPro Rx, Inc. | \$ 6,795,027 | \$ | 7,033,345 | \$ | 7,122,612 |
| | | | | | |

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

MEDPRO RX, INC. AND AFFILIATE

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity

| | Commo | ı Stock | Additional Paid-in | Retained | Total Controlling | Non- controlling | |
|-------------------------------|-----------|------------|-----------------------|--------------|----------------------|---------------------|---------------|
| | Shares | Amount | Capital | Earnings | Interest | Interest | Total |
| Balance, January 1, 2011 | 4,200,000 | \$ 150,000 | \$ 5,501,523 | \$ 4,225,757 | \$ 9,877,280 | \$ 1,281,218 | \$ 11,158,498 |
| Member contributions | | | | | | 365,000 | 365,000 |
| Net income (loss) | | | | 7,122,612 | 7,122,612 | (31,932) | 7,090,680 |
| Distributions | | | | (3,917,381) | (3,917,381) | | (3,917,381) |
| Stock options repurchased | | | (722,045) | (689,947) | (1,411,992) | | (1,411,992) |
| Stock options exercised | 85,000 | | 23,715 | | 23,715 | | 23,715 |
| Stock-based compensation | | | 319,600 | | 319,600 | | 319,600 |
| Balance, December 31, 2011 | 4,285,000 | 150,000 | 5,122,793 | 6,741,041 | 12,013,834 | 1,614,286 | 13,628,120 |
| Member | 4,203,000 | 130,000 | 3,122,793 | 0,741,041 | 12,013,634 | 1,014,200 | 13,026,120 |
| contributions | | | | | | 15,000 | 15,000 |
| Net income (loss) | | | | 7,033,345 | 7,033,345 | (14,505) | 7,018,840 |
| Distributions | | | | (5,122,935) | (5,122,935) | (240) | (5,123,175) |
| Stock-based | | | 152,367 | | 152,367 | | 152,367 |
| compensation | | | 132,307 | | 132,307 | | 132,307 |
| Balance, | | | | | | | |
| December 31, 2012 | 4,285,000 | 150,000 | 5,275,160 | 8,651,451 | 14,076,611 | 1,614,541 | 15,691,152 |
| Member contributions | | | | | | 296,141 | 296,141 |
| Net income (loss) | | | | 6,795,027 | 6,795,027 | (5,118) | 6,789,909 |
| Distributions | | | | (8,583,148) | (8,583,148) | (240) | |
| Stock options | | | | | | | |
| repurchased | | | (65,820) | (45,316) | (111,136) | | (111,136) |
| Stock-based compensation | | | 120,420 | | 120,420 | | 120,420 |
| | | | | | | | |
| Balance, December 31, 2013 | 4,285,000 | \$ 150,000 | \$ 5,329,760 | \$ 6,818,014 | \$ 12,297,774 | \$ 1,905,324 | \$ 14,203,098 |

Authorized shares 6,000,000

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

${\bf MEDPRO\ RX, INC.\ AND\ AFFILIATE}$

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

| | | Years Ended December 31, | | | | |
|---|----|--------------------------|----|-------------|----|-----------------------|
| | | 2013 | | 2012 | | 2011 |
| Cash flows from operating activities: | | | | | | |
| Net income | \$ | 6,789,909 | \$ | 7,018,840 | \$ | 7,090,680 |
| Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities | | | | | | |
| Depreciation | | 285,855 | | 244,260 | | 205,235 |
| Stock-based compensation | | 120,420 | | 152,367 | | 319,600 |
| Changes in operating assets and liabilites: | | | | | | |
| Accounts receivable net | | 379,599 | | (184,089) | | (1,542,725) |
| Inventories | | (648,878) | | (767,908) | | 143,710 |
| Prepaid expenses | | (3,621) | | (27,000) | | |
| Other assets | | (10,176) | | (16,362) | | (1,917) |
| Accounts payable | | (2,174,314) | | 851,641 | | 193,041 |
| Accrued expenses | | (74,034) | | 211,353 | | 279,785 |
| Net cash provided by operating activities | | 4,664,760 | | 7,483,102 | | 6,637,409 |
| Cash flows from investing activities: | | | | | | |
| Purchases of property and equipment | | (632,795) | | (344,916) | | (521,362) |
| Cash flows from financing activities: Repurchase of stock options Stock options exercised | | (111,136) | | | | (1,411,992) 23,715 |
| Member contributions | | 296,141 | | 15,000 | | 365,000 |
| Distributions | | (8,583,388) | | (5,123,175) | | (3,917,381) |
| Payments on notes payable | | (-,,, | | (-, -,, | | (717,207) |
| Net cash used in financing activities | | (8,398,383) | | (5,108,175) | | (5,657,865) |
| Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents | | (4,366,418) | | 2,030,011 | | 458,182 |
| Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year | | 5,618,068 | | 3,588,057 | | 3,129,875 |
| Cash and cash equivalents, end of year | \$ | 1,251,650 | \$ | 5,618,068 | \$ | 3,588,057 |
| Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information: | | | | | | |
| Cash paid for: | Φ | | ¢. | 1 077 | ¢. | 22.002 |
| Interest | \$ | | \$ | 1,277 | \$ | 22,902 |

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

MEDPRO RX, INC. AND AFFILIATE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Business Activity: MedPro Rx, Inc. ("MedPro") is a specialty pharmacy retailing prescription medications. MedPro is located in Raleigh, North Carolina and provides services primarily in the Mid-Atlantic states.

Selfridge Investments, LLC ("Affiliate") owns real estate and leases office and condominium space to MedPro RX, Inc.

Basis of Presentation: The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States ("GAAP") and include all the accounts of MedPro and Affiliate (collectively, the "Company"). All significant intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated in the consolidation.

MedPro's primary stockholders own all of the equity interests in Affiliate. MedPro leases its main operating and other properties from Affiliate, which was formed for the purpose of owning such properties. Mortgages for the properties were paid off in certain cases with funding provided to Affiliate by MedPro in the form of loans (which are eliminated in consolidation). Because Affiliate does not have adequate equity at risk to support its significant operating activities and because the vast majority of its properties are leased only to MedPro, MedPro is deemed to control the significant operating activities of Affiliate and therefore is deemed to be its primary beneficiary. Accordingly, Affiliate is consolidated into the Company's financial statements.

Accounting for Non-controlling Interest: The Company records the non-controlling interest of other consolidated entities as a separate component of stockholders' equity in the consolidated balance sheets. Additionally, the consolidated statements of income separately present earnings attributable to controlling and non-controlling interests.

Use of Estimates: The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the periods reported. Although the estimates are considered reasonable, actual results could differ from those estimates. The most significant estimate is the contractual and bad debt allowance. Adjustments related to changes in the estimates are reflected in the Company's results of operations in the period in which those estimates changed.

Revenue Recognition: The Company recognizes revenue upon delivery and administration of medicines, supplies, and services to patients. Shipping and handling costs are not billed to patients; therefore, there are no shipping and handling revenues.

Concentrations of Risk: Financial instruments which potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of cash and accounts receivable.

The temporary federal program that insured non-interest bearing cash balances without balance limitations expired December 31, 2012. Beginning in 2013, insurance coverage reverted to \$250,000 per depositor at each financial institution, and non-interest bearing cash balances may again exceed federally insured limits.

Concentration of credit risk with respect to trade receivables in limited by the large number of patients comprising the Company's customer base and their dispersion across multiple payors and

MEDPRO RX, INC. AND AFFILIATE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

multiple geographic areas. As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Company had no significant trade receivable concentrations of credit risk.

The Company's products are purchased from several suppliers. For 2013, two suppliers accounted for approximately 72% of the total cost of sales. For 2012, two suppliers accounted for approximately 73% of the total cost of sales. For 2011, two suppliers accounted for approximately 76% of the total cost of sales. The Company believes it has the flexibility to use a number of other vendors to fulfill its sales requirements should the need arise.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments: The carrying amounts of the Company's financial instruments, consisting primarily of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable and other liabilities, approximate their fair value due to the relative short-term nature of the amounts.

The Company uses a framework for measuring fair value under GAAP and defines fair value as the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement date. This guidance requires that valuation techniques maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. This guidance also establishes a fair value hierarchy which prioritizes the valuation inputs into three broad levels. Based on the underlying inputs, each fair value measurement in its entirety is reported in one of three levels:

Level 1 Unadjusted quoted prices that are available in active markets for the identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date.

Level 2 Other observable inputs available at the measurement date, other than quoted prices included in Level 1, either directly or indirectly, including:

Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets;

Quoted prices for identical or similar assets in non-active markets;

Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability; and

Inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by other observable market data.

Level 3 Unobservable inputs that cannot be corroborated by observable market data and reflect the use of significant management judgment. These values are generally determined using pricing models for which the assumptions utilize management's estimates of market participant assumptions.

Cash and Cash Equivalents: The Company considers all highly liquid investments purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Accounts Receivable: Accounts receivable primarily includes amounts from individuals, Medicaid, Medicare and independent insurance providers and are based on contracted prices. Trade receivables require no collateral and are on an unsecured basis. Accounts receivable vary by payor, but generally are due within 30 days after the sale of the product or performance of the service.

The Company maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts that reduces receivables to amounts that are expected to be collected.

In estimating the allowance, management considers factors such as current, overall economic conditions, historical and anticipated customer performance, historical experience with write-offs, and

MEDPRO RX, INC. AND AFFILIATE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

the level of past due accounts. Changes in these conditions may result in additional allowances. Once an amount is deemed uncollectible, the amount is written-off against the allowance. The allowance for doubtful accounts was \$374,119 at December 31, 2013 and \$377,793 at December 31, 2012.

Inventories: Inventories consist of pharmaceuticals held for sale and are stated at the lower of cost determined on the average-cost method (which approximates the first in-first out method) or market.

Property and Equipment: Property and equipment are stated at cost. Major repairs and betterments are capitalized and normal maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred. Depreciation is computed by the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets. Upon retirement or sale of an asset, the cost and accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts and any gain or loss is reflected in operations. Estimated useful lives are as follows:

| | Years |
|------------------------|-------|
| Buildings | 20 |
| Office equipment | 5 |
| Software | 5 |
| Furniture and fixtures | 7 |
| Computer equipment | 5 |

Share-Based Awards: Share-based compensation awards are recognized at fair value, see Note 7 for further disclosure.

Income Taxes: MedPro, with the consent of its stockholders, has elected for income tax purposes to be an S Corporation. In lieu of corporate income taxes, the stockholders of an S Corporation are taxed on their proportionate share of the Company's taxable income or loss. Selfridge Investments, LLC is treated as a partnership for income tax purposes and its members are taxed on their share of net earnings. The Company is required to file and does file tax returns with the Internal Revenue Service and other taxing authorities. Accordingly, no provision or liability for income taxes has been included in the accompanying financial statements.

Income Tax Uncertainties: The Company follows applicable accounting guidance for how uncertain tax positions should be recognized, measured, disclosed and presented in the financial statements. This guidance requires the evaluation of tax positions taken or expected to be taken in the course of preparing the Company's tax returns to determine whether the tax positions are "more-likely-than-not" of being sustained "when challenged" or "when examined" by the applicable tax authority. Tax positions not deemed to meet the more-likely-then-not threshold would be recorded as a tax expense and liability in the current year. Management evaluated the Company's tax position and concluded that the Company had taken no uncertain tax positions that require adjustment to the financial statements to comply with the provisions of this guidance. The Company's income tax returns for years since 2010 remain open for examination by tax authorities. The Company is not currently under audit by any tax jurisdiction.

Advertising and Marketing: Advertising and marketing costs are expensed as incurred and were approximately \$121,114 for 2013, \$53,150 for 2012 and \$82,372 for 2011.

MEDPRO RX, INC. AND AFFILIATE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Subsequent Events: Management has evaluated subsequent events August 18, 2014, the date the consolidated financial statements were available for issuance, and has determined there are no subsequent events to be reported in the accompanying consolidated financial statements other than that MedPro was sold to Diplomat Pharmacy, Inc. on June 26, 2014 for total considerations of approximately \$70 million.

2. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consisted of the following at December 31:

| | 2013 | 2012 |
|-------------------------------|-----------------|-----------------|
| Land | \$ 605,641 | \$ 337,500 |
| Buildings and improvements | 2,193,790 | 2,193,790 |
| Office equipment | 1,108,135 | 765,347 |
| Software | 50,702 | 45,628 |
| Furniture and fixtures | 52,662 | 52,662 |
| Computer equipment | 153,391 | 136,599 |
| | | |
| | 4,164,321 | 3,531,526 |
| Less accumulated depreciation | (1,215,935) | (930,080) |
| | | |
| | \$ 2,948,386 | \$ 2,601,446 |

Depreciation expense was \$285,855 for 2013, \$244,260 for 2012, and \$205,235 for 2011.

3. Line of Credit

The Company has available a revolving line of credit with a bank providing for maximum borrowings of \$4,000,000 payable on demand, as defined and limited by the loan agreement. The amount available under the line is the lesser of \$4,000,000 or the borrowing base as defined in the loan agreement. Interest on funds advanced is payable monthly at a rate determined by the loan agreement.

At December 31, 2013, the effective rate was LIBOR plus 2.75% (2.92% at December 31, 2013). The line is collateralized by substantially all of the assets of the Company. The line expires on February 4, 2015.

There were no outstanding borrowings on the line of credit at December 31, 2013 and 2012. No interest expense was incurred during 2013. Interest expense amounted to \$1,277 in 2012 and \$482 in 2011.

4. Note Payable

The Company had a note payable to a financial institution payable in monthly installments of \$6,485 plus interest at 7.75%. The note was collateralized by real and personal property and was paid off in August 2011. The note balance at December 31, 2010 was \$717,207. Interest expense amounted to \$22,420 in 2011.

MEDPRO RX, INC. AND AFFILIATE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

5. Leases

In 2011, the Company entered into an operating lease for additional office space in Raleigh, North Carolina which commenced on January 1, 2012. This lease agreement was amended, effective January 1, 2014. Future minimum lease commitments are as follows:

| Year | Amount |
|------|------------|
| 2014 | \$ 226,457 |
| 2015 | 89,931 |
| 2016 | 92,629 |

\$ 409,017

The Company has entered into additional operating leases with initial commitments of up to a year. After the initial commitment, the leases will continue on a month-to-month basis.

Net rent expense amounted to \$292,544 for 2013, \$218,607 for 2012 and \$64,658 for 2011.

6. Employee Retirement Plan

The Company sponsors an employee savings plan under Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code. Eligible employees may elect to contribute up to 90% of their compensation, not to exceed federal tax law limitations. The Company makes discretionary contributions to the plan as determined by the Board of Directors. Company contributions to the plan were \$207,126 in 2013, \$199,987 in 2012 and \$196,011 in 2011.

7. Share-Based Compensation

Certain employees were offered the option to purchase shares of common stock under the 2005 stock option plan. Generally, under the option plan, options become exercisable ratably over the three-year period after the date of grant and expire if not exercised in a period of ten years or if the employee ceases to be employed by the Company. The exercise price of all the stock options granted under the option plan has generally been equal to the fair value of the Company's common stock at the date of grant, as determined by the Company's Board of Directors.

A summary of the Company's stock options outstanding at December 31, 2013, 2012, and 2011 and changes during the years then ended, is presented below:

| | Number of Options | Exercise Price Range | Per Share Weighted Average | | |
|--------------------------------|----------------------|----------------------|----------------------------------|------|--|
| Outstanding, January 1, 2011 | 1,297,000 | \$.28 \$.95 | \$ | 0.48 | |
| Granted | 40,000 | \$4.57 \$4.57 | \$ | 4.57 | |
| Forfeited | (200,000) | \$.28 \$.28 | \$ | 0.28 | |
| Exercised | (85,000) | \$.28 \$.28 | \$ | 0.28 | |
| Repurchased | (164,550) | \$.28 \$.95 | \$ | 0.37 | |
| Outstanding, December 31, 2011 | 887.450 | \$.28 \$4.57 | \$ | 0.76 | |
| <u> </u> | , | | | | |
| Outstanding, December 31, 2012 | 887,450 | \$.28 \$4.57 | \$ | 0.76 | |
| Repurchased | (12,750) | \$.95 | \$ | 0.95 | |

| Outstanding December 31, 2013 | 874 700 | \$ 28 \$4 57 | \$ 0.73 |
|-------------------------------|---------|--------------|------------|

MEDPRO RX, INC. AND AFFILIATE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

7. Share-Based Compensation (Continued)

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, there were 874,700 and 874,090 of exercisable stock options with weighted average exercise prices of \$0.67 and \$0.68, respectively, per share. The weighted average remaining contractual life for all outstanding stock options at December 31, 2013 was 3.38 years.

The fair value of the stock options granted in 2011 was calculated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model and the following assumptions:

| Dividend yield | 0.0% |
|-------------------------|-----------|
| Expected volatility | 80.0% |
| Risk free interest rate | 2.16% |
| Expected option life | 6.5 years |

The Company recorded stock option compensation expense of \$120,420 for 2013, \$152,367 for 2012 and \$319,600 for 2011.

In 2011, the Company repurchased 15% of all stock options outstanding as an incentive for long-term employees. The stock option purchase price was determined based on a recent offer to acquire the Company and was considered to be at fair value. No additional compensation was recognized.

In 2013, the Company repurchased the stock options from two employees. The first repurchase was done to extend the non-compete agreement for a terminated employee. The second repurchase was for an employee that was terminally ill. The price paid for the options was considered to be fair value and no additional compensation was recognized.

MEDPRO RX, INC. AND AFFILIATE

Consolidated Balance Sheets (Unaudited)

\$ 19,507,637 \$ 16,371,850

| | Ma | arch 31, 2014 | D | ecember 31, 2013 |
|---|----|------------------|----|---------------------|
| Assets | | | | |
| Current assets: | | | | |
| Cash and cash equivalents | \$ | 3,643,675 | \$ | 1,251,650 |
| Accounts receivable net | | 8,681,743 | | 8,386,536 |
| Inventories | | 3,988,711 | | 3,622,369 |
| Prepaid expenses | | 88,625 | | 30,621 |
| Total current assets | | 16,402,754 | | 13,291,176 |
| Property and equipment net | | 2,970,795 | | 2,948,386 |
| Other assets | | 134,088 | | 132,288 |
| | \$ | 19,507,637 | \$ | 16,371,850 |
| Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity Current liabilities: | | | | |
| Accounts payable | \$ | 3,445,160 | \$ | 1,455,011 |
| Accrued expenses | Ψ | 652,518 | Ψ | 713,741 |
| | | 00 2 ,010 | | , 10,, 11 |
| Total current liabilities | | 4,097,678 | | 2,168,752 |
| Stockholders' equity: | | | | |
| Controlling interest: | | | | |
| Capital stock no par value | | 150,000 | | 150,000 |
| Additional paid-in capital | | 5,329,760 | | 5,329,760 |
| Retained earnings | | 8,021,437 | | 6,818,014 |
| Total controlling interest | | 13,501,197 | | 12,297,774 |
| Non-controlling interest | | 1,908,762 | | 1,905,324 |
| Total stockholders' equity | | 15,409,959 | | 14,203,098 |
| | | 10.707 | | ,, |

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

MEDPRO RX, INC. AND AFFILIATE

Consolidated Statements of Income (Unaudited)

| Three 1 | Months | Ended |
|---------|---------|-------|
| N | farch 3 | 1. |

| | Marc | h 31 | , |
|---|------------------|------|----------------|
| | 2014 | | 2013 |
| Net sales | \$ 20,529,540 | \$ | 17,675,358 |
| Cost of goods sold | 16,631,558 | | 14,269,378 |
| Gross profit | 3,897,982 | | 3,405,980 |
| Selling, general and administrative expenses | 2,470,783 | | 2,421,280 |
| Income from operations | 1,427,199 | | 984,700 |
| Other income: Rental income Interest income | 4,500 13,736 | | 3,000 6,800 |
| | | | |
| Total other income | 18,236 | | 9,800 |
| Net income | 1,445,435 | | 994,500 |
| - 101 - | | | , |
| Less net income attributable to non-controlling interest | (3,438) | | (2,266) |
| Net income attributable to MedPro Rx, Inc. | \$ 1,441,997 | \$ | 992,234 |

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

MEDPRO RX, INC. AND AFFILIATE

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders' Equity (Unaudited)

| | Shares | Amount | Additional Paid-in Capital | Retained Earnings | Total Controlling Interest | Non- Controlling Interest | Total |
|----------------------------|-----------|------------|----------------------------------|----------------------|----------------------------------|---------------------------------|---------------|
| Balance, January 1, 2014 | 4,285,000 | \$ 150,000 | \$ 5,329,760 | \$ 6,818,014 | \$ 12,297,774 | \$ 1,905,324 | \$ 14,203,098 |
| Net income | | | | 1,441,997 | 1,441,997 | 3,438 | 1,445,435 |
| Distributions | | | | (238,574) | (238,574) | | (238,574) |
| Balance, March 31, 2014 | 4,285,000 | \$ 150,000 | \$ 5,329,760 | \$ 8,021,437 | \$ 13,501,197 | \$ 1,908,762 | \$ 15,409,959 |
| Authorized shares | 6,000,000 | | | | | | |

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

MEDPRO RX, INC. AND AFFILIATE

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (Unaudited)

| | Three Mor Marc | |
|--|-------------------|---------------|
| | 2014 | 2013 |
| Cash flows from operating activities: | | |
| Net income | \$ 1,445,435 | \$ 994,500 |
| Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash from operating activities: | | |
| Depreciation | 79,971 | 71,464 |
| Stock-based compensation | | 30,105 |
| Changes in operating assets and liabilites: | | |
| Accounts receivable net | (295,207) | (646,846) |
| Inventories | (366,342) | (419,228) |
| Prepaid expenses | (58,004) | (18,411) |
| Other assets | (1,800) | (6,650) |
| Accounts payable | 1,990,149 | (891,562) |
| Accrued expenses | (61,223) | (135,851) |
| | | |
| Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities | 2,732,979 | (1,022,479) |
| Cash flows from investing activities: | | |
| Purchases of property and equipment | (102,380) | (119,152) |
| Cash flows from financing activities: | | |
| Distributions | (238,574) | (4,033,717) |
| | | |
| Net increase (decrease in) cash and cash equivalents | 2,392,025 | (5,175,348) |
| Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year | 1,251,650 | 5,618,068 |
| | | |
| Cash and cash equivalents, end of year | \$ 3,643,675 | \$ 442,720 |

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

MEDPRO RX, INC. AND AFFILIATE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Business Activity: MedPro Rx, Inc. ("MedPro") is a specialty pharmacy retailing prescription medications. MedPro is located in Raleigh, North Carolina and provides services primarily in the Mid-Atlantic states.

Selfridge Investments, LLC ("Affiliate") owns real estate and leases office and condominium space to MedPro RX, Inc.

Basis of Presentation: The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States ("GAAP") and include all the accounts of MedPro and Affiliate (collectively, the "Company"). All significant intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated in the consolidation.

MedPro's primary stockholders own all of the equity interests in Affiliate. MedPro leases its main operating and other properties from Affiliate, which was formed for the purpose of owning such properties. Mortgages for the properties were paid off in certain cases with funding provided to Affiliate by MedPro in the form of loans (which are eliminated in consolidation). Because Affiliate does not have adequate equity at risk to support its significant operating activities and because the vast majority of its properties are leased only to MedPro, MedPro is deemed to control the significant operating activities of Affiliate and therefore is deemed to be its primary beneficiary. Accordingly, Affiliate is consolidated into the Company's financial statements.

Accounting for Non-controlling Interest: The Company records the non-controlling interest of other consolidated entities as a separate component of stockholders' equity in the consolidated balance sheets. Additionally, the consolidated statements of income separately present earnings attributable to controlling and non-controlling interests.

Use of Estimates: The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the periods reported. Although the estimates are considered reasonable, actual results could differ from those estimates. The most significant estimate is the contractual and bad debt allowance. Adjustments related to changes in the estimates are reflected in the Company's results of operations in the period in which those estimates changed.

Revenue Recognition: The Company recognizes revenue upon delivery and administration of medicines, supplies, and services to patients. Shipping and handling costs are not billed to patients; therefore, there are no shipping and handling revenues.

Concentrations of Risk: Financial instruments which potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of cash and accounts receivable.

The temporary federal program that insured non-interest bearing cash balances without balance limitations expired December 31, 2012. Beginning in 2013, insurance coverage reverted to \$250,000 per depositor at each financial institution, and non-interest bearing cash balances may again exceed federally insured limits.

Concentration of credit risk with respect to trade receivables in limited by the large number of patients comprising the Company's customer base and their dispersion across multiple payors and

MEDPRO RX, INC. AND AFFILIATE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited) (Continued)

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

multiple geographic areas. As of March 31, 2014 and 2013, the Company had no significant trade receivable concentrations of credit risk.

The Company's products are purchased from several suppliers. For the three months ended March 31, 2014, two suppliers accounted for approximately 71% of the total cost of sales. For the three months ended March 31, 2013, three suppliers accounted for approximately 84% of the total cost of sales. The Company believes it has the flexibility to use a number of other vendors to fulfill its sales requirements should the need arise.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments: The carrying amounts of the Company's financial instruments, consisting primarily of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable and other liabilities, approximate their fair value due to the relative short-term nature of the amounts.

The Company uses a framework for measuring fair value under GAAP and defines fair value as the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement date. This guidance requires that valuation techniques maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. This guidance also establishes a fair value hierarchy which prioritizes the valuation inputs into three broad levels. Based on the underlying inputs, each fair value measurement in its entirety is reported in one of three levels:

Level 1 Unadjusted quoted prices that are available in active markets for the identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date.

Level 2 Other observable inputs available at the measurement date, other than quoted prices included in Level 1, either directly or indirectly, including:

Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets;

Quoted prices for identical or similar assets in non-active markets;

Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability; and

Inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by other observable market data.

Level 3 Unobservable inputs that cannot be corroborated by observable market data and reflect the use of significant management judgment. These values are generally determined using pricing models for which the assumptions utilize management's estimates of market participant assumptions.

Cash and Cash Equivalents: The Company considers all highly liquid investments purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Accounts Receivable: Accounts receivable primarily includes amounts from individuals, Medicaid, Medicare and independent insurance providers and are based on contracted prices. Trade receivables require no collateral and are on an unsecured basis. Accounts receivable vary by payor, but generally are due within 30 days after the sale of the product or performance of the service.

The Company maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts that reduces receivables to amounts that are expected to be collected.

In estimating the allowance, management considers factors such as current, overall economic conditions, historical and anticipated customer performance, historical experience with write-offs, and

MEDPRO RX, INC. AND AFFILIATE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited) (Continued)

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

the level of past due accounts. Changes in these conditions may result in additional allowances. Once an amount is deemed uncollectible, the amount is written-off against the allowance. The allowance for doubtful accounts was \$377,822 at March 31, 2014 and \$370,284 at March 31, 2013.

Inventories: Inventories consist of pharmaceuticals held for sale and are stated at the lower of cost determined on the average-cost method (which approximates the first in-first out method) or market.

Property and Equipment: Property and equipment are stated at cost. Major repairs and betterments are capitalized and normal maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred. Depreciation is computed by the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets. Upon retirement or sale of an asset, the cost and accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts and any gain or loss is reflected in operations. Estimated useful lives are as follows:

| | Years |
|----------------------------|-------|
| Buildings and improvements | 20 |
| Office equipment | 5 |
| Software | 5 |
| Furniture and fixtures | 7 |
| Computer equipment | 5 |

Share-Based Awards: Share-based compensation awards are recognized at fair value, see Note 6 for further disclosure.

Income Taxes: MedPro, with the consent of its stockholders, has elected for federal income tax purposes to be an S Corporation. In lieu of corporate income taxes, the stockholders of an S Corporation are taxed on their proportionate share of the Company's taxable income or loss. Selfridge Investments, LLC is treated as a partnership for income tax purposes and its members are taxed on their share of net earnings. The Company is required to file and does file tax returns with the Internal Revenue Service and other taxing authorities. Accordingly, no provision or liability for income taxes has been included in the accompanying financial statements.

Income Tax Uncertainties: The Company follows applicable accounting guidance for how uncertain tax positions should be recognized, measured, disclosed and presented in the financial statements. This guidance requires the evaluation of tax positions taken or expected to be taken in the course of preparing the Company's tax returns to determine whether the tax positions are "more-likely-than-not" of being sustained "when challenged" or "when examined" by the applicable tax authority. Tax positions not deemed to meet the more-likely-then-not threshold would be recorded as a tax expense and liability in the current year. Management evaluated the Company's tax position and concluded that the Company had taken no uncertain tax positions that require adjustment to the financial statements to comply with the provisions of this guidance. The Company's income tax returns for years since 2010 remain open for examination by tax authorities. The Company is not currently under audit by any tax jurisdiction.

Advertising and Marketing: Advertising and marketing costs are expensed as incurred and were approximately \$70,000 for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and \$46,000 for the three months ended March 31, 2013.

MEDPRO RX, INC. AND AFFILIATE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited) (Continued)

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Subsequent Events: Management has evaluated subsequent events August 18, 2014, the date the consolidated financial statements were available for issuance, and has determined there are no subsequent events to be reported in the accompanying consolidated financial statements other than that MedPro was sold to Diplomat Pharmacy, Inc. on June 26, 2014 for total considerations of approximately \$70 million.

2. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consisted of the following:

| |] | March 31, 2014 | D | ecember 31, 2013 |
|-------------------------------|----|-------------------|----|---------------------|
| Land | \$ | 605,641 | \$ | 605,641 |
| Buildings and improvements | | 2,193,790 | | 2,193,790 |
| Office equipment | | 1,210,515 | | 1,108,135 |
| Software | | 50,702 | | 50,702 |
| Furniture and fixtures | | 52,662 | | 52,662 |
| Computer equipment | | 153,391 | | 153,391 |
| | | 4,266,701 | | 4,164,321 |
| Less accumulated depreciation | | 1,295,906 | | (1,215,935) |
| | \$ | 2,970,795 | \$ | 2,948,386 |

Depreciation expense was \$79,971 for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and \$71,464 for the three months ended March 31, 2013.

3. Line of Credit

The Company has available a revolving line of credit with a bank providing for maximum borrowings of \$4,000,000 payable on demand, as defined and limited by the loan agreement. The amount available under the line is the lesser of \$4,000,000 or the borrowing base as defined in the loan agreement. Interest on funds advanced is payable monthly at a rate determined by the loan agreement.

At March 31, 2014, the effective rate was LIBOR plus 2.75% (2.92% at March 31, 2014). The line is collateralized by substantially all of the assets of the Company. The line expires on February 4, 2015.

There were no outstanding borrowings on the line of credit at March 31, 2014 and 2013. No interest expense was incurred during the three months ended March 31, 2014 and 2013.

4. Leases

In 2011, the Company entered into an operating lease for additional office space in Raleigh, North Carolina which commenced on January 1, 2012. This lease agreement was amended, effective January 1, 2014. Future minimum lease commitments are as follows as of March 31, 2014:

Year Amount

Edgar Filing: Diplomat Pharmacy, Inc. - Form 424B4

| 2015 | \$ 168,954 |
|------|---------------|
| 2016 | 90,606 |
| 2017 | 69,480 |

\$ 329,040

MEDPRO RX, INC. AND AFFILIATE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited) (Continued)

4. Leases (Continued)

The Company has entered into additional operating leases with initial commitments of up to a year. After the initial commitment, the leases will continue on a month-to-month basis.

Net rent expense amounted to \$93,405 for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and \$80,027 for the three months ended March 31, 2013.

5. Employee Retirement Plan

The Company sponsors an employee savings plan under Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code. Eligible employees may elect to contribute up to 90% of their compensation, not to exceed federal tax law limitations. The Company makes discretionary contributions to the plan as determined by the Board of Directors. Company contributions to the plan were \$46,455 for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and \$44,814 for the three months ended March 31, 2013.

6. Share-Based Compensation

Certain employees were offered the option to purchase shares of common stock under the 2005 stock option plan. Generally, under the option plan, options become exercisable ratably over the three-year period after the date of grant and expire if not exercised in a period of ten years or if the employee ceases to be employed by the Company. The exercise price of all the stock options granted under the option plan has generally been equal to the fair value of the Company's common stock at the date of grant, as determined by the Company's Board of Directors.

A summary of the Company's stock options outstanding at March 31, 2014 and 2013 and changes during the periods then ended, is presented below:

| | | Exercise Price | Per Sh | are |
|------------------------------|-----------|----------------|--------|------|
| | Number of | | Weig | hted |
| | Options | Range | Ave | rage |
| Outstanding, January 1, 2013 | 887,450 | \$.28 \$4.57 | \$ | 0.76 |
| Outstanding, March 31, 2013 | 887,450 | \$.28 \$4.57 | \$ | 0.76 |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| 0 !! | 054500 | A 20 A 4 5 7 | Φ. | 0.70 |
| Outstanding, January 1, 2014 | 874,700 | \$.28 \$4.57 | \$ | 0.73 |
| Outstanding, March 31, 2014 | 874,700 | \$.28 \$4.57 | \$ | 0.73 |

As of March 31 2014 and 2013, there were 874,700 and 874,450 of exercisable stock options with weighted average exercise prices of \$0.67 and \$0.68, respectively, per share. The weighted average remaining contractual life for all outstanding stock options at March 31, 2014 was 3.11 years.

The Company recorded stock option compensation expense of \$0 for the three months ended March 31, 2014 and \$30,105 for the three months ended March 31, 2013.

UNAUDITED PRO FORMA COMBINED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following unaudited pro forma combined consolidated balance sheet as of June 30, 2014 presents our financial position after giving pro forma effect to the following as if such transactions had occurred on June 30, 2014:

the conversion of all outstanding shares of our capital stock into shares of our common stock, and immediately thereafter a stock split effected as a stock dividend of 8,500 shares for each share of our common stock in connection with this offering; and

this offering and the contemplated use of the estimated net proceeds therefrom as described under "Use of Proceeds."

The following unaudited pro forma combined consolidated statement of operations for the six months ended June 30, 2014 presents our operating results after giving pro forma effect to the following as if such transactions had occurred on January 1, 2013:

our acquisition of MedPro Rx, Inc. ("MedPro") on June 27, 2014;

our election to be taxed as a C corporation effective on January 23, 2014;

our issuance of capital stock to certain funds of T. Rowe Price on January 23, 2014, our issuance of capital stock to certain funds of Janus Capital Group ("Janus") on April 1, 2014, the use of related proceeds to redeem common stock and common stock options and the conversion of all outstanding shares of our capital stock into shares of our common stock, and immediately thereafter a stock split effected as a stock dividend of 8,500 shares for each share of our common stock in connection with this offering (collectively, the "capital stock transactions"); and

this offering and the contemplated use of the estimated net proceeds therefrom as described under "Use of Proceeds."

The following unaudited pro forma combined consolidated statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2013 presents our operating results after giving pro forma effect to the following as if such transactions had occurred on January 1, 2013:

our acquisition of American Homecare Federation, Inc. ("AHF") on December 16, 2013;

our acquisition of MedPro on June 27, 2014;

our election to be taxed as a C corporation effective on January 23, 2014;

the capital stock transactions; and

this offering and the contemplated use of the estimated net proceeds therefrom.

These transactions are all more fully described in Note 2 hereto. The pro forma adjustments are based on available information and upon assumptions that our management believes are reasonable in order to reflect, on a pro forma basis, the impact of the noted events on our historical consolidated financial information.

Included in the pro forma combined consolidated financial information is an allocation of the purchase price we paid for MedPro based on preliminary estimates and assumptions. Those estimates and assumptions could change materially as we finalize our assessment of the allocation

and the fair values of the net tangible and intangible assets we acquired, some of which are dependent on the completion of valuations being performed by independent valuation specialists. The unaudited pro forma combined consolidated financial information does not reflect any future operating efficiencies, associated costs savings or any possible integration costs that may occur related to the MedPro or AHF acquisition.

Table of Contents

The unaudited pro forma combined consolidated financial information is included for informational purposes only and does not purport to reflect our results of operations or financial position that would have occurred had we operated as a public company during the periods presented. The unaudited pro forma combined consolidated financial information should not be relied upon as being indicative of our financial condition or results of operations had the noted events occurred on the dates assumed nor as a projection of our results of operations or financial position for any future period or date. The preparation of the unaudited pro forma combined consolidated information requires the use of certain assumptions which may be materially different from our actual experience.

The unaudited pro forma combined consolidated balance sheet and consolidated statements of operations should be read in conjunction with "Use of Proceeds," "Selected Consolidated Financial Data," "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" and the historical consolidated financial statements and related notes appearing elsewhere in this prospectus.

DIPLOMAT PHARMACY, INC.

Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Consolidated Balance Sheet

As of June 30, 2014

| | Diplomat Actual | Stock Conversions | Trai | fering isactions | Pro Forma Total | |
|--|--------------------|------------------------|------|---------------------|--------------------|---|
| ASSETS | | (Dollars in Thousands) | | | | |
| Current assets: | | | | | | |
| Cash and equivalents | \$ 25,550 | \$ | \$ | 18,697(D) | \$ 44,24 | 7 |
| Accounts receivable, net | 139,490 | Ψ | Ψ | 10,097(D) | 139,490 | |
| Other receivables | 6,067 | | | | 6,06 | |
| Inventories, net | 69,490 | | | | 69,490 | |
| Deferred income taxes | 155 | | | | 15: | |
| Prepaid expenses and other current assets | 3,178 | | | (411)(F) | | |
| Total current assets | 243,930 | | | 18,286 | 262,210 | 6 |
| Property and equipment, net | 12,900 | | | | 12,900 | 0 |
| Capitalized software for internal use, net | 9,002 | | | | 9,002 | |
| Goodwill | 22,851 | | | | 22,85 | 1 |
| Definite-lived intangible assets, net | 43,747 | | | | 43,74 | 7 |
| Investment in non-consolidated entity | 5,368 | | | | 5,368 | |
| Other noncurrent assets | 1,111 | | | | 1,11 | 1 |
| | \$ 338,909 | \$ | \$ | 18,286 | \$ 357,193 | 5 |

| LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICITION Current liabilities: | 1) | | | | | |
|---|----|---------|----|--------------|---------------|---------|
| | Ф | 104 240 | ф | ф | Φ. | 104 240 |
| Accounts payable | \$ | 194,248 | \$ | \$ | \$ | 194,248 |
| Line of credit | | 79,876 | | | (79,876)(E) | |
| Short-term debt, including current portion of long-term debt | | 3,949 | | | (3,949)(E) | |
| Accrued compensation | | 2,500 | | | | 2,500 |
| Income taxes payable | | 1,333 | | | | 1,333 |
| Other accrued expenses | | 5,414 | | | | 5,414 |
| m c I c P I P P P | | 207.220 | | | (02.025) | 202.405 |
| Total current liabilities | | 287,320 | | | (83,825) | 203,495 |
| | | 46000 | | | (4 < 000) (T) | |
| Long-term debt, less current portion | | 16,893 | | | (16,893)(E) | |
| Deferred income taxes | | 2,261 | | | | 2,261 |
| Other noncurrent liabilities | | 2,289 | | | | 2,289 |
| Redeemable common shares | | 38,423 | | (38,423)(A) | | |
| | | | | | | |
| Redeemable Series A Preferred Stock | | 101,815 | | (101,815)(A) | | |
| | | | | | | |
| Commitments and contingencies | | | | | | |
| Shareholders' equity (deficit): | | | | | | |

| Common stools | | | | |
|--------------------------------------|---------------|------------|------------|---------|
| Common stock: | | | | |
| Common shares | | | | |
| Class A Voting Common Stock | | | | |
| Class B Nonvoting Common Stock | 4 | (4)(B) | | |
| Class C Voting Common Stock | | | | |
| Additional paid-in capital | (114,039) | 140,242(C) | 119,004(F) | 145,207 |
| Retained earnings | 3,943 | | | 3,943 |
| Total shareholders' equity (deficit) | (110,092) | 140,238 | 119,004 | 149,150 |
| | \$ 338,909 \$ | \$ | 18,286 \$ | 357,195 |

See accompanying notes to unaudited pro forma combined consolidated financial information.

DIPLOMAT PHARMACY, INC.

Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Consolidated Statement of Operations

For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2014

| | Diplomat Actual | | Acquisition Adjustments | | C orporation djustments | Capital Stock Transactions | Offering Transactions | Pro Forma Total | | |
|--|--------------------|--|----------------------------|---|-------------------------------|----------------------------------|--------------------------|--------------------|--|--|
| | | (Dollars in Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts) | | | | | | | | |
| Net sales | \$1,007,352 | \$ 43,780 | \$ | \$1,051,132 | \$ | \$ | \$ | \$ 1,051,132 | | |
| Cost of goods sold | (948,275) | (35,733) | | (984,008) | | | | (984,008) | | |
| Gross profit | 59,077 | 8,047 | | 67,124 | | | | 67,124 | | |
| Selling, general and | | | | | | | | | | |
| administrative expenses | (51,024) | (6,169) | (2,968)(G) 2,345(H) | (57,826) | | | | (57,826) | | |
| | | | (10)(I) | | | | | | | |
| Income from operations | 8,053 | 1,878 | (633) | 9,298 | | | | 9,298 | | |
| Interest expense | (895) | | (909)(J) | (1,804) | | | 1,804(P) |) | | |
| Change in fair value of redeemable common shares | 957 | | | 957 | | (957)(| N) | | | |
| Equity loss of | | | | .= | | | | | | |
| non-consolidated entity Other income | (710) 517 | 90 | | (710) 607 | | | | (710) 607 | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| Income before income taxes | 7,922 | 1,968 | (1,542) | 8,348 | 4.5060. | (957) | 1,804 | 9,195 | | |
| Income tax expense Net income / net | (4,557) | | (157)(K) | (4,714) | 1,786(M |) | (664)((| (3,592) | | |
| comprehensive income | 3,365 | 1,968 | (1,699) | 3,634 | 1,786 | (957) | 1,140 | 5,603 | | |
| Net income allocable to | | | | | | | | | | |
| preferred shareholders | 401 | | | 401 | | (401)(| N) | | | |
| Net income allocable to common shareholders | \$ 2,964 | \$ 1,968 | \$ (1,699) | \$ 3,233 | \$ 1,786 | \$ (556) | \$ 1,140 | \$ 5,603 | | |
| Net income per common share: | | | | | | | | | | |
| Basic | \$ 803.16 | | | \$ 856.42 | | | | \$ 0.11 | | |
| Diluted | \$ 746.81 | | | \$ 797.48 | | | | \$ 0.11 | | |
| | φ /40.01 | | | ψ , , , , , ₁ , ₁ , ₁ , ₁ , ₁ , ₁ , | | | | ψ 0.11 | | |

Weighted-average shares

| 11 | |
|-------------|-----|
| outstanding | · · |
| | |

| outstanding: | | | | | | |
|--------------|-------|-------|-------|---------------|---------------|------------|
| Basic | 3,691 | 84(L) | 3,775 | 40,072,483(O) | 10,000,000(R) | 50,076,258 |
| | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| Diluted | 3,970 | 84(L) | 4,054 | 42,347,618(O) | 10,000,000(R) | 52,351,672 |

See accompanying notes to unaudited pro forma combined consolidated financial information.

DIPLOMAT PHARMACY, INC.

Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Consolidated Statement of Operations

For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

| | Diplomat Actual | AHF Actual | | Acquisition Adjustments | | | C rporation justments | Capital Stock Transaction | | Offering insactions | Pro Forma Total |
|---|--------------------|---------------|-----------|----------------------------|--------|------------|-----------------------------|---------------------------------|------|------------------------|--------------------|
| | | | | (Dollars in | | | t Per Shar | | | | |
| Net sales | \$ 1,515,139 | | \$ 82,686 | | | 26,233 \$ | | \$ | \$ | | \$ 1,626,233 |
| Cost of goods sold | (1,426,112) | (21,676) | (65,860) |) | (1,5) | 13,648) | | | | | (1,513,648) |
| Gross profit | 89,027 | 6,732 | 16,826 | | 1 | 12,585 | | | | | 112,585 |
| Selling, general and administrative expenses | (77,944) | (5,216) | (10,096) | (/ / | | 00,584) | | | | | (100,584) |
| | | | | (72) (100) | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Income from operations | 11,083 | 1,516 | 6,730 | (7,328) | | 12,001 | | | | | 12,001 |
| Interest expense | (1,996) | (83) | | (2,225) | (J) | (4,304) | | | | 4,304(P) | |
| Change in fair value of redeemable common | | (65) | | (2,220) | | | | | | ,,50 (1) | |
| shares | (34,348) | | | | (. | 34,348) | | 34,34 | 8(N) | | |
| Equity loss of non-consolidated entity | (1.055) | | | | | (1.055) | | | | | (1.055) |
| Other income | (1,055) 196 | 19 | 60 | | | (1,055) | | | | | (1,055) 275 |
| Income before income taxes | (26,120) | 1,452 | 6,790 | (9,553) | (2 | 27,431) | | 34,34 | 8 | 4,304 | 11,221 |
| Income tax expense | | | | 464(1 | K) | 464 | (2,911)(M |) | | (1,523)(Q) | (3,970) |
| Net (loss) income / net comprehensive (loss) income | (26,120) | 1,452 | 6,790 | (9,089) | (2 | 26,967) | (2,911) | 34,34 | 8 | 2,781 | 7,251 |
| Net (loss) income allocable to preferred shareholders | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Net (loss) income allocable to common shareholders | \$ (26,120) | \$ 1,452 | \$ 6,790 | \$ (9,089) | \$ (: | 26,967) \$ | (2,911) | \$ 34,34 | 8 \$ | 2,781 | \$ 7,251 |
| Net (loss) income per | | | | | | | | | | | |
| common share: | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Basic | \$ (6,699.13) | | | | \$ (6, | 770.52) | | | | | \$ 0.14 |

| Diluted | \$ (6,699.13) | \$ (6,770.52) | \$ 0.14 |
|--------------------------------------|---------------|---------------|--|
| | | | |
| | | | |
| | | | |
| Weighted-average shares outstanding: | | | |
| Basic Basic | 3,899 | 84(L) 3,983 | 40,072,275(O) 10,000,000(R) 50,076,258 |
| | | | |
| | | | |
| | | | |
| Diluted | 3,899 | 84(L) 3,983 | 40,783,749(O) 10,000,000(R) 50,787,732 |

See accompanying notes to unaudited pro forma combined consolidated financial information.

Notes to Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Consolidated Financial Information

(Dollars in Thousands)

1. Basis of Presentation

The unaudited pro forma combined consolidated financial information presents our financial position and results of operations as if the transactions described in Note 2 occurred on the earlier of their actual transaction date or June 30, 2014 for purposes of the pro forma balance sheet and on January 1, 2013 for purposes of the pro forma statements of operations. Our actual unaudited balance sheet as of June 30, 2014 was used as the basis for the pro forma balance sheet. For the six months ended June 30, 2014, our and MedPro's actual unaudited operating results for that six month period were used as the basis for the pro forma statement of operations. For the year ended December 31, 2013, our and MedPro's actual operating results for that year and AHF's actual unaudited operating results from January 1, 2013 to its December 16, 2013 acquisition date were used as the basis for the pro forma statement of operations. The pro forma combined consolidated financial information also reflects the assumptions and adjustments described in Note 3.

2. Description of Transactions

MedPro Acquisition: On June 27, 2014, we acquired all of the authorized, issued and outstanding shares of capital stock of MedPro for a total acquisition price of approximately \$68,240, excluding related acquisition costs of approximately \$635 that were expensed. Included in the total acquisition price is approximately \$51,970 in cash, 84.31703 shares on a pre-split basis of the Company's Class B Nonvoting Common Stock, valued at approximately \$12,000, which reflects the estimated per share value of such shares as of the acquisition date, and contingent consideration fair valued at \$4,270, with a maximum payout of \$11,500 of contingent consideration that is based on achieving certain revenue and gross profit targets through June 27, 2016. We funded the cash portion of the purchase price under our revolving line of credit. MedPro is a specialty pharmacy focused on specialty infusion therapies including hemophilia and immune globulin based in Raleigh, North Carolina. We ascribe significant value to the cost reductions as well as synergies and other benefits that do not meet the recognition criteria of acquired identifiable intangible assets. Accordingly, we have included the value of these components within goodwill. The goodwill resulting from this acquisition is deductible for tax purposes.

Because this acquisition was completed so recently, we have not finalized the purchase price allocation pending further analysis of the net assets acquired, particularly in regards to valuations of acquired intangible assets. Accordingly, the purchase price allocation described below could change materially as we finalize our assessment of the allocation and the fair values of the net tangible and intangible assets we acquired, some of which are dependent on the finalization of valuations being performed by independent valuation specialists. Additionally, the current estimate of the fair value of the contingent consideration described above is based on preliminary assumptions regarding MedPro's operating results through June 27, 2016 and may be adjusted upon gathering additional information as to MedPro's forecast for that period.

Notes to Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Consolidated Financial Information (Continued)

(Dollars in Thousands)

2. Description of Transactions (Continued)

A summary of the preliminary allocation of the purchase consideration for MedPro is as follows:

| Cash and cash equivalents | \$ 668 |
|---|-----------|
| Accounts receivable | 9,050 |
| Inventories | 3,819 |
| Prepaid expenses and other current assets | 204 |
| Property and equipment | 697 |
| Capitalized software for internal use | 25 |
| Goodwill | 21,338 |
| Definite-lived intangible assets | 37,099 |
| Current liabilities | (4,660) |

\$ 68,240

AHF Acquisition: On December 16, 2013, we acquired all of the authorized, issued and outstanding shares of capital stock of AHF for a total acquisition price of approximately \$13,449, excluding related acquisition costs of approximately \$499 that were expensed. Included in the total acquisition price is approximately \$12,100 in cash and contingent consideration fair valued at \$1,300, with a maximum payout of \$2,000 of contingent consideration that is based on achieving certain revenue and gross profit targets through December 16, 2015. We funded the purchase price under our revolving line of credit. At the closing of the acquisition, approximately \$1,353 of the purchase consideration was deposited into an escrow account that will be held for two years after the closing date to satisfy any indemnification claims we may have.

AHF provides clotting medications, ancillaries and supplies to individuals with bleeding disorders, such as hemophilia. AHF has provided pharmacy services exclusively to the bleeding disorders community since 1989. The acquisition of AHF will allow us to participate in AHF's direct purchase agreements with key hemophilia manufacturers while also providing AHF access to our proprietary care management modules to better manage clinical care of the AHF patients. We ascribe significant value to the cost reductions as well as synergies and other benefits that do not meet the recognition criteria of acquired identifiable intangible assets. Accordingly, we have included the value of these components within goodwill. The goodwill resulting from this acquisition is deductible for tax purposes.

A summary of the preliminary allocation of the purchase consideration for AHF is as follows:

| Cash and cash equivalents | \$ 1,917 |
|---|-------------|
| Accounts receivable, net | 3,512 |
| Inventories | 1,138 |
| Prepaid expenses and other current assets | 27 |
| Property and equipment | 182 |
| Goodwill | 1,513 |
| Definite-lived intangible assets | 7,100 |
| Current liabilities | (1,940) |

\$ 13,449

Notes to Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Consolidated Financial Information (Continued)

(Dollars in Thousands)

2. Description of Transactions (Continued)

Change in Income Tax Status: We elected to be taxed as a C corporation effective on January 23, 2014.

Stock Conversions: Immediately prior to the completion of this offering, all outstanding shares of our capital stock will convert, on a one-to-one basis, into shares of the single class of common stock that will be authorized in conjunction with this offering, and immediately thereafter a stock split will be effected as a stock dividend of 8,500 shares for each share of our common stock.

Other Capital Stock Transactions: In January 2014, we entered into a Series A Preferred Stock Purchase Agreement with certain funds of T. Rowe Price under which we issued to certain funds of T. Rowe Price 2,986,228 shares of Series A Preferred Stock at a purchase price of \$16.74 per share. We used \$20,000 of this \$50,000 investment for general corporate purposes inclusive of fees associated with this transaction, and the remaining \$30,000 was used to redeem common stock (\$26,900) and common stock options (\$3,100).

In April 2014, we entered into a Series A Preferred Stock Purchase Agreement with certain funds of Janus under which we issued to certain funds of Janus 3,225,127 shares of Series A Preferred Stock at a purchase price of \$16.74 per share. We used \$25,200 of the \$54,000 investment for general corporate purposes inclusive of fees associated with this transaction, and the remaining \$28,800 was used to redeem common stock (\$26,500) and common stock options (\$2,300).

Initial Public Offering: At the initial offering price of \$13.00 per share, and after deducting the underwriting discount and estimated offering expenses payable by us, we will receive net proceeds of \$119,004 in this offering. A portion of these net proceeds will be used to retire currently outstanding debt.

3. Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Consolidated Balance Sheet Adjustments

Stock Conversions:

- A Reflects the conversion of all outstanding shares of redeemable common and preferred stock into common stock authorized in connection with this offering.
- B Reflects the conversion of all outstanding shares of Class A Voting Common Stock and Class B Nonvoting Common Stock into common stock authorized in connection with this offering.
- C Reflects conversion of all outstanding shares of (1) redeemable common shares (\$38,423), (2) preferred stock net of offering costs (\$101,815) and (3) Class A Voting Common Stock and Class B Nonvoting Common Stock (\$4) into common stock authorized in connection with this offering.

Offering Transactions:

D Reflects \$18,697 of net cash proceeds to us from this offering at the initial offering price of \$13.00 per share, after deducting the underwriting discount and estimated offering costs payable by us that have not yet been paid as of June 30, 2014 and the use of \$100,718 of those net proceeds to retire outstanding indebtedness.

DIPLOMAT PHARMACY, INC.

Notes to Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Consolidated Financial Information (Continued)

(Dollars in Thousands)

3. Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Consolidated Balance Sheet Adjustments (Continued)

- E Reflects the retirement of all outstanding debt with a portion of the net proceeds from this offering.
- F Reflects the net proceeds to us from this offering at the initial offering price of \$13.00 per share, after deducting the underwriting discount and estimated offering costs payable by us that have not yet been paid as of June 30, 2014.
- 4. Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Consolidated Statements of Operations Adjustments

Acquisition Adjustments:

Reflects amortization of the identifiable definite-lived intangible assets acquired in the AHF acquisition, including patient relationships with an estimated ten year life, trade names and trademarks with an estimated ten year life and non-compete employment agreements with an estimated five year life (collectively \$903 for the year ended December 31, 2013). Also reflects amortization of identifiable definite-lived intangible assets acquired in the MedPro acquisition, including patient relationships with an estimated seven year life, trade names and trademarks with an estimated ten year life and non-compete employment agreements with an estimated five year life (collectively \$2,968 for the six months ended June 30, 2014 and \$6,253 for the year ended December 31, 2013). The following table presents the definite-lived intangible assets acquired:

| | AHF | | 1edPro |
|-----------------------------------|-------------|----|---------------|
| Patient relationships | \$ 5,100 | \$ | 24,000 |
| Trade names and trademarks | 1,400 | | 8,700 |
| Non-compete employment agreements | 600 | | 4,399 |
| | | | |
| | | | |
| | \$ 7,100 | | 37,099 |

Reflects (a) the elimination from actual results of the transaction costs incurred during the period for the AHF and MedPro acquisitions (\$2,322 for the six months ended June 30, 2014 and \$841 for the year ended December 31, 2013), (b) the elimination of the actual change in fair value of the AHF contingent consideration liability (a \$321 expense for the six months ended June 30, 2014) and (c) the addition of the change in fair value of the AHF and MedPro contingent consideration liabilities on a pro forma basis (a \$298 expense for the six months ended June 30, 2014 and a \$913 expense for the year ended December 31, 2013).

Transaction costs are eliminated from the pro forma results as they do not represent recurring expenses. Changes in fair value of the contingent consideration liabilities include accretion of those liabilities at a 14.5% and 10.5% interest rate for AHF and MedPro, respectively.

DIPLOMAT PHARMACY, INC.

Notes to Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Consolidated Financial Information (Continued)

(Dollars in Thousands)

4. Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Consolidated Statements of Operations Adjustments (Continued)

- Reflects the net impact of the elimination of affiliate rental income (\$69 for the six months ended June 30, 2014 and \$229 for the year ended December 31, 2013) and affiliate depreciation expense (\$59 for the six months ended June 2014 and \$129 for the year ended December 31, 2013) associated with certain properties owned by consolidated affiliates of AHF and MedPro that we did not acquire in the related acquisitions from whom AHF and MedPro leased such properties. We have entered into external lease agreements with comparable terms on an ongoing basis.
- J Reflects interest expense on incremental borrowings at a 3.5% annual rate under our revolving line of credit to fund the cash portion of the AHF acquisition (\$406 for the year ended December 31, 2013). Also reflects interest expense on incremental borrowings at a 3.5% annual rate under our revolving line of credit to fund the cash portion of the MedPro acquisition (\$909 for the six months ended June 30, 2014 and \$1,819 for the year ended December 31, 2013).
- K Reflects income taxes associated with a) the operating results of AHF (\$1,452 for the year ended December 31, 2013), b) the operating results of MedPro (\$1,968 for the six months ended June 30, 2014 and \$6,790 for the year ended December 31, 2013) and c) the pro forma adjustments (\$(1,542) for the six months ended June 30, 2014 and \$(9,553) for the year ended December 31, 2013), at our estimated effective income tax rate of 36.8% for the six months ended June 30, 2014 and 35.4% for the year ended December 31, 2013.
- L Reflects the 84.31703 shares on a pre-split basis of Class B Nonvoting Common Stock issued to the sellers of MedPro as partial payment of the aggregate purchase price.
- C Corporation Adjustments:
- M Reflects our income tax expense as if we (combined with MedPro and AHF, as applicable) had been a C corporation for the entire period. For purposes of these adjustments, we used a 36.8% effective income tax rate (exclusive of permanent items) based on the actual effective tax rate for the period from January 23, 2014 through June 30, 2014 and a 35.4% effective income tax rate (exclusive of permanent items) based on the rate we would have experienced if we were a C corporation for all of 2013.

Notes to Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Consolidated Financial Information (Continued)

(Dollars in Thousands)

4. Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Consolidated Statements of Operations Adjustments (Continued)

Capital Stock Transactions:

- N Reflects (a) the elimination of the change in fair value of redeemable common shares and (b) the impact of all preferred stock being outstanding for the entire period offset by the elimination of any net income attributable to preferred shareholders due to the assumed conversion of all outstanding shares of redeemable common and preferred shares into common stock.
- O Reflects the additional shares of common stock resulting from the assumed conversion of all shares of preferred stock and from the assumed stock split offset by the reduction of common stock and common stock options caused by their redemption with certain proceeds from the preferred stock offerings.

Offering Transactions:

- P Reflects the elimination of all historical and pro forma interest expense due to the retirement of all outstanding debt with a portion of net proceeds to us from this offering.
- Q Reflects the income tax impact from eliminating all historical and pro forma interest expense.
- R Reflects the shares assumed to be issued by us in this offering.

E 07